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NOTICE
IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT OF 1990,
PERSONS IN NEED OF A SPECIAL ACCOMMODATION TO PARTICIPATE IN THE
PROCEEDINGS SHALL CONTACT THE OFFICE OF THE CITY MANAGER AT 561-8454010 NO LATER THAN 96 HOURS PRIOR TO THE PROCEEDINGS; IF HEARING
IMPAIRED, TELEPHONE THE FLORIDA RELAY SERVICES 1-800-955-8771 (TDD) OR
1-800-955-8770 (VOICE) FOR ASSISTANCE.

MAYOR:
THOMAS A. MASTERS
CHAIRPERSON:
CHAIR PRO-TEM:
DAWN S. PARDO - DISTRICT 4
COUNCILPERSONS
DISTRICT 1
JUDY L. DAVIS - DISTRICT 2
CEDRICK A. THOMAS - DISTRICT 3
DISTRICT 5
ADMINISTRATION:
RUTH C. JONES, CITY MANAGER
CARRIE E. WARD, MMC, CITY CLERK
PAMALA H. RYAN, CITY ATTORNEY
PLEASE TAKE NOTICE AND BE ADVISED, that if any interested person desires to appeal any
decision made by the City Council with respect to any matter considered at this meeting, such
interested person, at own expense, will need a record of the proceedings, and for such purpose may
need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony
and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based, pursuant to F.S. 286.0105.

LOBBYING - ORDINANCE 4001 - ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 2011
Lobbyist registration and reporting forms are available for you online and in print.
Forms can be obtained in the Office of the City Clerk & in the Council Chambers.
Registration and reporting forms shall be submitted to the Office of the City Clerk.

ANY PERSON WHO WOULD LIKE TO SPEAK ON AN AGENDA ITEM (NON-CONSENT
ITEMS ONLY), PLEASE FILL OUT A PINK PUBLIC COMMENT CARD LOCATED IN THE
BACK OF THE COUNCIL CHAMBERS AND GIVE IT TO THE LEGISLATIVE ASSISTANT
PRIOR TO THE BEGINNING OF THE MEETING; IN NO EVENT WILL ANYONE BE
ALLOWED TO SPEAK ON AN AGENDA ITEM AFTER THE RESOLUTION IS READ OR
ITEM CONSIDERED
CITY CLERK CALL TO ORDER
Roll Call
Invocation
Pledge of Allegiance
I

CITY CLERK SWEARS IN BY ADMINISTERING THE OATH OF OFFICE TO
THE NEWLY ELECTED COUNCILPERSONS BY DISTRICT; & PRESENTS
EACH OFFICE WITH AN ELECTION CERTIFICATE; THE CURRENT RIVIERA
BEACH CODE OF ORDINANCES, WITH THE CITY CHARTER; THE GUIDE
TO THE SUNSHINE AMENDMENT AND CODE OF ETHICS FOR PUBLIC
OFFICERS; AND THE FLORIDA MUNICIPAL OFFICIAL'S MANUAL
TO:MAYOR - CITY COUNCIL DISTRICT 1 - CITY COUNCIL DISTRICT 3 CITY COUNCIL DISTRICT 5 SEATING OF THE NEWLY ELECTED MAYOR
AND COUNCILPERSONS

II

CITY CLERK REQUESTS A MOTION OR NOMINATIONS FOR THE CITY
COUNCIL CHAIR.

III

NEWLY ELECTED CITY COUNCIL CHAIR REQUESTS A MOTION OR
NOMINATIONS FOR CITY COUNCIL CHAIR PRO-TEM. NEWLY ELECTED
CITY COUNCIL CHAIR PRESIDES

IV

MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL COMMENTS AND REMARKS

V

SPECIAL PUBLIC COMMENTS

AGENDA Approval: Additions, Deletions, Substitutions
Disclosure by Council
Adoption of Agenda
CONSENT AGENDA
ALL MATTERS LISTED U DER THIS ITEM ARE CO SIDERED TO BE ROUTI E
A D ACTIO WILL BE TAKE BY O E MOTIO . THERE WILL BE O SEPARATE
DISCUSSIO OF THESE ITEMS U LESS A COU CILPERSO SO REQUESTS, I
WHICH EVE T, THE ITEM WILL BE REMOVED FROM THE GE ERAL ORDER OF
BUSI ESS A D CO SIDERED I ITS ORMAL SEQUE CE O THE AGE DA.
MINUTES
1.

MINUTES OF THE JANUARY 2, 2013 REGULAR CITY
COUNCIL MEETING

2.

JANUARY 16, 2013 CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP MINUTES

3.

APPROVE THE JANUARY 30, 2013 CITY COUNCIL
WORKSHOP MINUTES

RESOLUTIONS
4.

RESOLUTION NO. _____ RESOLUTION OF THE CITY
COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF RIVIERA BEACH, PALM BEACH
COUNTY, FLORIDA, ACCEPTING THE GRANT FUNDS FROM
THE FLORIDA STATE AID TO LIBRARIES GRANT IN THE
AMOUNT OF $16,301.00; AUTHORIZING THE DIRECTOR OF
FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES TO SET UP A
BUDGET; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

5.

RESOLUTION NO. _____ A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY
COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF RIVIERA BEACH, PALM BEACH
COUNTY, FLORIDA, AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CITY
CLERK TO EXECUTE AN INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT
BETWEEN THE CITY OF RIVIERA BEACH AND THE BOARD
OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS, PALM BEACH COUNTY,
FOR CONTINUATION OF THE YOUTH EMPOWERMENT
TEEN CENTER IN THE AMOUNT OF $46,494; AUTHORIZING
THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATIVE
SERVICES TO SET UP A BUDGET FOR THE SAME; AND
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

6.

RESOLUTION NO. _____ A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY
COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF RIVIERA BEACH, PALM BEACH
COUNTY, FLORIDA, APPROVING THE DIRECT CONNECT
AGREEMENT WITH THE PALM BEACH COUNTY BOARD OF
COUNTY COMMISSIONERS TO AUTHORIZE CITY ACCESS
TO THE PUBLIC SAFETY RADIO SYSTEM; AUTHORIZING
THE MAYOR AND CITY CLERK TO SIGN SAID AGREEMENT;
AUTHORIZING THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE AND
ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES TO MAKE PAYMENT PER THE
TERMS OF THE AGREEMENT AND AUTHORIZE THE USE OF
STATE APPROVED $12.50 FUNDS; AND PROVIDING AN
EFFECTIVE DATE.

7.

RESOLUTION NO. _____ A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY
COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF RIVIERA BEACH, PALM BEACH
COUNTY, FLORIDA, ACCEPTING REIMBURSEMENT OF
GRANT FUNDS FROM PALM BEACH COUNTY 911
EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT IN THE AMOUNT OF $105,252
FOR PUBLIC SAFETY ANSWERING POINT (PSAP)
OPERATIONS; AUTHORIZING THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE
AND ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES TO INCREASE THE
FISCAL YEAR 2013 911 GRANT BUDGET FOR THE SAME;
AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

8.

RESOLUTION NO. _____ A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY
COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF RIVIERA BEACH, PALM BEACH
COUNTY, FLORIDA, APPROVING AN AGREEMENT
BETWEEN MJ PHOTOCOPY (MJP) ENTERPRISES, INC., AND
THE CITY OF RIVIERA BEACH, FLORIDA, FOR THE
MANAGEMENT AND SERVICING OF EQUIPMENT MJP
INSTALLED IN THE LIBRARY; AUTHORIZING THE

DIRECTOR OF FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES
TO ACCEPT COMMISSION THE LIBRARY RECEIVES
QUARTERLY FROM MJP; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE
DATE.
9.

A RESOLUTION NO. ______ OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF RIVIERA BEACH, PALM BEACH COUNTY,
FLORIDA, ADOPTING AN ETHICS TRAINING POLICY AND
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

10.

A RESOLUTION NO. ______ OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF RIVIERA BEACH, PALM BEACH COUNTY,
FLORIDA, AUTHORIZING SETTLEMENT IN THE MATTER OF
COLETTE O'NEILL V. THE CITY OF RIVIERA BEACH,
LIEUTENANT RENO WELLS, INDIVIDUALLY AND AS
LIEUTENANT FOR THE CITY OF RIVIERA BEACH AND
SERGEANT JOSHUA LEWIS, INDIVIDUALLY AND AS
SERGEANT FOR THE CITY OF RIVIERA BEACH, CASE NO.:
502012CA00080XXXXMB AF IN THE TOTAL AMOUNT OF
$45,000; AUTHORIZING GALLAGHER BASSETT TO MAKE
PAYMENT ON BEHALF OF THE CITY AFTER RECEIVING A
GENERAL RELEASE; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE
DATE.

11.

A RESOLUTION NO. ______ OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF RIVIERA BEACH, PALM BEACH COUNTY,
FLORIDA, REQUESTING AND AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR
TO SEND A WRITTEN REQUEST TO THE GOVERNOR AND
SECRETARY OF THE FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF
TRANSPORTATION, REQUESTING THAT THEY
REEVALUATE NOISE MITIGATION STRATEGIES ALONG SR
710, ALSO KNOWN AS DR. MARTIN LUTHER KING JR.
BOULEVARD; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

12.

A RESOLUTION NO. ______ OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF RIVIERA BEACH, PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA
AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO SUBMIT A GRANT
APPLICATION FOR $1,000,000 FOR REMEDIATION FOR
CONSTRUCTION OF PHASE B SOUTH END OF THE
MARINA, UNDER THE FLORIDA INLAND NAVIGATION
DISTRICT WATERWAYS ASSISTANCE PROGRAM; AND
UPON NOTIFICATION OF AWARD, ACCEPT THE GRANT
AND AUTHORIZE THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE AND
ADMINISTRATION TO ESTABLISH THE BUDGET; AND
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

PETITIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS FOR FILING
AWARDS AND PRESENTATIONS
PUBLIC HEARINGS
COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC -7:00 PM Non-Agenda or Consent Item Speakers
(Three Minute Limitation)
Please be reminded that the City Council has adopted a set of "Rules of Decorum
Governing Public Conduct during Official Meetings", which had been posted at the

entrance of the Council Chambers. In an effort to preserve order, if any of the rules are not
adhered to, the Council Chair may have any disruptive speaker removed from the podium,
from the meeting and/or the building, if necessary. Please govern yourselves accordingly.
Public Comments shall begin at 7:00 PM unless there is no further business of the City
Council, which in that event, it shall begin sooner. In addition; however, if an item is being
considered at 7:00 PM, then public comments shall begin immediately after the item has
been concluded.
REGULAR
13.

PRESENTATION REPRESENTING OVERVIEW OF OFFICE
ENVIRONMENT, STAFFING, BILLING, CASHIERING,
POLICIES, PROCEDURES, WORK FLOW, MANAGEMENT
TOOLS, UTILITY SPECIAL DISTRICT AND UTILITY BILLING
RELATIONS, BANKING SERVICES, TECHNOLOGY AND
CUSTOMERS RELATIVE TO CONCERNS, RESPONSES AND
RECOMMENDATIONS.

DISCUSSION AND DELIBERATION
COMMUNITY BENEFITS REQUEST
14.

CITY OF RIVIERA BEACH - MEMORIAL DAY TRIBUTE COUNCILWOMAN JUDY DAVIS

BOARD APPOINTMENTS
15.

BOARD APPOINTMENT TO THE PLANNING AND ZONING
BOARD TO FILL ONE REGULAR MEMBER POSITION AND
ONE ALTERNATE MEMBER POSITION.

DISCUSSION BY CITY MANAGER
LEGAL DISCUSSION/REQUEST
CITY COUNCIL COMMITTEE REPORTS
STATEMENTS BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL
ADJOURNMENT
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MINUTES OF OTHE JANUARY 2, 2013 CITY COUNCIL MEETING

CITY OF RIVIERA BEACH
PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA
CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 2, 2013 AT 5:30 P.M.
(The following may contain inaudible or misunderstood words due to the recording quality.)
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: About to call the meeting to order, please, everyone, and
good evening or good afternoon. Silence these cell phones. Uh, good afternoon to my
colleagues. I want to say that we were scheduled to have a -- a Utility District Board
meeting. However, the message, I think, didn't get to us in time, so we will, um, discuss
how we will plan to have, uh, the meeting. And I'd like to know if, uh, it would be okay if we
do this at our special meeting, which will be on 16th, if you would like to schedule a
meeting at 5:00?
CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: I don't -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Is that a -- Mr. Thomas, would that be -COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: That's fine with me.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Okay. Okay. So all right. Dr. Aurigemma, we'll -- we'll have
that meeting then. Okay. All right. So we get the notice out. Okay. Now, our regular
meeting for the City of Riviera Beach is now being called to order, and Madam Clerk, can
we have the roll call, please?
CITY CLERK WARD: Yes, ma'am. Mayor Thomas Masters?
MAYOR MASTERS: Present and Happy New Year.
CITY CLERK WARD: Chairperson Billie Brooks?
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Here.
CITY CLERK WARD: Chair Pro Tem Dawn Pardo?
CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: Present.
CITY CLERK WARD: Councilperson Judy Davis?
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Here.
CITY CLERK WARD: Councilperson Cedrick Thomas?
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Here.
CITY CLERK WARD: Councilperson Shelby Lowe? City Manager Ruth Jones?

CITY MANAGER JONES: Present.
CITY CLERK WARD: City Clerk Carrie Ward is present. City Attorney Pamala Ryan?
CITY ATTORNEY RYAN: Present.
CITY CLERK WARD: You have a quorum, Madam Chair, and you may proceed.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Thank you. And we will now stand for one Moment of
Silence for our invocation, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance led by our City Manager,
Miss Jones.
(Everyone stood for a Moment of Silence with the Pledge of Allegiance being led by City
Manager Ruth Jones).
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Miss Jones, do we have, um, any additions, deletions, or
substitutions?
CITY MANAGER JONES: Yes, we do, Madam Chair. Under, um, Awards and
Presentations, there are two items to add. Um, 5A is the introduction of the Honorable
Representative Bill Hager from District 89. Uh, I would also like to add a presentation, um,
5B, by the Mayor on his Veterans Affairs program.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Okay.
CITY MANAGER JONES: There are also three Community Benefit requests. Um, two
going to the Bobbie E. Brooks Memorial Scholarship Fund from Chair Brooks, and then
one to the Elegant Elite Generation Program, uh, sponsored by the Life Center
International Fellowship, um, which is a request of Mayor Masters.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Okay.
CITY MANAGER JONES: Those are the five additions for this evening. There's just one
revision in an item on the regular agenda, Item Number 8. Um, in the wording of the
resolution, we need to strike "to place in the general fund" and put other word "appropriate
fund." It is our understanding that, um, because of the way some of these transactions
took place, um, Housing Trust Fund and some other places, it didn't all just go straight
back to the General Fund. So by saying "appropriate fund" -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Appropriate. Okay.
CITY MANAGER JONES: -- you can put it back in the area for the replacement.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Okay.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Um, Madam -- Madam Chair?
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Yes, Miss Davis? Uh-huh.
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COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Um, Miss Jones, I had, uh, asked the Finance Department to
provide me the list of funds that the appropriations were going to come from. I have not
received that.
CITY MANAGER JONES: Okay. I will check with them on the -- on the different funding
sources.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: I'm sorry. That was on -CITY MANAGER JONES: Another one?
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: That was on, um, Item 2, I believe.
CITY MANAGER JONES: Oh, okay.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Okay. Sorry.
CITY MANAGER JONES: So that's the, um -- so that's just the one revision and the five
additions.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Okay. Um, now, we do need to get a motion now to approve
the agenda with all the additions so added.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Move agenda.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Need a second.
CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: Second.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Roll call, please.
CITY CLERK WARD: Councilperson Thomas?
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Yes.
CITY CLERK WARD: Councilperson Davis?
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Yes.
CITY CLERK WARD: Councilperson Pardo?
CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: Yes.
CITY CLERK WARD: Chair Brooks?
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Yes.
CITY CLERK WARD: Unanimous vote.
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CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Okay. Moving on to Consent, we don't have anything on the
Consent Agenda.
MAYOR MASTERS: That's good.
CITY MANAGER JONES: No, all of these are -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: I'm sorry. Do we? Hold on here.
CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: All the resolutions.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Oh, yeah, we do. Oh, got it now. All right. We're good.
Okay. All matters listed under this item are considered to be routine and action will be
taken by one motion. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a
councilperson so requests, in which event the item will be removed from the general order
of business and considered in its normal sequence on the agenda.
CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: Madam Chair?
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Yes.
CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: I'd like to pull Item 2, please.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Okay.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Um, I'd also like to pull Item 1.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Okay. Item 1 and 2 will be now moved down under the order
of regular business. Okay. So that will be 1 and 2. So now we need a motion to, um,
approve the remaining, uh, Consent Agenda items.
CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: So moved.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Second.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Roll call, please.
CITY CLERK WARD: Councilperson Thomas?
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Yes.
CITY CLERK WARD: Councilperson Davis.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Yes.
CITY CLERK WARD: Pro Tem Pardo?
CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: Yes.
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CITY CLERK WARD: Chair Brooks?
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Yes.
CITY CLERK WARD: Unanimous vote.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: No Petitions and Communications for filing?
CITY CLERK WARD: None.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Okay. Now we are at Awards and Presentations. So, you
wanna -- Item Number 5.
CITY CLERK WARD: Presentation by Councilperson Judy L. Davis to Claudius Nalls,
President of the Park Manor Neighborhood Association.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Good evening, everyone.
CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: Good evening.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: This evening I'd like to, um, tell you a little bit about the Park
Manor Neighborhood Association and its president. Um, this association was started in
2007 by our Mayor Masters and others, uh, who lived within the Park Manor
neighborhood, um, boundary area. And since that time Mr. Claudius Nalls has served as
president and is nearing the end of his third term.
Uh, Park Manor has, um -- they've designed their own T-shirts, um, they've obtained signs
that they put out every, um, meeting date to notify members of, uh, the meeting, and, uh,
they do things like notify the residents of the, uh, boundaries of the Park Manor
Neighborhood Association. Um, they meet with the Police Chief and Code Enforcement to
address issues, uh, of concerns to residents and make, uh, charitable contributions to, uh,
such organizations that do, you know, Christmas for -- Christmas for, um, children and
other things in the city.
Mr. Nalls spends many hours on the phone calling members. You know how we are.
Sometimes, uh, they need a little bit of pushing, and he -- he spends those hours on the
phone to do that. He's invaluable in his role as president to the Park Manor Neighborhood
Association. And for his efforts I'd like to present him with an award to show our
appreciation -- to show our appreciation for all the work that he does. Mr. Nalls, would you
please come up? I'm gonna read this. It says, "Claudius Nalls, for committed -- for
committed service as president of the Park Manor Neighborhood Association, 2013.
Councilwoman Judy Davis. Would you like to say a few words?
CLAUDIUS NALLS: Okay. Uh, to our Honorable Mayor and -MAYOR MASTERS: Thank you.
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CLAUDIUS NALLS: -- uh, uh, for, uh, our beautiful councilpeople who work tirelessly, uh,
to bring forth some credibility and, uh, with good work ethics, uh, to our city, we appreciate
you. Thank you for your tireless work and dedication. I do appreciate, Miss Davis, for
thinking of Park Manor Neighborhood Association. One thing that -- I won't take long -one thing that Mayor Masters did say, he said, "Well, you president. You will work." So
that was the truth, because when you take on that role, you take on the whole thing pretty
much, but we appreciate those members here in Park Manor for their tireless efforts.
We need more people to come out and -- and help us. There's an old adage I think we
can all attest to that the work is plenteous, but the labors are few. We need more workers
to help the City to maintain good ethics and good credibility, and we've got to do that by
working and not complaining about what the City Council do not do. We need to come out
and help our councilpeople, like we help the country, to do things that we can have some
notoriety here in our city.
It's -- the possibilities here are good. That's why I work so hard with them, because the
possibilities are good. And I see that in my daily efforts in the city. So we need to come
together with love and without so much hate and animosity. With love. And break -- come
together and work with our city to help our officials to make this a better place to work and
live.
I thank you all for this, and I appreciate it. Um, we will continue that until my last say, I
guess, in August. Thank you very much.
MAYOR MASTERS: Mr. Nalls, stay -- stay there for a second. Madam Chair?
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Yes, Mayor.
MAYOR MASTERS: Mr. Nalls, I just wanted to say this to you. Um, I remember when we
helped organize the rebirth of that Park Manor group. And -- and when I, um, first ran for
mayor I had to pass the torch on to you, and you make me very proud and humble to
know that you carried the torch, and Park Manor is the largest, I believe, neighborhood
group association we have in Riviera Beach. So thank you for accepting the torch and
doing a splendid job. Tell everybody in Park Manor I said hello.
CLAUDIUS NALLS: Thank you, Mr. Mayor.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: All right. Thank you. And we want it to be larger. I -- and I'd
just like -- I forgot to say that the Park Manor Neighborhood Association boundary areas
are -- they run from Silver Beach Road, um, to the north, um, and to the east is Broadway.
Um, to the south is, um -- what is it, 16th?
CLAUDIUS NALLS: 13th.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: 13th Street. And to the west is the FEC railroad tracks.
MAYOR MASTERS: That's why it's so large.
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COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Yes.
MAYOR MASTERS: It's got a lot of area.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: All right.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Madam Chair?
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Yes, Mr. Thomas.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Uh, Mr. Nalls, I just want to say, uh, congratulations to
you on your award. It's, uh, much deserved, and we appreciate your hard, uh, work and
your continuous effort. So, um, I just would like to say congratulations on that.
CLAUDIUS NALLS: Thank you.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: And I, too, Mr. Nalls, would like to say congratulations. And I
know you have a heart for this city, and you give -- what you do is from the heart. You
don't get paid. Your pay is to see the city progress, and we thank you for what you do.
CLAUDIUS NALLS: Thank you.
CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: Congratulations, sir.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Congratulations, yes. Um, next we have, um -- we're gonna
introduce, um, the Honorable Representative Bill Hager.
CITY CLERK WARD: Madam Chair?
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Yes.
CITY CLERK WARD: Let the records reflect that Councilperson Lowe is present.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Very good.
COUNCILPERSON LOWE: Thank you.
REPRESENTATIVE HAGER: Good evening and, uh -CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: Good evening.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Good evening.
REPRESENTATIVE HAGER: -- thank you very much for this opportunity. My name is
Bill Hager. I am State Representative for House District 89. House District 89 includes
and begins on the north at Riviera Beach, in particular, Singer Island, picks up all of, uh,
Palm Beach Islands, portions of, uh, West Palm Beach, and then hugs the coast, uh, all
the way down to, uh, Boca Raton. So it is a privilege to be here. I represented that district
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in the, uh -- the previous electoral period and, uh, Riviera Beach and Palm Beach Island
were added to the district with, uh, redistricting. So it's an honor to be in front of you.
And, uh, as an individual who spent seven years as an elected member of the City Council
of Boca Raton, I'm here, as well, Mayor and Town Councilpersons, to, uh, thank you for,
uh -- for your service, because I know the work and the joy and all of the thankfulness you
receive for, uh -- for sitting back there. And, uh, no humor in any of that.
And Mayor, I see you're running for re-election. I saw your line -- your -- your signs on the
way in. And, uh, best of -- best of results.
MAYOR MASTERS: I just need your vote, that's all.
REPRESENTATIVE HAGER: Happy to provide it such as I can. My priorities, uh, in
connection with this community and the broader communities that I serve are very
straightforward, very simple, and they are beach renourishment. I am committed to beach
renourishment. Uh, again, as -- after seven years with the City Council of Boca Raton I
voted, uh, consistently for beach renourishment. I respect and understand the value of our
beaches from an environmental standpoint, the value of our beaches from a, uh, tourist
standpoint, from an economic standpoint, and I, uh, respect and recognize the value of our
beeches with respect to a, uh, part of nature and part of our lifestyle.
So you have my commitment. And, uh, apropos to that, uh, in a week or so I'll be meeting
with, uh, Deputy Secretary Jeff Littlejohn specifically about, uh, beach renourishment here
and, uh, in -- in our district. Another priority that I will walk and work with you, and that is
the, uh, Port of Palm Beach, uh, and I appreciate its -- its position, if you will, from a
geographic standpoint with respect to this, uh, community.
Um, again, as somebody that sat where you did when people like me got up and spoke, I
always prayed that they would speak in a very short and brief fashion, so that is my
commitment. I am finished. I'll be happy to field any questions. Like each of you, I'm on
my iPhone 24 by 7, so imminently available and, uh, committed to the, uh, job to which I've
been elected. So thank you for the, uh, privilege to be here. I'll be happy to respond to
any questions.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Well, we thank you so much for coming, and you can rest
assured that we're gonna bend your ear. We're gonna need your help, um, over here -REPRESENTATIVE HAGER: Oh, (inaudible).
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: -- with all the projects that -- that we have. And, uh, so we're
-- we're thankful that you took the time to come out and talk -- talk with us and, you know,
share your mutual concerns for our city. And, um, we just thank you. And I'll need your
phone number so that we'll know how to reach you.
REPRESENTATIVE HAGER: You'll get it. Uh, I'll communicate it to you.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Okay. Very good.
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MAYOR MASTERS: Madam Chair?
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Yes, Mayor.
MAYOR MASTERS: Yes. I want to, um, welcome you to -- to the new position and, um,
I'm just thankful that I was, um, on the right side of the issue, and with you, and you won.
Uh, secondly, as you know, um, Dawn Pardo and I have been very progressive and
actively involved with -- with the beach, um, situation. And we met with Congressman
Murphy.
REPRESENTATIVE HAGER: Uh-huh.
MAYOR MASTERS: Um, you might want to give him a call. He's also going to be
working on the federal level.
REPRESENTATIVE HAGER: Yes.
MAYOR MASTERS: To make sure that we get a permanent solution to the problem that
we have on -- on the island, which is in the best interests. So to know that you're on
board, and the congressman's on the board, and we're all working together to make it
happen as fast as we can.
REPRESENTATIVE HAGER: Full -- fully agree. And I -- my commitment is to remain on
the same page as the, uh -- this community -MAYOR MASTERS: Absolutely.
REPRESENTATIVE HAGER: -- and the, uh -- the needs.
MAYOR MASTERS: Thank you so much, sir.
REPRESENTATIVE HAGER: Thank you, Mayor.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Thank you for coming, sir.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Thank you so much, sir.
CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: And I'll just mention, um, I know Representative Hager and,
um, I am really looking forward to working with him. He did a great job down south. Uh,
he's very respected in the southern community and, um -- and like he said, he knows
about beaches. And, um, he's walked our beaches, he's heard from the residents over on
Singer Island, what their concerns are, so sir, I look forward to working with you. And, you
know, maybe in the next two years we'll be able to get a permanent solution with your
help.
REPRESENTATIVE HAGER: Let's -- let's get it done. Thank you.
CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: Thank you, sir.
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CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Now we will have a presentation by Office of the Mayor on
Veterans Affairs.
MAYOR MASTERS: Thank you, Madam -- Madam Chair. Um, well, since I'm up here let
me just say this. First of all, we are -- as -- as you know, Madam Chair, the -- the Office of
the Mayor is very, very busy in the community. Uh, we are doing all that we can to make
sure that we don't leave anybody behind, that -- to put people first, people above politics.
Whether it's veterans, whether it's senior citizens, uh, whether it's, uh, talking about
protecting, uh, the safety of our children as much as possible in public schools, um, and
whether it's the beach situation, we always want to make sure that what we're doing is,
um, certainly the voice of the people.
And having said that, I became really convicted after hearing, um, the First Lady speak,
Michelle Obama, um, and the President, and also other elected officials about how
shameful it is getting that the -- the country, the number one country in the world, um, the
country of the free and the home of the brave, that we have many women that are fighting
for our country to be free, to stay free, as well as other nations, and yet our veterans come
home, uh, shamefully; many times can't get a job, uh, housing situation is terrible, some of
them are homeless. Um, never again should we ever allow this to happen to our veterans
in America. And the President is going to continue to do all that he can do from a federal
perspective to make sure as we talk about the No Child is Left Behind, that we respect the
integrity of our senior citizens in the golden years, and others, that we certainly remember
our veterans, because after all, if it had not been for them, uh, maybe we would not be as
free as we are.
One of the things that I realize that as a city, that we didn't really have any kind of program
or project to address -- to address this in the city. So I sought out people in the community
that are connected with the veterans, and American Legion, and the other organizations
that are already set up, and also went on the Internet and found out that several cities in
America, including Washington, D.C., including, I think, Dallas, uh, have an Office, uh, of -of Veteran Affairs within the Office of the Mayor. Uh, so I did my homework and went out
and said, Well, let's make it happen in Riviera Beach that none of our veterans will come
to this city and not be, uh, left behind, that they will have the respect and the dignity. And
the Mayor has a fiduciary duty and obligation and responsibility to make sure that the
veterans that return to Riviera Beach, that we do all that we can to get them on their feet
and help them stay on their feet.
So I've, uh -- we've done it and I've literally given my desk, my computer, my phone, the
office over to volunteers who man -- and of course, my Chief of Staff, Debbie LeBlancIsaacs is there to make sure it happens. Um, and they run me out and they tell me come
back in four hours or whatever. I say, Okay. So I do the work out in the field. They do it
inside. And Debbie is here, taking care of the other businesses of the Office of the Mayor.
So I've asked, uh, Kelly Morrison, uh, to come at this time and share with the residents of
the City of Riviera Beach what we're doing through the Office of the Mayor, or attempting
to do. Thank you, Miss Morrison. Let's give her a hand, please. She's here to help our
veterans.
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KELLY MORRISON: Thank you. Happy New Year, Mayor, Councilmen.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Thank you.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Thank you.
KELLY MORRISON: My name is Kelly Morrison. I am a veteran, and I have worked with
Mayor Masters for years on what we were at that time doing a job fair through the
American Legion called Leave No Soldier Behind-Hire A Hero. I left the state for four
years and received a phone call about two and a half weeks ago. Didn't know the phone
number, and apparently Mayor Masters had gone to my Legion saying he wanted Kelly
Morrison. They gave my number out, and he asked me to take charge.
We have called it Mayor's Office of Veteran Affairs, with the due diligence that Mayor
Masters was doing, and also with all our backgrounds that we have in volunteers. We
came up with a mission statement, and I'd like to read it to you. "The Riviera Beach
Mayor's Office of Veterans Affairs," short we call it MOVA. "The mission of the Riviera
Beach Mayor's Office of Veterans Affairs is to effectively advocate on behalf of the Riviera
Beach veterans and their immediate -- excuse me -- immediate family members to assist
them in obtaining their earned veterans services and benefits. Additionally, MOVA will
recognize the military service and sacrifice of our veterans in our local community in
veteran commemorative events.
MOVA will continue its mission to achieve the following: Assist veterans and their families
in obtaining federal and local veteran benefit entitlements and services; serve as a
clearinghouse for providing information and assistance on veterans and benefits and
services; maintain partnerships with county, state, national veterans service organizations,
federal agencies in providing information and assistance to our heroes; solicit services
from our other governmental agencies to assist the veterans, their dependents, survivors,
military service members to obtain veteran benefit entitlements."
We do work volunteer. I have a total of seven volunteers, and we work from 9:30 to 3:30
in the afternoon. Now, we're not all here. Some of us are out in the field. I have some
that go in areas, so I have people that are their body guards, seriously, that help them out
tremendously. We have searched and we've got over 800 pages of food banks, people
that will take the day care for the female veterans that are job searching, or the male
veterans that have children at home.
We have found what days they serve, who they serve, how they can be served. We have
gotten contacts and bridges with the V.A. Hospital, with all the counseling. We have pro
bono lawyers, and this is all to -- to help our veterans. We also have in the works here
locally in Riviera Beach, because there isn't one, is a veteran homeless place where they
can go to stay to get back on their feet. Right now we're working between one and four
soldiers or heroes. But as we increase, they'll increase. They'll have the time to get back
on their feet, they'll have financial counseling, a roof over their head, with the certain
guidelines they have to follow; maintain a job, remain off any, you know, alcohol or drugs
that they do have. And right now that is in the works.
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We have a website coming up. We have flyers going out and word of mouth, but what we
are in need of is veterans. We need veterans to help us that understand, or if -- if they're
not veterans, just people with the compassion to sit down and understand what our people
are going through. We've been up for two and a half weeks. Right now we have a total of
180 volunteer hours. That is a lot of hours that we've put up. I'm willing to do it. They're
my heroes. And I was one of them; they're one of me.
And anybody that can help in any time, the telephone number they can call is 845 -excuse me -- 4031. Just call that number, leave a message. I will return the calls,
because I'm work -- I work 24/7. It doesn't matter. But the heroes come first. I still stand
by Leave No Soldier Behind. Thank you.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Thank you so much.
MAYOR MASTERS: I'm sure this does, uh, the heart of Judy Davis and Shelby Lowe,
who both served our country very honorably, to know that we have a Veterans Office now.
One of the things that we are going to -- to do is to make sure that on the passing of any of
our veterans, that our city is represented, that we're there at the, uh, funeral service, and
that a tribute or proclamation, whichever the City Clerk would deem appropriate, is read on
behalf of the veterans and the residents of our city.
And we have started that process already in memorializing, um, a young man who went
on to be with the Lord, who was one of the veterans from World War II. And his widow is
here tonight, and the family members. I shall ask them to come at this time as we shall
read a tribute in memory of one of our own World War II veterans who went on to be with
the Lord recently, a few weeks ago. So I'll ask the widow, Mrs. Sweeting, if you would
come, and family members can gather.
MRS. SWEETING: Yes.
MAYOR MASTERS: This is a picture of your husband, who served our country, World
War II.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Wait a minute. I just realized (inaudible) -- that's combat.
MAYOR MASTERS: Let's give her a hand for -- for that. As we give tribute to -- in his
memory, and to you, Mrs. Sweeting, and to the entire family from the Office of the Mayor.
And also, I'm sure, our City Counsel embraces, uh, our efforts, as well.
From the City Council, uh, Palm Beach County, Florida. "Whereas Joseph Sweeting,
Junior --" Debbie, you need to come over here 'cause you know I don't know these big
words, so come over here. I can't pronounce all these big words. You know, I'm not as
literate as you are. So you stand close by.
"-- the third child of Joseph, Senior, and Charlotte Sweeting, began his life on May 12th,
1926, in Stuart, Florida. He moved to Riviera Beach more than seven years ago and
lived in our beautiful waterfront city until his death just days before this past
Thanksgiving; and
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"Whereas Joseph, Junior, also known as Skip, answered the call to serve and protect
his country at an early age, entering the military at 19 years of age driving light trucks
for the 598th Quartermaster Laundry Company. Skip actively served with the Army Red
Jacket Brigade -DEBBIE LEBLANC-ISAACS: Brigade, yes.
MAYOR MASTERS: "-- during World War II --" told you to stand close by -- earning -she's gonna get me militarized here "-- earning the Victory Medal and Occupation Medal
in Germany, a part of history that was never included in our textbooks, but we include it
tonight. Receiving an honorable discharge on November the 4th, 1956, the Private E-2
left Fort Bragg, North Carolina, heading south for Florida and never looked back; and
"Whereas -DEBBIE LEBLANC-ISAACS: "-- before signing up for the military, and the very day
after returning home, Joseph worked for the Breakers West Golf Course. Taking great
pride in his job and responsibilities, Skip learned every part of the golf course operation,
from setting the cups and tee markers to knowing which clubs were best to avoid all the
bunkers, right down to the handling of the insecticides, a versatility which served him
well for 43 years, always having work to do and never being laid off. Apparently Joseph
never forgot one other lesson from his military training. It was said that one could set
their watch according to his word, because he was known for always being punctual,
honest, and above all, loyal; and
"Whereas Joseph Sweeting, Jr., was truly a blessed man, having met and married his
soulmate, Lucille Young, who started volunteering at the American Legion in 1972, the
year before they wed. Having been the first black woman to integrate the Auxiliary Post
268 in Riviera Beach, next to Wells Recreation, Mrs. Sweeting also chose that site to
start the first Back To School drive more than 20 years ago. She also is honored.
"At age 86 Joseph answered his final call to serve in God's heavenly army on
November 19th, 2012, leaving to forever cherish his memory his loving wife of 42 years,
Lucille Young Sweeting, his children, their spouses, grandchildren, and other relatives
and many sorrowing friends."
MAYOR MASTERS: Thank you. And this is the type of thing that we will continue as -as from the Office of the Mayor, honoring our veterans and their service. So therefore,
you being the first family, now, therefore, "I, Thomas A. Masters, Mayor of the City of
Riviera Beach, by the power vested in me by the citizens of our great city, do hereby
pay special tribute to your family, to World War II Army veteran, Joseph Sweeting, Jr., in
his memory, on this second day of January, 2013 A.D., in the honor of his service to this
country and fellow countrymen in the military forces of these great United States of
America." I want to thank our Honorable City Clerk Carrie Ward for making this
possible, as well. "In witness whereof I have hereunto set my hand and caused the
official seal of the City of Riviera Beach, Florida, to be affixed on this 2nd day of January,
2013
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--" it's got 12, but I gotta get used to saying 13 "-- A.D., Carrie E. Ward, MMC, City
Clerk, Mayor Thomas A. Masters."
And Mrs. Sweeting, I'm gonna tell you what Jesse Jackson told a young lady. I was
with him. We were in Tallahassee on some march or something. He looked over and
saw this young lady, and she was smoking a cigarette. And he said to her, "You're too
cute to smoke." So I'm gonna say, "You're too cute to cry." Is there a representative of
the family that would like to speak briefly?
JENNIFER DEMPSEY-SWEETING: Yes, she asked me to speak.
MAYOR MASTERS: Okay.
JENNIFER DEMPSEY-SWEETING: Um, good afternoon. Um, good afternoon. I'm
Jennifer Dempsey-Sweeting. Um, I'm the middle child of Lucille and Joseph. Um, on
behalf -- first of all, I want to give honor to God and give honor to Mayor Masters, um,
and a blessing to our family and the rest of you, um, 'cause we've been in Riviera Beach
-- I'm 45. So we've been here a very long time. Um, so we want to thank you all on
behalf of the Sweeting family for honoring my dad, for -- for having a wonderful city, and
continue to let us be a part of it. So we grew up here, and thank you. God bless
everyone.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Thank you.
MAYOR MASTERS: Madam Chair, this ends our report.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Okay.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Madam Chair?
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Yes, Miss Davis.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Um, to the Sweeting family, um, I just wanted to make it
known that -- um, Memorial Day last year was the first time that it was done, but we do
a flag planting, uh, to memorialize those who have died in the line of duty, or -- or
otherwise. Um, last year we didn't have very many volunteers. I think there were like
maybe four of us, uh, who planted all of those flags that you saw out there, um, um, in
front of City Hall. So I would love to see you guys back in May -JENNIFER DEMPSEY-SWEETING: Okay. I will make it my business to be -COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: -- uh, to assist with this effort. It would -- it would mean a
lot.
JENNIFER DEMPSEY-SWEETING: Okay.
MAYOR MASTERS: Thank you.
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JENNIFER DEMPSEY-SWEETING: Thank you.
MAYOR MASTERS: Thank you.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Thank you. Thank you, Mayor.
MAYOR MASTERS: You're welcome.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Now we're at Public Hearings.
CITY CLERK WARD: Yes, we are.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Item number six.
CITY CLERK WARD: Resolution 05-13, a resolution of the City Council of the City of
Riviera Beach, Palm Beach County, Florida, approving an amendment to the
Mediterranea Residential Planning Unit development site plan, and providing an
effective date.
CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: So moved.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Second.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Okay. Will there be a -- good. A presentation.
BRAD STEIN: Good evening. Brad Stein, Principal Planner with the City. Um, I'd also
like to thank the Sweeting family for coming in. I am a veteran myself, and I, uh -- I was
really touched by that. Thank you.
Um, tonight we're going to discuss the, uh, amendment to the Mediterranea RPUD. Uh,
the applicant is the BTI Partners, and they're requesting the amendment to the
Mediterranea RPUD. And, uh, the modification is to the, um, structure itself, the
residential building, and the unit types from what was previously approved, the 968 fee
simple townhomes, to, uh, low-rise luxury apartments that will incorporate one, two, and
three-bedroom units in a variety of building types. The proposed development will have
approximately, uh, 1,038 total units, uh, including the 98 townhome units that have been
constructed in the northwest corner of the site. And, uh, an initial 30 lots available for
additional townhomes and 910 apartments.
Um, the original RPUD was approved by Resolutions 162-502 on September 21st, 2005,
and again, um, Phase 2 by Resolution 129-06 on September 6th, um, 2006, for the
original 968 fee simple townhomes that were approved. The Planning & Zoning Board
reviewed this on December 13th and recommended approval, and, um, staff would like
to recommend approval for the proposed amendment to the Mediterranea, um,
Residential Planned Unit Development with the following conditions.
Um, condition number 1, construction must be initiated within 18 months of the effective
date of the resolution in accordance with Section 31-60A of the City's Code of
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Ordinance. Uh, condition number 2, a two-year landscaping bond be provided, um, for
110 percent of the value of the landscaping and irrigation before a Certificate of
Occupancy is issued. Um, recommendation number 3, each phase of the plan must be
reviewed by the Planning & Zoning Board and the City Council for approval prior to any
building permit being issued for each phase. And, um, recommendation number 4, that
the developer must provide a northbound turning lane for the project, um, going north
on Military Trail. And condition number 5, final condition, the property owner shall fund
the cost of a signal for the installation of the project at the main access on Military Trail.
Um, tonight we have, um, Brian Cheguis with Cotleur & Hearing here and, uh, I'll let him
introduce the rest of his crew. Um, and he has a presentation on the project. Let me
see if I can get the presentation up here. I don't know if you just wanna run it right off of
there, because it's not -BRIAN CHEGUIS: Oh, sure.
BRAD STEIN: You can pull it up and then (inaudible). Pull it up (inaudible).
BRIAN CHEGUIS: There it is. That's good.
BRAD STEIN: (Inaudible).
BRIAN CHEGUIS: Thanks, Brad. Uh, good evening members of, uh, the Council. Um,
for the record, Brian Cheguis with Cotleur & Hearing. I'm here this evening, as Brad
mentioned, uh, uh, requesting a, uh, amendment to the Mediterranea PUD. I won't go
over any of the history of the project. Uh, this project was, uh, approved a few years
back. It's been amended since then. And, uh, the amendments that we're asking for
tonight, uh, are -- are relatively minor in nature, um, but we want to explain to you what
they are, because we want to have, uh -- we're requesting one modification to one of
the conditions of approval.
Uh, the folks that are bringing this forward are the new property owners, BTI Partners.
Um, Mr. Beck Daniel is the Senior Asset Manager, and he's here this evening from -from, uh, BTI Partners. Um, as well, Mr. Donaldson Hearing from Cotleur & Hearing, as
well, is with us, uh, to speak to anything that, uh, you may have specific questions on
regarding the site layout or with the planning of the project.
Very simply, we're asking to modify the types of units that were previously approved, uh,
to a more efficient luxury apartment, um, concept layout. Um, and I'm going to show
you some slides that we showed the Planning & Zoning Board to give them a comfort
level with respect to the type of architecture that would be proposed and, uh, the -- what
is gained by modifying the PUD to bring it to market with a product that's more, um,
comparable with what -- what -- what -- what's in demand, uh, today. Uh, the second
part of the request is, uh, just a slight increase in the residential density from a low 14
units to the acre, to a high 14.9, just under 15 units to the acre, which changes it from
968 approved units to 1,038.
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Quick comparison, left to right, what exists today is the 968 dwelling units. We're asking
for those additional units due to the efficiency of the design and the density increases.
However, what we gain by the redesign is the existing 1.67 acres of recreational area is
now increased with an additional 4.08 acres of preserve and natural land that gets
incorporated into the design, and I -- and -- and I'm gonna walk you through that. As
well, the lake area is increased from about eight and a half acres to just over ten and a
half acres.
Who is BTI Partners? Um, the Planning & Zoning Board wanted more information
about this new, uh, property owner. They're, um, a -- a large residential, uh, uh, real
estate land owner/developer and asset management firm here in South Florida. They
have, um, over 6,500 acres of land, uh, at -- within their portfolio, 13,000 residential
units, and over 2,000,000 square feet of commercial and retail development either built
or in process or approved. Uh, and it ranges from single family homes, multi-family
homes, mixed-use projects, and commercial projects. They bring, uh, 25 years of, uh,
track history in Florida to the City and to this specific project. Um, and, uh, by retooling
this project and bringing it to market we're gonna, um, get this project developed, in the
ground, and -- and then sort of moving forward.
Some of the products that they're working on, where their working, from Miami through
Tamiami, in Orlando, uh, up through Sarasota and Tampa. They have large-scale
projects with hundreds of acres. Again, these are some examples, just a few examples
of their large-scale residential and mixed-use projects.
Here's our project, here in Riviera Beach. Um, we are, um, um, located, uh, between
Military Trail and I-95 from our -- from west to east. Uh, to our west is Woodbine
Commons and, uh, the Woodbine communities to the north, uh, a range of residential
and commercial developments, Mystic Woods, Villa Palms, and the, uh, Palm Beach
Golf Center. South of us is the, uh, Palm Beach County unincorporated Palm Lake Coop trailer park and I-95 to our -- to our east.
Uh, I'm gonna walk you through -- it was approved, well, last approved plan, we colored
it so you can understand sort of what all was previously approved by the, uh -- the
Council. This is, um -- this is the, um, original plan, which shows townhouse units that -that basically front onto a series of spider web of roads and driveways. I really don't
have any discernible hierarchy. Uh, as you come into the community, you're right into,
uh, uh, buildings and, um, then the network of roadways that were, uh -- that were
designed, you know, units that go from end-to-end within the, uh, development. You
can see, uh, there's no spare land. Uh, the 968 units fit within this program because
they're townhouse style units. The north end of the project, there was a -- a large fourstory, uh, um -- uh, fee simple type townhouse, uh, development, larger buildings along
that northern property boundary.
What's being proposed is cleaning up the, um -- the, uh, site plan, maintaining the
overall shape, but reorganizing it with a clear and well-defined, um, circulation
hierarchy. Um, this is one main loop road -- it's a tree-lined boulevard -- that basically
takes you to the entrance of individual communities or pods within the development.
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Um, uh, each pod has been, uh, uh, programmed with a certain number of units, a
certain amount of land area, a certain amount of, um, um, amenity space set aside for it,
so it stands on its own and, uh, clearly maintains the existing approval. This just
organizes it much more efficiently.
What do we gain? What you see highlighted in green is all that additional natural land
that we set aside that we were gonna use for passive parks by paths, walking paths to
get you from community to community, or to some of the larger public amenity spaces
and, uh, recreation facilities within the community.
Um, with that we were asked to provide a site plan, and this site plan lays out how 1,038
units would look on the site. That's three-story type apartment buildings. Um, and -and I'll -- I'll quickly walk you through that. Um, coming in from Military Trail, you -- the
first decision point, you come in, um, to your left on the northwest corner of the existing
townhouses that were developed within that front pod, um, in the ground today. Again,
those -- those stand, um, as their own pod, uh, of development.
As you move from Pod A to B, these are defined as larger pods with a common
recreation element. That -- that -- that orange block. And you know, that has 88 units
and 72 units approved, uh, within them. The lake feature up to the road, um, uh,
properties have their front on lakes or on green space, so, um, everyone has their own
amenities within a pod or, um, the general, uh, communal facilities.
Large pods, again, coming to these two, uh, um, um, C and D. Again, larger numbers
of units, potential, uh, roadway features where the entrances come in at the same point,
so we have a four-way intersection type layout. Special features of bridges over
waterways, uh, for these pods. As you come around, the same kinds of units, threestory walk-up type product, um, all -- throughout the whole development in, uh, just
slightly variation in the -- in -- in the style of architecture, and again, another common
area, um, amenity rec space at the north end of the project, and then out to Military
Trail.
So very simple, this is a master plan amendment and, um, with that we provided
architecture to show the Planning & Zoning Board so they understood what the typology
of the buildings were, how they would be programmed. Uh, we showed them images of
three-story product in the configuration that you would -- could potentially see them on
any of the given pods when a builder -- or builders take over, uh, an individual pod to
develop. This is one looking over, uh, potentially Pod I, over -- overlooking a, uh, lake.
This element shows the same kind of three-story product which overlooks a central
courtyard. Again, the landscaping isn't defined, but this is what could be achieved with
respect to a central courtyard being, um, a -- a green space amenity for a -- a -- a
particular pod. Um, in this case it would be Pod F, with two buildings fronting onto the
green space.
Some of the architectural amenities that would be reviewed by staff, um, you know, the
articulation of the buildings, vertical and horizontal articulation, decorative railings,
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shutters. All those elements come into play as -- at -- at the site plan review. And, um,
this image is, uh, one of the green space that has been picked up or achieved by the
more efficient design. If they're not overlooking a lake, they're overlooking this preserve
area, again, with the paths of -- uh, pathways through it connecting the pods. The
individual pods would have smaller recreational buildings, pool, uh, outdoor lanai,
outdoor barbecue, bathrooms, uh, for their, uh, community's benefit.
Five conditions of approval were proposed as part of this. The applicant has no
problems with conditions 1, 2, 4 and 5. Uh, we're asking simply for a slight modification
to condition number 3. Uh, as each pod comes through, we're proposing the language,
uh, instead of every phase or pod coming back to Planning & Zoning, coming back to
City Council just for an architectural type review based on having a site plan layout and
the architectural style defined and shown to everyone, uh, we're asking that it remain at
staff level review. However, we have no problem if staff feels that something doesn't
jive with what was approved, or there's a modification being requested, that it
automatically get bumped up to Planning & Zoning and the City Council for
reconsideration. But if it stays along the same intensity and density of development,
and the same type of layout we are asking, where, um -- where those material changes
don't exist, that it remain at a staff level, uh, for review for these individual pods.
Why is that? It will get this project to market faster. It will get jobs going. It will get tax
revenues, uh, generated, uh, and it won't add a layer of oversight that we think your
professional staff can handle, and, uh, has the code in place and the protections in
place to be able to use as their guide. If anything does come along that they feel
requires special attention, it automatically can get bumped up to, uh -- to the, uh -- the,
uh, Planning & Zoning Board and the, um, uh, City Council.
So with that, we're asking for your approval this evening with this, uh, modification to the
Mediterranea PUD, uh, and we are here to answer any questions that you might have.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Madam Chair?
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Yes, Miss Davis.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Okay. That -- go -- go -- could you go back to that number
3, um, um, item of concern?
BRIAN CHEGUIS: Oh, yes.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Okay. Basically, this is saying that each phase of the plan
must be reviewed by the Planning & Zoning. Are you saying that if there are any -BRIAN CHEGUIS: That's the same condition already.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Would this affect the footprint of any buildings?
BRIAN CHEGUIS: Correct. If -- if -- if the buildings come in and there's a material
change in the layout of the site plan or the intensity or -REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING
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COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Okay. When you say -- when you say "layout of the -- of
the site plan," you're -- are you talking about the actual footprint or are you talking about
modifications to the inside of the property?
BRIAN CHEGUIS: We're talking to the -- the inside of the property, to the -- to -- to the
pod itself. Whatever pod is coming through -- they're calling it a phase; we're calling
them pods. The pod comes through -COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Uh-huh.
BRIAN CHEGUIS: -- and it materially has the buildings in the same location -COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Uh-huh.
BRIAN CHEGUIS: -- and the parking in the same location, and the green space, we
think that staff can handle a staff level -- a staff review -- a site plan review as they
normally would. Uh, but if a -- if a building typology changes and it changes the shape
of that pod that has been shown to everyone and staff has agreed to, and everyone has
approved, then by all means, that's a pod that -COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Right.
BRIAN CHEGUIS: -- would have to get bumped up -COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Right.
BRIAN CHEGUIS: -- to -- for Planning & Zoning to look at -COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: So if it -- if it's -BRIAN CHEGUIS: -- for you all to approve.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: If it changes the -- the -- the footprint of it -BRIAN CHEGUIS: Yeah.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: -- it has to come back.
BRIAN CHEGUIS: Absolutely.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: But if there are changes within the interior, like if I'm a
buyer or something, and I want the living room bigger or a bed -- a bigger bedroom -BRIAN CHEGUIS: No, no, no. It's just at the building level -COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Then you're saying that -BRIAN CHEGUIS: -- yeah, same programming.
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COUNCILPERSON DAVIS:
saying?

-- that needs to be at staff level.

Is that what you're

BRIAN CHEGUIS: We're saying that if the plan stays materially where you see tonight,
and in each of those pods, from that site plan, that -COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Uh-huh.
BRIAN CHEGUIS: -- that graphical site plan, and with the architecture that we're
showing, that, um, staff could handle the review.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Okay.
BRIAN CHEGUIS: If anything changes beyond that -COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Okay.
BRIAN CHEGUIS: -- we would be happy -- more than happy to bring it up to P & Z and
the City Council.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Okay.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Madam Chair?
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Yes, Mr. Thomas.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Let me just make sure I understand this correctly,
because I -- I don't think I've ever heard a request in such a manner. Are you basically
saying that you want to be able to just continue to move your project along and if things
change that aren't perceived by you or your company as material, then you are okay
with staff looking at that?
BRIAN CHEGUIS: What we're saying is exactly that. Staff has the ability to look at
what comes through, and if it's materially the same, they have the ability and the code to
review it, site plan approve it, and get it out to building permit and -- and out for
construction. If anything changes, if we bring something forward and staff has a -- has
a discomfort with what they're seeing, something's changed, something doesn't look the
same, there's intensity added, then they have the ability to say to the -- to -- to -- to that
pod developer, You have to take this back, because you've changed things that the
Council hasn't seen, the Planning & Zoning hasn't seen.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Okay. I'm -- I'm trying to, I guess, find what's the need
for this request? Is that not what we already do within our policy? What's the need for
this particular request? I -- I must be missing something.
BRAD STEIN: Right. Good evening. Is this one working?
Okay. Brad Stein,
Principal Planner. That was the condition that was required or requested by the
Planning & Zoning Board. It wasn't something that staff would normally ask for. So the
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Planning & Zoning Board was worried that the intent wouldn't stay the same from pod to
pod, but we have rules and guidelines per the land development regulations per the City
Code that these meet and follow, and that they would have to continue to meet and
follow.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Okay.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Okay. Um, I'm just concerned that, um, something, uh,
let's say we've -- we've had a building pop up here in the last few weeks that I don't ever
remember approving or ever remember it being done -- and I'm sure it was done. I just
don't remember it. Um, I don't want to make a decision now and three years later stuff
starts popping up that someone got permission to do that whoever may be sitting here
at the time didn't know or not comfortable with. I'm not real comfortable release -relinquishing that type of, you know, authority to a company who's driven to make
money and not really with the needs of what the City would -BRAD STEIN: Okay.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: -- would be. So I just want to make sure that that's not
what we're doing with this action. There -- if anything needs to come back before
Planning & Zoning or City Council, that we're not saying, Okay, if the company or
someone on the staff level just thinks it's okay, then maybe it's okay. I just want to
make sure that's not what we're doing with this action.
BRAD STEIN: No, no, not at all. Okay. I just want to clarify something. If a site plan
was approved and a portion of it was initiated, then that site plan now lives in perpetuity.
It can -- they -- they can stop for 12 years and all of a sudden start building again,
because they did develop a portion of it. So as an example, this project, Mediterranea,
which currently has a portion of it built -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Uh-huh.
BRAD STEIN: -- they -- they haven't worked on it in five years. They could just now
start building the original site plan and continue with that. They just want to modify it
and change it, and so this -- this -- what you were saying is, they still have to follow the
City's land development regulations -COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Let -- let me make -BRAD STEIN: -- (inaudible).
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: -- sure I understand this correctly.
BRAD STEIN: Okay.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: What -- the site plan that they got was not for what they
want to build right now.
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BRAD STEIN: Exactly, and that's why we're here -COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: So they're asking for -BRAD STEIN: -- for a large amendment change.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: -- a modification of it. That -- that can't live in perpetuity
to me. What they did was they said, Listen, we bought this property. The market fell.
Now we need to try to do something to try to recoup our investment. City, would you
allow us to change this? I can understand that, and I think that's a perfectly reasonable
request.
What I don't want is for them to sit another two or three years, and now things may
change a different way and come back and say, Well, this particular Board said that we
can do this and we can just go back and forth between, um, staff. This is -- this is a
total different thing from single family homes to now having, you know, uh, uh, multifamily uses. That's -- that's not the same thing, and I don't really -- I'm not comfortable
with someone saying -BRAD STEIN: And we agree -COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: -- we gonna decide this for perpetuity. This -- this -- I'm
very uncomfortable with that.
BRAD STEIN: No, no. And what I was trying to say was, what's existing there is in
perpetuity. That's why they're here for an amendment to change the site plan. If they
try to do any large scale change or any major change they have to definitely come
before you. If they want to move a driveway, that's something that if it's a minor, minor
change that we would typically do through an amendment or something like that.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: How long has their property been -BRAD STEIN: Staff would.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: -- sitting in the state that it was, 'cause when we
originally looked at it, they weren't even cutting the grass out there. So how long has
this property been sitting with no work done to it?
BRAD STEIN: Approximately five years.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Okay. Sir, are we expecting another five years with -with this, or -BRAD STEIN: May I say something? I can (inaudible) -BRIAN CHEGUIS: Not according to condition number 1. Condition number 1 requires
us to get under construction within 18 months.
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COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Well, I'm sure you had that condition when you got the
first -BRIAN CHEGUIS: We didn't get the first approval. We -- BTI Partners picked up this
asset just this past year, so we're the new property owners. We're the new -- we're the
new game in town.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Oh, so you're not even the same person. Somebody
sold it to you and now -BRIAN CHEGUIS: We're the new game in town.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Yeah, (inaudible).
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Oh.
BRIAN CHEGUIS: So whatever has been sitting. Whatever has been waiting, we're
now gonna retool the project to get it to market. That's our goal.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Oh, okay. Okay. All right.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: That sheds a little bit of light on it.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Yeah, that -- that does shed a little bit of light. Um, and
how do we know that this new company is going to be able to fulfill the project that
they're asking for?
BRIAN CHEGUIS: Commissioner, we have conditions of approval that tell us we have
to get under way within 18 months if we get what we're asking for this evening. They're
intention is to get it to market as quickly as possible. The only way they can do that is if
they can keep moving and get to permits.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: I gotcha. Have we vetted this company? 'Cause the
last company before they sold it to them had those same conditions.
BRAD STEIN: They did not follow (inaudible) them particularly -COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: It was set for five years.
BRAD STEIN: -- is that correct? Everything was -COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: I'm sorry?
BRAD STEIN: Did you actually purchase from Cornerstone or from -- because that was
the original developer.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: It came out of -- how did you guys (inaudible) -CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: That's (inaudible).
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BRIAN CHEGUIS: Mr., um, um -- Mr. Daniel or Mr. Hearing can answer that.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Okay.
DONALDSON HEARING: Good evening. For the record, Donaldson Hearing. Thank
you so much, and Happy New Year to the entire Council and Mr. Mayor and, uh, I, too,
was moved by your -- your presentations, both yours and Miss Davis' this evening.
Um, BTI, uh, was the original bondholders for the -- for all the tax bonds that were on
the property. So they basically financed the project, and then they ended up having to
take it back when the developer didn't execute. Uh, but this is what they do. This is
their normal course of business. They've got a great, uh, portfolio. Uh, they're well
funded. Uh, and they're certainly committed. I think you -- each of you commissioners
had the opportunity to meet with myself and Mr. Daniels, uh, uh, when we came through
and kinda introduced the project to you.
Uh, so they do take being here in Riviera Beach very seriously. Uh, they're excited.
They're proud to be here. They think that it's a -- you know, it's a tremendous location.
Uh, it's a great asset here where it is, uh, right -- right there in Riviera Beach with a lot of
great employment opportunities with the -- you know, the Kindred Hospital, V.A.
Hospital, and -- and the various parks of commerce that are around here in Riviera
Beach.
So, uh, we -- we feel that it's -- the type of product that's proposed right now is right for
the marketplace, uh, and we've designed the plan we think in a superior fashion. Uh,
and, um, you know, I'm sure Mr. Daniels, if -- if you'd like him to tell you a little bit more
about his company, he can -COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: No, that -DONALDSON HEARING:
industry.

-- but they're well -- they're very well recognized in the

COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: That won't be necessary. Thank you, sir. Um, what I
would like to know from C.D. is, is there some type of -- what is the best use for this
property? So is there a way that we can revert it back to what would be the -- the best
use if they don't do what they should do in, you know, 18 months, or what -- yeah, an 18
month, uh, start. Is there something that can go back? I just don't want to continue to
change the -- you know, this particular -- the -- what they're asking, I don't want to
continue to change it and -- and than they don't do something if -- if their sales aren't
what they need to be, or -- you know, so is -- is there something that we can hold them
to? Um, because this really should be a whole 'nother site plan, or could they buy what
was already approved?
BRAD STEIN: Right. This is just -- this modification is just changing the product type
from what was, uh, fee simple townhomes to luxury apartments. And I think what you're
asking is, is there any way that we can hold them to that? I think the only thing that I
can really speak to say on that is this is a, you know, a motivated company that is
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING

JANUARY 2, 2013

25

coming in wanting to work with this property and try to develop a product that they think
will work, and it would work, I believe, in this market. And that's really the only thing
holding them, is wanting to make money, to tell you the truth. Is there a way for us -COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: No.
BRAD STEIN: That's something we could research and -COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: No.
BRAD STEIN: -- bring to you in the future. I mean, I -- I just -- it's private property,
though. That's all I can really say about it.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Okay. Thank you.
COUNCILPERSON LOWE: Madam Chair?
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Yes, Mr. Lowe.
COUNCILPERSON LOWE: Um, what type of affordable units will you guys be
offering? Will it be mixed income or -BRIAN CHEGUIS: Um, there are no, um -- there are no, um, affordable housing units,
uh, proposed for this project. It's a, uh, luxury apartment range. Um, just to give you a
rough, um, valuation range, um, from one bedroom to three bedrooms, you're looking at
approximately 900 to $1,300 a month in -- in -- in rents. Uh, that's just sort of a -- a -- a
-- a valuation that, uh -- that's been used elsewhere with similar type projects and
product type. Um, but, uh, it will all be market rate, um, product. So there will be no
affordable housing in this product.
COUNCILPERSON LOWE:
anticipating?

And how long till you complete build out you're

BRIAN CHEGUIS: We are looking and currently working with some of our -- the large
apartment developers, uh, that are local and, um, it really comes down to how many
pods are purchased, or how many pods are ready to go for development. So, um, the
18 months construction start date is -- is a good timeline to get that all worked out.
Don't know if it will be two pods, five pods, or all ten pods. So I -- I -- I couldn't give you
a timeline, uh, Councilman. Uh, it just -- I, uh -- obviously, they want to do it as quickly
as possible, and with the success of the first pods that go off, obviously -UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Five -- five to six years.
BRIAN CHEGUIS: Okay. Well, they believe within five to six years it could be fully built
out. Seems like a reasonable time length, especially with an 18 month start time.
COUNCILPERSON LOWE: Well, that's good. I -- I mean, that's a very good piece of
property. I was sad to see it become a victim of the times.
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BRIAN CHEGUIS: Right.
COUNCILPERSON LOWE: But I'm very happy to see someone take interest in it and
hopefully you guys can put this project together without, you know, any interruption.
BRIAN CHEGUIS: Right.
COUNCILPERSON LOWE: We sure do need the quality housing and -BRIAN CHEGUIS: Right.
COUNCILPERSON LOWE: -- you know -- you know, the sad element is that, you
know, that's good housing stock and -BRIAN CHEGUIS: It will continue to be so.
COUNCILPERSON LOWE: -- we're trying to boost our affordable housing efforts, but
we do need mixed income projects like this.
BRIAN CHEGUIS: Right.
COUNCILPERSON LOWE: So you know, I'm kinda glad to see it. The, uh -- the site is
a real good site. I've been on it before when they had the -- the apartments there, and
they were very -- in very good shape and a nice community. I don't know why it went
the way it did, but we're glad to see somebody take interest in it and we wish you good
luck. Thank you.
BRIAN CHEGUIS: Thank you, Councilman.
CITY ATTORNEY RYAN: Madam Chair?
CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: Yes, ma'am.
CITY ATTORNEY RYAN: Just to be clear, are -- is the developer asking for a
modification of the -- the recommendation that's in the agenda item?
BRIAN CHEGUIS: Yes.
CITY ATTORNEY RYAN: Okay. Just so that Council is clear, the recommendation
from the Planning & Zoning Board is -BRIAN CHEGUIS: On top.
CITY ATTORNEY RYAN: Is that Planning & Zoning Board or is that staff?
BRAD STEIN: To clarify, it's Planning & Zoning Board's recommendation.
CITY ATTORNEY RYAN: Okay. And, um, they're proposing the second part. I don't
know -- did staff explain clearly the difference between the two? I know that Mr.
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Thomas was asking a lot of questions about it. What is the difference, for the Council,
between the staff's wording and, um, the wording of the developer?
BRAD STEIN: Well, the wording of the developer is to remove it completely.
BRIAN CHEGUIS: No.
BRAD STEIN: I believe. Or -CITY ATTORNEY RYAN: That's not what it says.
BRAD STEIN: Okay, okay. Well -- well, this is what -- this would happen, no matter
what, so even though it's a condition of approval, if staff -- if they come in and they
attempt to modify it in a way that doesn't meet or wasn't in the intent that it was, it would
automatically trigger it to come back.
CITY ATTORNEY RYAN:
what's in the --

So you are not recommending the proposed change to

COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: That's not what he said.
BRAD STEIN: We have no problem with that change. Staff has no problem.
CITY ATTORNEY RYAN: My only point is, there was a motion on the floor -COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Right, I understand that.
CITY ATTORNEY RYAN: That does not have that section in it.
BRAD STEIN: Okay. Yes. I understand.
CITY ATTORNEY RYAN: So the Council -- I just want the Council to be aware.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Madam Chair?
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Yes, Miss Davis.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: If everybody's finished? I would amend the motion to, um,
um, submit this language instead of the language that's in the agenda packet.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: So what does that language -- where are you amending
to?
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: I'm sorry?
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: I mean, we want to be clear on what you're -COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: This language, number 3. At the bottom.
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CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Okay.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: It's being that, you know, our staff has said this is -- that's - this is what would normally happen, anyway, so -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: It's just a part of our process -COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Yes.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: -- of -- of the procedures, anyway, per the policies of -COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: And they have no problems with it, so -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: So you don't have any problem with it.
BRAD STEIN: No, we have no problem at all.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: I guess -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Okay.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: -- there is no second.
COUNCILPERSON LOWE: Second.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Oh, okay.
COUNCILPERSON LOWE: I'm sorry.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Question. You said that this is a normal part of our
process, what they're asking for?
BRAD STEIN: That recommendation right there for the condition is a normal part of our
city's process currently.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS:
normal process.

For what the developer's asking, it's a part of our

COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Uh-huh.
BRAD STEIN: Yes, but so is also condition 1 and 2, as in our city's land development
(inaudible).
CITY ATTORNEY RYAN: We're only talking about number 3.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Okay. But the -- right. I'm -- I'm saying -- I'm saying
number 3. If you're saying Planning & Zoning, Planning & Zoning's recommendation
was 3.
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BRAD STEIN: Yes, sir, that's correct.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: The -- the -COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: In red.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: In red.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Okay.
BRAD STEIN: Okay.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: And you're saying that the -- the -- the developers'
proposed condition is in the yellow. Our Planning & Zoning staff is recommending
something different than what the actual developer wants, and staff is taking the
recommendation of the developer and not our Planning & Zoning?
BRAD STEIN: Um, here's what the issue is. They want to be able to review every pod
on an individual basis when it comes in, but right now you're approving it for right now
as a master plan with a site plan. But if it's come in and it's developed separately, they
still want to review it separately, but that's not part of the normal process. This was just
something that Planning & Zoning was requiring or requesting that you guys approve as
a -- as a recommendation of the condition.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Well, let me -- let me ask this question, then. If it's a part
of our process anyway, I mean, that overrides what the Planning & Zoning desire.
BRAD STEIN: Okay.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Should it not be that -- I mean, what are we talking about
here? Are we saying that what we have in place can be contested by Planning &
Zoning?
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: No.
BRAD STEIN: No, no.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Well, what are we saying here?
BRAD STEIN: Okay.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Planning & Zoning is saying that they want to review -BRAD STEIN: Correct.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: -- each -- each -BRAD STEIN: Yes.
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CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: -- each phase -BRAD STEIN: Yes.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: -- of the plan must be reviewed.
BRAD STEIN: Okay. And I want to clarify it. It says "Planning & Zoning" but the
condition should say Planning & Zoning Board and the City Council. So Planning &
Zoning -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Yeah.
BRAD STEIN: -- is absolutely going to review this through the permitting process and
after it's been approved here. Every time they come in through the permitting process,
we still review it, and we will compare it and analyze it, and make sure it's consistent
with what was approved with the site plan. And we do that on a daily basis, and that's
what we -- you know, that's our job. That's our intent. That's what we have to do with
this type of project.
Now, what that condition number 3 was, that was a
recommendation by the Planning & Zoning Board, to review every pod separately,
bringing them all back to the Planning & Zoning Board -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: And the City Council.
BRAD STEIN: -- and the City Council, and over and over and over. So we're talking
one project, but they're talking potentially reviewing it 11 or 13 times -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Right.
BRAD STEIN: -- for one project.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: And -- and -- Madam Chair?
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: So number 3 in the yellow. Uh-huh.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS:
month, so it's just very --

Also, I mean, Planning & Zoning only meets once a

CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: If they can get a quorum.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: -- a time consuming, very convoluted process, you know.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: And they have a problem with quorum and all of that.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: And -- and they're just -- they're -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: So number 3 --
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COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: -- only an advisory board, and I think probably at, you
know, all of these other developments that we've done, like Thousand Oaks, or -- or
wherever, that hasn't been required.
BRAD STEIN: No, that's correct, because -COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: You know, so I -- I just don't see the point in -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Okay. So you're making the motion that we -COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Include their (inaudible) -COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Well, she -- she made the motion already and we
second. We're still questioning.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Yes, and the second, so we just need to -COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: I'm -- I'm -- I'm not finished quite yet. I'm just curious -and I support the project. That's not an issue. Um, we didn't hear all the deliberation of
what Planning & Zoning did or said, and we don't know -- I'm actually -- actually saying
it to the staff. We don't really know what Planning & Zoning did. They're there for a
reason. If they met, I just would have been curious to find out why they put that in there,
what the minutes suggested -- none of that is listed here -- for me to say all this, and
that board is an advisory board of the City to do. I just would have liked to have known
why they put that there versus just saying, I'm gonna disregard what their request is.
You know, I support the project but I still would like to know why they said that, um,
because that could have made, you know, a difference to someone up here, you know,
of that.
So we didn't get that. We don't have the -- you know, the benefit of -- of knowing what
the deliberation was, um, about it, to -- to make them say why -- you know, why they put
that in there. That's all.
BRAD STEIN: I believe we put the minutes in the packet, which are required now. I
don't know if you've seen them.
CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: No, there's a summary.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Yeah, a summary.
BRAD STEIN: And then we can always get you -CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: There's no minutes.
BRAD STEIN: -- the recording or whatever you'd like, but it's -- there's no problem. We
will -CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: Right. There's no transcript.
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BRAD STEIN: -- get whatever explanation is required.
MAYOR MASTERS: Excuse me. Madam Chair?
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Yes, Mayor.
MAYOR MASTERS: Do you know the reason why?
BRAD STEIN: They just had -- actually, is what Mr. Thomas said, they were worried
about every pod coming in and being developed differently, but it wouldn't be possible
because they'd have to follow what is already approved in the site plan with -- and so
they were worried about major amendments to the site plan happening that would
trigger it to come back anyways.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Right. The issue was -- is not stated what a major
difference would be. It's -- it's not clearly stated in here. It's just whether the staff or the
developer thinks that it's major or not. And we -BRAD STEIN: No, it's staff for sure.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: You know, we don't -- we don't really know what staff
members would be there. We don't know -- you know, if they sell it again, we don't
know how that's interpreted. So you know, I don't think it's -- I don't think it's a problem
for us to deliberate on that again and try to find out why. You know, we want to all see
that, you know, the particular project go forward, but you know, we -- we got to stop
setting ourselves up to -- to have an issue, you know.
It feels good, and everybody's happy about it until something changes, something on
the business line changes, this particular developer finds another project. They want to
offload this or something like that. You know, that's all we're trying do, you know. You
know, everybody wants to support it, but we definitely need to -- you know, to make
sure that it's something there, something with some teeth to say what triggers it to be a
major, you know, difference, and -- and I don't see that right now.
BRIAN CHEGUIS: Well, uh, I was gonna say, uh, uh, Councilman -COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Yes.
BRIAN CHEGUIS: -- Thomas, um, we proposed that language, uh, to say your code
allows for staff to do this at a staff level if they see an issue. It has nothing to do with
the developer having an issue, or the person developing the pod. It's your staff saying
this is what was approved, and this is what it looks like and how it lays out. And you
guys are proposing B, and it's different. Either make it look like A or this has to go up to
-- to Planning & Zoning and Council, and there's no problem. If they come in with a -- a
plan that changes, it automatically comes up to you guys. That's how that condition was
supposed to read.
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And I'll give you that -- a little bit of history with respect to, there was one board member
who really wanted to have control over all the design of all the pods as they came
through, and it was an extra layer of time, of -- of meetings that we think your staff could
handle without them having to see it again. If a problem arises, if intensity changes, if
the project changes shape, it gets kicked up to them automatically, anyway.
So two -- two things. That language isn't set in stone. If you need something a little
more -- with more teeth, we have no problem with that. We want to try and keep it at
the -- at -- at the code mandated level, where staff can look at this and say, This is what
everyone saw. We all understand it. It's going through. Let's keep it moving forward.
And -- and -- and this is about timing, getting this to the market, and -- and getting this
asset on line. It creates jobs. It will get tax base going. And right now it's not doing
that. And, um, an extra layer of fat going through the process is just not gonna help us,
and that's a P & Z initiated condition.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Okay. I understand. Miss Ryan, are you okay with
this? Is this fine for us to just leave it like this?
CITY ATTORNEY RYAN: You mean to change it to that?
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Yes.
CITY ATTORNEY RYAN: Yes.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Okay. All -- all right. If -- I'm fine, then. No problem.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Okay. So -COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Madam Chair?
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Every -- yes.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: One more question. Um, do you already know who your
contractor is?
BRIAN CHEGUIS: No, we don't. Um, but we have -- we are in discussions with, um -who is the home builder?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: I'd rather not say.
BRIAN CHEGUIS: Oh.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Okay.
BRIAN CHEGUIS: They are in discussions with some -- with some home builders now.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Okay. Well, you know --
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BRIAN CHEGUIS: Yeah.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: -- I'm -- I'm -- I've always been a person who pushes, uh,
local participation. Um, so I really hope that you will take us up on that. Um, because
it's -- it's just very important.
BRIAN CHEGUIS:
Councilman Davis, we will make sure that BTI Partners
understands that local participation for whoever they are in negotiations with is
expressed to those -- to those -COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Okay.
BRIAN CHEGUIS: -- potential builders.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Thank you.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: My question is this. What is going to be the postal ZIP
code for this development?
BRAD STEIN: That's a great question, and it's current. I do believe it's, uh -COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: 10, probably.
BRAD STEIN: -- 33410.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: What is it?
BRAD STEIN: I believe it's -COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: 10.
BRAD STEIN: -- 33410.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: But I think -- I -- the Post Office -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Because I understand that there's some development in
the City of Riviera Beach that has Palm Beach Gardens -COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Uh-huh.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: -- ZIP code, and it was permitted, of course, before our
time. So I just want to ensure that this community will have a Riviera Beach ZIP code.
BRAD STEIN: I don't want to open a can of worms, but there's five ZIP codes in
Riviera Beach.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: But one that will ensure that we do get certain dollars that
we are entitled to get.
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BRIAN CHEGUIS: Right. Uh, its -- its PCN is in Riviera Beach.
BRAD STEIN: Right.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Okay.
BRIAN CHEGUIS: Uh, we'd be paying Riviera Beach taxes.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Thank you.
MAYOR MASTERS: Madam Chair?
CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: Madam Chair?
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Uh, the Mayor, and then Miss Pardo.
MAYOR MASTERS: Back to what Councilman Davis said, as far as local participation.
You'll put some safeguards in to make sure that that's done?
BRIAN CHEGUIS: I will commit to you, Mayor Masters, that we will ensure that BTI
Partners, um, has that -- understands what your system is, whatever program you have
in place, whoever your recommended vendors are. You give us that list, we'll pass it
along, we'll make sure that that gets brought up to their discussions with whomever
they're, uh, dealing with.
MAYOR MASTERS: And let them know that we will assist them as far as job fairs to
make sure that our people, our residents, our people here in the City, uh, know about it.
BRIAN CHEGUIS: Absolutely. Absolutely.
MAYOR MASTERS: And they can apply. Thank you.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Miss Pardo?
CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: Yeah. And one other thing. I just wanna make sure that -I believe we have something in our Code now where the developer will have to
advertise -- all their advertisements will have to say "The City of Riviera Beach,"
correct?
BRIAN CHEGUIS: That's correct.
MAYOR MASTERS: Right.
CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: Or they incur $250 a day fine?
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Is that how much it is?
CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: It's $250 a day.
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BRAD STEIN: There's a warning process first, of course.
CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: Okay.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Okay.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Madam Chair?
CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: We need to stick to it.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Yes, Miss Davis.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Last thing. Um, I'd like confirmation now that, um, you -here -- here it is that you've said that you are going to really, um, let BTI Partners know
that, um, we look forward to local participation. What I would like for you to confirm right
now is that you will, uh, do a quarterly report and let us know, um, what that
participation is.
BRIAN CHEGUIS: Um, Councilwoman Davis, is it possible to do something a little
more spread out than quarterly, 'cause I don't know how much -COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Sure.
BRIAN CHEGUIS: -- would change quarterly? But I understand what you're saying.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Well, six months is fine.
BRIAN CHEGUIS: Some kind of periodic -COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: But I -BRIAN CHEGUIS: Six months?
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: -- what I'm saying, the bay -- the -- the -- the -- the -- the
focus is -BRIAN CHEGUIS: Six months?
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: -- that we -- we -- I want -- I want to know, and I'm sure the
rest of the Council wants to know.
BRIAN CHEGUIS: Right.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Okay?
BRIAN CHEGUIS: And, um, uh, uh, we will -- we will get with you all with respect to
how we get that information for local vendors, uh, whatever lists you have, whatever
processes you have, to get your local vendors to an event with who -- whoever -whatever -- whoever they ultimately -REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING
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COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Okay.
BRIAN CHEGUIS: -- work with as the ultimate developer.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: I know how to call you.
BRIAN CHEGUIS: And that's why I tell only the truth.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Okay.
MAYOR MASTERS: Madam -- Madam Chair?
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: So now we're really going to be voting on the amended
motion here to, um, approve this with the proposed condition of approval number 3. Is
that correct?
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: That's correct.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Okay.
MAYOR MASTERS: Madam Chair?
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Yes, sir?
MAYOR MASTERS: Thank you. To the, uh, counsel, legal counsel, um, as far as a
quarterly report or any type of report, um, our vote is not predicated -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Oh, yes, yes, yes, that's right.
MAYOR MASTERS: -- upon -- and that's just something that was like a courtesy.
What's -- what's -- what's the legal ramifications are there, Madam Attorney?
CITY ATTORNEY RYAN: I believe that Miss Davis was simply asking as a courtesy
that -MAYOR MASTERS: As a courtesy.
CITY ATTORNEY RYAN: -- he would provide that information. It is not being made a
condition of this, um, approval.
MAYOR MASTERS: Of our vote. Thank you.
CITY ATTORNEY RYAN: Right.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Madam Clerk, we should read into the record item number
3 as it is proposed.
CITY CLERK WARD: Oh, you want me to clarify?
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CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: No, no, no. It just needs the clerk -- we need to read it -CITY CLERK WARD: Yes.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: -- into the record to show what it is that we are voting with
this amended motion.
CITY CLERK WARD: Okay. You are, um -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Just read it.
CITY CLERK WARD: Where? Number 3?
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: "Where material --"
CITY CLERK WARD: Proposed Conditions of Approval, Number 3. "Where material
changes are proposed within any phase of the plan, modified plan must be reviewed by
the Planning & Zoning Board, City Council for approval prior to any building permit
being issued."
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Okay. We just want it for the record, what the -BRIAN CHEGUIS: Yeah.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: -- what we're voting on.
CITY CLERK WARD: That is the amended motion that the City Council is now voting
on.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Correct. Uh-huh. Okay. Um, are we ready for the vote?
Roll call?
CITY CLERK WARD: Councilperson Lowe?
COUNCILPERSON LOWE: Yes.
CITY CLERK WARD: Councilperson Thomas?
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Yes.
CITY CLERK WARD: Councilperson Davis?
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Yes.
CITY CLERK WARD: Pro Tem Pardo?
CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: Yes.
CITY CLERK WARD: Chair Brooks?
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CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Yes.
CITY CLERK WARD: Unanimous vote.
BRIAN CHEGUIS: Thank you very much. Happy New Year, members of the Council.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Thank you.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Thank you. Uh, we have an ordinance on second reading.
CITY CLERK WARD: Okay. Ordinance Number 40-22. An ordinance of the City
Council of the City of Riviera Beach, Palm Beach County, Florida, modifying the City's
five-year capital project plan to include the acquisition of the real property located at
1481 West 15th Street for a future public service complex, police department and fire
department and public works facility, for fiscal year 2012, 2013, through 2016/2017,
providing for severability, conflict, and providing an effective date.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: So moved.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Need a second.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Second.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Okay. Were we having any -- okay. Well, we've reviewed
this at the last -- well, we had our first reading on this, and I just want to remind that we
now have been given so many extra days now for our, um, vetting of this project. I'm
sorry. Okay. Sir?
FINANCE DIRECTOR SHERMAN: No. I'm -- I'm just here to answer any questions.
I'm Randy Sherman, Director of Finance and Administrative Services. Yes, you passed
this on first reading on December 5th.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Right.
FINANCE DIRECTOR SHERMAN: There are no changes. Again, this is amending
the, uh -- the five-year CIP plan.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Right. Okay. Um, well, we do have -- are there any
questions? Any discussion from the Board?
CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: Yeah. Madam Chair, I do have a question. Um, with -you know, with regards to the attachments, they still say that we'll be saving two and a
half million dollars. And, um, I'd like to know, first of all, if that's true, which I don't think
so, based on the last meeting we had where you said that -- or the engineer said that
we will have to spend between a million and a million and a half dollars to put a new
roof and do other upgrades to the building.
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FINANCE DIRECTOR SHERMAN: Uh, my understanding is, is that the way the
discussions are going -- I don't know if somebody else wants to chime in on this -- uh, is
that the seller has actually offered, uh, if there are changes or requirements to bring the
roof or the windows up to, uh, to code, that they would actually cover that cost. Now,
again, that hasn't been put in an agreement yet, but that's what the discussions have
been.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Would anyone like to -CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: Yeah, enlighten us?
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS:
Beach what's happening?

-- uh, enlighten the Board and the citizens of Riviera

DEPUTY CITY MANAGER JONES: Danny -- Danny Jones, Interim Deputy City
Manager. At our last meetings with the -- the seller, the discussion of the roof and the
windows were the lead of that conversation. We received engineer studies stating that
the roof and windows will meet the requirements and we've talked with a vendor, or an
engineer, that the windows and roof will not meet the requirements. So right now we
are seeking a third independent party to review that information.
At our last discussion with the owner, the owner was very confident that it would meet
those requirements and did state at that meeting that they will be willing to guarantee
that it would meet the requirements. That's not in a written document at this time. We
are still vetting the due diligence process.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: And just keep in mind, if it's not gonna work for us, we -we're not gonna go forward with it. This is all a part of the due diligence. Uh, okay.
Any other -- well, we'll get to the, uh, public now for comments. Bonnie Larson? And
after that, Reverend Burrs? Reverend Burrs? Yeah, he's here. Okay. Norma
Duncombe? Then Miss Brown, Bessie Brown.
BONNIE LARSON: Bonnie Larson. Very quickly, listened to one of the meetings
where you discussed this, and I understand there were a lot of community meetings and
a lot of this, and a lot of tours and whatever. How were those things advertised? Like,
the general public didn't know about them. I didn't know about them, anyway. So I
don't know how those things came to be.
A lot of people whose -- who went on these tours -- and Miss Jones doesn't even know
who went on the tours -- said that they liked the building. It was a beautiful building.
You can't tell. You and I have an untrained eye. That's why we have engineers. That's
why we had two engineers. One said it would pass; one said it would not. Has the City
of Riviera Beach -- we do have an engineer now. Has he looked at it? That's a free
service. We need to have him look at it, too, in addition to paying all these other
engineers to do it.
You know how I love contracts. You have got to read this contract. You have not read
it. I know who wrote the contract. The seller wrote the contract. There are glaring,
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glaring errors in that contract. Even if you have never read a contract in your life, you
can spot those if you've read it. That's why I know it has not been read. I know that for
a fact.
Um, he said he would put in writing -- he just mentioned he would put in writing he
would guarantee the roof and the windows. Put it in writing. You should have had that
in writing the next day, the next day. Any time you try to repair a window or a roof, it's -you know, you can get a Rube Goldberg fix. You can get all kinds of fixes. It's never as
good as having the original. You talked about it holding up during a 180 mile per hour
winds. Does it or doesn't? We don't know. We don't really know that.
Um, the taxes on the building; has -- have the taxes on that property been paid for 2012
or are we gonna get stuck with that? We don't know. Do we know? We should know.
We should know if this has been vetted, if this has been, um, considered in your -- in
your process here.
Uh, the minute we purchase this property it will take it off the tax rolls, so there will be
no more income to the county or to Riviera Beach for that property. You're not allowed,
according to the contract to even go on, to even access that property after you buy it for
the 14 to 16, 18, whatever it is, months that Zachry is on there. You can't go on there
without them accompanying you. It says that right in the contract. Who buys a property
and -- and gives up all right to go on it? I don't know who does that.
Um, oh, also it said that Zachry is on there for 14 to 16 months, whatever it is. The
contract also says that if he wants to extend it, you can't withhold an extension. So it's
not like the property is available as it was advertised. It's not available for at least 16 to
18 months, plus Zachry can extend it.
Read the contract. We didn't write this contract. The seller wrote it. You can tell just by
looking. I just flipped through the pages and I found, like, a million things in that
contract, so I know you have not read it. I know that, and we should not buy anything
without reading it. We have an attorney. You know, she looked at it. How -- how can
you not see any of these things in there? These are detrimental to Riviera Beach.
The property was appraised at 5 point something million. He put in a million in
upgrades. Well, that's his problem. He's only owned it for one year. Now he wants out
of it. Why does he want out of it in only one year?
He came here to the meeting, I saw, and he was sitting in the audience. He came up to
the podium. He never spoke, never said a word. And we said to him, We don't want to
put the seller on the spot. Yes, the seller needs to be on the spot because we have
questions, and they need to be answered before we spend this kind of money. So, um,
tonight I'm not saying buy it, don't buy it. I'm just telling you read that contract and
change that contract before you ever consider doing it.
He didn't tell you about the roof leak, did he? He had to know about that roof leak.
Didn't tell you about it. And like I said, you're not even allowed to go on that property
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without their supervision. Something a little fishy about that, I would think. Um, that's all
I'm gonna say about it tonight. Thank you.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Thank you, Miss Larson.
CITY ATTORNEY RYAN: Madam Chair?
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Yes, Miss -CITY ATTORNEY RYAN: Just let me state for the record that, um, I don't know which
contract Miss Larson is reading but, um, we have -- we have read the contract and, um,
just to hit on a couple of her points, she said that Zachry has the, um, opportunity to -- to
continue to lease the property at the end of the -- at the end of their 14 month lease.
They do not. Um, Zachry will leave at the end of, um -- of, um, their current contract
with GEU.
Also, um, the contract clearly states -- and maybe you're not reading the correct
contract; there were several contracts involved -- that they will pay the taxes, um, um,
until Zachry leaves. Any time, whether you're a governmental agency or not, if you
lease or rent property, you have to pay the tax. Taxes have to be paid on the property,
whether the City owns it or not. So, um, the taxes will be paid and, um, they will pay
them while they're there.
And, um, she stated that we can't go on the property without supervision. That's
because Zachry has a, um -- it's an industrial, um, building, and they're doing industrial
work, and they do not want to have our contractors or engineers or consultants on the
property without their knowledge. Um, they have no problem with the City coming on
the property, but they -- they do want to have supervision, and I don't blame them. I
would, as well. So I just wanted to hit a couple of those points.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Madam Chair?
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Thank you, Miss Ryan, for clarifying those points. I think it
was important, since they were thrown out, that you give the, um -- the legal status of
everything, as well as your opinion. Um, Mr. Thomas?
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Um, the -- the report that Miss Larson is speaking of, or
the contract that she's speaking of, she stated that she got that off of the Web. Are we
not updating these as we get them, or -- 'cause I -- I don't want that type of, um -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Misinformation, yes.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: -- information to be out there circulating and -CITY ATTORNEY RYAN: There were several contracts. There's the, um, contract
between Zachry and GEU. There's the City's purchase agreement. And there's also -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Miss Larson, they are just -REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING
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BONNIE LARSON: I didn't finish my three minutes. If someone says I'm telling an
untruth, I would like to correct that. I read -CITY ATTORNEY RYAN: I didn't say you were telling -BONNIE LARSON: -- the contract that was available to the public on the Web. I am
not in charge -COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Listen.
BONNIE LARSON: -- of updating it. If it's been updated, then uncorrect [sic]
information is going out from the City to the residents. I read what was -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Okay.
BONNIE LARSON: -- available on the Web, and it said very clearly -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Miss Larson?
BONNIE LARSON: -- in there that Zachry can -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Miss Larson?
BONNIE LARSON: -- extend if he wants to. Thank you.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Miss Larson, you had questions and she was responding
to it. Okay.
CITY ATTORNEY RYAN: Okay. Mr. Thomas?
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Yeah. I just wanna make sure that however that those
contracts that are being -- I'm sure that Miss Larson can read very well, so whatever
she's reading, I just wanna make sure that it's accurate if it's coming off of what we put
on our Web for our citizens.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Right.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: That's all I'm trying to make sure of.
CITY ATTORNEY RYAN: All I can tell you is that there are several contracts. There's
a purchase and sale agreement. There is the -- the proposed lease agreement
between the City and GEU. And then there's the original agreement between GEU and
Zachry. Those are the three contracts that I know that are on the -- the Web. I may be
missing some, but, um, they've all been reviewed carefully.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: And have they all been updated to the latest of
whatever's being negotiated? And I'm not sure that we should we putting a -- a contract
that's not finalized. If you're going back and forth on these things, or changing them like
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that real time, I'm not sure that that's the most prudent thing to do, is just put things that
we're not going to actually be, you know, deciding if -- if you're still -CITY ATTORNEY RYAN: The only -- the only thing that, um, has been, uh, uh,
amended since, um, the first meeting we had about this is the amendment that was
approved at the last Council meeting where, um, Zachry -- I'm sorry -- where GEU
agreed to extend the inspection period from, um, 45 days to the 90 days as requested
by Council. And I don't -- I'm not sure if that has been uploaded to the -- to the, um -the City's system.
CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: Wait. 90 days? I thought it was 15 days to 45 days. I
thought we had 45 days.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: They gave us another 45 days, which would give a total of
90 days, I think, is what she's saying.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: But like this -CITY ATTORNEY RYAN: Right. It was-CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: It's a total of 90 days?
CITY ATTORNEY RYAN: I think it's a total of 90 days. It was 45 days originally -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: The original was 45, plus another 45.
CITY ATTORNEY RYAN: -- and you all voted to add an additional 45 days.
CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: Right.
CITY ATTORNEY RYAN: So it's now a total of 90 days for the inspection period.
CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: A total of 90 days.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Uh-huh.
CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: But we were close to the expiration -CITY ATTORNEY RYAN: Correct.
CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: -- of the 45. All right.
CITY ATTORNEY RYAN: Yes, yes.
CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: Right.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Okay. So we're all clear now.
CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: Yeah.
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CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Okay. It was a total -COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: We need -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: -- of 90 days, I believe.
CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: So when is this expiring? At the end of the month -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS:
Reverend Burrs --

Any other comment?

Um, because I have asked

REVEREND BURRS: Y'all ready?
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Okay.
REVEREND BURRS: I was waiting for y'all finish.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Reverend Burrs.
REVEREND BURRS: I was just waiting till -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Might answer some of your questions, right?
REVEREND BURRS: -- y'all finish. Yeah. Um, Madam Chair, Council, Mayor, City
Manager, City Attorney, City Clerk, Happy New Year's to each of you all.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Same to you, sir.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Thank you, Reverend Burrs.
REVEREND BURRS: I'm not here to try to change your mind, because I'm quite sure
your mind has been made up on this project. But, uh, I don't think -- I -- I wasn't here
the last Council meeting. I wasn't able to be here, but I got home early enough to look
at some of the, uh, meetings. But what disturbs me is that, uh, when people -- I don't
agree with the project. That don't mean I dislike you or anybody else who do agree.
And I don't think people should get upset with me because I don't agree and say I
should leave town and, uh, all these type things and, uh, say that we are -- we don't
have a right to question the Council. We put you there to make hard decisions. We did
do that. But we do have a right to question you if we don't agree with your decisions.
So I don't think people should get upset because we have our differences. And
because we come in and say we ought to be able to disagree, become disagreeable,
and then when we disagree with the person what's saying that, they get mad with
everybody.
But, uh, y'all need to know some history about Riviera Beach, what been -- what
happen. I been here working for this City for 30 years in Public Works. I'm quite sure
that people what come in here talking about move, they don't know the history of Public
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Works, where it at now. I guarantee they don't know what kinda -- who they bought the
property from, or what kind of business were there when they bought that property.
Do any of y'all know what kind of business was there when they bought that property?
Not trying to trick you or anything. It was a lumberyard. Public Works was a
lumberyard. And they -- and the Public Works office was the main building to the
lumberyard. And they built these structures over the Public Works. If you go down and
look at it, you can see that that -- uh, the other buildings were built over Public Works.
I'm not saying that Public Works don't need to be rebuilt. We tried to get that done
years ago. Tell that -- matter of fact, when they first started building that place there we
talked with the contractor, and the contractor told me personally, and another -- and a
friend of my own parish, we were -- we were supervisor, y'all need to get the Council to
push this stuff down and build CBS, uh, uh, uh, uh, uh, CBS buildings here. But that
Council refused.
If you look at Public Works, you'll see that that building, Public Works, is an inside
building, inside of the building that was built. Those -- and somebody come here saying
that the bathrooms is deplorable, pig style. That's an indictment to the employees down
there.
See, it's not the structure -- if you go down there when it's raining, Public Works and, uh,
the, uh, Purchasing Department, they're not shifting their furniture around to keep from
getting wet. It's the structure that need replacing. I assure you it does need replacing.
The building do need to be -- and it could be built in phases. That was our plan when
we was down there, but the Council refused to do that. And you could save money.
It's not the bathrooms. You could build around those bathrooms and save those
bathrooms. Those guys in there, I -- if I was down there and somebody said those
bathrooms pig style, I'd catch you somewhere, give you a piece of my mind. They're
not pig style. That peoples keep those bathrooms clean. It's just the structure is metal
and it's deteriorated and it do need to be replaced, but I think it can save money if you
do with that. That's my belief.
Now, and, uh, so, uh, just because people don't agree with me, I ain't gonna -- I pay just
as much tax as somebody come up here, we're talking about it. I pay plenty taxes, but
I'm not gonna get mad with them because they agree with you. Don't get mad at me
because I disagree.
So, uh, they need to -- and you all need to get some information about your City, as
well. If you gonna go different from me, at least talk with the citizens who do know
something about this city. Some of y'all don't -- I'm -- I'm quite sure, and I'm gonna, uh,
maybe come back later. Most of y'all don't understand why we have assistant directors,
assistant people to the assistants of the City. Ask them why. We have them to assist
the department head. Yes, but that not why those position was created. But their -- I
will tell y'all why, because y'all don't know. Y'all don't know the struggle that peoples
went through to get where you are, and you done got off base for where we need to be.
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So I don't think that those -- there no -- no business gonna go over there and establish
business over there when City Hall go there. But if you go, we'll live with it. But I'm not
mad with you if you go, but I just don't agree with it. Thank you.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Thank you, Reverend Burrs. Okay. Next we have Miss
Duncombe, Norma Duncombe.
MAYOR MASTERS: Madam Chair? While she's -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Yes, Mayor?
MAYOR MASTERS: While she's coming, um, Madam Manager, we -- is it -- did we
spend about $300,000 already, um, and we were getting ready to build a new Public
Works at the site (inaudible) -UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Speak in the mic, please, Mayor.
MAYOR MASTERS: I'm -- I'm sorry.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Mayor.
CITY MANAGER JONES: Yes. Yes, sir.
MAYOR MASTERS: About 300 -- $300,000 we've already spent.
CITY MANAGER JONES: For planning and design, yes, sir.
MAYOR MASTERS: Too.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: For planning and design.
MAYOR MASTERS: Okay.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: And you said some of that could be -CITY MANAGER JONES: I'm glad you brought that out.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: -- incorporated into some of the new, I believe.
MAYOR MASTERS: I don't see how -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Okay.
MAYOR MASTERS: -- it can be incorporated. That's money gone. But anyway, go
ahead.
NORMA DUNCOMBE: Uh, Norma Duncombe, and Happy New Year to everybody.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Same to you.
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NORMA DUNCOMBE: And I'm here to go on record, uh, that I disagree that you
should purchase this property to move the Police Department, the Fire Department. It
was a struggle to be on this main thoroughfare. It was a real struggle. And it's
convenient. There are a lot of people in this city who do not drive. They can catch a
bus to come here. And many, many people come to this complex to pay their water bill.
They do all their services here. I -- I -- I just don't see you're making it inconvenient for
citizens, especially those who have been here all their lives and struggled.
Now, the next thing I have a problem with, I'm one of those persons who -- I'm real
funny when it comes to money. Number one, if you're gonna purchase a place that's
already a problem with the roof, there's a problem with the windows, there's a problem
with the doors, and you're gonna pay top price for it, that just -- that does not seem -uh, it does not appear to be a wise decision to make. Now, you know, there is not
unlimited money in the City. And most times -- well, my philosophy is, rather than put
money -- you pay more than the place has been appraised, and the seller is very happy.
He's a happy camper, and I wish I were the seller. But in the meantime, you have a
situation where the place was appraised for much less than that. You just don't do that
kind of business. I mean, not if you are gonna -CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: Not really.
NORMA DUNCOMBE: -- spent money wisely. And then you -- you -- uh, well, it's just
really -- it's a heart breaker to do this, to make it inconvenient for people, and then to
spend money in a way that it's not wisely done. Um, I -- I -- I'm not -- and I'm not angry
with you. I'm just going on record that I disagree with you in terms of moving.
You can put a complex right on this site. You have plenty of room for it. You can go up
five stories. Go up six stories, and have everything situated here, which is convenient
for everybody, regardless of who you are. And that -- when the day come that I have to
catch a bus to come to City Hall, I want to be able to get there. Is there a bus service
down on 15th Street?
MAYOR MASTERS: No.
NORMA DUNCOMBE: Is it?
MAYOR MASTERS: No.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: But Miss Duncombe -NORMA DUNCOMBE: Okay. Well -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: -- we -- we -- the services -- the services that we're
moving, I don't envision people visiting the Fire Department or the Police Department or
-NORMA DUNCOMBE: Uh, people do go to --
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CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: -- public service.
NORMA DUNCOMBE: People do go to the Police Department for -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: But I'm saying, we're -NORMA DUNCOMBE: The -- it says here, Police Department -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: (Inaudible).
NORMA DUNCOMBE: -- Fire Department, and Public Works.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: But we're talking about the Fire Department over on Blue
Heron. Um -NORMA DUNCOMBE: Well -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: But what I'm -- my -- my -- because I want you to be clear
on -NORMA DUNCOMBE: Okay. I'm just -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: -- what we're proposing here.
NORMA DUNCOMBE: -- reading what you have here. And -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Okay. We -CITY CLERK WARD: -- I heard the City Manager say this City Hall, eventually.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: But we're not talking about in this resolution the City Hall
being moved.
CITY MANAGER JONES: It ain't in there, yeah.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: It's not in this resolution. This is not what we're addressing
here tonight.
NORMA DUNCOMBE: Okay. But even the -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: We're talking about -NORMA DUNCOMBE: -- Police Department -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: -- the public services.
NORMA DUNCOMBE: Well, the public -- uh, the Police Department, people have to go
there. I mean, there are -- there are services that you have to go to the Police
Department for.
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CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Well, we can certainly ask how many people are coming in
on a usual basis, if that would satisfy some of the concerns of our citizens, because we
really -NORMA DUNCOMBE: Well, okay.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: -- want to try to address that.
NORMA DUNCOMBE: Now -- and then the next thing -- and -- and I -- this was the last
thing, is that even after you purchase this place, you don't take ownership, from what I
understand, until whenever the lease is up. You are still responsible for anything that
happens there. And -- and -- and to me, that's just not wise. And people love to serve - uh, sue the City. So that just doesn't seem like a wise thing. I think citizens -- citizens
are not against you. They just want good decisions.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Thank you.
NORMA DUNCOMBE: Thank you.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Thank you, Miss -- Miss Duncombe. And that will be a
part of our due diligence vetting here. Uh, next we have Miss Brown, Miss Bessie
Brown?
BESSIE BROWN: Bessie Brown. I'd like to say a Happy New Year to everyone on the
dais.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Same to you, ma'am.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Thank you.
BESSIE BROWN: My question, uh, about the discussion is that we're on the second
reading for, um, this resolution. The resolution was originally passed for the change of
the, um -- to change the plan, right, not to, um -- for the purchase of the property, 'cause
the purchase of the property was actually passed as a -- as a resolution, as a -- or the -the -- this is Ordinance 40-22, right?
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Correct.
BESSIE BROWN: 40-21 was passed in December. Am I right?
CITY CLERK WARD: For the Ordinance -BESSIE BROWN: 40-21.
CITY CLERK WARD: It's 22.
BESSIE BROWN:
December.

No, this ordinance is.
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CITY CLERK WARD: I'm not sure if it had a number on it, but it's the same -- it's the
identical ordinance.
BESSIE BROWN: Okay. Okay. Uh, then, but my thing is, is that the resolution was
actually passed, I think, in November for the purchase of this property. And then you all
-- um, the City did receive information -- the attorney did receive information that the
building, you know, was leaking, and they're having problems. My thing is, is that you
still -- you have the exact same information that you originally, um, were going to pass
to purchase the property. If you're going to make changes -- uh, no, if you're going to
make changes to the -- to the, um, property, and you know, if they're 40 -- 90 days, if it's
changed from 45 to 90 days, you know, all that stuff should be done. It should be a part
of this package, so that the citizens have the correct information.
And, um -- and I just -- and -- and -- and nothing is in writing. You know, the attorney is
discussing with the Council that it's going to be 45 to 90 days, and -- and then it's -- and
it's not really -- really written in the current contract. And the information that the
attorney, uh, received pertaining to the leaking, it's not even in the -- in the package. It - it went to you. I read the letter. I have a copy of it, uh, Attorney Ryan. Um, you know,
and my thing is that we should -- you should -- you talking to me so I'm talking back. All
right?
So basically, I'm not happy with this purchase because there's enough space where
Public Works is to do that. And if you really wanted to do something, you know, and it -and it -- you all were talking about the EOC, um, building, that's the property right on the
corner. That property right on the corner would have been sufficient. They had to pay
$6.6 million. It -- to -- to a place -- for a property that you won't have access to for 14
months, and then you got problems with it. You know, windows, doors as it -- what I'm
saying, and, uh, roof problems. I just think that the -- the Council should, you know,
start making better decisions for -- for -- for -- for the -- for the -- for the kind of
improvements they plan to do, and while they are there.
And you know, and you should -- and also, you should really listen to your citizens
sometimes. I mean, we have -- we have a right to disagree. And -- and -- and it's -- and
it's good if you're gonna have a meeting not to have someone that's just coming here,
stand up in here and like -- like Miss Duncombe -- Miss Duncombe said, disrespect us.
But basically, you all should have been sitting on that dais the night that we had that
workshop, not that gentleman that you brought in here. And -- and -- and Mr. Jones
could -- could -- and Mrs. Jones could actually explain it to us. But I thought that was
very disrespectful that our Council didn't have enough respect for their citizens to sit up
there and listen to what we were saying. No matter who you hire, we keep paying
money and paying money to everybody to always take -- you know, do your work. But - but Miss Jones and Mr. Jones could have done that part. But we need to be more
respectful to your citizens.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Thank you, Miss Brown.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Madam Chair?
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CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Yes, Mr. Thomas?
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Um, I -- I am gonna address that, because that's not the
first time that I've heard this. And, uh, what needs to -- to be stated is the Council didn't
hire anybody to do anything. That was done by staff. The Council did not even know
really what was going on with that. We were told -- and that is what we all agreed to -that we were going to sit and have a community meeting all down there. Some
Councilmembers chose to sit up here. Some didn't. But we were all expected to sit
down there.
So no Councilmember was trying to be disrespectful to any citizen. We were just going
by what was originally set up. Okay? I know everybody didn't take that gentleman very
well, um, over that. You know, for that -- everybody apologizes for that. Nobody's here
to try to disrespect anybody.
If this project does not work, it's not going to work. We're not going to do it. We are just
doing the due diligence on it. We're saying, yes, we would like to proceed with it. We
think it's a good idea, but if this doesn't work, it does not work. These things come up
because of the due diligence that's going on. If it does not work, we're not going to go
forth with it. That is what everybody needs to understand.
And I know information gets out before we get it, usually, um, but you know, we can't
control that. The information that comes from our staff, we look at it. We digest it. You
know, not everybody up here agrees with it. You know? I don't agree with the way
everything is going with this, but I agree with the overall plan to do this. There's a lot of
questions that I have.
I'm sitting here getting information from you all that I didn't know. I didn't know that the
attorney got any letters about any leaks. I didn't know of -- I didn't know about that
information. I didn't know about the -- the -- that actual, um, thing that Miss Larson, uh,
talked about, but we're researching it. We're looking at the Web. I've read over that
contract. It doesn't quite state what that is, but I can understand how that can be an
issue.
We're going through the due diligence process just like you. No one is trying to
disrespect, and we're -- we can work together on this to get this through. But
understand, if this does not work, we're not going forward with it. We're not doing it. Or
at least, my vote won't be to go forward with it if it's -- if it's not working. That's all we're
waiting on right now, to finish the due diligence, and we'll move on with it. That's how it
is.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Madam Chair?
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Yes, Miss Davis?
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: I'm so glad you clarified that, Mr. Thomas, because I was
gonna do the same. Um, but I wanted to, um, just address a couple things, uh,
concerning the appraisals. Uh, Mrs. Jones, if my under -- recollection is correct, did we
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not go to the County and ask the County to give us the name of a -- an appraisal whom
-- that was on the top of their list that they trusted?
CITY MANAGER JONES: They gave us their list of the appraisals, yes.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS:
correct?

Okay.

And then we chose one of our own.

Is that

CITY MANAGER JONES: We chose from their list.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: From their list.
CITY MANAGER JONES: From their list.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Our own, to do -CITY MANAGER JONES: To represent.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: -- the -CITY MANAGER JONES: Yeah, yeah.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Okay.
CITY MANAGER JONES: Both of them came from their list.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: So there were two appraisals done, and each one -- one -they were, what, about 100,000, $200,000 difference. Is that right?
CITY MANAGER JONES: One appraisal came in at seven million five. One appraisal
came in at seven million six. Unfortunately, what residents are looking at are the
appraised value by the tax appraiser, and that is not the appraisal value for selling
property.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Well, see, this is -- this is information that -CITY MANAGER JONES: Yeah, they're looking at -COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: -- I -- I definitely -CITY MANAGER JONES: -- two different things.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: -- had to -CITY MANAGER JONES: Yeah.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: -- to bring up, because this is not some -- some deal
where we're just paying above the appraised value, and -- and all of that. You know?
So, you know, and -- and -- and these are top notch appraisals who -- who did these
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appraisals. And, you know, to come within a hundred thousand dollars, um, of each
other, would -- it -- you know, that just goes to show you that it's -- it's -- it was legit. So,
all right?
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: We did put the appraisals on the -- on the Web, right?
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Yes.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: The actual appraisals for everyone to -CITY MANAGER JONES: The actual documents.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: -- you know, to -- to -- to see.
CITY MANAGER JONES: Yes.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Okay.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Okay. We're ready for the roll call now. That's the last
public comment.
CITY CLERK WARD: Okay. Councilperson Lowe?
COUNCILPERSON LOWE: Yes.
CITY CLERK WARD: Councilperson Thomas?
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Yes.
CITY CLERK WARD: Councilperson Davis?
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Yes.
CITY CLERK WARD: Pro Tem Pardo?
CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: No.
CITY CLERK WARD: Chair Brooks?
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Yes.
CITY CLERK WARD: That vote passed with Councilperson Pardo dissenting.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: And now we're at the time of public comments, I believe.
CITY CLERK WARD: Yes, ma'am.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: We have no ordinances, so we -- and we have, uh, let's
see, Reverend Burrs, and then Miss Duncombe.
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MAYOR MASTERS: I don't see Reverend. I don't see Reverend.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Reverend Burrs?
MAYOR MASTERS: Oh, there he is.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Where are we on -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Public comments.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Oh, we're still on comments.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Public comments now.
MAYOR MASTERS: He's coming.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Oh, okay. Should have been at seven, but we finished up
the, uh -- uh-huh.
MAYOR MASTERS: We may get out of here by eight.
REVEREND BURRS: Um, Madam -- Madam Chair and Council again, what I was, uh,
hoping to, uh, get you all to understand -- and I'm quite sure it was -- the project is going
forward regardless what anybody say, much what Jesus come and tell you, you going
forward with it. It doesn't matter.
But there are, uh -- the -- the, uh, Public Works could be, uh, renovated and the -- and
the project could be -- uh, could save money because it was a -- a lumberyard when
the, uh -- when the City purchased it, and you're going to a lumberyard. And I heard
somebody ask the questions concerning the coming up to the code, where they gonna
make the building that you purchase gonna be to code, and you got to get, uh, some, uh
-- some consultants to, uh -- to, uh, inspect the building to see if they would meet the
code. Matter of fact, why we -- I don't know why they got to pay anybody to do that, but
you're Building Department should know what the code calls for to decide whether they
meet the code or not.
But anyway, uh, my concern, again, is on the -- by being in this City, working for the City
for over 30-some odd years, and saw -- and seen where the City have came from, from
when there was none of you all sitting up there like this now. Only person I remember -I remember when Michael Cunningham was sitting there, the first black person to serve
on this Council. And then he did a wonderful job and came along, uh, uh, uh, uh,
Moultrie [phonetic] and Arthur Taylor and others who fought to get this city to a point
where everybody would have equal access, and, uh -- to the jobs and et cetera.
And I remember distinctively -- and this what disturbs me so bad -- when Arthur Taylor
and, uh, Moultrie would try to get, uh, uh, uh, a gentleman, Earl Mixson [phonetic] in the
Finance Department as a Director of the Finance, and the peoples -- he was qualified,
educated, and they said no. Why? Because he did not have the experience. They was
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trying to get, uh, young peoples in Riviera Beach in the position. So that's when they
create the these assistants to they positions to, uh -- so the peoples could have the
experience. But we done left that base. That's how come young peoples don't come
back to this city, because they don't have a chance.
Point in -- point in case, our City Clerk. The best in the country. Hope she be our next
Supervisor of Elections of Palm Beach County. She have trained her person assume
her -- for her position when she retire. I sure she's qualified. Stay in the City. I'm
assure you, when this clerk retire you'll be advertising for that position. That's why the
position was not created for that. When she step down, that person should be in that
position. Any department head who have worked in a department for five years and
have not trained nobody to take they position, I always said they have not done a good
job. This what disturb me now.
Uh, I see Bruce Herring -- and they my good friends. Uh, Ahmad and Bruce Guyton,
whether they -- well, I'm their friend. I'll put it that way. They got education. They went
to school. Bruce, uh, Bethune-Cookman, and Ahmad from Florida Memorial College,
and -- and Bruce Guyton, he's in Economic Development. These young mens went out
-- we ought to be standing here, standing shoulder to shoulder, instead of fighting over
this issue. We got a difference. We're fighting over that. They should be fighting for
those jobs that coming into town for these -- these assistant positions. That's what they
was created for.
And we done left the base. And that's why we have so much diversity [sic] in the city,
because our young peoples will not come back because they know they cannot get a
job here, because when they got -- nothing against the City Manager, nothing against
the peoples that are here, but that's what those position was created for, to help our
young peoples in town, and we done left that base. Thank you.
CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: Thank you, Reverend. Karen Ho?
KAREN HO: Yes. About time (inaudible). Okay. Yes. You gonna put three minutes
up there?
CITY MANAGER JONES: Yes.
KAREN HO: Okay. All right. My name is Karen Ho. My address is 1230 Gulfstream
Way, Singer Island, Florida, 33404. Um, um, I'm totally agree with the ladies how
convenience this city place that I can come to, pay my water bill, visit the Police
Department, go to the library. And it's the most convenience location for everybody.
Because majority of the people don't have a car, and the car is expensive to have. It
costs $10,000. So for people to -- able to hop on a bus and arrive and pay all the water
bill, visit the police, say hi, complain, everything works. Perfect location. Don't move.
Now, about the appraisal, that appraisal is -- I own lands in Okeechobee. People want
to pay -- uh, State of Florida want to pay my land, and right next to my land was my
neighbor, my friend. Appraise value, 2,000. State of Florida pay my land, 20,000. Go
figure. Okay? So appraisal, I don't agree with it.
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Now, about my water bill, 1281. I also own the house in 1281 Yacht Harbor Drive.
Guess what? One year I got $2,500 water bill. I say, For what? You got swimming
pool? I say, No, it's been filled. I hardly ever use water. Okay? So I have my neighbor
come in, take a look. I took a picture. Everything kept on. Came here. Shook
everybody's hand. Say there's a mistake. Please check. They correct it.
So this year, October, I told my husband, I say, Hmm, I wonder what's my water bill
gonna be? Okay? So 1230 Gulfstream Way, I got a water bill. $633.45. I say, Wow,
my usual bill is only between 45 to $62. Why so much? I don't know. But I took a
picture. I invite all my friends come over, take a look at it. It's nice beautiful new meter,
but it's $633.50. Something like that. Okay?
We turn on water. We see whether the meter is working. The meter is working. We
shut all the water. The meter is not running. So that means there's no water leak.
Okay? Across the street, my friend, Cathy, she also receive a water bill that was over
2,500 on year 2010.
So what I'm trying to say is I love City of Riviera Beach. I have two houses and I pay a
lot of taxes. So spend my money wisely. Okay?
CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: All right. Ma'am, I have a question for you. So have you
gone to the Water Department to get this bill fixed?
KAREN HO: Yes, they always fix my bill, but this year I went downstairs, I say I would
like to pay my regular water bill. And they say, Your regular water bill is $633 and
something. And with a late fee. How come you have not been paying your water bill? I
say, What? I want -- I -- I came in last month and say, Please check on it, and you -you say, Yes, you will check on it. And so I'm coming here to pay my water bill.
Besides, I always pay my water bill two months ahead.
CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: Right.
KAREN HO: Okay. So I always have a surplus, so that in case I don't receive the mail
correctly, the water bill has been paid. But $633.45 is way too much.
CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: Okay. So they haven't fixed that bill yet?
KAREN HO: Well, they haven't.
CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: Okay.
KAREN HO: Uh, I took a picture.
CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: Okay.
KAREN HO: My husband look at it. My friends look at it. It's not -- there's no leak on
the house.
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CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: All right. I took down your information.
KAREN HO: Uh-huh.
CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: I will talk to the, um -- the Water Department tomorrow
morning for you and we'll get back to you sometime tomorrow afternoon.
KAREN HO: Please.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: And before you leave, one -CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: Make sure you have your bills with you.
KAREN HO: I have -CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: Okay. What I have -KAREN HO: Yeah, I -- I'm a saver.
CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: Because I'll have your (inaudible).
KAREN HO: I'm a -- I save all my bills since the day -CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: Okay.
KAREN HO: -- I purchased the house. Another thing about your purchase, about roof
leak. When I buy the house, I say, Oh, I love it, I love it. And then I see, Oops, water
drip on my head. I say, Gee, where did it come from? The seller say, Humidity,
humidity. Okay? Guess what? I need new roof a lot. Okay?
CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: Okay.
KAREN HO: Humidity. Seller say it's humidity. That's why that water drop on my
head. It's not because of rain. Got it? Thank you so much.
CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: Got it. Okay.
KAREN HO: Happy New Year.
CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: Happy New Year to you.
KAREN HO: We are all one year wiser. Bye.
CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO:
afternoon, ma'am.

Hopefully.

All right. We'll get back to you tomorrow

CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: But just to let her know that we did, on November -November the 7th, we did approve a resolution that the persons, when you receive a
water bill that exceeds 100 percent above what you're usual bill is, that what we would
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allow is for you to pay the previous month's bill for that month, for that bill -- the month
you got the $600 bill, you would pay the previous month bill, and for the next four
months they would, uh, uh -- well, they would look at your history for 12 months,
average out what it is, and then for the next four months that is what you would pay.
And that is what we're trying to implement because this is something that became
effective November the 7th.
KAREN HO: Okay.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: So Miss -KAREN HO: For my water bill on December, I have a surplus of $62.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Uh-huh.
KAREN HO: So I have it now for $633.45. I will have a surplus of $62. Because I pay
ahead of time.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: You pay ahead of time. I understand.
KAREN HO: Yeah. So I don't have a negative.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Okay. But we do have -KAREN HO: Yeah.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: We should have the -KAREN HO: Okay.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: -- procedures in place so that persons like yourself, getting
these astronomical bills, will not be required to pay the bill.
KAREN HO: Uh-huh.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: And so we're working on getting the -- those policies -- the
policy and all of the procedures implemented -KAREN HO: Okay.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: -- right away.
KAREN HO: Thank you very much.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: You're very welcome.
MAYOR MASTERS: Madam Chair.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Uh-huh?
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MAYOR MASTERS: The Council is certainly to be commended for, um, doing this and
-- and making it possible that people could challenge it and in the meantime wait until
there's an answer. So we want you to know that the Council made a wise decision with
-- with -- in that regard.
Secondly, I -- I think you make a very good point. The fact is that everything is here in
one central place. All of our central services basically are centrally located in one place.
When people come from other parts of the country, and they see our main Police
Department, our main Fire Department, our City Hall, our main library all here, it's -- it -people love it because they -- you know, this is a complex. So I don't want to take your
point lightly. I think it's a great point and I think a lot of people are, um, disenchanted or
not satisfied with the move because they like the central -- central, uh, location, and it is
convenient for all, for students and -- and others.
So that is -- has been a hallmark traditionally of having a -- a complex in one place for
all the people to come -- can come. And it is centrally located and convenient. Thank
you so much.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Norma Duncombe? Ma'am?
KAREN HO: I have another issue.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Okay. We'll call you back in the next -- I guess. How
many -- you -- you had one card?
CITY CLERK WARD: No, she had -- she had about four cards, I think.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: On the public comments?
CITY MANAGER JONES: Yeah, she wrote about four.
CITY CLERK WARD: On the public comments. All on the public comments.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Well, this is a first. Okay, Norma, Miss Duncombe.
NORMA DUNCOMBE: I didn't mind if she -- you wanted to finish with her. Okay.
Norma Duncombe, again. This time I'm here, I'd like to make sure that I, uh, give credit
to good services that I receive from the City. Uh, I think it was the -- the Christmas Day
or maybe the day after, we noticed, uh, water in the streets across from our house. And
what we did was, we called the emergency number and, um, the -- the day after
Christmas, and immediately, uh, the workers came out to check to see what was going
on. And of course, I went across to find out what was going on, and they immediately
said, Well, okay, we're here to investigate, because something is going on, and we will
let you know as soon as we know what's going on.
And I'd just like to complement the workers that came and, uh, worked on, uh, the main
-- it was the water main broken, or whatever the problem was. They came out and they
jumped right in and started working. And, uh, before the day was over they had placed,
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uh, the cards letting us know that we needed to boil the water because of the problem
that was there. And I would just like -- I don't know them by name, but I'd like to let
them know that we really appreciated the services that they gave us.
That is in contrast to the service where we lost -- this was a while back -- the top to our
garbage container, and when we called Waste Management, they told us they could
give us something in a week or two. Well, could you imagine garbage being uncovered
for a week or two? And I'm bringing out the point was that when we placed garbage
and trash pickup with a service, it makes a difference in the services that you receive.
Now, Mr. Guyton was in charge of pushing those services away from the City. A lot of
people lost jobs. They do not respond readily to problems that you have. And I was
very upset, because number one, it was not something that we did in terms of the
garbage cover. When they dumped the garbage, I guess the container top came off in
the truck, and it wasn't deliberate, but it was a problem.
So, uh, I just appreciate the Utility Department, the response that they gave, the
services that they gave, and everything was cleared up and we just appreciate you.
Thank you.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: You're welcome. Mr. Davis, Terence Davis? Mr. Davis, I
know your card had been submitted for Item 6, but we had already begun to discuss the
matter.
TERENCE DAVIS: Okay.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: And it does state that cards must be submitted before the
item is discussed.
TERENCE DAVIS: Okay.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Okay.
TERENCE DAVIS: So is it okay for me to speak about it?
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Oh, well, sure. Public comment. Anything you have -TERENCE DAVIS: Okay. Okay.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: -- to say, sir.
TERENCE DAVIS: Okay. Happy New Year to everyone, to the Mayor, City Manager.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Thanks.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Thank you.
TERENCE DAVIS: Present Council and attorney, um, BTI came in and spoke, did a
very fast presentation about the issues that took about 30 minutes. Um, I agree with,
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um, Councilwoman Davis when she talked about local participation and asking for them
to do that for us. Uh, one thing I'd like to ask the Council and the staff to work with them
on is to create a list of items, like talk about what type of jobs that will be available for
our people, how many of those jobs, and what qualifications what our local residents will
be, uh, needing to come there, so when our present mayor brings his job fairs, that we
can know exactly on how we gonna measure how many people are gonna have some
jobs, so that we know what's going on in our community. Um, I'd like to say moving
forward with the new year, and hopefully everyone gets better and better as local
leaders here in the city. I thank you.
MAYOR MASTERS: Thank you.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Thank you, Mr. Davis. Okay. Miss Larson? And after
Miss Larson, Miss Havener. And I guess we still are gonna have more. Oh, he's
already been.
BONNIE LARSON: Bonnie Larson. I'll work backwards from some of the comments
which have just been made. We're talking about the local participation in the
Mediterranean complex. I don't believe that's a legal thing to do, to mandate that and
then we say, well, it was just a courtesy. But what you don't want to do is give the
impression that you are going to do something or -- or approve or not approve them. So
I think it's -- I -- I don't know. If I were on the Council, I wouldn't do it, because it gives
the impression, even though it's just a courtesy, that you might by making your decision
based on that.
Um, we talked about the Planning & Zoning. That was that same complex. We're
talking about the Planning & Zoning only meets once a month, and that's an awkward
situation. Well, the Council now only meets once a month, so that is an awkward
situation, too. Uh, you've already run into that, because you wanted to vote on the
industrial property for the second time, and you couldn't because you only had one
meeting in December.
So the Planning & Zoning, also it was said that they're just a volunteer board. We have
to be careful when we say things like that, because these are people who volunteer
their time, their effort, their knowledge, and -- and then it was said that we don't know
what they said. We just got a summary. So we don't really know why the reason they
were asking for, um, updates and to approve every one of the sections of that complex.
We don't know that because it's not on Channel 18. It needs to be on Channel 18 so
that everybody can watch it and be aware of what's happening within the City. The
residents need to be aware. The Council needs to be aware. All you're getting is a
summary. It's not the same thing, because summaries are open to interpretation. It's
not the same thing. There was a reason those people asked for that. I don't know what
it is, but you need to watch that meeting. And the only way you can watch it is on
Channel 18. You shouldn't have to request it specifically. It should be there, available - it's only once a month -- for everybody to be aware of what happened at those -- at
those meetings.
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I looked on the website for something, and there was one department which was ten
years out of date, so it's -- you know, it's a fairly new website. We need to have every
department update their information. I was looking at some figures and it was -- and
then it said it was like from 10 years ago. And I go, What the heck? This is a new -this is a new website. We need to have everything current. We talked about the
contract for the industrial property. The only place I get information is from Riviera
Beach. When I read contracts -- and I'm pretty good at reading contracts -- if it's an
outdated, then shame on Riviera Beach, but that's what it said was that Zachry could
request an extension if they wanted to, and couldn't -- um, there's a term for that. I can't
think of what it is -- we couldn't, uh, deny them that if it was a reasonable request.
It was also said tonight that the City Council's not -- the City Hall is not moving now. It's
not -- this is not in the resolution for what we're doing now. That's the thing. It's not in
the resolution now because we can't disrupt the entire city, but yes, you do want to have
all your -- all your, um, services in one location, and that's what we have right here.
So yes, the Police Department does need to be rebuilt, and yes, Miss Brooks, we do
have reason to go to the Police Department. And I'm never alone when I go there.
There's always other people there. So we need the convenience of it, which is what we
have right here.
Um, the Metro Rail, oh, a lot of comments on that, but Mr. Thomas, you asked some
good questions. Do not put anything in writing, anything that they are allowed to store
their cars here in Riviera Beach. They're not gonna have a stop in Riviera Beach, and I
can tell you why. My time is up. Do not let them stop here without that in writing, and
you're not gonna get it. You ask good questions, but you're not gonna get it, so don't let
them come here and store their -- don't let us be a dumping ground, as people have
said. Thank you.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Um, Miss Havener?
VIVIAN HAVENER: Good evening.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Good evening, Miss Havener.
VIVIAN HAVENER: I came here tonight to thank all of you up on the dais there,
including these young people here, for all the good work that you have done for the
citizens and for us for the last year. And I want to mention something to the Mayor, as
well. My husband was a veteran. When I met him 56 years ago in England he was a
staff sergeant in the Air Force in Korea.
MAYOR MASTERS: Yes.
VIVIAN HAVENER: We met and married. Also, I want to commend you for your piece
in the paper about the guns.
MAYOR MASTERS: Yes.
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VIVIAN HAVENER: I hope that we can get that -- something resolved and something
done with the -- with the schools here, and that we can protect them. My husband's a
crossing guard at Mary Bethune.
MAYOR MASTERS: Thank you.
VIVIAN HAVENER: So I can worry about him. And I want to wish all of you the best for
the new year and a special thanks to Miss Davis -- I nearly forgot you, Miss Davis -- for
all the help that you have been in our neighborhood. Any time that we have asked help
from Miss Davis we've got it right away. And thank you all very much.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Thank you, Miss Havener.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: You're welcome, Miss Havener.
VIVIAN HAVENER: I appreciate everything you've done.
MAYOR MASTERS: Madam Chair? Miss Havener? Miss Havener?
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Nice to have complements.
VIVIAN HAVENER: Yes.
MAYOR MASTERS: Just -- just one second. Thank you so much for all that you do to
-- to -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Yes.
MAYOR MASTERS: -- make our city the best waterfront city to live, work, and play.
VIVIAN HAVENER: Thank you. I like to help.
MAYOR MASTERS: And I want to -- I want to invite you on January 16th. I will be
presenting the petition, along with other mayors, uh, and community leaders at the
school board, asking to have the installation of metal detectors in all Palm Beach
County schools. I would love for you to join us when we make that -- when we present
the, uh, petition.
VIVIAN HAVENER: You'll have to let me know again, because -MAYOR MASTERS: I'll come and get you.
VIVIAN HAVENER: -- I (inaudible) -MAYOR MASTERS: I'll come and get you.
VIVIAN HAVENER: And Miss Davis, any time that you need help again, I'll be glad to
help you --

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING

JANUARY 2, 2013

65

COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Thank you so much -VIVIAN HAVENER: -- any time. Thank you.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: -- Miss Havener.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: And the last comment card I have is from Bruce Guyton.
BRUCE GUYTON: Madam Chair, Council, uh, City Manager, Mayor, my name is Bruce
Guyton, and I'm a lifelong resident of Riviera Beach. Um, I didn't come expecting to
speak tonight, but I see that my name was repeated a few times and, um, maybe I need
to say a few words here to clarify some things.
Um, there was an accusation made regarding my, um, participation with, um, privatizing
our Rescue services. Let me just say that first of all, there are five people that sit on the
City Council. In order to get anything passed, we need at least three votes. So to put
everything on my shoulders, I don't know, maybe it's a compliment, but let me just
clarify that we have been ahead of the curve for years. If you look at most
municipalities, most of them have privatized their services. Do you know why? That
has been proven through their own studies to be the most efficient way to do it.
Whether we like it or not, whether we have family working for this department, my
concern was about the people. When we did that, my water bill went down $5. And
that is significant to anybody's water bill.
So I stand up. I embrace my decision. They're giving me much too credit as if I did it on
my own, and everybody followed Bruce. I didn't have that type of influence, but what I
did have was a mind to think for myself. I didn't let anybody intimidate or influence me.
I made my decision based on data, documents, and evidence. And if you look around
this country now, most municipalities privatize their services.
The other thing is, this is clearly political rhetoric. We're going into an election season.
Everybody know I'm running for District 1. On January 8th at 5:30 you can meet me at
the Peanut Island Bar & Grill. I'll be having a kickoff. And they are going to be attacking
those of us who are candidates. So I look forward to it. I'm ready for a very lively
election, and come March I plan to be sitting right there on that dais. Thank you very
much.
REVEREND BURRS: Madam Chair, if you gonna break the rules for one, you need to
break them for all.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: I'm sorry?
REVEREND BURRS: If you gonna break the rules for one, you need to break them for
all. Now, I has nothing with Mr. Bruce Guyton coming and speaking, but the -- the
procedures are that you have -- must have your card in before the procedures -- before
the comments start. I'm a victim of that.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: That's for just items on the agenda for discussion.
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REVEREND BURRS: I -- on items -- no, ma'am. I have put a card in late for comments
and they turned me down in the past. I -- I -- they did that to me.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Reverend Burrs, would you like to speak?
REVEREND BURRS: Yeah.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Because I thought you -REVEREND BURRS: But I just -- no, I just want to -- I don't care to speak.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: I had excused myself.
REVEREND BURRS: But I just want y'all to understand. I want y'all to understand, if
you gonna break the rules now, you gonna have to break them for all. So keep that. I
got nothing with Mr. Bruce Guyton speaking or nobody else, but you must -- if you got
some rules, you must follow them for everybody.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Under -REVEREND BURRS: That's all I want to say.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Under Public Comment, and you all can -REVEREND BURRS: No.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: -- correct me if I'm wrong, you can bring a card in at any
time on a Public Comment.
REVEREND BURRS: But -- but -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: But when there's an agenda item -REVEREND BURRS: I honest -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: -- and the resolution has been read -REVEREND BURRS: I -- I -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: -- and the item discussed, you cannot present -REVEREND BURRS: I understand -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: -- a card.
REVEREND BURRS: -- what you're saying, but I'm telling you now, that has happened
to me right here. I brought a card in after the comments had started. They would not let
me speak, right here in this Council.
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CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: During -- during Public Comment time?
REVEREND BURRS: During Public Comments. When Public Comments. It did it to
me. Now, I got no problem with Mr. Bruce or nobody else coming up and speaking, but
-CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Did I do it to you?
REVEREND BURRS: Yes, they did it to me right here.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Now, you say they.
REVEREND BURRS: The Council.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: I'm saying, the Chair. Did I do it to you?
REVEREND BURRS: The Chair. Miss -- Miss -- Miss Pardo was the Chair at that time.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Okay. Well, I just want to make it clear.
REVEREND BURRS: So y'all don't have your rules written out for everybody, not for
one person.
MAYOR MASTERS: Madam Chair, what -- what is the rule on that?
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: And we accept what you say.
REVEREND BURRS: That -- that -- that's the -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: But as Chair, I try to be fair to everyone.
REVEREND BURRS: And I have no problem with nobody speaking whatever.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: I do try to be fair.
REVEREND BURRS: But just -- but that -- that wasn't fair.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: And if I'm not, I apologize.
REVEREND BURRS: But you got -- most peoples here could tell you the same thing
what I'm telling you. That's had happened.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Okay. But we're talking about the history. But I'm talking
about currently I would not do that.
REVEREND BURRS: Okay. So the rules are now you can put your card in at any time
during Public Comments, whether it's the beginning or the last?
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REVEREND BURRS: Okay. Well -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: -- that once it has been read. There's nothing read under
Public Comments. We're saying, when an item on the agenda has been -REVEREND BURRS: I -- I -- I -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: -- read.
REVEREND BURRS: I clearly understand that point.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Okay.
REVEREND BURRS: But I'm only clear to say that y'all need to -- every councilperson
up there ought to have that in writing, that if you put your card in even after Public
Comments have started. Whoever -- whoever's Chair after you, they ought to -- they
ought to know that, because next person have the Chair after you may not know that
and -- and do to me what was done to me in the past.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: That's true. That's true. And perhaps -REVEREND BURRS: It ought to be in writing.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: -- our attorney can keep us on course with that. Thank
you, sir. All right. We're now down to -- I want to make sure. Are there any other
Public Comment cards? All right. We're down to regular business -- business. And I
know that we do have, that was taken from the Consent Agenda, Item Number 1, and
so we would read that. Who pulled out on Number 1? Was it, um, Miss Davis?
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Cedrick.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Cedrick. Okay.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Councilperson Thomas.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: All right. So we need to read that resolution.
CITY CLERK WARD: Resolution 01-13, a Resolution of the City Council of the City of
Riviera Beach, Palm Beach County, Florida, approving an interlocal agreement between
the Board of County Commissioners, Palm Beach County, and the City of Riviera Beach
accepting fundings in the amount of 132,634 for the continuation of re-entry services,
authorizing the Director of Finance & Administrative Services to set up a budget for
same, authorizing the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the agreement and providing an
effective date.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: So moved.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Second?
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COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Yes. I'd like to have a presentation on these funds.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Did we get a second?
COUNCILPERSON LOWE: Second.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Thank you. Okay.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Oh, I thought I heard a second. I'm sorry.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: No.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: I thought I heard a second.
DEPUTY CITY MANAGER JONES: Danny Jones, Interim Deputy City Manager,
standing in for Jeanette Gordon, the Justice Service Center coordinator. As you know,
in 2007 the Justice Service Center program was established, and since that time it's
serviced about 1,200 Palm Beach County residents. The re-entry program is geared
toward the northern Palm Beach County area. Ninety percent of those residents or
participants are from Riviera Beach. Annually the program services approximately 100
participants, meaning that we service about 90 Riviera Beach, uh, citizens annually.
The recidivism rate over the life of the program is about 25 percent. Twenty-five
percent of the people fall short and have returned to some form of activity, where 75
percent of those persons receiving services have gone on to be productive citizens.
Some of the main services provided by the Justice Service Center include help bridging
the gap to get needed services for employment, such as a valid I.D., uh, helping the
participants get their birth certificates -- often they lose those type of items, uh, when
they're incarcerated -- a valid Social Security card and a driver's license to become
productive citizens again.
Some of the core components of the program include job training services,
transportation services, supplemental housing services, and employment training, and
some on-the-job training in the last, uh, couple of years in the construction field. This
annual budget of 132,000 is provided by the County to provide those services and the
City's contribution is roughly about $15,000. And that is in the area of space. We
typically over the last couple years has paid for the space in which the program is
housed in.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: How much was that?
DEPUTY CITY MANAGER JONES: Approximately 15,000.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: So is that -- is -- is that the amount -- that's the total
amount that the City has -DEPUTY CITY MANAGER JONES:
responsible for.
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COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: And where's this space located?
DEPUTY CITY MANAGER JONES: At the Port Center, along with the Human
Resources Department and the Police Department Detective Bureau and Code
Enforcement. Uh, actually, they're on the third floor, just opposite of the Human
Resources Department.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: And are -- are they the only ones that occupy that
particular space?
DEPUTY CITY MANAGER JONES: On the third floor we have the Human Resource
Department. Opposite, uh, across the -- the hallway is the Justice Service Center. And
in that they have their own unique suite.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: So the only amount of money that the City is putting
toward this is 15,000.
DEPUTY CITY MANAGER JONES: Approximately 15,000, sir. Yes, sir.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Not -- no other benefits or anything like that that comes
with this?
DEPUTY CITY MANAGER JONES: No, sir. Uh, right now it's in-kind. That's -- that's
paid through the space that the Justice Service Center uses. There are some, uh,
incidentals, um, from time to time that may come up, but no, uh, serious contribution by
the City.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Okay. And that -- those budgets were put into this
backup as to what the responsibility of the City is going to be.
DEPUTY CITY MANAGER JONES: Sir, I didn't hear your question.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: That -- those things that you're speaking of?
DEPUTY CITY MANAGER JONES: Yes.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Those potential incidentals, those -- the extra 15,000,
none of that was put into this backup to see what the total cost of what this -- accepting
these funds are going to -- to be and -- and what this program is really costing us.
DEPUTY CITY MANAGER JONES: Okay. Um, that may have been an oversight on
staff -- uh, the coordinator's part, but we can provide you with a detailed breakdown,
um, of those costs associated with the program.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: I would definitely like to, uh -- to have that. And I would
also like to know what's going on with Youth Empowerment. I keep seeing re-entry, uh,
and that's the adult part of it. What -- what's going on with Youth Empowerment, and
what are we doing with that program that's supposed to be, um, taking off?
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DEPUTY CITY MANAGER JONES: Our Youth Empowerment program is still active
and going. Uh, it's being supplemented through the City's budget process to the tune of
approximately $100,000, and we also receive funding from at least two different
sources, uh, through FDLE and through the Criminal Justice Commission to continue to
fund that program.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: So that program is strong and being funded.
DEPUTY CITY MANAGER JONES: It's being funded, yes, sir.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Okay. No problem. That's all.
COUNCILPERSON LOWE: Madam Chair?
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Yes? Um, yes, Mr. Lowe?
COUNCILPERSON LOWE: Well, I'd like to start off by saying that it's, uh -- it's sad that
we don't fund this, uh, program, properly. Um, 90 percent of the participants are from
Riviera Beach. Matter of fact, my brother was one who was, uh, recently, uh, released
from the County Jail and -- and needed services and needed an opportunity to get reacclimated back into society and, uh, to gain some decent and respectable
employment.
One of the difficulties with, uh, re-entry is that -- you know, we do our part in terms of
screening and providing social, uh, services to these, uh, individuals. But the
connection is dropped when we prepare them and then we send them out into the work
environment like they're a regular citizen and can qualify for the jobs that exist today.
And -- and sadly, once you reveal that you've been involved in some criminal activity,
you know, that diminishes your chance of employment.
And, um, what -- what I try to alleviate, uh, through working with this program -- because
we've done one major project on 36th Street where we've used, uh, ex-felons and put
them to work, and I've seen the program work. I've seen the camaraderie between the
individuals that participate. I've seen the, uh -- the enthusiasm, uh, in the individuals,
especially when they are afforded an opportunity to gain a second chance.
One of the crippling elements of this program is the fact that we don't have the
resources to provide a steady, um, work program for these individuals.
Now, the need in this community is great. You know, we have a lot of residents that still
have blue roofs on their -- or blue tarps on their roof. Uh, we have a lot of residents
that, uh, still have hurricane damage that live in dilapidated housing that could use
some form of assistance. And, uh, you know, my, uh -- my idea was that if we
committed hopefully -- I mean, in a -- in a real serious way to dedicating some dollars so
that we could take care of these small problems that exist in the community, we'd have - we'd have a job that can be overseen by either the City or the Justice Service Program
that would put these folks to work.
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The results are there. We've seen it work. Uh, I've been involved with this program for
at least two years. I'm on the sub-committee for, um -- for, um, ex-felon re-entry with
the County. And that's -- you know, I'm talking with folks throughout Palm Beach
County, and that's the underlining fact is that we can't place these people. And they are
ready and willing when they come to us to get their lives on track.
And I would like for this Board to, uh -- to really look into, uh, what we're doing at the
Justice Service Center and, uh, find more resources to get this -- get this program off
the ground, where we can provide a consistent stream of opportunity for those that have
to be re-introduced back into our community. 'Cause we see it every time. Folks are
just going -- it's a revolving door. They're going back and forth into jail. And, uh, you
know, we just simply can't afford it.
And this is our program. You know, the County has been gracious enough to provide
funding in the past couple of years, and we've scraped for funding. We've actually
gotten grants through different sources, but most of the work that needs to be done is -is right here. And it's a win-win situation. And I appreciate the money that we did
receive, but I would encourage anybody that, uh, is serious about providing
opportunities for folks that have -- that need second chances to really consider ways
that we can enhance our program and become more committed, and that commitment
comes with dollars. And, um, the opportunity is there, and the resource is there. It just
takes a little bit more creativity.
So I -- I commend the, uh, staff at the Justice Service Center. They've done a
wonderful job with the limited resources that they have but, um, there's room for us to
do more. And we can at least match the -- the 133,000. I'm sure the money would be
well spent, because there's plenty of -- of people in need right here in this community
that we could help. Thank you.
MAYOR MASTERS: Madam -- Madam Chair?
DEPUTY CITY MANAGER JONES: Thank you, sir.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Mr. Mayor. Yes?
MAYOR MASTERS: Yes. Um, I certainly agree with, uh, distinguished -- my
distinguished colleague, uh, Mr. Lowe. Um, Jeanette Gordon is -- um, has gone beyond
the call of duty; um, a great administrator of -- of the, uh, program. I've seen her
working almost around the clock to make sure that, uh, that population is served,
number 1. Number 2, um, they have worked very closely with the Office of the Mayor.
As you know, we have consistently and, um, very often as much as possible given job
fairs to make sure that we are doing what Councilman Lowe is -- is talking about. It's
having job fairs only for ex-offenders, and we're getting ready to have one in the next
two or three months, where we have identified businesses in Riviera Beach and
businesses in Palm Beach, um, in neighboring cities, that's gonna work with us to make
sure that ex-felons are given an opportunity to work.
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We've had a few, um, job fairs for ex-offenders in the past. There's two requirements.
One, you must by an ex-offender. Two, if you're an employer, you must be committed
to hiring an ex-offender. Now, this is in the best interests of our city and the county,
because Chief, you know that almost two-thirds of offenders that are released, within
the first year they re-commit crime. Uh, if we can get them gainful employment,
particularly in that first year, I -- I think we can make a dent on the recidivism rate of
crime, and them going back and committing even worse crime during that first year than
they were in for the first time.
So we will continue, um -- and Councilman Lowe is correct. We must do and continue
to be challenged to do more to make sure that that part of the population, as we are
doing with the veterans, that we don't leave any veterans behind, we don't leave any
seniors behind, and we don't -- certainly don't leave any ex-offenders behind, but give
them a gainful -- give them an opportunity to get a job. So we're gonna continue to work
with Jeanette Gordon. She's worked with us. Whenever she, uh, Mr. Mayor, we need a
job fair; Mr. Mayor, I've got ex-offenders, we're gonna continue to be there for her. And
she has my 100 percent support, as well. Thank you.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Any other further comments, discussion?
CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: Well, I -- I would just like to make a comment. And you
know, I think someone has to stick up for the average Joe who, you know, spends his or
her life trying to do the right thing, and they've been laid off, and they're also out there
looking for a job. You know? So, you know, someone was talking about maybe pouring
more money into this program and helping these people. And fine, but you know what?
What about the hard-working people who are down on their luck right now who have
been laid off? You know? Who's out there trying to help them? So -MAYOR MASTERS: I am.
CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: Just -- well, someone needs to be. You know? We -- it -MAYOR MASTERS: I'm helping them, too. You're absolutely right.
CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: It just seems like they're the -- they're the forgotten ones.
MAYOR MASTERS: That's right. We must not -CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: The people who are trying -MAYOR MASTERS: -- leave anybody behind.
CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: -- to do the right thing. So that's all I -- just a statement.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Madam Chair?
COUNCILPERSON LOWE: Madam Chair?
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CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Okay. Well, that -- everybody's just make -- giving their
opinions, and the bottom line is, I think everybody now is trying to do the right thing.
Um, any other comments? If not, we can go ahead on (inaudible).
COUNCILPERSON LOWE: Yeah, I had a comment.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Okay.
COUNCILPERSON LOWE: When -- when dealing with the -- the average Joe, you
know, that conversation came up in some of the subcommittee's conversations. And,
um, you know, I feel for the average Joe. Matter of fact, I'm one of them. But I do know
that this city, this -- this particular community has an extraordinary number of ex-felons,
an extraordinary number of people that need a second chance. You know, I -- and
that's where, you know, uh, uh, appealing for this commitment stems from. We're not
like everywhere else. Either you're gonna spend it fighting crime, or you're gonna
spend it deterring crime.
Now, the difference between me and some -- someone else with a felony record is that,
you know, I have a chance. I can at least, uh, qualify to own a business and -- and get
particular certifications. I have several avenues that I can go to for help. But we're
trying to build a community, and in a community you -- you deal with the issues that
you're facing. If this was a community where we didn't have such numbers that we
have as it relates to the criminal element and criminal activity and unemployment and
things of that nature, then, you know, we could focus our resources accordingly. But I
know that the need is here in Riviera Beach, because I -- I -- I walk -- I drive past areas
every day and see folks that are desperate, good people that just happen to go the
wrong way and need a second chance.
And if we don't do it, who will? To do nothing is not the answer. You know? And that's
-- that's where -- that's where I'm coming from, and that's what this program is designed
for. This program isn't -- this program was set up and based through -- not through our
efforts. Through people within the county and the state and the region. They felt it
necessary that we address this problem. And being in Riviera Beach, where the
problem is escalated, we need to respond accordingly.
And it's not neglecting the average person. We do what we can for the average person,
but we try to take care of the needs so that we can deter other activities that are
associated with people that are lost and not able to find their way and get -- gain rightful
employment. Thank you.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Okay. Any further discussion? If not, we're ready for the
vote.
CITY CLERK WARD: Councilperson Thomas?
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Yes.
CITY CLERK WARD: Councilperson Lowe?
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COUNCILPERSON LOWE: Yes.
CITY CLERK WARD: Councilperson Davis?
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Yes.
CITY CLERK WARD: Pro Tem Pardo?
CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: Yes.
CITY CLERK WARD: Chair Brooks?
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Yes.
CITY CLERK WARD: Unanimous vote.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Uh, we have resolution number -- the second resolution
that was also pulled. Would you read that?
CITY CLERK WARD: Resolution 2-13, uh, pulled by Councilperson Pardo. A
resolution of the City Council of the City of Riviera Beach, Palm Beach County, Florida,
authorizing and appropriating the use of funds received from developers and the Riviera
Beach Community Redevelopment Agency for the State Road A-1-A Street Resurfacing
& Beautification Project and providing an effective date.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Need a motion, please.
COUNCILPERSON LOWE: So moved.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Need a motion. Need a second.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: I second. I second.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Miss Pardo, you pulled this. Okay.
CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: Okay. I pulled it because I have a couple of questions.
Uh, the first question is, when will the project be turned over to the City?
FACILITIES MANAGER JOHNSON: Good evening. Brynt Johnson, Director of Public
Works. Uh, the project is technically complete. Um, we had one issue with what they
call a lot, um, which deals with the asphalt placement in a certain area. Um, it didn't
meet DOT specifications, but it's outside of DOT's right-of-way. It was just a side road.
Um, but I think we're, um -- I think they've come to a decision on that, so as soon as we
find out that, the project will be basically complete.
CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: Okay. And then what about Palm Beach Isles? I know
that they had an issue and they've been talking to you and to Miss McKinney. What's
going on with that? Is -- has that been --
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FACILITIES MANAGER JOHNSON: Um, maybe can you give me any details? I'm not
sure.
CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: Well, yeah. You sent me a lot of the e-mails. Um, it's with
Mr. Murphy -FACILITIES MANAGER JOHNSON: Oh.
CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: -- as the, uh -- what is he, the vice president or something
of the homeowner's association, and they said during construction some of their
property was damaged.
FACILITIES MANAGER JOHNSON: Right.
CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: Right. So what's -FACILITIES MANAGER JOHNSON: Well -CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: -- going on with that? Has that been rectified?
FACILITIES MANAGER JOHNSON: -- honestly, I haven't heard anything more about
it. That was prior to, uh, uh, Engineering coming to Public Works. Um, I basically
received an e-mail, um, from the previous -- the -- from the department that was
previously handling the project saying that there was a claim, but there was no
paperwork to substantiate the claim. There was no -- there were no reports made. Um,
there -- actually, when we looked into it -- I take that back.
When we looked into it, um, there was something that was reported by Target
Engineering, but they said that the work -- the things that happened took place within
DOT's right-of-way and not outside of DOT's right-of-way. Um, so anything that was
placed in DOT's right-of-way and was removed shouldn't have been there anyway, and
probably wasn't permitted through DOT, and actually wasn't permitted through DOT.
Um, so basically, that's what happened with that. It was basically considered a nonclaim.
CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: Okay. So they were made aware of that, then? Someone
notified -FACILITIES MANAGER JOHNSON: I just actually -CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: -- Palm Beach Isles?
FACILITIES MANAGER JOHNSON: I just actually found that information out the end
of last week, and I haven't had the opportunity to convey any of that information.
CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: Okay. And then what about the railing on the north side of
the little bridge?
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FACILITIES MANAGER JOHNSON: The little bridge is a separate project from this.
CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: Okay. So has that been -FACILITIES MANAGER JOHNSON: That was done -CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: -- turned over to us?
FACILITIES MANAGER JOHNSON: Yeah, uh-huh.
CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: Okay. So are we doing anything about the railing that's
chipped, that looks absolutely -FACILITIES MANAGER JOHNSON: We -CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: -- awful?
FACILITIES MANAGER JOHNSON: Yes. We are looking into a different coating that
will -- that's more durable.
CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: Okay.
FACILITIES MANAGER JOHNSON: Hopefully, some type of rubberized coating that
won't chip off.
CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: And who is going to pay for that?
FACILITIES MANAGER JOHNSON: Well, unfortunately, it's the City's.
CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: Why?
FACILITIES MANAGER JOHNSON: We've -- we've taken it over.
warranty period is up on that, on the little bridge.

The one-year

CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: Okay. So is -- did anyone notify DOT that the coating -who chose that coating, first of all?
FACILITIES MANAGER JOHNSON: That's a DOT -- DOT spec.
CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: Okay. So has anyone notified them and sent them
pictures to show them what happens after -- it hasn't even been a year.
FACILITIES MANAGER JOHNSON: Well, I -CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: You know?
FACILITIES MANAGER JOHNSON: I don't know if their spec is actually -- I mean, a
lot of the issue is from the fishing on the bridge, not necessarily --
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CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: Right. But there's been fishing on that bridge for 40 years?
FACILITIES MANAGER JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: You know what I mean? And when DOT started that
project they knew it was a fishing bridge. Remember?
FACILITIES MANAGER JOHNSON: Absolutely. I agree with you.
CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: You know, they had, you know, all of the -- the signs out
there.
FACILITIES MANAGER JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: And -FACILITIES MANAGER JOHNSON: Well, we can -- we can check with DOT and see
if they're willing to, um, pay for any of the costs related to re-coating it.
CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: All right. I'll just tell you, I'm just really surprised that we
haven't moved forward with this before now. And especially, if we took over that little
bridge already, we never notified DOT? We just signed off on it? You know what I
mean?
FACILITIES MANAGER JOHNSON: Right.
CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: When is -- it's gonna be how many years, how many
decades before we get more money out of DOT for that bridge? And you know, I'm not
willing to look at that -- look at those railings for the next, you know, 20 or 30 years. The
railing isn't even a year old.
FACILITIES MANAGER JOHNSON: No.
CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: So, um, Miss Manager?
CITY MANAGER JONES: Uh-huh.
CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: I would ask you to please take photographs and send a
letter to DOT and see if they'll do anything with the -- with the railing. You know, it's
totally unacceptable.
CITY MANAGER JONES: We'll -CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: Totally unacceptable. All right. That's all I have. That you,
Madam Chair.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Miss Davis?
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COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Yes, ma'am. Uh, Mr. Johnson, I realize you -- you took
this project over, um, after some -- quite a few things had happened. Um, and my
comments really aren't, um, to -- to blame you or anything, but it's just questions I have,
uh, concerning, you know, back in -- I think it was June 10th -- June 16th, 2010, and I
know this -- this has not been the practice of how we do business. Um, but this project,
um, $6 million, I guess, whatever the amount of the project was, we approved this
project with a ten -- with a nine percent contingency. Now, I don't know where nine
percent comes from, 'cause usually we deal with ten percent. So -- but it's in this
document, so I'm -- I'm assuming it is nine percent.
FACILITIES MANAGER JOHNSON: Correct.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: But you know, somebody dropped the ball. And whoever
was handling this project prior to, um, dropped the ball, seriously, because there was
not a, um, funding source identified for the nine percent contingency. And as such, uh,
normally we have been pretty good with staying within, you know, what the project cost
is, but on this one it has run over due to one thing after the other, um, and to the tune of
$927,000.
And now on the backup, uh, what you -- what Mr. Sherman gave me today, what I had
asked for is to identify the funding sources for the nine percent, where that money was
coming from. And -- and because in the backup it says it's coming from the City
Beautification Fund. Am I correct? Now, and that City Beautification Fund I understood
consisted of, uh, I think it was $500,000 from the CRA, as well as some other stuff. But
in this document, uh, it simply says that it's coming -- the funds are available -- you've
got $950,666 that are available to appropriate toward this. So identify those sources of
funds that are available for appropriation.
FINANCE DIRECTOR SHERMAN: Yes. Uh, Randy Sherman, Director of Finance &
Administrative Services.
Yeah, I -- I think there may have been some
miscommunication -COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Yeah.
FINANCE DIRECTOR SHERMAN: -- on what you were actually asking for.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Uh-huh.
FINANCE DIRECTOR SHERMAN: Um, when I go -- went -- go back and -- and look at
this -- this project, go back, at one point there was actually $1.5 million, uh, of
donations, developer dollars, CRA dollars, uh, and the like. Uh, right now there's
currently 950,000 of those dollars left. Um -COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Okay. Can you tell me what -- where -- where that money
come -- came from?
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FINANCE DIRECTOR SHERMAN: I cannot. Um, I can -- I can -- have to go back and
-- and research. I mean, we certainly don't track it accounting-wise by each developer.
I have to go back to the source documents, um, and as you saw -- yeah.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Mr. Sherman, excuse me.
FINANCE DIRECTOR SHERMAN: Yes. Um -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Miss, um -- Miss Pardo says-CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: I'll tell you where the money came from. The money came
from Catalfumo Construction and from the Marriott.
FINANCE DIRECTOR SHERMAN: Okay.
CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: That's where the money came from.
FINANCE DIRECTOR SHERMAN: I -- that -- that may be. I -- I -- again, I -- I don't
know exactly where it was from, but I'll -CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: That's where it came from.
FINANCE DIRECTOR SHERMAN: I'll trust that that was it.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: I would prefer you give me, um, something in writing -FINANCE DIRECTOR SHERMAN: Yes.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: -- that tells me where the dollars came from and the exact
amounts.
FINANCE DIRECTOR SHERMAN: Absolutely.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Um, I know that Catalfumo had submitted some money to
the committee through benefits, um, and I know that there was another hotel that had
submitted money for, uh, A-1-A beautification, uh, but from what I understood, most of
those dollars had been used.
FINANCE DIRECTOR SHERMAN: Okay.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Okay? So what I want is to know exactly where these
dollars came from. Um, and I -- I would like to have it before this vote is taken tonight,
because I had asked for it earlier this evening, and maybe, you know, somehow it didn't
get, um, relayed to you, uh, uh, appropriately. And I -- and, you know, I just think it's
necessary to have the information.
FINANCE DIRECTOR SHERMAN: Yeah.
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COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: So, um, because I have some -- some current -- I know -concerns. I know that, um, there were some issues with JJ&G, and -- and we're not
gonna get the lighting under the bridge because of the depth of -- you know, not being
proper. Um, and because that was done many, many, many years ago, so we had to
put things deeper. Um, but there are some things on here that, um, um, there is a -- a
revised landscaping, uh, in the amount of $7,000. Can you tell me what that consisted
of? Don't make faces.
FACILITIES MANAGER JOHNSON: Oh, no, no, I'm looking -COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: It ain't no -- is it hard?
FACILITIES MANAGER JOHNSON: Um -COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: I mean, I'm -FACILITIES MANAGER JOHNSON: -- that was -COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: -- and I'm -- I'm not -FACILITIES MANAGER JOHNSON: That was -- that was -COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: It's just some -- there's a lot of -FACILITIES MANAGER JOHNSON: That was -COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: -- change orders here -FACILITIES MANAGER JOHNSON: Right.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: -- that -- you know, I just wanna know.
FACILITIES MANAGER JOHNSON: No, that was actually, um -- that was requested
by, uh, the department that was previously running the project, so I really can't speak to
what that was, specifically.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Community Development?
FACILITIES MANAGER JOHNSON: Yes. Yes, ma'am.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Okay. And, um, I understand about all the light pole stuff
and all of that.
FACILITIES MANAGER JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: And now, uh, the guardrail at Yacht Harbor. Is that a -- is
that part of the FDOT, um, responsibility, or is that a City responsibility?
FACILITIES MANAGER JOHNSON: Which number was that, if you know?
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COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: This is number 54 in the amount of 17,994.
FACILITIES MANAGER JOHNSON: No, that was -- that was -- that was City. That
was added by the City afterwards.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Okay.
FACILITIES MANAGER JOHNSON: Just as a -- it was a safety issue.
CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: Safety.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Okay. So the only reason I'm -- I'm bringing it up is
because if -- I mean, I -- I -- I know that change orders happen all the time; some by the
contractor, some by us, whatever. But if this was a City issue it would -- you know,
would it have been better for us to address that not in this project, but you know,
through some other fund -- funding source -- you -- you see what I'm saying -- which
would have helped us and not -- you know. That was my -- my question on that. And
also, um, the sink hole repair, why is that a City expense?
FACILITIES MANAGER JOHNSON: Because that was actually an emergency -COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: That's number 55.
FACILITIES MANAGER JOHNSON: -- repair. From what I understand, that was
actually an emergency repair to our system, not something that the contractor installed.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Okay.
FACILITIES MANAGER JOHNSON: So it was on the existing -COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: So it wasn't -FACILITIES MANAGER JOHNSON: -- system.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: -- in -- oh, our existing.
FACILITIES MANAGER JOHNSON: Existing system.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Okay. That was -- that was what I wanted to -FACILITIES MANAGER JOHNSON: That's why it was fully paid for by the City.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: And the relocation of the signs, wouldn't that have been a
FDOT, um, expense?
FACILITIES MANAGER JOHNSON: Which number -COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Why is that a --
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FACILITIES MANAGER JOHNSON: Which number again?
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: That's, uh, number 57. Why are we having to pay for that?
I mean, if they're gonna redo the road, you would think that they -- they tore up the
sidewalks. Why didn't they go ahead and -FACILITIES MANAGER JOHNSON: Well, it all -- it don't -- it all depends on what the
plans called for. If the plan -- if the plans didn't specifically call for signs to be relocated,
and they didn't bid on relocating those signs, then they're gonna charge you additional
for relocating the signs. So -COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Okay. Um, is there now -- well, I understand the issue
with Jacobson, and we've resolved that, too. So, okay. All right. Thank you very much.
MAYOR MASTERS: Madam Chair?
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Yes, Mayor.
MAYOR MASTERS: Just one -COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: But I can -- can -- I'm sorry.
MAYOR MASTERS: Oh, I'm sorry.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Can somebody get me that information, um -FINANCE DIRECTOR SHERMAN: I -- I certainly will provide that to you, yes.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: No, I'm talking about before this vote?
FINANCE DIRECTOR SHERMAN: Oh, I -- no, I -- I -- I just don't -COUNCILPERSON DAVIS:
computer system?

I mean, it's not right there readily available in your

FINANCE DIRECTOR SHERMAN: No. Again, we don't -- we don't track it by where
the money's coming from. We'd have to actually go back to the source documents.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Okay. All right.
MAYOR MASTERS: I just wanted -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Mr. Mayor?
MAYOR MASTERS: Yeah, thank you, Madam Chair. I just wanted to, um, give
support to, um, distinguished Councilperson, um, Dawn Pardo's comments as far as the
little bridge, and it is -- it is shameful that DOT would do a shabby job that can't even
last a year and then expect for us to pay for it. And, uh, certainly the managers, in
writing that letter, I'm sure will be, um, very pointed towards the -- the -- because they're
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-- they're liable, and they're responsible, and they need to pay it. And if they don't pay it,
then we need to have a meeting with them and ask why, and then sue them if they don't
pay it. Thank you.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Thank you. Okay. We have any other further discussion?
MAYOR MASTERS: Sue for justice.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Roll call, please.
CITY CLERK WARD: Councilperson Thomas? Councilperson Davis?
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Yes.
CITY CLERK WARD: Councilperson Lowe?
COUNCILPERSON LOWE: Yes.
CITY CLERK WARD: Pro Tem Pardo?
CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: Yes.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Thomas is a yes. Thomas is a yes.
MAYOR MASTERS: Yeah, yeah. Go.
CITY CLERK WARD: Thank you, Councilperson Thomas. Chair Brooks?
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Yes.
CITY CLERK WARD: Unanimous vote.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Okay. Now we're down to, um, 8, number 8 resolution.
CITY CLERK WARD: Resolution 06-13, a resolution of the City Council of the City of
Riviera Beach, Palm Beach County, Florida, declaring certain City-owned real property
as surplus, providing authorization for the public -- for public sale of said real property,
providing for the release of City liens, fines, and administrative fees, authorizing the City
Manager -- authorizing the Mayor, City Clerk, and City Manager to take the appropriate
actions as may be necessary to proper effect the transfer of ownership of real property,
provided that all closing documents shall be subject to the final approval of the City
Attorney, providing for all revenue to be placed in the appropriate fund and providing an
effective date.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: So moved.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Second.
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CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Will there be? Okay. You're doing the discussion on it.
All right, sir.
CITY MANAGER JONES: What you have here, um, Madam Chair and Members of the
Board, or the Council, is a proposal by staff, um, as relates to the disposition of
properties and parcels owned by the City throughout the area. Um, back in June you
approved a policy for the sale, donation, and transfer of City parcels. I then directed
staff to then go out and inventory all of the parcels that were owned by the City, as well
as to get an appraisal of those particular properties. As long as the City owns these
properties, they're not on the tax rolls, and we're not collecting taxes for them.
Um, we have been acquiring these properties -- one of the reasons I asked staff about
that -- and some of these properties go back to -- they became into the City's
possession back in -- 1984 was one of them, 1989, and so we've had these parcels for,
uh, several years. We have, um, got them doing different ways. Some of them have
been, um, through our lien process. Uh, some had been given to us by banks and
foreclosures and properties that they did not want to, um, handle any further. Uh,
County has given us some parcels. So we've gotten these parcels, um, over the years,
spread throughout the city, um, that we wanted to get these parcels back on the tax
rolls. And once we approve the policy, uh, what we're asking for now is permission to
develop the plan and the strategy to implement the policy for the disposition of the
properties, uh, that you have in front of you.
Now, what I'm handing you now is just a revised listing of these parcels. You have a
revised listing because the, um, city block that we own on Broadway was on the list, and
I wasn't quite ready to put that up for auction yet. So what you have in front of you now
is a revised, um, partial listing, taking those parcels off, as well as a new map showing
that those, uh, parcels have been, uh -- been removed.
But we want the opportunity to, uh, advertise the availability of purchase of these
parcels, whether they are, uh, individuals or whether someone wants to buy them in
bulk. But we would like to get them off of our rolls, and back on the tax rolls so that, uh,
we could be getting some sort of, uh, income for these properties.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Madam Chair?
CITY MANAGER JONES: And hopefully that they would be developed.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Yeah. Uh, let her finish.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: I thought she was winding down, 'cause -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Okay. All right. Mr. Thomas.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Um, I would, uh, suggest that we make sure that any of
the properties that are in the CRA area, uh, that may be of benefit to whatever land
banking that we need to do over there for that, that maybe we offer those to the CRA,
uh, first, um, before we actually put them out, if they are in the CRA area. I just don't
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want -- uh, if we have properties that are in this area, um -- um, from the map that I see
up there, it look like maybe one or two of them are, um, in that area. So those -- those I
just think that we should offer to the CRA first, uh, and not allow -- allow, uh, another
owner to come in and maybe not be as consistent as we need with that area, um, over
there, which would just be my suggestion. If the Board doesn't want to, uh, to do that,
I'm perfectly fine with what -- however you want to dispose of them. Uh, but I just
thought that maybe that might be something that could help us, um, with our land
banking efforts.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Uh-huh. Well, I -CITY MANAGER JONES: The parcel -- the parcels, uh, Councilman Thomas, that the
City owns that's east of Broadway, along 13th Street, uh, would fit right in with this, and
that's why we -- I've been talking to the CRA, and the CRA's been talking to us about
transferring some of those parcels to the CRA, so we will continue to work with the CRA
on those.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Right. You do mean sell them to the CRA, right?
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Sell them to the CRA.
CITY MANAGER JONES: Well, some of them have been transfers discussions, but of
always sale is the prior -- is the preferred means of disposition.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Right. Just know where I stand. I'd prefer to sell them.
CITY MANAGER JONES: Sell them.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Okay.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: To the CRA.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Yes, those. I just think that they should be offered first
to the -CITY MANAGER JONES: As a part of the land bank.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Right.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: I could -- I could concur with that. I could agree with that.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Okay.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: You -- Miss Pardo?
CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: Nothing. I'm fine.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: All right. Any other comments?
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COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: No, I'm good.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: All right.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Um, I -- I do.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Yes.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Um, does this -- being that this is a public process, does
this exclude Council from bidding?
CITY MANAGER JONES: According to our attorney, it does not.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: So if you want to buy them all, Judy?
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: No, I don't want to buy them all.
CITY MANAGER JONES: You gonna buy them all?
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: I -- I -- might not -- in fact, can't buy one.
CITY MANAGER JONES: You'll have a closing and you can purchase them all.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Okay. I just wanted to -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: You might get a discount.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: -- make sure.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: I'm only kidding. Okay. All right. Uh, we do have -- sir,
you were standing. Was there -CITY MANAGER JONES: No, he's just a staff person.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Okay. All right. We do have two comment cards. Um,
Miss Larson and Miss Duncombe. Is Miss Duncombe still here?
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: She's gone.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Miss Duncombe?
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: She's gone.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Okay. Well, we have Miss Larson first.
BONNIE LARSON: Couple questions. This property has -- according to Miss Jones,
some of them have been owned for 29 years. Have we ever sold properties like this
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before? And what is the typical form for doing it? How are they advertised? Who gets
to bid on them? Um, are we talking about sale or transfer to the CRA? We really need
to decide on that. There was a property on there at 2211 Broadway. Now, Miss Jones,
did you just say that has been taken off the list?
CITY MANAGER JONES: I would have to check the list to see if that is -BONNIE LARSON: Okay. I'd like to have a list of the properties, because the list that's
on the Web, it's like about a 32nd of an inch. You really can't see it. And also, the full
addresses are not there. Some just say West So-and-So Street. Well -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: So you -- they're not very clear on the website. Is that
what you're saying?
BONNIE LARSON: No. The website, the same as in the book here, I looked here and
they're like a 32nd -COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: It's just very small.
BONNIE LARSON: -- of an inch. You really can't tell. Then it says something on -- oh,
I just received one. It just says something on Avenue E, but you can't really tell where it
is. I mean, there's not a specific address. So those are my questions.
Um, are these all the parcels that we own that we're now considering excess? Have we
ever done this before? How will they be sold? How will they be appraised? How will
we make that determination if it's given or sold to the CRA? And what about that
property on -- on Broadway that we just talked about? And why are we -- why are we
selling these right now? Is there some reason? Do we need this property -- do we
need this money to buy in the industrial area? What -- what -- what is the -- or what is
the need for the money after 29 years, suddenly we need to sell off all these properties?
So those are my questions, if someone could answer that.
And I would like, even though -- see, this says here -- I can read it a little bit. It says,
"West 20th Street." Where on West 20th Street? Here's another one, West 20th Street.
Where? West 10th Street. Where? These things have to have addresses, even if it's
the vacant property. I mean, I know I can go to the property appraiser and look up the
property number. This should be readily understood where these properties are located
without someone having to do that. So those are my questions. Thank you.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Does staff wish to address any of those questions? Okay.
Miss Duncombe?
FINANCE DIRECTOR SHERMAN:
questions?

Would you like me to answer any of those

CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: (Inaudible) you answer -- oh. Sir. Okay. Was that it?
KAREN HO: No.
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CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Are you -- we didn't -- do you have a card?
KAREN HO: Yeah, I have a card.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Come on up.
CITY MANAGER JONES: No, the card -COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Not on that.
CITY MANAGER JONES: -- she has does not deal with the issue we're talking about.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: It has to deal with the issue.
CITY MANAGER JONES: It has to talk about this issue.
KAREN HO: What issue?
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: This item.
CITY MANAGER JONES: The item that we're talking about on the agenda.
KAREN HO: Oh, the, uh -- about the -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Well, let me -- let me just read it to her.
CITY MANAGER JONES: Yeah. It doesn't say Item Number 8.
KAREN HO: Oh.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Do you happen to have a copy of the agenda, a printed
copy of the agenda?
KAREN HO: No, I just do a -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Okay. Well, all right. Let me just explain to you that when
-KAREN HO: Okay.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: -- there are comments to -KAREN HO: I -- I (inaudible) -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: -- the offer -KAREN HO: -- make one comment about this. I think to sell those properties, a great
idea, but it's not a good time to sell those properties.
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CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Thank you for your comment. Now, you didn't have a
comment card, so I allowed you to make that one statement. Okay?
KAREN HO: Yeah, but -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Okay. Okay. Okay.
CITY CLERK WARD: Mr. Jones?
DEPUTY CITY MANAGER JONES: Yes.
CITY CLERK WARD: I need those cards back.
CITY MANAGER JONES: We need those back.
DEPUTY CITY MANAGER JONES: Oh, yeah. Okay.
CITY MANAGER JONES: I need to talk to her about them. Do not give them to her.
DEPUTY CITY MANAGER JONES: All right.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Okay. So that's it. Then we're ready for the vote. Roll
call?
CITY CLERK WARD: Councilperson Thomas?
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Yes.
CITY CLERK WARD: Councilperson Lowe?
COUNCILPERSON LOWE: Yes.
CITY CLERK WARD: Councilperson Davis?
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Yes.
CITY CLERK WARD: Pro Tem Pardo?
CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: Yes.
CITY CLERK WARD: Chair Brooks?
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Yes.
CITY CLERK WARD: Unanimous vote.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Okay. We're down now to, um -CITY CLERK WARD: Number 9.
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CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: -- number 9, please.
CITY CLERK WARD: Resolution 07-13, a resolution of the City Council of the City of
Riviera Beach, Palm Beach County, Florida, approving the interlocal agreement as part
of Palm Beach County's master service agreement with Motorola to provide
comprehensive radio repair services to the City, including services for the City's radio
consoles, authorizing the Mayor and City Clerk to sign said agreement and providing an
effective date.
CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: So moved.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Need a second, please.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Second.
CITY CLERK WARD: Six.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Okay, sir.
ACTING ASSISTANT DEPUTY CHIEF MADDEN: Good evening, Mayor, City Council.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Good evening.
ACTING ASSISTANT DEPUTY CHIEF MADDEN: Acting Assistant Chief Mike
Madden. Uh, this -- this is an agreement that we've had for many years with Motorola
directly. Uh, we have entered or propose to enter this agreement with the County, who
has a greater purchasing power because of the number of radios that are serviced by
Motorola. So we are -- this interlocal with Palm Beach County -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Uh-huh.
ACTING ASSISTANT DEPUTY CHIEF MADDEN: -- will still allow us to receive repair
services from Motorola at a reduced cost, so the -- in the end, the savings to the City,
where we normally paid about $50,000 a year for this agreement, uh, we will save about
15,000, uh, going through Palm Beach County.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Any questions from the Council?
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: None.
CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: None.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Okay. No comment cards, so roll call, please.
CITY CLERK WARD: Councilperson Lowe?
COUNCILPERSON LOWE: Yes.
CITY CLERK WARD: Councilperson Thomas?
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COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Yes.
CITY CLERK WARD: Councilperson Davis?
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Yes.
CITY CLERK WARD: Pro Tem Pardo?
CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: Yes.
CITY CLERK WARD: Chair Brooks?
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Yes.
CITY CLERK WARD: Unanimous vote.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Number 10.
CITY CLERK WARD: Resolution 08-13, a Resolution of the City Council of the City of
Riviera Beach, Palm Beach County, Florida, approving an interlocal agreement between
the Community Redevelopment Agency and the City to create a task force to provide
law enforcement, public safety services, Clean & Safe programs to the CRA, to accept
advance payment in the amount of 250 for the purchase -- the purchase/deployment of
surveillance cameras and accept 82,540 for reimbursement of police overtime,
authorizing the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the interlocal agreement, authorizing
the Finance Director and Administrative Services to set up a budget for same, and
providing an effective date.
CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: So moved.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Second.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Second.
ACTING ASSISTANT DEPUTY CHIEF MADDEN: I believe the Council has seen this
previously. Uh -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Uh-huh.
ACTING ASSISTANT DEPUTY CHIEF MADDEN: You know, I'm willing to provide
additional information if needed at the Council's direction.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: We're good.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Okay. We're fine. Roll call.
CITY CLERK WARD: Councilperson Thomas?
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Yes.
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CITY CLERK WARD: Councilperson Lowe?
COUNCILPERSON LOWE: Yes.
CITY CLERK WARD: Councilperson Davis?
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Yes.
CITY CLERK WARD: Pro Tem Pardo?
CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: Yes.
CITY CLERK WARD: Chair Brooks?
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Yes.
CITY CLERK WARD: Unanimous vote.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Okay. Very good. Nothing in Discussion, Deliberation.
Community Benefits requests, Item Number 11.
CITY CLERK WARD: Inner City Youth Golfers, $200. Councilperson Judy Davis.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: So moved.
COUNCILPERSON LOWE: Second.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Need a second. Okay.
COUNCILPERSON LOWE: Second.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Okay.
CITY CLERK WARD: Councilperson Lowe?
COUNCILPERSON LOWE: Yes.
CITY CLERK WARD: Councilperson Thomas?
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Yes.
CITY CLERK WARD: Councilperson Davis?
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Yes.
CITY CLERK WARD: Pro Tem Pardo?
CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: Yes.
CITY CLERK WARD: Chair Brooks?
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CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Yes.
CITY CLERK WARD: Unanimous vote.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: And -CITY CLERK WARD:
Lowe.

Inner City Youth Golfers, Inc., $500, Councilperson Shelby

COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: So moved.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Second.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Roll call.
CITY CLERK WARD: Councilperson Davis?
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Yes.
CITY CLERK WARD: Councilperson Thomas?
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Yes.
CITY CLERK WARD: Councilperson Lowe?
COUNCILPERSON LOWE: Yes.
CITY CLERK WARD: Chair Brooks?
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Yes.
CITY CLERK WARD: Unanimous vote.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Number 13?
CITY CLERK WARD: Valley of Love Ministry, Councilperson Judy Davis.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Uh, so moved.
COUNCILPERSON LOWE: Second.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Roll call?
CITY CLERK WARD: Councilperson Lowe?
COUNCILPERSON LOWE: Yes.
CITY CLERK WARD: Councilperson Thomas?
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Yes.
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CITY CLERK WARD: Councilperson Davis?
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Yes.
CITY CLERK WARD: Pro Tem Pardo?
CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: Yes.
CITY CLERK WARD: Chair Brooks?
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Yes.
CITY CLERK WARD: Unanimous vote.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: 13A?
CITY CLERK WARD: 13A -COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: What's 13A?
CITY CLERK WARD: City of Riviera Beach -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: These are additions.
CITY CLERK WARD: -- Bobbie E. Brooks Memorial Scholarship, 2012/13.
CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: So moved.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: So moved.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Second.
CITY CLERK WARD: Councilperson Thomas?
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Yes.
CITY CLERK WARD: Councilperson Lowe?
COUNCILPERSON LOWE: Yes.
CITY CLERK WARD: Councilperson Davis?
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Yes.
CITY CLERK WARD: Pro Tem Pardo?
CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: Yes.
CITY CLERK WARD: Chair Brooks?
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CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Yes.
CITY CLERK WARD: Unanimous vote.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: And 13B is the same thing, money to go for the
scholarship fund, for the Bobbie E. Brooks Memorial Scholarship.
CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: So moved.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: So moved.
CITY CLERK WARD: City of Riviera Beach, Bobbie E. Brooks Memorial Scholarship.
Councilperson Davis?
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Yes.
CITY CLERK WARD: Brooks. It's by Councilperson Brooks.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Uh-huh.
CITY CLERK WARD: Yes.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Uh-huh.
CITY CLERK WARD: Uh-huh.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Oh, you were calling the roll?
CITY CLERK WARD: I was -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Okay. Roll call.
CITY CLERK WARD: Yeah, I was calling the roll.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Okay.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Yes.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: All right. Okay.
CITY CLERK WARD: Councilperson Davis?
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Yes.
CITY CLERK WARD: Councilperson Thomas?
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Yes.
CITY CLERK WARD: Councilperson Lowe?
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COUNCILPERSON LOWE: Yes.
CITY CLERK WARD: Pro Tem Pardo?
CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: Yes.
CITY CLERK WARD: Chair Brooks?
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: And the -- yes. And there's 13C.
CITY CLERK WARD: Unanimous vote. The Elegant Elite Generation Program,
sponsored by Life Center International Fellowship, Mayor Thomas Masters, $500.
CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: So moved.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: So moved.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Second.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Second.
CITY CLERK WARD: Councilperson Thomas?
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Yes.
CITY CLERK WARD: Councilperson Davis?
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Yes.
CITY CLERK WARD: Councilperson Lowe?
COUNCILPERSON LOWE: Yes.
CITY CLERK WARD: Pro Tem Pardo?
CHAIR PRO TEM PARDO: Yep.
CITY CLERK WARD: Chair Brooks?
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Yes.
CITY CLERK WARD: Unanimous vote.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: And I think that's it. Are there any others that we have
omitted for Community Development -- Community Benefits requests?
CITY CLERK WARD: No, ma'am.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Okay.
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COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: No, ma'am.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Discussion by City Manager. Make it short.
CITY MANAGER JONES: Yes, Madam Chair. Um, like everyone else, let me say
Happy New Year to all of our residents and our staff. Um, we are looking forward to a
very productive and prosperous year. Um, have a couple of meetings that I would like
to talk about very briefly, uh, as a part of my comments.
Um, when we went to the new format, uh, of having one regular City Council meeting a
month we were allocating the third Thursday for a workshop. The third Thursday in -- in
January, is January the 16th. Um, on January the 16th at 5:30 we will have a workshop.
The major topic for this workshop will be a presentation by the County on the 65 percent
plans that they have developed for Silver Beach Road. Um, the City Engineer, um, as
well as the City Manager, got a copy of the 65 percent plans, and once I saw them it
was important to me that my residents know what the County is recommending for
Silver Beach Road, between Congress and Old Dixie.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Uh-huh.
CITY MANAGER JONES: One of the things that they're proposing is a roundabout -COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Uh-huh.
CITY MANAGER JONES: -- on Silver Beach Road and S Avenue. So you can
imagine if you trying to make a left in a school bus, or in your car, on -- off of Silver
Beach Road, trying to turn left, and you've got a roundabout that you have got to get
around in order to make a left-hand turn. So it was -- in talking with the Public Works
Department, we felt as though we have talked to them individually, staff to staff. It's
kinda like we were not saying anything. I met with the City Manager for Lake Park. We
both agreed. We both shared the same sentiments. Nothing happened.
So I have invited them to come before Council and explain on the 16th of January their
recommendation for the renovation of Silver Beach Road. And I'm encouraging all of
the residents that travel Silver Beach Road to either be tuning in by television, by the
computer, or being present in the Council chambers, because you really need to know
what the County is recommending for Silver Beach Road between Old Dixie and
Congress. So that would be on the 16th.
Um, also, just wanted you to know that on next week, January the 8th, the City will host
the North County Economic Development Advisory Committee for the North Palm
Beach Chamber. Um, that meeting will be held in the Special -- Utilities Special District
conference room starting at 8:00, from 8 till 9:30.
Um, on January the 24th I am pleased to announce that we will be having the grand
opening for the north docks at the marina. We are very pleased with what has
transpired. Uh, the County was out today because we had to have things done by
December 31st. And so we were pleased to be able to show them what was
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accomplished, what was done, as we began to move toward the development of
working on Phase 2, which will be the south docks. Um, but we will be getting out more
information about the grand opening, which will be held on January the 24th at 2:45 in
the afternoon.
Um, and so we're really pleased about the work that all the staff has done, um, that the,
um, consultants working on this project with us have done. It's been a long haul, and
you, as elected officials, also as the residents, have been very patient for something to
be done at the marina, and we're glad to be able to say that, um, on June -- January the
24th at 2:45 we will be having the opening for the marina. One last, um -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: January the 30th?
CITY MANAGER JONES: January -- oh, January 30th. Okay. Before my last item,
um, on January 30th, if you'll recall, we were have -- going to have, um, a workshop
where we were gonna talk about the marina construction and the working relationship
between the City and the CRA and how we planned to move forward. That meeting
was asked to be postponed. It will be rescheduled for January the 30th at 5:30 here in
the Council chambers, is the rescheduling of that.
Um, last but not least now, um, would like to know and will be working with your
legislative aides, um, the individuals that are desiring to attend Palm Beach County
Days. Palm Beach County Days will be held in Tallahassee March the 5th through the
7th. Now, March the 6th is a regular day for Council to meet, so I just wanted to get a
feel for what members of Council would be planning on attending Palm Beach County
Days.
If you'll recall, when Mr. Pittman was here, one of the things that he, uh, commended
you all for as -- and that is for coming to Tallahassee and spreading the word about
Riviera Beach and what Riviera Beach's needs are. And so generally we go up for
Palm Beach County Days. Our delegation is eager to meet with us, answer any
questions, and we can just let them know what the issues are in Riviera Beach. So I will
be working with your legislative aides to see those of you that will be attending Palm
Beach County Days.
What we did do in this year's budget was allocate money for travel for events such as
this. So you don't have to take it out of your individual travel budgets. So I just need to
know what elected officials, uh, would like to attend Palm Beach County Days, so that
we can, um, take care of that. And that ends my update.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: And given the, uh, response that you get, if we don't have
a quorum remaining for that regular meeting, are we suggesting that we change our
meeting date, because we -CITY MANAGER JONES: We could move the meeting date so that -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Because it would be on our regular meeting date.
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CITY MANAGER JONES: -- in order to accommodate, um -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: So we need to consider -CITY MANAGER JONES: -- those that would like to attend, yes.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: -- those who would like to attend.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Well -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: We should know by -COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: -- do you -- I think, probably, if we could put a deadline on
when she needs to know so she'll know whether to schedule the -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS:
February.

Yes, at least by the first -- our next meeting, um, in

COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Okay.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: By our meeting in February you should know.
CITY MANAGER JONES: Okay.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: I'm sorry. Yeah, February, yeah. Our first meeting in
February.
CITY MANAGER JONES: Yeah, because this is March, so -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: This is March, so -CITY MANAGER JONES: Yeah.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: -- that would give us time even to give notice if we're
gonna change our meeting day to another day that week.
CITY MANAGER JONES: Right.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: A Monday, I guess, or Friday.
CITY MANAGER JONES: Uh-huh.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Okay.
CITY MANAGER JONES: So a lot of meetings in, um, January.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Meetings in January.
CITY MANAGER JONES: January 16th, uh, January 24th.
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COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: 24th and 30th.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: And 30th.
CITY MANAGER JONES: January 30th.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS:
Okay. Um --

Yes, yes.

And people say we don't meet, you know.

CITY CLERK WARD: Madam Chair?
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Yes.
CITY CLERK WARD: Or the City Manager.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Miss -- Miss Jones?
CITY MANAGER JONES: Yes.
CITY CLERK WARD: Miss Jones? Um, also important note that the City election is
scheduled for March the 12th, and it's a possibility if we schedule that meeting for the
second meeting in March, we'll -- we'll -- we'll throw it to March the 20th. It may -- not
really (inaudible) -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Then we're looking at maybe one day that week. Um -CITY CLERK WARD: Not -- not the, uh -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Maybe not that Wednesday.
CITY CLERK WARD: Not that week, not -- not the second week?
CITY MANAGER JONES: No, it's the first week.
CITY CLERK WARD: That's when the meeting is scheduled. But I'm saying, if you
decide to shift the meeting -COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: To the third?
CITY CLERK WARD: -- transfer it to the 20th -- the 3rd, yeah, it'd be the 20th.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: The third Wednesday.
CITY CLERK WARD: So -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: That would be after the election.
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CITY CLERK WARD: Yes, and the -- it's a possibility like the swearing in, because
what our codes and charter call for is the swearing in of the newly-elected councilpeople
at the first meeting -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Uh-huh.
CITY CLERK WARD: -- regular scheduled meeting after the election closes.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: But that wouldn't be a -- that wouldn't be a regular -- would
it be a regularly -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: What -- what if you -COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: -- scheduled meeting or -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: -- have a run-off?
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: -- a special meeting?
CITY CLERK WARD: It's -- it's not a problem. Miss Jones, then perhaps you and I can
just talk about it later.
CITY MANAGER JONES: Yeah.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Yes, right.
CITY MANAGER JONES: Because you're -- you're right. It will -- because we don't
have the second meeting -CITY CLERK WARD: Right.
CITY MANAGER JONES: -- which would be, um, the meeting where we would have
the swearing in.
CITY CLERK WARD: Correct.
CITY MANAGER JONES: Um, we can just say early enough in advance when we will
hold that regular meeting -CITY CLERK WARD: The regular meeting.
CITY MANAGER JONES: -- for the month.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Yes.
CITY CLERK WARD: Okay. That will work.
CITY MANAGER JONES: But we'll work on that so that we'll have enough information
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CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: To make those changes.
CITY MANAGER JONES: -- to make the changes, yes.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Yes.
CITY CLERK WARD: We may have to call it a special meeting. It all depends. We'll
talk about it, Miss Jones, you and I. Okay?
CITY MANAGER JONES: Okay, good.
CITY CLERK WARD: We'll discuss it.
CITY MANAGER JONES: Thank you.
CITY CLERK WARD: Okay.
CITY MANAGER JONES: Thank you for bringing that up.
CITY CLERK WARD: All right.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Okay. Now we're down to Legal -CITY CLERK WARD: Right.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: -- Legal -- Legal Discussion. Um, Miss Ryan?
CITY ATTORNEY RYAN: Thank you, Madam Chair. The only thing that I have listed
is, um, notification to the City Council of my employment agreement's expiration. The
agreement does not actually expire until, um, June 17th, um, 2013. However, um, two
years ago -- and time does fly -- the City Council requested that, um, I give notice on at
least three separate occasions, so I'm doing that now because we only have one
meeting a month. I did not want to fall short of doing that.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Right.
CITY ATTORNEY RYAN: So I wanted to go ahead and list that now. Um, I sent a
memo to City Council, um, last month with a copy of the contract, in case you wanted to
review it.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Uh-huh.
CITY ATTORNEY RYAN: So this is my notification.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Thank you, ma'am. Now, City Council -MAYOR MASTERS: So -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: -- any, uh, Committee Reports? Any Committee Reports?
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MAYOR MASTERS: I -- I have -- I have a question for the attorney.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Yes, sir.
MAYOR MASTERS: Attorney Ryan, on your contract -CITY ATTORNEY RYAN: Yes, sir.
MAYOR MASTERS: I'm -- I'm just a little hoarse from Sunday, for one thing, a little
confused. Um, there will be another -- another time that you're gonna bring it back up
again, and then we'll vote?
CITY ATTORNEY RYAN: I'm gonna bring it up -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Three times. This is the first time.
CITY ATTORNEY RYAN: -- three times.
MAYOR MASTERS: Okay.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Yeah.
CITY ATTORNEY RYAN: The next -- for the next three months.
MAYOR MASTERS: And then that's when they vote to put you back, right?
CITY ATTORNEY RYAN: Well, it's -- it's really -MAYOR MASTERS: Or not?
CITY ATTORNEY RYAN: It automatically renews, so if you're not gonna renew it you
have to let me know in these -- in one of these months before March. March, um,
means that you don't wanna renew it. If you -- if you make a motion not to renew the
contract, um, then it will expire. Otherwise, I will try to negotiate a new contract in June
of 2013.
MAYOR MASTERS: Yeah. I just wanted to get it clear on that. Thank you.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Okay. Moving on. Any Committee Reports? None?
BONNIE LARSON: I have a card.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Any Committee Reports?
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: A card on what?
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Okay.
MAYOR MASTERS: She has a card.
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UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: (Inaudible). I think she handed it to -COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: On number what?
COUNCILPERSON LOWE: Signed the -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Yes, she has a card. Come up.
BONNIE LARSON: I looked on the Web, um, for the backup for the information and
there was an Attachment A which had Miss Ryan's contract on it. It was not on the
Web. It said, "None available." It's not available in the book. So I would like to read it.
I'd like to read the present contract, and I'm wondering where I can get that copy without
having to drive all the way over to Port Road. I would like a copy of that. It should be
on the Web. It's not. It's an agenda item here, so the contract expires June 17th, as she
just said.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Do you have a fax?
BONNIE LARSON: Excuse me?
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Do you have a fax?
BONNIE LARSON: No.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Oh, okay.
BONNIE LARSON: I can pick it up here tomorrow. I have other things which I didn't
get, and I'll have to pick that up tomorrow, too. I'd like to get what I -- when I put in
public requests it would be -- it would be nice if I got those back in a timely fashion. I've
got some that are six months old. Okay? So and then when I get it back they're half
answered. All right. So this one, I would like to see it.
Now, you have to tell her by March, yes, no, or whatever. So there was not a
discussion tonight about when you're going to review her. Each one of you only have
two people to review, Miss Jones and Miss Ryan. It's like pulling teeth to get you to do
that, but that is your responsibility. So when is that gonna take place? So you all need
to have an agreement about when that's gonna happen and make it mandatory that
each one of you put in your comments. It will be beneficial to her, too. You know, she
deserves to know how you feel about how she's doing, what she needs to improve,
what she's doing well on. She deserves that, she needs it, and it's your responsibility to
do it. So let's decide when that's going to happen. Thank you.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Now we're down to statements by Mayor and City Council.
We'll allow the Mayor to go first, because he does have a -CITY MANAGER JONES: Can I -- yeah. Can I just respond to, uh, one of the -- the
statements that Miss Larson made? And it's -- it's a point of clarification of the
difference between a public records request and public information. She has made
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING

JANUARY 2, 2013

106

public information requests that there's no record to back it up. We don't respond to
public information requests. It's public records requests. And so if in the future they can
be documents or records that can be copied or generated, we'll be glad to do those, but
just to answer questions like, When did a business open their doors, that's not the kind - that's not a public record.
BONNIE LARSON: I will -- I will renew it to be a public records request. My question
about that was, do we or do we not know when businesses open in Riviera Beach?
Why not? Why can't I get an answer to my question? You don't answer them here.
You don't answer them anywhere.
CITY MANAGER JONES: Settle down. That's the kind of question (inaudible).
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Okay.
CITY MANAGER JONES: That's not mine to answer.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Mayor?
MAYOR MASTERS: Thank you, Madam Chair, for allowing me to go first. I was
supposed to have been at a meeting an hour ago. As you know, we have, uh, Captain
Dennis here from Columbus, Ohio, who's organizing a Peacekeepers, uh, Force that will
promote peace for this year, and do all that we can to bury the violence by keeping the
peace. It's somewhat like a United Nations concept, that you have peacekeepers that
try to broker, uh, peace deals and get gangs to bury the beef, and this, that, and the
other, and it's been taking place as I speak at Saint James Baptist Church. Dr. Drayton
has started at 8:00. But thank you, Captain Dennis for coming and organizing Palm
Beach County first peacekeeping organization. They're in 19 cities in the United States.
We are the 20th one.
Briefly, I want to thank the mayors who, uh, have joined -- who have joined us in -- in
this request, and other mayors, as well, um, that are part of the, um, mayor's
organization against illegal guns, but as you know, we will present before the school
board on, um, January the 13th, a petition. And those of you who are interested in
signing the petition can go online to change dot-org, change dot-org and navigate to you
-- uh, or either Google the petition, Palm -- the petition for, uh, Palm Beach County -the petition to install, uh, metal detectors in Palm Beach schools, Palm Beach County
schools, just like we have them in most public buildings.
Um, I don't think that we can do enough to ensure the safety and security of our
children. And it's interesting that when I go to present, uh, the petition along with the
other mayors, uh, I have to walk through a metal detector to, um, protect the school
board members, when those same type of, uh, safety devices should also be for the
children. That's just as important, um, as a school board member, one. And two, again,
if we have book detectors in our public schools, why can't we have metal detectors?
Uh, it's just another measure, along with the school police, and along with the
surveillance cameras. Do all you can to prevent.
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Uh, I know people argue, well, they don't do any good. They can take guns over the
fence, and come through windows and, you know, all of that's probably true. But you
don't not put a lock on the door because someone will find another way to come in your
house. You don't not put an alarm system in because someone can find a way to go
around the alarm system. You still do it. And, uh, you do all that you can.
So this is not anything new. We made the request many years ago when Nate Brazill
shot and killed a teacher, uh, right here in our back yard. Uh, so we will renew. I just
want to thank the mayors, the mayors of Lake Park, mayor of Magnolia Park, mayor of
Boynton, and Mayor Steve Wilson, who, uh, was not able to be there on yesterday, and
other mayors as they come -- come aboard.
Uh, last but not least, I -- I think our councilpeople have the, uh -- the letter from Lynne
Hubbard, but, uh, I am prepared to -- and it was time certain, so we had to, uh, need to
make it in my comments, but as you know, the -- the mayor has the exclusive, um, uh,
obligation to appoint, uh, people to the positions of the Housing Authority as they
become vacant. We do have one vacancy. We need to fill it right away, and, um,
there's no question in my mind that Lynne Hubbard is, uh, qualified. She has a
certification, um, uh, to, uh, do a good job. In the past she has certification from the
Housing, and this, that, and the other. You have her resume, so I will be, um,
appointing Lynne Hubbard to the new position that has opened up because of a
vacancy.
May God bless Riviera Beach, and, um, let us continue to move forward. I do want to
say this. Bruce Guyton made a very, very good comment about the campaign as we
move towards, uh, the seats that we all are running for, or most of us. It is important to
keep, uh -- keep it clean. You know? We should run on our record, or run on our
vision. But certainly it is not the time to try to be derogatory and -- and negative kinds of
negativity, rather, uh, towards anyone. It should not be about personality. It should be
about the record. Uh, so I want to commend him for making that statement. I've always
known him to run that type of campaign, and certainly, uh, I, as the mayor, will continue
to be mayoral, and just run a very honest campaign on the record. And I will not
engage in any negativity as it relates to any of the opponents that I may have. Thank
you. Happy New Year.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Statements from the Council, now. Miss Davis?
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Uh, yes, ma'am. Mayor, that was great. I wish somebody
would have stood up and said that during my campaign when all the negative mailers
were being sent out. But anyway, um, I just want to, uh, take this opportunity to, um,
thank the volunteers who participated, um, from the, um, Police and Fire Departments,
and the residents who participated in the HARP, uh, uh, Refinance Workshop that I had
on December 13th. Uh, Mrs. Havener, she's -- she's gone, but, um, who was a
volunteer, I wanted to thank her. Also, I wanted to recognize, um, Miss Corinne
[phonetic] and, I -- I think her name was Miss Marquita [phonetic] who did babysitting
services for us at the HARP Workshop.
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And just to give you a little bit of the stats, uh, we had a hundred -- um, about a hundred
calls to our office, and over 400 who went online to see if they met the qualifications,
because one of the qualifications, one of the main qualifications, was that the
mortgages -- uh, current mortgages had to be, um, backed by Fannie Mae or else you
couldn't qualify to, um -- for the refinancing. And we had 37 who attended and met with
lenders, and some of them who were successful in getting refinancing. Um, also, um -and I want to thank is Riviera Beach CRA and the CDC for their participation, also.
They were invaluable.
Um, also, Miss Jones, I -- along the Broadway corridor, right across from, um, uh, what
you -- there was a place called Betty Ann's. It's sort of like a little -- they are redoing
that building there. Do -CITY MANAGER JONES: I'm not -COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Do we know who is the owner? Or could you find out and
give me that information? 'Cause I like what they're doing. It's wonderful.
CITY MANAGER JONES: Okay.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: That's all for me.
CITY MANAGER JONES: Wish they'd gotten a permit for it.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Councilman Lowe?
COUNCILPERSON LOWE: Um, I'd just like to say Happy New Year to everyone and,
um, encourage folks that haven't moseyed on down to, um, come out to the market. We
still need vendors and we still need the community to -- to buy into what we're trying to
do, uh, and that is to create opportunities for folks that normally wouldn't have an
opportunity to, um -- you know, to, uh, sell their goods to Riviera Beach residents. So
we encourage you to come out.
Um, every Saturday has been different, but we've had entertainment. We've had, um -in my mind we've had success in that we've brought attention to that particular area
where most of, uh -- most of our plans are focused in right now, and we just wanna
make sure that everybody's involved. And this is a way to include everybody. So we're
providing a chance for folks in -- in the community to get involved on the ground level,
and this is the ground level.
You know, when we get the public market built and all of these buildings built, it's -- you
know, that's too late to come and try to participate. Now is the time. And we're working
out all of the kinks. We're collecting data to see, you know, what, uh -- what sells and
what we can bring out there that, uh, what best interests our residents. And like I said,
it's an ongoing project, but it's a necessary project, and we encourage everybody who's
interested to come out and participate.
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And that, again, is the Green Market. We're on the corner of 13th Street and Broadway.
It's a beautiful site, especially when the weather's good, um, you know, to sit among the
oak trees and just enjoy yourself. We got some vendors out there -- um, the seafood
vendor is particularly popular. She has fried crabs and fish and all that good stuff. So
you know, we're growing and we encourage anybody who wants to participate to either
contact the City or the CRA. And if anybody says there's no opportunity in Riviera
Beach, well, this is one that is, uh, open and readily available to you. So please come
out. Thank you.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Councilman Thomas?
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Yes, ma'am. Just a couple things here. First of all, uh,
I, too, would like to say Happy New Year to everyone, and just very excited about what
lies in store for the new year. Um, I've been getting several calls about the Night of
Elegance, and yes, I will be working on that. Um, uh, this -- this very, very, very week
I'm starting to work on it and -- and try to get moving on that. Um, we also will be taking
donations from any of the businesses who would like to support that event.
Um, so the Night of Elegance, uh, will come. It's scheduled now for the 9th -- the 9th of
March, the 9th of March, which should be a Saturday. Um, let me just make sure. Yes,
ma'am, the 9th of March is when it's scheduled. I'll get the final date from the, uh, Port of
Palm Beach, um, here this upcoming week. Uh, so but right now it's tentatively
scheduled for March, and I'll give you more information about it and, um, just wait for
your invitations to come.
Um, the other thing I wanted to talk about is, I was, um -- I haven't been inclined to, um,
support these, uh, Internet cafes. However, um, there was a gentleman who, uh,
wanted to put in an application, um, and I was told that he was treated -- I was told by
him, uh, that he was treated very badly. It was kinda funny, because on the way out he
was, uh, saying that, "Man, I -- I can't believe the way I was treated. I just can't believe
the way I was treated. Do you know anybody around here that, you know, can -- I could
talk to about it?" I said, "Well, let me just see what I can, um, you know, hear from you."
And he went on to explain it, um, what -- what happened.
This is my issue with this, and I said this once before. Okay? First of all, we need to
give great service to who's ever coming to the City. That's the first thing. Secondly, if
it's the pleasure of this City not to have these, then something needs to be on -- up here
for us to vote on. Until then, individuals need to be allowed to apply or whatever they
need to do. Let me restate this. I don't necessarily like these particular, uh, businesses,
but I do not think that we should be turning people down without a proper process.
Um, I did let the Assistant Manager know. Um, I did take the gentleman's number, and
I'll be talking back and forth with him, but the issue is he needs to be allowed to go
through the process. If the -- if the City is not gonna do it, then that's fine. What I
understand is that our moratorium has expired. And I don't wanna be sitting up here
fighting a lawsuit just because we have not necessarily gone through the paperwork. If
it's a legitimate business, if they have Supreme Court rulings on it, if they're allowed to
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have it, whether we want it or not, there's a process that needs to go. If we're not going
to approve them, then we need to put up here, or put something in.
The other issue is there is one operating, and for whatever reason they have a license,
that -- that's not my concern right now, but they were issued a license. They have been
issued a -- another license, and we're just not gonna treat people unfairly here. So that
needs to be discussed.
I was told that he was given the next day, um, a letter of approval and denial. You
cannot do it that way, you know. And if a -- if a -- if a lawsuit comes because we just
have not done it properly, I'm gonna have a real problem with some -- some -- some
individuals there. That's a problem to me, and that's some -- that's a report that I don't
like hearing. He, however, did not know at the time that I was a City Councilperson.
And I was very embarrassed to get that information, and get it the way that, uh, we did.
So I'm not of under no impression that our moratorium still stands. If our moratorium
still stands, then that's something that we need to know, and we need to be out there. If
it has not, then -- then whoever applies for that license needs to go through the process,
and we cannot just not take their applications, you know, just because we just don't feel
like it. It's just not right and we have to do it. Until then, I think that something needs to
be, um, you know, done about that.
So I'm -- you know, of course, I've directed him back through the process to do that. I
don't feel like he, you know, was treated fairly, um, in it, and something needs to be
done about it. And I'm gonna state again, I do not necessarily support it, but I do
support people having a fair process, um, you know, when going through these things,
because if -- if it's not the video arcades, then it's gonna be something else that they
don't feel like. We just need to be clear across the board. You know, when it goes
through the process, if it's denied, that's one thing, but to put someone through what
that individual had to go through I thought was, um -- was wrong.
I have not had a conversation with the Community Development Director, um, and -and I will, but I did want to, uh -- to point that out, that I was very, very disturbed with the
way that that particular person, business person, uh, felt, and -- and the way that they
was treated, um, you know, from our -- our staff. So, um, A.C. has the information on
what was done, and -- and I'll get with the Manager on it, but I did want to let the rest of
the Board know that, um, that is an issue. And if it's -- if it's an issue, then we need to
address it. But we don't need to just not allow people to put in an application when
we're in limbo with it. Um, if something has changed, then I definitely need to know
about it, but at -- at -- at this point I -- I don't think that we could or we should, uh,
legally be doing that. And that -- that's all I wanted to bring up.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Okay. And I'll be very brief. I do want to remind residents
that for those persons who have been suffering with leaky roofs, whatever, as a result of
hurricanes from the past, um, Wilma, there is an agency that has money available, uh, if
you qualify, to help with your repairs. And please call the office. It's 845-3086, 8453086, and we will link you to that source. Very important for you to know.
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Uh, for those persons who have been submitting, uh, the form to, um, appeal for their
high water bills, I'm gonna ask for your patience. We're really trying to get the, um,
policy or the procedures in -- the policy and the procedures in place so that we can
accommodate those persons. Um, as the bill was approved -- well, the resolution was
approved for November the 7th, and I defer now to my legal counselor as to whether or
not that was effective as of November the 7th; that is the water bill resolution that I
sponsored.
CITY ATTORNEY RYAN: Gosh. Oh, I don't have it with me. Um what was -- I can't
recall what the date was that we -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: It was November the 7th.
CITY ATTORNEY RYAN: Okay.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: The November meeting.
DEPUTY CITY MANAGER JONES: November 7th meeting.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: November the 7th, that that was approved. Now, that was
something that went in -- that particular, um, policy should have gone into effect as of
November?
CITY ATTORNEY RYAN: November 8th, yes.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: November 8th.
CITY ATTORNEY RYAN: The next day. It's my -- my understanding, according to the
resolution, um, the Finance Department, um, through its utility billing section, would, um,
put into effect all of the policy issues that were addressed in the policy, and that in 90
days they would bring back a comprehensive program for the City Council to approve,
but in the meantime, the, um -- what you mentioned earlier, um, the requirement that if
anybody has a bill that was a hundred percent more than, um, their previous bill, that
they could come in and immediately get some relief. They would not have to, um, I
think, pay more than their average bill over the last 12 months.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Correct.
CITY ATTORNEY RYAN: And, um, that we would then investigate those bills,
investigate the -- the larger bill, whatever it is, um, uh, during that time.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Okay.
CITY ATTORNEY RYAN: But that we would definitely put that into place immediately.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Immediately. Okay. Well, we'll just have to work with
those who have come, and that has not been applied as of yet, and go retro back to
each person who has been, and submitted, uh, their bill that shows that their bill has
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been at least, you know, a hundred percent or above. So I -- because I know that it
hasn't been happening, and people are getting a little bit confused from what we
announce here, uh, and it's not been applied when they come in to show the bill. But I
know we'll work it out. We'll -- we'll -- we'll have to work it out.
CITY ATTORNEY RYAN: And I -- I think, Madam Chair, that the -- the purpose, the -the reason that you really wanted the, um -- the policy passed was to give relief to any -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Immediately.
CITY ATTORNEY RYAN: -- of your residents immediately.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Immediately, yes.
CITY ATTORNEY RYAN: Anybody who was having the problem at the time -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Correct.
CITY ATTORNEY RYAN: -- and going forward. So I think that if staff is having some
issues, we can definitely -- we need to talk about it and try to work -- work that out.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Yes. So we'll have a meeting to see how we can work this
out immediately. All right. Well, that's it for me.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Madam Chair?
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: I just want to wish everybody a Happy New Year and just
keep us in your prayers, so that we will be a prosperous city and that we will work in
peace and harmony and -- and move -- continue to move forward. Yes, Miss Davis?
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: May I have one last thing? I -- I'm glad you said what you
said, Mr. Thomas, um, because I was also contacted by a business in this city who had
paid a $5,000, um, fee.
CITY MANAGER JONES: (Inaudible).
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: I'm sorry. What was it?
CITY MANAGER JONES: It was a fee.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Yeah, a fee, um, just this past summer, and, um, wanted
to amend something in the permitting, I think it was, um, and was told he had to pay
another $5,000. And I thought that was just plain out ridiculous. So -COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Yeah, we -- we need to find -- we need to find
something that we do that we're uniform.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Yeah.
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COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: And -- and when -- whenever this Board puts
something -- because that's our job, to -- to enact policy.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Uh-huh, right.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Once we enact it, it needs to be followed, you know.
And I -- I mean, I'm -- I'm -- you know, these are business people and, you know -COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Yeah.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: -- it's -- it's a -- it's an issue. It's -- it's very -- it's very
hurtful, you know, for people to say that about your city. Um, I guess he looked on the
website and I've been letting my hair grow a little bit, um, and he didn't quite recognize
who I was. But I -- I mean, that -- that -- when you get a -- a comment like that, it -- you
know, you kinda -- it kinda goes to you.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Yes.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Because all we have to do is just treat people with
respect, do what we're supposed to do, because we, including the staff, work for the
citizens.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: That's right.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: You know?
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: That's right. That's right.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: So we -- you know, everybody needs to understand
that the citizens is why they have jobs for the staff and why we are elected. We have to
provide the service for them. We're service oriented and driven, and we definitely need
to do something about that. We -- you know, we got to give more than a little lip service
about it. We have -- we have to actually, you know, act. And -- and something like that,
you know, a $5,000 thing, and you say they have to pay it again? Come on.
Businesses can't, you know, handle that, so -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: And I -COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Uh, you know, I mean, I'm -- I'm gonna get with the -with the manager on that, and the -- and the assistant manager already knows, but I
wanted to bring that before the Board to say, Hey, look, I don't know what the issue
was. I know the Director wasn't here at that time. And I -- and I will get with her. She's
very, very attentive, and she -- she gets what needs to be done I know when -- when I
worked with her. But, you know, I'm -- I'm very disappointed by that, and I'm even more
disappointed by another business. People will feel like we're not about business, and
we're not -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: That's right.
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COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: -- about moving the City, you know -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: That's right, that's right.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: -- uh, forward, when we -- when we have those type of
things. And they call us. They talk to us. They -- you know, we're the point of contact.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: That's right.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: So we just wanna make sure, you know, we're
respecting and we're treating you all like professionals and respecting you to be
professionals in your -- in your craft. We just want, you know, things to be a little
smoother. So I -- I -- I definitely concur with you on that, Miss -- Miss Davis, and -- and
we will have another conversation about it.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: And I just wanna add that what is so important when we
tell people either they can or they can't, it's important that we have a written policy and a
procedure that we can share with them, so that the information that's being imparted to
them is not a subjective kind of thing.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Uh-huh.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: But it is coming from a policy.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Uh-huh.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: And this is what I have found missing, is that when I ask
for a policy, so that I can explain to the residents, well, this is our policy, we don't have
the policy. So -- and -- and it's -- it's just a matter that we just gotta really start revisiting
certain things so that we -- we're armed with the truth. And that truth is the policy, the
written policy, the written procedure on how business is to be done in this city.
COUNCILPERSON LOWE: Yeah.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Move to adjourn.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Uh, move adjournment.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Move to adjourn, yes.
COUNCILPERSON LOWE: All right.
(CONCLUSION OF MEETING)
Transcribed by: jck/clk

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING

JANUARY 2, 2013

115

APPROVED:

______________________________
THOMAS A. MASTERS
MAYOR

________________________________
BRUCE A. GUYTON
COUNCILPERSON

ATTEST:

_______________________________
CARRIE E. WARD
MASTER MUNICIPAL CLERK
CITY CLERK

________________________________
JUDY L. DAVIS
COUNCILPERSON

________________________________
CEDRICK A. THOMAS
COUNCILPERSON

_______________________________
DAWN S. PARDO
COUNCILPERSON

_______________________________
TERENCE D. DAVIS
COUNCILPERSON
MOTIONED BY:
SECONDED BY:
B. GUYTON
J. DAVIS
C. THOMAS
D. PARDO
T. DAVIS
DATE APPROVED: 03/20/2013

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING

JANUARY 2, 2013

116

CITY OF RIVIERA BEACH CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Meeting Date:

3/20/2013

Agenda Category:

CONSENT

Subject:

JANUARY 16, 2013 CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP MINUTES

Recommendation/Motion:

APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE JANUARY 16, 2013 CITY
COUNCIL WORKSHOP

Originating Dept.

OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK

Costs:

User Dept.

OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK

Funding Source:

Advertised:

No

Budget Account Number:

Date:
Paper:
Affected Parties:

Not Required

Background/Summary:
II. Fiscal Impact Analysis
A. Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact:
Fiscal Years
Capital Expenditures
Operating Costs
External Revenues
Program Income (city)
In-kind Match (city)
Net Fiscal Impact
NO. Additional FTE Positions (cumulative)
Is Item Included in Current Budget? No

Budget Account NO:
B. Recommended Sources of Funds/Summary of Fiscal Impact :
C. Department Fiscal Review
III. Review Comments
A. Finance Department Comments:
B. Purchasing/Intergovernmental Relations/Grants Comments
C. Department Director Review
Contract Details
Contract Start Date
Contract End Date
Renewal Start Date
Renewal End Date
Number of 12 month terms this renewal
Dollar Amount
Contractor Company Name
Contractor Contact
Contractor Address
Contractor Phone Number
Contractor Email
Type of Contract
Describe
ATTACHMENTS:
Name:
16JAN13WS.doc

Description:
JANUARY 16, 2013 CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP MINUTES
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CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP MINUTES
WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 16, 2013 AT 5:30 P.M.
MUNICIPAL COMPLEX CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS
(The following may contain inaudible or misunderstood words due to the recording
quality.)
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Good afternoon, everyone. We are now getting ready to
start our Special City Council Workshop, and welcome to each and every one. We do
ask if you have your cell phones with you that you turn them to silence or vibrate or
whatever. Madam Clerk, would you please have the roll call?
CITY CLERK WARD: Councilperson Thomas?
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Here.
CITY CLERK WARD: Councilperson Pardo?
COUNCILPERSON PARDO: Present.
CITY CLERK WARD: Councilperson Brooks?
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Present.
CITY CLERK WARD: Councilperson Davis?
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Here.
CITY CLERK WARD: Councilperson Lowe?
COUNCILPERSON LOWE: Here.
CITY CLERK WARD: City Manager Jones?
CITY MANAGER JONES: Present.
CITY CLERK WARD: City Clerk Carrie Ward is present. City Attorney Pamala Ryan?
CITY ATTORNEY RYAN: Present.
CITY CLERK WARD: You have a quorum, Madam Chair.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Thank you. We will stand now for a moment of silence
followed by the Pledge of Allegiance by Councilman Lowe. (Everyone stood for a
Moment of Silence with the Pledge of Allegiance being led by Councilman Lowe).
Miss Jones, do we have any approvals, additions, deletions, substitutions? I shouldn't

say approval but additions, deletions. And if anyone has desire to speak on an item,
you will need to fill out a pink Public Comment card and it has to be done prior to the
agenda item being discussed. Okay.
CITY MANAGER JONES: It's my understanding that there have been conversations
that a couple of people wanted to make comments so when we were on the part about
additions -- and I didn't know whether we wanted to add them to the agenda or if they
were just going to do comment cards.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Well, I know there are two -- we have two different entities
here tonight who want to briefly come before us on a matter. So we can allow them the
-- at least the three minutes or whatever to give their discussion. And so that would be
the gentlemen who have submitted this Jerk and Caribbean Festival. They want to talk
with us about that briefly. So we'll give them about three or four minutes to do a
presentation. And the same thing for Terri Mitchell. So we will allow them to -- to talk
with us.
CITY MANAGER JONES: Those are the only, uh -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Okay.
CITY MANAGER JONES: -- additions.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Okay. All right. So that will follow after our agenda items.
CITY MANAGER JONES: Yes.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Okay. We need a motion now to accept the agenda.
COUNCILPERSON PARDO: Motion to accept agenda.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Need a second.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Second.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Okay. Thank you. Roll call, please.
CITY CLERK WARD: Councilperson Brooks.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Yes.
CITY CLERK WARD: Councilperson Pardo.
COUNCILPERSON PARDO: Yes.
CITY CLERK WARD: Councilperson Davis.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Yes.
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CITY CLERK WARD: Councilperson Thomas.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Yes.
CITY CLERK WARD: Councilperson Lowe.
COUNCILPERSON LOWE: Yes.
CITY CLERK WARD: Unanimous vote.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: All right, Miss Jones. It is on you, my dear.
CITY MANAGER JONES: Thank you, Madam Chair, members of Council. In the latter
part of November, the City received the 65 percent plans from Palm Beach County as it
relates to their proposed roadwork for Silver Beach Road.
In looking at the 65 percent plans, I felt it was important that we invite them here tonight
to make a presentation on that roadway improvement, to answer any questions that you
might have, but also give us an opportunity for our residents that travel that road quite
frequently or that live on Silver Beach Road to have some idea as to what is being
planned by the County.
And so we asked them and they graciously agreed to come make a presentation on that
roadway expansion. So without further ado, I would like to introduce Mr. Emilio
Fernandez. He is the director of the Roadway Production Division for Palm Beach
County Department of Engineering and Public Works.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: All right, sir.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: Thank you.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS:
department.

You'll have to officially announce yourself again, your

EMILIO FERNANDEZ: My name is Emilio Fernandez.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Okay.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: I'm the director of Roadway Production for Palm Beach County
Engineering and Public Works. Also with me here today is Morton Rose, the Assistant
Director of Roadway Production and project manager, and William Sears operating the - the electronic equipment -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Okay.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: -- as a project engineer. Silver Beach Road has been in the
planning process for some time. We had a number of submittals through the times of
different lanes, lane layouts, until the conclusion came that the capacity of the roadway
in the County's opinion had to be a two-lane roadway and not a four-lane roadway as
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discussed at a -- at a given time.
Silver Beach Road is a -- is a thoroughfare road in the County Comprehensive Plan
extending from Congress Avenue all the way to Broadway as seen in the -- in the
thoroughfare right-of-way (inaudible) map -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Uh-huh.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: -- the County has. This is an aerial view of the area. I know
you're very familiar with it. So I'll be presenting some things you are very familiar with
because it's your municipality and I'm sure you know it all. But it's a matter of
introducing what we're looking at. We have some pictures that we're going to show of
existing conditions.
The Palm Beach County Five-Year Road Program includes funds for construction of a
segment of this, not the entire Congress Roadway. We have -- from east of Congress
Avenue to east of Old Dixie is what's included in the Five-year-Road Program. We have
a total of $3.1 million allocated for this construction.
We're looking at this taking place sometime in 2014, we believe. This is the extent of
the project in a very small type of area. We will blow it up a little bit later so you can see
what we're talking about. The -- the timing of this, we said 2014 because it would take
some time for the right -- well, finalizing plans. As you know, we're 65 percent. But
(inaudible) of right-of-way and getting all the permits. So that will take some time.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Uh-huh.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: And we're saying 2014 right now, hopefully. Hopefully,
because of permitting of agencies could take some more time than that. We
investigated the existing conditions of this segment of the roadway and looked at the -at the existing right-of-way in the area.
And looking at the road, we first see as we're going -- looking eastbound -- we're going
east, coming out from Congress. I just drove through a few minutes ago to very -- to
familiarize myself even more. So this just east of Congress Avenue is -- is curb and
gutter, four-lane divided. The homes are not that area.
Later as we approach Avenue S, we see a sidewalk on the one side and now curb-andgutter section. As you go east of Avenue S on the south side, we start noticing some of
the problems that we have as far as safety, noticing that no sidewalks a majority of the
way, no curb and gutter, utility poles close to the travel lane.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Uh-huh.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: And driveways right there, you know, close to the fences. A
similar situation is found on the south side, east of Avenue P.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Uh-huh.
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EMILIO FERNANDEZ: And also east of Avenue O.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Uh-huh.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: As we approach Old Dixie Highway, we have some sporadic
sidewalks in some areas but there -- there is no paved shoulders that where nowadays
is a thing that you like to have three or four foot of paved shoulder between the curb and
the -- and the travel lane.
Finally, we have this view east of -- of the railroad crossing and more or less where the
project will be ending, tapering down to a -- to a -- to existing.
Looking at an aerial view of the area just starting west of Avenue S, we notice that we
had a unique opportunity here having a wider right-of-way than usual.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Uh-huh.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: Right-of-way line pointing -- with the arrow pointing north rightof-way line is some distance north of the existing road. So we had a unique opportunity
to do something different.
That -- that extends all the way to east of Avenue P. So we came up with the idea of
providing a road separated from the residential access roads. Since the road we just
looked at it in the pictures, we were looking at, we saw the homes were right there.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Uh-huh.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: The road was very close to the home. And people obviously
are backing into the road and very close to it. It is a dangerous situation that you don't
always have the opportunity to address. Here we had the beauty of having extra land to
the north. So we said, Let's -- let's go and place that road away from the residents as
much as we can. And try to make the existing road area as a frontage road, just a local
type of road. And that's -- that's what we approached, that way.
And then in looking at it, in moving the roadway -- this is looking a close-up look -- I
know this is one of the things that people start (inaudible), don't like it.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: (Inaudible).
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: I understand that. It is a common thing. We have something
you have seen more and more around the County, is the introduction of roundabouts.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: (Inaudible).
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: Roundabouts, people have their objections to them, because
you have to slow down, 15 miles an hour, to go around them and then keep going. The
reason for the roundabout are two-fold. One is you have a traffic-counting feature. You
count the traffic down. You slow the traffic down so people won't be going by at a
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higher speed.
And the second thing is -- is you do not need to signalize the intersection. You don't
need to have a signal with the whole operation of the signal. So that's -- that's a reason
for a roundabout introduced at that location.
Going further east, we looked at keeping that road to the north and continue further
east. We had to find the location where to interconnect the -- the frontage road and -and the -- and the Silver Beach Road. So instead of putting in an intersection which will
create more traffic, we put a place in the middle of the block between Avenues R and P.
And that's where they did the connection, yes. A little further east of that you find that
Avenue P is not connected to -- to -- to the Silver Beach. It's just a curve going to that
intersection we just showed there. So that's -- that's the picture we came up with, that
idea.
This -- this is seeing -- what we're looking at building in that area is more seeing a
typical section that will now show that has, uh -- well, this would be if you were looking
eastbound and looking at the road. The north side is the left side. There you'll see a
sidewalk, grass area, curb and gutter.
The four-foot paved shoulder and the through lanes and a center lane where you need it
for a left-turning movement. And then the other lane is an eastbound lane. Curb and
gutter, a swale area, grass swale area, and then the frontage road, which would be the
local road in front of the residences draining to a swale area with curb and gutter and
sidewalk on the roadside. So we have sidewalk on both sides of the road.
The section between Avenue P and Reed Way will remain as a two-lane road. We
have some right-of-way issues here so it will remain as a two-lane road. We will provide
curb and gutter, sidewalks and -- on both sides of the road, and the pavement will be
wider to allow that four-foot paved shoulder on both sides.
As we approach Old Dixie Highway and the railroad crossing, the road will be widened
to provide three lanes, curb and gutter and the paved shoulders. And west of Old Dixie
will have sidewalks on both sides east. Would only be sidewalks on the north -- on the
north side. We were unable to get sidewalks on the -- on the south on that side.
This is a typical section for the -- for -- for this area where you have more of a reused
right-of-way.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Excuse me, Madam Chair?
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Yes.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Sir?
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: Yes.
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COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: I'm -- I'm sorry. What's your name, again?
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: Emilio.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Mr. Emilio, can you go back to that -- I just want to
make sure that I heard you correctly. This is going to be on the east side of the tracks
right there? You said that you can put a sidewalk on the -EMILIO FERNANDEZ: North side.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: -- north side of the road but you can't -EMILIO FERNANDEZ: Yes.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: -- put it on the south side?
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: Correct.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Why is that?
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: Well, we have right-of-way restrictions. The -- the railroad
crossing and continuity and the -- the crossings in the roadway as you have today are
on the west side and on the north side. It's a -- the actual cross walks.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Okay. I'm -- I'm saying in the area where you're saying
that you're going to put the sidewalks -EMILIO FERNANDEZ: Yes.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: -- would you not have the same right-of-way issues on
both sides of the road? I'm just trying to figure out why would Lake Park get a sidewalk
but we wouldn't?
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: Well, the -- the railroad -- the crossings, the -- the crossing's at
the intersections. That's the way they are today. So we just kept, maintained the
crosswalks that were today. They're leading to a sidewalk on the north side of the
intersection itself.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Yeah. But if you're going to upgrade the road and fix it,
why not -CITY MANAGER JONES: Fix it.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: -- make it -UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: (Inaudible).
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Uh-huh.
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UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: (Inaudible) distant sidewalk (inaudible).
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Right. I -- I know how it is today.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: Okay. He knows. He knows.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: I mean, and I was trying to let you get to the -EMILIO FERNANDEZ: Yes.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: -- to the end of it. I just didn't -- you know, I heard you
come up with that.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: Okay.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: To say the way the road is gonna look after you're
completing it. Why would we not put sidewalks on our side of the, uh, road?
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: Okay. We -- we could look into that. We could look into it, see
if it's -- see if it's -- if we can do any -- we're looking at right-of-way and the existing
conditions and the fact that sidewalk was there. We're looking at a crossing, permit of
the railroad crossing be something extra that will have to be extended in the railroad
crossing. So we were just keeping -- actually, the -- the work was to Old Dixie. That's
where the improvements are. The area east of Old Dixie was just the tapering down of
the extension of that.
But we -- I understand your point. And we will -- we will look into that.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Okay. I -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Let me -COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: -- I'm gonna definitely let you finish. I had some other
questions about the other things but I'll let you go ahead. I just heard you say -EMILIO FERNANDEZ: No. (Inaudible).
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: -- north and south of the road and I just wanted to make
sure I heard you -EMILIO FERNANDEZ: Yeah. But -COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: -- say that we wouldn't be getting any sidewalks.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: -- it's good -- it's good you -- it's good you picked up on that.
I'm describing it. That's the way the plans are right now.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Okay.
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EMILIO FERNANDEZ: So I was describing the plans as they are. You're correct.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Okay. I'll -EMILIO FERNANDEZ: We will look at it.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: -- I'll come back and revisit with you a little later.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: No. No, this is perfectly okay.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: And sir, I just want to be very clear -EMILIO FERNANDEZ: Yes.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: -- as to what's happening here in this presentation. What
you're providing to us are your plans. We do have a right to share with you, you know,
our feelings, you know, in -- in this. It's not cut and dry. In other words, you're not just
saying, This is it. This is the way it is.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: No. No. We still have -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Okay. So you will welcome whatever comments that we
have and it will be taken under serious consideration?
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: Definitely.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Okay.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: This is the reason why we provided you with plans.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Okay.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: We provided you -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Okay.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ:
feedback.

-- we provide you with plans because we respect your

CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Okay. All right.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: And we were trying to accommodate you.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Very good.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: And then -- in what we can in there unless, you know, there's a
reason. We'll provide you the reason why we cannot accomplish what you're
requesting.
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CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Okay. Very good.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: But, yeah, we welcome comments.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Miss Brooks, one more thing.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Yes.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Have you met with our staff already?
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: Yes.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Okay. And when is this set to go to construction?
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: I said -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: 2014.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: -- 2014 we're looking at. It all depends -COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Next -EMILIO FERNANDEZ: -- next year.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: -- looking at next year?
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: Yes. We do actually -COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: So with only having about 11 months of -EMILIO FERNANDEZ: Well, actually -- actually, we have funding right now, but we
don't have permits. We don't have right-of-way.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Right.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: So the funding is there. But we need to go through the process
of getting the plans completed and permitted and part of the process we're going
through here right now where you will have some feedback and then we will have to
look into it. If I need to add it to the plans, I need to get it permitted with the extra
sidewalk, if that's the case.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: When you were coming up with the plans, did -- did you
all consult with any of the staff at Riviera Beach when you were coming up with this?
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: Well, through the years we had a -- numerous -- and -- and this
is before Terrence Bailey was even here. And while -- while -- before we had always -always, uh, communicated. And that's why we had the thing over the four lanes or two
lanes. We were discussing that for -- for a number of years, as -- as far back as 2000, I
believe it is.
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UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Four lanes.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Okay. Okay. You can finish. I just -EMILIO FERNANDEZ: No. No.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: And you can let us know -COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: -- I'm sorry.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: -- at what point we can begin to ask questions.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: And -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: I know we want you to complete your presentation.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: -- I -- I will complete it.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: And then we will go back and each council member -EMILIO FERNANDEZ: For I have -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: -- will have an opportunity to -EMILIO FERNANDEZ: Yes. If I complete it, there may be some things that may be
answered. But not, you know, we're open to questions any time. If you prefer, I can
continue on.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Oh, okay. All right. Good.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: Okay? So this is the typical section we have in that area, what
I already said, is, uh -- is a center lane and -- and for the turn lane at the intersection.
The following pages, I found it interesting that you have it in the attachments of your
agenda item you handed out. The following pages are all the designing and pavement
marking plans showing the -- the roadway the way it will be. You all saw it, I believe, in
the -- in what you had in your handouts what looks that -- what -- what we're looking at
far as the pavement markings throughout what I just described. We're just going
through it because you do have it in the -- in the exhibits and I would think if you have
any questions you can ask me that later.
We bring to your attention, like, the roundabout, which is -- will be, I know, an issue that
-- that will be discussed later and people will question. What we looked in there is that
in the -- in the west side of Avenue S, the -- you don't have the sequence of driveways
continuous one after the other that you have to the -- to the east. So in that area we're
only eliminating the pavement and just moving the roadway to the north and building the
-- the -- the roundabout north -- in the north part of the right-of-way.
East of that you -- we have the front -- the frontage road that no connect to the
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roundabout at that location. So it sort of dead ends. At that point it has a turn -- turnaround point so people to be able to get back -- to go back and go out -- go the other
exit that we had at (inaudible).
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Would you go back over that again, sir, please?
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: Yes. Yes.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Okay.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: The -- there -- and this -- this roundabout, this is -- faces -- this
is looking north -- northeast up.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Okay.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: To the west looking to the left you'll see the cross hatch area.
That's the existing pavement today.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Uh-huh.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: We're looking at taking the pavement out or making just that a
grass area. No connection there. The -- the church there doesn't have a driveway at
that location so there's no need to have a roadway there.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: You need a sidewalk.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Wait a minute. I'm sorry.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: You need a sidewalk.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Sir.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Wait a minute. Hold on.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: They do have a driveway there. And -EMILIO FERNANDEZ: In -COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: -- why would -EMILIO FERNANDEZ: -- into -- into -COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: -- why -- why would you not leave it there so that they
can utilize it. They -UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Why (inaudible) take the sidewalk.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: -- they -- they do have a driveway that comes there.
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EMILIO FERNANDEZ: Into Silver Beach Road?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Uh-huh.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: No. Yes. The first (inaudible).
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: The -- the -- the church has a driveway that comes off
of -EMILIO FERNANDEZ: Correct.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: -- that. I know it very well.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: Well, yeah. At the west end of the property. I was looking right
by the roundabout on the intersection. At this location where we're pointing out -COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Where is that?
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: -- all -UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: This -- this -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Is that -EMILIO FERNANDEZ:
roundabout.

-- this -- this is the -- this is the -- the west end of the

COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Uh-huh.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: On the right-hand side. You're talking about a couple hundred
feet is what you're talking, the driveway you're -- you're describing.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: The -- the roundabout is gonna be at Avenue S and
Silver Beach, correct?
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Silver Beach Road.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: Correct.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: All right. Just west of that -COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: West, uh-huh.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: -- road they have a -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Driveway.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: -- a driveway.
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COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Driveway.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: About 200 feet.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Two driveways.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Okay. So my -EMILIO FERNANDEZ: So those -COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: -- you're gonna -- you're gonna take it -- you're gonna
take it and make it grass?
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: Yeah. Let me -- let me -- let me -COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: How -- how much is this is to scale, just so we know
what we're looking at, of that last picture you had? How much of that is to scale?
'Cause that -- that seems like a -- a good distance from where the existing road is to
where that -EMILIO FERNANDEZ: Well, let's look at -- the proposed pavement is about 40 feet.
Look at the point of the proposed pavement at the west approach. Yes. Let me -- let
me just get my pointer here.
CITY MANAGER JONES: This would be (inaudible) maybe (inaudible).
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: The -- this doesn't work, the (inaudible). Right. The width of
the pavement proposed is about 40 feet so you can look in scale about the same
distance down to -- down to where the -- the properties are. The driveway is not -- and
this area we're showing here is, like, the first hundred feet west of Avenue S.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Uh-huh.
CITY MANAGER JONES: And so if I'm walking (inaudible) -EMILIO FERNANDEZ: The driveway is -- that you're describing is not at this location.
It's a little further west.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Oh.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Okay.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: So let's -- let's go further west and see what we're doing further
west. Let's loop back to the, uh -- yeah. Here we go. So in the area west of Avenue S,
see, the driveways that are -- that are existing there are not as close together as they
are to the east. We opted for eliminating the pavement and connecting all those
driveways directly into the new Silver Beach Road.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Okay.
CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP
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EMILIO FERNANDEZ: So this is the first driveway. Point to the first driveway, please,
William. The first -COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: But wouldn't we have the same problem that we're
having now where they have to back right out onto Silver Beach Road?
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: No. You have -- they will have, like, 40 feet of grass.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Okay. So all -- can we go west to those apartments, to
-- to those duplexes or whatever that is? Can -- can we just -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Do you have an actual photo? Could you get back to the
actual photo?
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: If I can get it.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Yeah, the color photo -EMILIO FERNANDEZ: Yeah. Yeah.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: -- where we can see the -- as it is now.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: Do you have that there? (Inaudible).
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: There was one that had a view -COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: That's small but, yeah -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: -- there was one that had a view going -- looking eastward
from Congress.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: There's (inaudible). (Inaudible).
WILLIAM SEARS: This is the way it is today.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: It might have been -COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: If you got one looking from Congress that would be
good.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: That -- that's the area right there.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: -- there was one that was looking from Congress.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Okay.
CITY MANAGER JONES: Okay. Show where the -WILLIAM SEARS: (Inaudible) it's right in here.
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CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Okay. Well, that's an area on Congress, yeah.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS:
cursor --

Right.

But those -- see, right where you have the

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: (Inaudible) sidewalk 'cause their people gotta walk.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: That's an apartment complex.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Right. That's a little apartment complex. How -EMILIO FERNANDEZ: Correct.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: -- how is that -UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: (Inaudible) walk.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: All those driveways will be connected directly to Silver Beach
Road, into the new road.
COUNCILPERSON LOWE: That's a sidewalk (inaudible).
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: Instead of having a frontage road, they'll will connecting directly
into the road because you have over 40 feet of grass area between the right-of-way line
and the proposed edge of pavement.
CITY MANAGER JONES: Then they go down and come back (inaudible).
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: Therefore, you have no issues of people turning around and
having the ability to get in as you have in the homes that are very close by.
COUNCILPERSON LOWE: (Inaudible).
CITY MANAGER JONES: Uh-huh.
COUNCILPERSON LOWE: Instead of backing out (inaudible).
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Okay.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: So that's -- that's the difference in the two -- it's -- it's a -- it's an
area where you have more space between driveways and the road is further out. So
there was no need to have a -- an additional frontage road pavement there and they
could connect directly into the road.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: So -- so are -- are our city limits going to -- are we
going to annex that into our city or how is that going to happen? Because you're
actually putting that entire part of Silver Beach into the City of Lake Park. So how -- I
mean, what -- what happens with that? I mean --
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EMILIO FERNANDEZ: The -- we had not look at corporate limits and changing
corporate limits. That's not something that -- that we will do in the roadway.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: I mean, that definitely has to be looked at. I mean, you
-- you're taking a road totally out of our city and it comes in in pieces. So in terms of
coverage area for public safety, you know, in terms of everything that we'll have to do to
-- for maintenance that we do now, I mean, all those things will have to be addressed in
some form.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: Well, maintenance -- we maintain the road. We maintain Silver
Beach Road.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: You -- you do?
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: Yes.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Yeah.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: It hasn't -COUNCILPERSON PARDO: Well, shame on you.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: -- it hasn't been done very well, then. I mean, I -- I just - you know, no pun intended. I mean, but -EMILIO FERNANDEZ: Okay. But it's -- but if you -- but I -COUNCILPERSON PARDO: It's an awful road.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: It is. It is.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: -- mean -COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Yeah. I didn't know -- I did not know that you
maintained it. I thought a part of it was ours, a part of it was Lake Park's.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Lake Park's, yeah.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: No.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: It's a county road, though.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: County has always maintained that road.
CITY MANAGER JONES: County road.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: Yes. It's a county road.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: They have the responsibility for maintaining it.
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COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: No, the County may have always owned the road but
they do -- they haven't -COUNCILPERSON PARDO: Right. They have never maintained it.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: -- they -- yeah. But that -- I mean, that's neither here
nor there. That's -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: That's not his league but, yeah -COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: -- not why we're here today.
COUNCILPERSON PARDO: Right.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: I'm trying to fix it.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: But I mean, those issues still -- yeah. Well, it definitely
needs to be fixed. But those issues still need to be, you know, addressed.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: Yes. So we -- we at -- in this situation we're looking at getting
the traffic away from the residents so that the road won't be on top of them. If we're
going to maintain the corporate limit, then we will have to be acquiring all the homes in
the south side. That the only way to keep that out and that would not be to the public
benefit. Because we do have the right-of-way to the north of that.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Madam Chair?
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Okay. Miss Davis next. Miss Davis?
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Question. The frontage road, do you plan -- it -- are there
plans to repave it?
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: Yes.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Okay.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: We're reconstructing it, as a matter of fact. The idea is to build
a sidewalk -COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Uh-huh.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: -- in the -- on the south side, a curb, and slope that -- make -make it drain into the swale area in between.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Okay.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: So it would be reconstructed.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: 'Cause I -- you know, you didn't say -- say specifically that
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you were going to repave the frontage road so I wanted to make sure that was what
was going to be done. And our -- a few year -- well, it's been a quite a while back when,
um, I guess it was FDOT who did Congress and they did a portion of -EMILIO FERNANDEZ: It was -- it was us.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: -- you getting there?
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: It was us.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: It was you?
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: Yeah.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Okay. 'Cause you -- is it a county road, Congress?
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: Yes. Congress is a county road. Blue Heron is a state road.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Okay.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: No, Blue Heron is a state -COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: So Congress is owned by the County so when they did
that road, they came into Silver Beach a little bit and did the four lane -EMILIO FERNANDEZ: Correct.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: -- it -- I'm just curious. Why didn't they do the road then or
-EMILIO FERNANDEZ: Well, at -- at that time Congress Avenue was the road we were
doing. We just did -- were required to connect into Silver Beach Road.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Okay. So you knew that you -EMILIO FERNANDEZ: So we were doing a connection.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: -- were gonna, eventually, four lanes -EMILIO FERNANDEZ: One day.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Okay. Um, I'm not in favor of the roundabout. I think it's -it's -- it just causes more problems than -- than anything and I think that -- that there's
probably a -- a need for a traffic signal or a three-way stop sign or something other than
a roundabout. Those things are very confusing. I see them in West Palm Beach.
Sometimes I don't even know when I wanna make a left turn, I don't know whether I'm
supposed to go out this way or turn this way. You know, and -- and -- and miss it. And
the other question is, um, at Avenue P, there was a slide --
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EMILIO FERNANDEZ: Uh-huh.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: -- you said where the frontage road almost meets Silver
Beach. So -EMILIO FERNANDEZ: I -COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: -- okay. So a person who's coming from Avenue P, would
they have to go west and then go east on -- to get on Silver Beach Road?
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: Correct. Correct.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Okay.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: The idea was to eliminate another connection, minimize the
connections into the road so -COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Can you go back to the slide that shows exactly where -that's -- that's it right there?
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: Yes. That's it. That's it right there.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: So why -- why couldn't they -- why can't you do a double -EMILIO FERNANDEZ: A double saying what -COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Yeah.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: -- a connection at the intersection into the road?
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Yeah.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: If you do an intersection to the road, then you have to look at
left-turn lanes and -- and more widening to provide a left in. We're able to provide the
left in in the -- in the other location because we are away from the curve.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: No. Oh, okay.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: See, we're transitioning back after that.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: So what's on the right right there? What's on -- I mean,
what -EMILIO FERNANDEZ: That is -- this -COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: -- is there a home right there why you couldn't do -EMILIO FERNANDEZ: Yes.
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COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: -- a -- a -EMILIO FERNANDEZ: That's -- I was -- I was going to get to that. Let me get to that
right now and -COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Okay.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: -- and -- and -- no, good. No, you're good. You're good. I just
described what we're discussing west of Avenue S.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Uh-huh.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: Where you had the situation where the driveways were -COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Uh-huh. I understand.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: -- further apart.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Uh-huh.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: So we have the section that we're able to get a frontage road.
When we get to Avenue P, the road had to come back in.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Hmm.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: Because we don't have the right-of-way.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Uh-huh.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Uh-huh.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: So in coming back in, we no longer are able to maintain that
frontage road.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Uh-huh.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: We're going -- we will have to address each property going
directly into -- into Silver Beach Road. That's what happened to the east.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: I want to go back to the roundabout.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: Okay.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: I want you to help me understand the process of thinking
here. And I'm serious.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: Uh-huh.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS:
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curious. You know, Silver Beach Road is a commuter road. A lot of traffic flows at
Silver Beach Road. Those of us who are coming from -- going north on Avenue S to
Silver Beach Road oftentimes have difficulties getting out into the intersection there,
especially during the morning hours and the afternoon hours.
Would it not be a better thought or plan to have a traffic light there that would somehow
be controlled that the traffic would flow as on U.S. 1 in West Palm Beach? You know, if
you make one green light you make them all.
The same pattern could occur hopefully there that if you get the green signal at
Congress and Silver Beach Road, then you -- going east it would just flow until you got
to Old Dixie Highway. My concern, if you had a school bus -EMILIO FERNANDEZ: Uh-huh.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: -- and that bus need to make a left-hand turn or going
back west, the difficulty, the -- the danger there. Um, and then when you have a
roundabout all of a sudden appearing right in the middle of the flow of commuter traffic, I
could see it really being a very serious problem. But I'm looking at it as a layperson. So
I'm just curious as to how you all thought that it would be a great idea to have a
roundabout.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: Well, when you go to a multi-lane it gets more complicated as
with a roundabout. With two lanes they're optimum to keep flow of traffic moving.
Slowing down and it keeps them moving in -- in a roundabout better than a signal. You
don't have to stop and wait. You have the ability of -- of -- of continuous movement.
As you are in the roundabout, you have the right-of-way when you go in. So it's not like
a complete stopped condition. It's like a yield condition and studies have shown that
traffic flow is better through an intersection when you're able to do that in a two-lane
without stopping traffic. Like, you have a light. The left-turning movement has to wait
and let the through movement go on. So we do have roundabouts in other
thoroughfares. You have it in Hagen Ranch Road. We have a number of them in
Hagen Ranch from Atlantic all the way up to Lantana.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: And I've experienced that but it's mostly -- it's residential,
though, isn't it? Hagen Ranch Road?
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: Yes.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Uh-huh.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Yeah.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: Yes.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: And that's the difference. This is -- well, you know, you
have a -- again, you have a lot of commuter traffic. You don't have a lot of commuter
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traffic on Hagen Ranch Road. I mean, I've taken it from the beginning to the end. But
I've not experienced -- the only roundabout I can recall in a commercial area is in
Hollywood, Florida. There's a little roundabout downtown. But in this -- looking at our
situation here with the residential, how, you know -- community there and then you've
got the commercial and -- on one side you have commercial, other side residential. I
have just concern. I really wouldn't be in favor of a roundabout and I hope y'all think
about something else.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: I drove through a roundabout on the way here. I took the long
route because I went to Silver Beach and went through Investment Lane. There's
another roundabout over there.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Where is that?
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: Investment Lane.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Well, that's commercial traffic.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: But that's commercial.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: Yeah. Well, you mentioned commercial.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Yeah.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: We're talking residential/commercial. That's commercial.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Right. Uh-huh.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: And it doesn't have the traffic (inaudible).
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: And you have a roundabout there.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: And it doesn't have the traffic. It really -- sir, have y'all
done a traffic count?
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: Sure.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Is there -EMILIO FERNANDEZ: Sure.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: -- how many cars -EMILIO FERNANDEZ: I don't have the numbers -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Oh. But it's a lot?
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: -- on -- on the traffic.
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COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: It's a lot.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: When they look at the traffic numbers, it didn't require more
than two lanes. That's all I can tell you, because that went on and on, like I said, for
some time.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Uh-huh.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: Looking at projections and looking at present traffic volumes,
the projection was no more than two-lane capacity.
COUNCILPERSON PARDO: How long ago was that traffic study done?
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: The last one was -UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: (Inaudible) last one.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: Oh. The last -- the last one had to be a couple of years ago. It
had to be updated because, you know, we -- and like I said, we had a number of times
and the final decision in -- in going and having everybody in agreement was only less
than three years ago. So that had to be the last time. But we count every year. You
know, counts -- counts are done every -- every year. So we continuously look at that.
And it was -COUNCILPERSON PARDO: I'm just asking because the shopping along, you know -the retail stores along Congress Avenue are more and more. And then where also I
guess Lake Park is getting ready to develop some of their land along Silver Beach onto
Congress Avenue. So that's going to bring more traffic, also. And did you guys -COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: The Army Corps -UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Army Reserve -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Army Corps, uh-huh.
COUNCILPERSON PARDO: Right. Did you guys account for all of that, too?
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: Yes. The -- as a matter of fact, the, uh -- the -- there was some
projections of traffic with the Walmart coming and all that before that's -- we had the
initial numbers. And they were saying -COUNCILPERSON PARDO: Uh-huh.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: -- No, you will need four lanes. So actually, it was redone after
all -- most of all -- if not all of them were in today. I understand there's more coming.
When they look at traffic analysis, they look at projections. They don't look only at
what's there today.
COUNCILPERSON PARDO: Right.
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EMILIO FERNANDEZ: And that projection would have looked at the density of the
areas that are -- that would feed into it and the traffic that it could generate.
COUNCILPERSON PARDO: Uh-huh.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: That's taking into account when looking at traffic projections.
COUNCILPERSON PARDO: Uh-huh.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: Even with them, looking out 20 years. (Inaudible).
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: So given that statement you just made, have they given
thought to what if Avenue S -- it might be another name -- but it would go north of Silver
Beach Road going into Lake Park -- I don't know what's back there -- but have they
given thought that conceivably there might be another road?
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: It could -- it -- we looked at it not necessarily as a road. When
we looked at that we looked at it with the roundabout. I will go into the drainage later.
And we had to look at that because that property there, property K -- K, I think it said. K
Industries.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: I'm sorry?
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: K Industries, I believe is the name.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Oh, K Industries.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: Yeah.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Uh-huh.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: That property needed to have an access and we could not put - the lake that would block the access to that. So when we located the roundabout, you
will see the shape of the lake that we are planning to acquire. Took into account the
possibility of a driveway.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Uh-huh.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: We did not look at it as a road.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Uh-huh.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: Nobody has talked to us about a road. But we looked at it, and
the -- and the -- and -- and that lake, as you can see in the picture, that the -- it could
come off the roundabout at that location. We actually did lay it out like a road coming
out of it.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Uh-huh.
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EMILIO FERNANDEZ: And it's -- it's able to come into the roundabout in -- in an angle
like that. Couldn't do that in a signal. So that wasn't part of it but I'm just -- gives me
now that if you have a signal, we won't be able to do that. That's something else that
would have to be looked at as far as -- as far as the lake to the north.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Well, let me ask you this. Now, you also are really just
bound and determined to give us a roundabout even if we don't want a roundabout?
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: I -- I could bring it back to the people above me. I say it was
looked through the process and it was the decision made by the -- by the -- the -- the
committees that -- that the County has to -- to analyze and determine master plans.
After the studies and looking at the numbers, the -- the committee was in agreement of - of this layout. So I can always go back to the committee and say you're opposed to it,
no way, no how. So -COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Uh-huh.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Well, we want to give you our reasons -EMILIO FERNANDEZ: So getting feedback.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: -- for it, where mine is a concern of the flow of traffic and
trying to make a -- that roundabout going -- coming -- going north and then trying to go
west. I could just see it. It's horrendous. I mean, I can hardly get out now. You know,
with a roundabout -UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Uh-huh. Really.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Uh-huh.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: -- it -- I just foresee it being even a very more challenging
kind of thing for our motorists. And I see that as a real safety issue. So it's a safety
issue from my point of view here.
COUNCILPERSON PARDO: Right. And, Madam Chair?
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Yes.
COUNCILPERSON PARDO: And you stated in the beginning of the meeting that the
plans were only 65 percent complete, correct?
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: Correct.
COUNCILPERSON PARDO: Okay. So there's still -- it's not like they're a hundred
percent. So there's still some room.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: Uh, we -- every -- every submittal we -- we share with
municipalities and ask for feedback. We did share the 35 percent. We have that, right?
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CITY ENGINEER BAILEY: (Nods head).
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: Yeah. We -- the 30 percent level we had -- we shared plans at
the time. We didn't have it as detailed as now.
COUNCILPERSON PARDO: Uh-huh.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: And now we're looking -- we're waiting for the 65 percent
comments, which I assume your City in here will take your comments and give us the
feedback and -- on that, establishing your point, which is perfectly -- what we're looking
for. That's the purpose of giving you the plans.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Share them with? Who? I'm sorry.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Uh-huh.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Madam Chair?
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: That's okay.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Who do you -- who do you share the plans with?
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: Your City engineer has it. It has been given to your Utilities
Department and to your -- and to your -- to your -- to your City engineer both have plans
right now.
COUNCILPERSON PARDO: The Planning & Zoning?
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: The 65 percent.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: I don't know. Does -- does -- do you walk on our
Planning & Zoning?
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: Planning & Zoning?
COUNCILPERSON PARDO: Our -COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Yeah. Our Planning & Zoning Board.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: Well -COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Do you go to our Planning & Zoning Board?
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Has this been presented to the Planning & Zoning Board?
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: No. We do not normally do that. We share with the City. It's
up to the cities how you distribute. We're giving copies to the municipalities, and if you
need to do something internally, we expect the cities will do that. When we're getting an
answer back from the City, that's the official answer we're getting from the City -CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP
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CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Okay.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: -- be it all the groups.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Mr. Lowe?
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: At your 35 percent mark -COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: No.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: -- who did you get an answer back -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Oh, Miss Jones? Okay.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: -- from? When you shared them at the 35 percent
mark, who did you get an answer back from?
CITY MANAGER JONES: That's what the -- the 35 percent mark -EMILIO FERNANDEZ: Yes. But I -- the same. We -- we shared -- we share with the -with the City. We sent it to the City engineer and to the -- but at that point you didn't
have as many details as you have now. That's why it was actually the City engineer
who said to -- who said -- who said to us, you know, now it's at a point that our city
council and our people should see it. And that's why we're here today. As far as I see
it. I know you made the request, but the City -- the City engineer approached us with
that. He said, "At 35 you didn't have the details that you could have a discussion like
we're having now."
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Okay.
COUNCILPERSON LOWE: Madam Chair?
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: And now -- now we are at that point.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Excuse me, Mr. Lowe and Miss Jones, did -- after Mr.
Lowe -- Miss Jones, you want to have a comment prior to Mr. Lowe's comment or after?
CITY MANAGER JONES: Well, I just wanted to say real quickly -- and we received
these 65 percent plans the last of November. And that's why I thought as soon as we
could we needed to get the County staff here to hear our reactions to those 65 percent
plans. This is the most detailed we've been able to see in order to raise the questions
about traffic flow and -- and what it looks like.
COUNCILPERSON LOWE: Okay.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: So there -- we have the comments of our engineers or
whoever our staff members were that were involved in this?
CITY MANAGER JONES: We will put those comments together after we hear tonight
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each one of you so that those can be a part of the comments.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Because I would like for us to have been privileged to the
comments -COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: I would -- I -- yeah. Yeah.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: -- of our staff to see how we're all either in agreement or
not in agreement. But right now we don't have those comments available to us.
CITY MANAGER JONES: Right. You know, as -- just as staff we looked at it. We had
the same concerns. We had the concern about the roundabout.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Uh-huh.
CITY MANAGER JONES: And the safety.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Uh-huh.
CITY MANAGER JONES: And getting the traffic -- we were concerned, although we
understood it was because of resources that they were only going to 10th Street east of
Old Dixie. It was -- it was going to stop right there. But when we saw these concerns,
we talked to staff and then we said, Okay. Let's make sure we're also hearing from
Council so it won't just be our concerns. But they're the same concerns that you're
raising right now.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Well, and that's what I needed to hear.
CITY MANAGER JONES: They're the same concerns.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Okay. Because I want him to know the strength of where
we're coming from, both from the Council, you know, concern about this, as well as the
staff. So that you'll see that we are in agreement on most of what we've seen here in
terms of what we -- we have some question about, real concern about. And it's safety.
CITY MANAGER JONES: Uh-huh.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: That's number one, safety.
COUNCILPERSON PARDO: Yeah.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: So any other questions? Mr. Lowe, you're next.
COUNCILPERSON LOWE: Thank you. Um, is there any plans for future extension of
Avenue S?
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: No. We have -- we have no plans for extension of Avenue S.
Avenue S is -- is a -- is a city road -- uh, street. We do not -- we do not have any -anything with that. As far as the comment before that Lake Park was looking at
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extending, the first I hear of that. All we did in our design, we're accommodating access
to the property so that we could not, in the acquisition process, when we go -- try to go
buy land for -- for a lake, we don't get the penalty of not having access and -- and then
have a lawsuit on that from the property owners.
So when you acquire property, you need to address their access. So that's what we did
with the roundabout. We addressed how they could access if they wanted to as far as
connection to the roadway.
COUNCILPERSON LOWE: So right now you're just putting a detention pond and -and -EMILIO FERNANDEZ: That's correct. That's -COUNCILPERSON LOWE: -- that's it?
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: -- that's -- that's all we're doing in that parcel. We -- we had the
need to -- to address water quality and quantity for the road. And the only way to do
that will be a lake. We know there's another lake a little further to the west where the
armory is now coming in.
COUNCILPERSON LOWE: Uh-huh.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: Which is our lake. But due to elevations and some design
features, we were unable to make that lake bigger. We had to put -- get a new lake and
further up in the -- in the land area that will work.
COUNCILPERSON LOWE: So -- so you guys -- you'll landscape the -- around the
lake? It won't look just like a -- you know, just like a detention pond. And also in the
center of the roundabout, what's -- what's there? Concrete or -EMILIO FERNANDEZ: In the -- in the center of the roundabout you will have some -- it
has to be low -- it has to be grass area. At first it has an apron around it.
COUNCILPERSON LOWE: Uh-huh.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: That normally we -- we make it color concrete, different, like -so you can see the difference from the -- from the curb on that. And that's a -- that's
mountable curb. If you have a big tractor trailer or whatever going through there, able to
actually go on that if they had to. So -- and the area's center is normally grass. The
other thing with roundabouts is they have to be lit so we have to have lights.
COUNCILPERSON LOWE: Uh-huh.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: Street lights for it.
COUNCILPERSON LOWE: Uh-huh.
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EMILIO FERNANDEZ: Where you put a roundabout.
COUNCILPERSON LOWE: Is that in your plans, as well, to put street lights down
Silver Beach?
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: That's -- no, sir. Street light I say at the roundabout will be the
only location. If we put a roundabout, we have to put street lights at the roundabout.
But street lights with the municipalities are done by the municipalities, be the Lake Park
side or the Riviera side. We have to go by the municipality. The County does not
provide lighting with municipalities.
COUNCILPERSON LOWE: And that area north of the service road, is that concrete or
landscaped?
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: Grass.
COUNCILPERSON LOWE: Grass?
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: Grass area.
COUNCILPERSON LOWE: That's gonna be grass?
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: It's a grass swale. It's a swale area.
COUNCILPERSON LOWE: Oh, it's going to be a swale?
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: A swale area, yes. It will be conveying drainage. Will be
retaining -- will be conveying the drainage flowing, going in and going into the lake.
COUNCILPERSON LOWE: So you need that drainage?
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: Yes. Yes. It's not for conveyance, yeah. And -- and water
quality.
COUNCILPERSON LOWE: All right. Thank you.
COUNCILPERSON PARDO: Madam Chair?
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Yes, Miss Pardo?
COUNCILPERSON PARDO: I have a question. So what are the future plans for Silver
Beach Road east of the tracks?
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: We had a request -- and Terrence will have the answer to that
because he was -- he's been knocking on my back on that, right? The City engineer
has been, What are you doing with that? He's, you know -- I know, I'm sure, you have
discussed it in Staff and we -- we were -- we went back. I went back to the -- to the -- to
the committee and to the -- to the County and we are happy to inform you that we will
be able to allocate funds for milling and resurfacing the entire way -CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP
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COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Great.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: -- from -- from east of Old Dixie to Broadway in 2015.
COUNCILPERSON PARDO: 2015?
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: Yes.
COUNCILPERSON PARDO: Okay. All right. Thank you. Oh, one other thing. What
about drainage? Are you going to do the drainage there? We have some -EMILIO FERNANDEZ: And that -COUNCILPERSON PARDO: -- serious drainage issues.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: -- we could look at what we have there. But normally milling
and resurfacing is just milling and resurfacing. You're trying to get the pavement quality
there. If something is damaged in the pavement we may have to look at that, or
something that the road is causing, we will look at that. So I guess it could come up in
the comments as something to look at. We could have your feedback on that, the
locations that you have of interest and we will look at them.
COUNCILPERSON PARDO: Okay. Thank you.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Will you also install curbs?
COUNCILPERSON PARDO: No.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: Uh, no. Milling and resurfacing is milling and resurfacing. I'm
sorry.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Okay. But -- but wait a minute. The -- the County -- this is
a County road.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: Correct.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: And I'm trying to bring up other roads. I serve on the
MPO.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: Uh-huh.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: And I'm trying to bring up other roads that I -- that are
County owned that look totally different. So, um, what other county roads are there
around?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Congress.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Congress Avenue.
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EMILIO FERNANDEZ: Yeah. Well, the curbing got a section so -COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Curbed. Looks beautiful.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: Yeah. It's a six-lane -- four-, six-lane road, yes.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Okay. Well, I mean, it's a -- it's a two-lane -- it's a fourlane -EMILIO FERNANDEZ: I also explain it to -COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: -- highway.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: Uh-huh.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: And, you know, there are beautiful communities there and,
you know, we have a community right here on both sides of this road. And it needs
curbing. I can understand maybe not putting the lights up. But curbing and -- and
drainage, absolutely.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: Well, if you're talking curbing and drainage, now you're talking
about a project -- you're not talking about milling and resurfacing, which is a
maintenance type of -- type of activity. Milling and resurfacing is maintaining the road.
That's -- so that pavement will be smooth. Now, if you're talking drainage, you're talking
curb and gutter, when you put curb and gutter, the road cannot be flat. The road has to
go up and down for the water to flow in the gutter. And you have to address drainage
so it costs us a lot more. So you're talking a different ballgame than that. We have to
need a lot more funds for that.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: I'd like -- I'd like to meet with you and -- and -- and find out
some other county roads within municipalities that look totally different than Silver
Beach Road, because I think, you know, it -- it needs a lot more improvement than just
resurfacing. Okay?
COUNCILPERSON LOWE: Madam Chair?
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Yes, Mr. Lowe.
COUNCILPERSON LOWE: I guess acquisition was one of your major obstacles that
caused you to come up with this design. Am I assuming that or no?
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: No. The -- we thought it was a good thing, the design, you
know, that we had extra right-of-way and we were able to offer something to the
residents that was not having the road right next to them.
COUNCILPERSON LOWE: Uh-huh.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: So we thought that was good for this segment that I -CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP
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COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: It is good.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: -- I described before. We do have a problem at the east end
where we don't have the right-of-way. Here we had the luxury -COUNCILPERSON LOWE: Right.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ:
have.

-- of having the extra right-of-way which we normally don't

COUNCILPERSON LOWE: Right.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: So as another way of this luxury of that, let's try to do a good
thing here for the -- for the -- for the residents and move the road away from them. And
that's what we did for this segment.
COUNCILPERSON LOWE: Well, I could see in that segment west of, uh -COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Uh-huh.
COUNCILPERSON LOWE: -- Old Dixie Highway -COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Uh-huh.
COUNCILPERSON LOWE: -- you're eliminating a very dangerous situation where -COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Right.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Uh-huh.
COUNCILPERSON LOWE:
Beach.

-- the current residents have to back out onto Silver

CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Uh-huh.
COUNCILPERSON LOWE: So I mean, that's a good thing.
hearing is the major objection is the roundabout.

I guess what you're

CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Uh-huh.
COUNCILPERSON LOWE: But you know, I just want it to be efficient and look nice.
That's why I questioned about the pond. Is it going to be a pond or a lake? You know?
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: Yeah. We normally -- it's a pond that we were looking at. It will
be for drainage. Normally what will be done if we are maintaining that, we will be
fencing it.
COUNCILPERSON LOWE: Oh.
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EMILIO FERNANDEZ: Because you don't want people going into the -- the liability of
somebody going in the water there.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Uh-huh.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: So it would be a chain-link fence around it. We're having that.
Normally in this type of situation, though, where you have a big parcel of land and you
are buying a lake, we normally acquire what is called a "relocatable drainage
easement," which means that the property owner will have the option to relocate it in the
future if the drainage features are maintained.
Because we will not be the fee simple owner. The fee simple owner will remain the
property owner. That's normally our offering in a case like this. So looking at it in the
future, will the lake -- will it remain there? Will it be moved further in? That will all
depend on the property owner. We are looking at the lake to satisfy our needs for water
quality and quantity on the road.
COUNCILPERSON LOWE: So that's not County-owned land, then?
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: No. It's not. We're looking at acquiring the land.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Lake Park.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: So that's acquisition required.
COUNCILPERSON LOWE: I was under -- under the assumption that that was
environmentally sensitive land. That's why it never got developed.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: Yeah. You are correct. It's -- east of this lake, the -- the east
property line of the proposed lake there -COUNCILPERSON LOWE: Uh-huh.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: -- that is the Lake Park scrub you saw.
COUNCILPERSON LOWE: Right.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Uh-huh.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: We're not touching that.
COUNCILPERSON LOWE: Okay.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: Our own people will not let us touch that.
COUNCILPERSON LOWE: Right.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: Even if we are County and that's County, no. We cannot touch
that. We need to stay away from that and meet all the requirements. Everybody has to
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meet them all. Because it's -- the City example with us being -- being part of the
County. So no, we're not touching the scrub at all. This will be just west of it. And
that's something we had to look at in detail in the design because the land there sloping
down so we had to really address the slopes and how to come into it. But we're not
touching the Lake Park scrub, no. This is the -COUNCILPERSON LOWE: Yeah, I've never been over in there. I never -- never knew
the contour.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: Yeah. Yeah.
COUNCILPERSON LOWE: But -EMILIO FERNANDEZ: It is -- it is higher than that. It's that sand ridge. So let me go
through the next few slides and we'll not -- so this is -- this is where we are as far as 65
percent. The next will be 96 percent submittal and we look -- waiting for Riviera and
also Lake Park comments. And -- and also the utilities. Different utilities also have
plans.
Looking at the right-of-way situation -- this is the other issue we were just talking about - the existing right-of-way from Congress to -- to Avenue O is about 108 to 125 feet,
your barriers in that area. But that's how much we had there. There's no need to
acquire any additional right-of-way for the road in that area. We do have to acquire for
the lake but not for the road in that area.
And we're able to accommodate what we just described. East of that, the right-of-way is
only 50. As a matter of fact, it's even 45 in one -- right in front of the parks -- that place
there. So we -- yeah, I didn't want to call -UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: (Inaudible).
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: -- that word. The -- the -- so there we have to acquire some
right-of-way and that's where the issue came of what you were talking of the driveways
so I'm glad you bring that up because it's an interesting thing that we have to look into.
At -- at -- in the beginning portion just west of Avenue O, we're only acquiring on the
north side. And we're acquiring about five feet. But now -- now you're going to drive me
crazy there -- okay. I guess I started talking off the script. And he -- and I'm driving him
crazy now. Sorry about that.
So -- where are you going? Okay. All right. So we have -- in this area where we are
east of the frontage road that we're able to provide, we do still have the situation of
people backing into the road that you described a few minutes ago.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Uh-huh.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: And so we have to address that. To address that, we offer the
property owners circular driveways, and that's the next slide you had, I guess. Circular
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driveways. And for that, that is built inside their property. And that will require us
acquiring a temporary construction easement from the property owners.
So they either -- either get a circular driveway or what we call a T turnaround to be able
-- so you won't back into the road. So those road -- uh, locations we were unable to
have a frontage road, we need to address the people not backing into the road by one
of these methods. And we'll be approaching each property owner, presenting them the
alternatives on that.
COUNCILPERSON LOWE: And you'll pay for it?
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: Yes. Be part of the construction of the project, the temporary
construction easement and also the actual construction.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS:
residents?

Sir, has there been a conversation with any of these

EMILIO FERNANDEZ: No.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Okay.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: Not yet. We are still in the process of preparing the -- the -- the
legal documents and making sure exactly how much we need. Because when you
approach a resident they want to know exactly up to what point you're going.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Uh-huh.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: We don't want to go to them and say, We're going to disturb
your land. Well, how much? Where?
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Uh-huh.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: We need to have those details.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Excuse me?
COUNCILPERSON PARDO: (Inaudible).
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Miss Davis?
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: You -- you don't call out the street -- I'm sorry.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Go ahead.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Madam Chair?
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Yes. Uh-huh.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: You didn't call out the street name so I'm still trying to
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figure out where it is.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: This is a -- this is a typical -- typical -- this is not any street.
This is a typical -COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Oh, this is just -- okay.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: -- what -- just a typical -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: The alternatives that will be presented.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: -- what's done. Alternatives where you put a circular driveway
in front of a property. That's the way it will look with a standard -- standard (inaudible).
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: But the area that you're talking about, that -- that is still
right there where the frontage road is. It's that area west of -- um, east of P?
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: East of P.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Okay. Gotcha.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: Where the frontage road is -COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Yeah. I understand.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: -- since we are able to provide local road there was no need to
do circular driveways.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Uh-huh.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: Because they're backing into a local road.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Right.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Uh-huh.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: There's no traffic in there. In this area where they're backing
into Silver Beach Road -COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Uh-huh.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: -- there is where we saw the need for circular driveways.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Okay.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Uh-huh.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: And that's where we're making that offer.
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CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Okay.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: So further east of that, as you approach the intersection now,
we are starting to develop the left-turn lane at the Old Dixie intersection. So we need to
acquire land from the south now. It's a little more complicated. So we're buying
between five and eight feet in both sides of the road here to be able to accommodate
that section that we showed before with the two paved shoulders. And we need to
address not only the right-of-way to be acquired, also the driveways as we just
described and the connection to parking lots. For example, the church over here has a
big differential grade -COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Uh-huh.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: -- that has to be addressed in the -- in the process of that.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Okay.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: So -- and the final thing that -- that we are -- that we have in the
-- and what I'd like to point out to you is that at the intersection of -- of Old Dixie and
Silver Beach, it will be a signalized intersection with mast arms, with the new mast arms
type of -- type of picture. Not the -- this -- the (inaudible) wire.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Is that similar to what we have now at Blue Heron and,
um, Congress?
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: Yes.
CITY MANAGER JONES: Yes.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Okay.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: Yes. So that -- those -- those -- those lines there, that are the -are actually the arms of the -- of the mass that will be holding the signals.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Okay. Okay.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: And that -- and that's -- that's part of the plan and it's included
as part of the budget and part of the plan for the intersection.
COUNCILPERSON LOWE: Madam Chair?
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Yes, Mr. -- Mr. Lowe?
COUNCILPERSON LOWE: Okay. Now, from Avenue O to Old Dixie, you said you're
going to acquire eight feet?
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: From Avenue O to Old Dixie in the initial area -COUNCILPERSON LOWE: Oh, this is south?
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EMILIO FERNANDEZ: In the south side.
COUNCILPERSON LOWE: It's south.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: This is -- this -- this -COUNCILPERSON LOWE: Right.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: -- this -- in the south initial area -- go -- go further west, Bill.
The first area which is just west of Avenue O, in that area we do not need to acquire any
right-of-way in the south.
COUNCILPERSON LOWE: Okay. Yeah, I understand that.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: We'll only be acquiring on the north. And why are we acquiring
on the north? Well, the sidewalk is actually there but it's not in the right-of-way so we do
have to acquire that area up to where the sidewalk is on the north side. Uh, in the -- in
the south side we have sufficient right-of-way here. It's not an issue until we try to
expand the road to create that left-turn lane at Old Dixie. And that's the next slide
where we get into the need to acquire land on the south, also.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Uh-huh. Uh-huh.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: To be able to accomplish the left-turn lane at Old Dixie.
COUNCILPERSON LOWE: And sidewalk, right?
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: And sidewalk, yeah.
COUNCILPERSON LOWE: 'Cause there's no sidewalk right now.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: Sidewalk will be provided throughout. The only location in the
whole plans that's there today that we do not have sidewalk is on the south side east of
Old Dixie as I mentioned before.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Right.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: Everything else, sidewalk on both sides.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Right.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Any further questions?
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: And -- uh, yes, ma'am.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Okay. Sure, Miss Davis.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: And in that particular area, I believe is Silver Beach,
there's a bus stop there. Am I correct?
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CITY MANAGER JONES: Uh-huh. Uh-huh.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Will you make some kind of -- somewhere to put a -- put a
seat for the bus stop?
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: Well, that's -- that's normally the -COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: I know. But it's County -- yeah.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: -- we get them to come -- no, we normally do not -- that's Palm
Tran now.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: I know. I know.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: They will come in and they -- they normally go -- that you may
request of them and if there is space in the right-of-way, we do allow them. But it's done
by Palm Tran.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Yeah. Yeah. Right now there's just -- they're just standing
in the bushes.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Just standing at -- uh-huh.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: There's a stop sign there. I looked at -COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Yeah.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: -- I looked at that as coming -COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Yeah.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: -- just as you turn in Congress on the south side there's a bus
stop right there.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Right.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: I was looking at that today.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Yeah. But at Old Dixie and Silver Beach -EMILIO FERNANDEZ: On Old Dixie you have the same situation, yes.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: -- there's just a -- a -- yeah. Okay. Thank you.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Any other further questions? We do have one comment
card. Mr. Ward on item number 1.
EMILIO FERNANDEZ: I have to (inaudible). I think I know this guy.
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CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: He's our -UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: I'm sure you do.
GERALD WARD: Good evening.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Good evening, Mr. Ward.
GERALD WARD: Gerald Ward, 2135 Broadway. I would tell you that Silver Beach
Road has been a priority on our comprehensive plan since -- for action since 1982 or
'89. I know by '89. And it is a routine board discussion item by the Planning & Zoning
Board. Mr. Wigham lives up off Avenue S in the near vicinity. And, uh, you don't see
any Seadek people here tonight, which is -- is one more case of how we have not
planned well since '96.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Oh, just the directors. That's (inaudible).
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Director, you know.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: She doesn't count.
GERALD WARD: Where is she?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: She's back in the back back. (Inaudible).
GERALD WARD: Oh, she's in the back. Okay. But the -- the whole point is that we
need to send this to the Planning & Zoning Board as your action tonight so that a
number of people who have been involved in this area get involved further.
I have about a half a dozen issues. The handout didn't have a lot of cross-sections or
any cross-sections in it, and the PowerPoint did start to say yes, there are sections with
-- with curb and gutter and so forth. But we really knew -- need to go back and -- and
see that the -- they are providing in the reconstruction of the frontage road, for instance,
and some of the other areas, a better cross-section.
The roundabout is certainly going to be an issue at the Planning Board. It's been
discussed. It came out that, uh, people were understanding but never got any plans.
You need to have the traffic counts, the crash histories, all for that intersection to see
whether one of the suggested alternatives might be better.
It is, you know -- Emilio talked about the bridge to nowhere roundabout on the east side
of 95 at Investment Lane. But you need to go try that. And that is, as you said, a
commercial industrial area.
Stormwater pond. I -- I am amazed to back it up against the conservation area to the
east, and I really -- he -- Emilio talked about that they looked at a joint-use pond. But
there's no reason why you can't force the lower-level County government into a jointuse park -- plan with the pond being used by the owner at the corner, the -- I think the
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armory's talked about, the private property owner and the -- the County. All three
should start to share in, and it will become a much better looking detention [sic] pond.
We went through additional lanes all through the '80s and '90s and all of a sudden it
disappears. So you need to -- to ask for the transportation. Go back on the street
lights. Congress has some street lights. Again, to close, it needs to go to Planning
Boar and Emilio, as he exuded, he does know the area. It's not like getting DOT up
here where they -- they -- they don't have a response back to you. When he talked
about the church at the southwest corner of Silver Beach and Old Dixie, he knew what
was there. So he is willing to -- to make some changes. And you understand, though,
the County is a bureaucratic operation with a committee that supposedly is the person
to point to instead of warm bodies. So we need more effort out of Terrence, our new
City engineer. He's no longer working for a lower-level government. He's at the top.
So he needs to put his thoughts into it and make sure each of you and the Planning
Board comments get back.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Thank you so much, Mr. Ward. Now we'll move on to -any further discussion? Okay. Well, you've got our comments and -COUNCILPERSON PARDO: The roundabout.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: I'm sorry?
COUNCILPERSON PARDO: Yeah, it's the roundabout.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: The roundabout, yes.
COUNCILPERSON PARDO: My issue is that roundabout.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Yes, yes. Yes. Okay. We'll get into Discussion and
Deliberation by Council. However, I did ask two persons to come today because they
want to bring before the board some proposals. And I'm going to call first Terri Mitchell.
Is that okay? Okay. I just want to -- okay. Miss Mitchell, if you would please come
forward. And she has provided each one of you with a copy of what it is that she wants
us to -COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: I don't have anything.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: -- consider.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: I don't have anything.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: I -- I just really got my copy today. But I understand that
Miss Mitchell did bring in -- it's Life Span of Palm Beach County.
TERRI MITCHELL: Yes. The copies were dropped off yesterday at the front office. I
know that I did talk to several people and they just received theirs a few minutes ago. If
you didn't get one, I will provide you with another one.
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COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Well, we'll listen. I'll listen. I don't have anything.
TERRI MITCHELL: Okay.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Did you? Well, I had invited her to come so I'm not gonna,
you know, not listen. We can always listen. We're not -- it's not here for us to make a
decision. So she's asked to be on the agenda for February the 6th. That letter was -TERRI MITCHELL: Good afternoon, Madam Chair, City Council Members. My name
is Terri Mitchell and I am the executive director of Life Span. I have submitted
informational packets to all the council members and to the appropriate staff requesting
the activation of the organization's second term of our organization's lease agreement.
We're requesting the activation in order that we may continue to serve the children and
the families of the community with additional services. We are hoping to provide on our
site in addition to the child care, senior services and youth services. Life Span has
diligently served the children and families of Riviera Beach for nearly 20 years.
The organization contributes to Riviera Beach's community by providing 20 to 25 fulltime jobs each year. In addition, we reinvest almost 65,000 back into the local
community and provide scholarships to needy families in the area to a tune of 15,000.
Life Span remains committed to the project which it started in 2001. I stand committed
to the project which I started in 2001.
Thus, I am respectfully requesting that this matter be placed on the agenda to be heard
and voted upon by the members of the City Council of Riviera Beach at the regular
scheduled meeting on February 6th, 2013. If you have any additional questions, I will be
free to answer them or provide you with any additional information. Thank you.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Madam Chair?
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Yes, Miss Davis?
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Miss Mitchell, I understand you're -- and I think I had a
copy of it a few months ago when you had contacted me. But your lease is five -- for -per five years?
TERRI MITCHELL: No.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Or it's 10 years?
TERRI MITCHELL: No. Our lease agreement is three blocks of 20.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Three blocks of 20 years?
TERRI MITCHELL: Yes.
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TERRI MITCHELL: Sixty total.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: -- the two -- okay. Huh? I'm talking about your old east -TERRI MITCHELL: We -- 60 -- yes.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: -- the one that you're in right now?
TERRI MITCHELL: The only one. Yes. The only one we have ever had. It's -- it's 60
years.
CITY MANAGER JONES: It's 20 years with two 20-year -COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Remaining?
CITY MANAGER JONES: -- renewal options.
TERRI MITCHELL: We have -COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: So right now you're in -- you're -- you're in the first 20
years?
TERRI MITCHELL: We're in year -- we're in year 18.
CITY MANAGER JONES: Of the first -TERRI MITCHELL: Of the first 20.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Okay. So you're 18. Why are you putting -- wanting to put
it on the agenda now?
TERRI MITCHELL: Because we would like to move forward with -COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Oh, okay.
TERRI MITCHELL: -- with expansion of the project and construction of new facilities on
our site.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Okay.
TERRI MITCHELL: And with an expiring lease agreement, we are hindered to -- we
are hindered in drawing down dollars and funds. With a new lease agreement, the
County would probably open its doors and other funders would welcome us as they did
the first time when we built the child care facility. We raised all of the money to build the
facility. We wrote grants. We had -- we act -- we solicited dollars from funders and we
had the help of Fidelity Federal. We're hoping to go back to those funders and say, We
did a beautiful job the first time.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: So what -- okay. So what is the lease payment that you
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pay to the City?
TERRI MITCHELL: Right now we pay a dollar a year the -- for the 20 years. We also -we also -- we also provide the children and the families in the community with a large
amount of scholarships.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Okay. I -- I get it. Thank you.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: So what you're saying, Miss Mitchell, is that -- looking at
your expansion -TERRI MITCHELL: Uh-huh.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: -- that persons to whom you are approaching would look at
you more favorably if they knew, in fact, that you would be staying where you are -TERRI MITCHELL: Yes. We've already began to approach -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: -- in the City -TERRI MITCHELL: Pardon me. I'm sorry.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: I'm just -TERRI MITCHELL: We've already began to approach funders. And the first thing out
of the funders is, You -- you have an expiring lease agreement. We're not really
interested in getting into that. We need the stability of a strong new lease as we had the
first time around when we built the child care facility. When we walked in the doors with
a lease in hand and -- and we walked in the doors with other vendors such -- I mean,
other contributors such as the Children's Services Council -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Uh-huh.
TERRI MITCHELL: -- the Quantum Foundation, when we walk through the doors with
that kind of power, we were welcomed, and that's how we built for the children of Riviera
Beach the facility that we currently have. We want to simply do nothing but do this
again for our youth and for our seniors. That project is not finished. When I started that
project, I made a commitment. I made a commitment to bringing certain service to one
centralized location. And I want to finish what I started. Unlike other people who have
come into the City, I am dedicated to this City. I am a native and I want to finish this
project.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS:
comments?

Are there any further questions?

Miss Jones, your

CITY MANAGER JONES: No, what we, um -- the only thing I wanted to tell Miss
Mitchell is that in order for us to put an item on the agenda, we must have a new lease,
'cause it -- Council will not vote without reading a new lease. So your attorney and
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Legal -- our City attorney need to be getting together with a proposed lease to place on
the agenda for consideration. And our agenda goes out next Friday, a week from
Friday.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: That's good advice.
TERRI MITCHELL: Okay.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: And this is what I -- this is what Miss Mitchell desired to
have is she's sharing with us what she desires to do. And she also wants to know what
is the next step to get it done or to at least be considered. So this is what we're
imparting to you now. This is what must happen. Uh, the letter was just written to Miss
Jones on the 15th so I imagine she hadn't had a chance to respond to it. But you've
heard what she is saying that would be required?
TERRI MITCHELL: Yes. I have definitely come to you looking for a directive, and I
thank you, Miss Jones, for your directive.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Okay. Are there any other questions? All right. Thank
you so much, Miss Mitchell. Okay. We have -- yeah. There's another group that's here
to speak on the Jerk and Caribbean Festival. And they want to talk with the Council
regarding their proposal.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: You're busy today, Mr. Lewis, huh?
BRUCE LEWIS: Quite busy. Bruce Lewis, business advisor and consultant to Miss
Terri Mitchell and also the gentlemen, the principals and producers of the Jerk Fest. I
just wanted to tell you, just to give you a little bit of background briefly. Uh, this festival
has been held in the City of West Palm Beach for the last nine years.
And what -- what the -- what the applicants are wishing to do in lieu of not being
desirably accepted and really actually penalized for the success, where they hold this
festival downtown is in the Meyer Amphitheater. The Meyer Amphitheater can only hold
up to 5,000 people.
And so what the City has done here recently in the last month and a half is to impose
crowd control types of sanctions on this very successful event, and in essence really
has sent the message that if you're -- if your event is too successful, you'll be penalized.
And so I gave them the advice and direction to come to the City of Riviera Beach
because I think it's an excellent event. And as chairman of the Downtown Development
Authority, in all of this nine years that this festival has taken place, there has not been
one citation, one instance of any kind of crime. Every year after the festival is over,
they're required to clean up within a 24-hour period of time. It's always been done.
There are no compliance issues. I just believe that if you're not wanted someplace,
then you don't have to -- to stay.
And I think that the next place of -- of a great festival like this would be the great
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City of West Palm Beach. And with that I want to introduce these -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Riviera Beach. Riviera Beach.
COUNCILPERSON PARDO: We're Riviera Beach.
BRUCE LEWIS: Riviera Beach. Sorry.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Madam Chair?
BRUCE LEWIS: So -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Yes, sir?
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Um, what -- what was the -- is there an issue? Did you
not, like, apply for a permit? Was there something that was going on that you needed to
be heard by the board? Is -- is there -- is there an issue going on that we're not
familiar? Is there a certain place you wanted to be that you couldn't get a permit or -BRUCE LEWIS: Yeah.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: -- I'm -- I'm just trying to figure out -- 'cause I mean, this
is something simple. You can go and apply for the permit and get going.
BRUCE LEWIS: Well, it's -COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: I'm just try -- I'm trying to just figure out what's the -what's the board action here, what needs to happen here?
BRUCE LEWIS: Actually -- actually, the real issue, Commissioner, if I will, is that they
have outgrown the specified site. And so in the City's infinite wisdom, community
events to be particular, the department that issues the permits, as I stated earlier, no
issues with compliance. And that means -COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: I'm saying for us. I'm saying what -- what are you
actually requesting from the City of Riviera Beach?
BRUCE LEWIS: We're actually requesting from the City of Riviera Beach to consider
this festival in your city.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Okay. And what comes -- I'm -- I'm missing something,
because if -- when individuals want to have an event, they apply for a permit and they
have their event. I'm -- I'm -- I'm missing what you actually need from the -- this board.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: From the board.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: What do you -- what action do you actually need from
this board?
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BRUCE LEWIS: Well, we're looking for an expedited kind of situation but we will go
through all of the, you know -- the processes and procedures that are required. They
have a time-sensitive issue with regards to having some kind of location for them to do
their festival within a three-week period of time. So for -- mainly for marketing and
promotional purposes -- and I'll turn it over to Mr. Damian to -- to talk to you about it.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: And I had asked them to come and just share with us what
they would like to do here in our city. Right now we don't really have any great -COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Could -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Yes?
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Oh, I'm sorry.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: -- if we had something like this -- I think about the success
of Lake Park and their Seafood Festival.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Uh-huh.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: And we really don't have any activity now going on in our
city that brings families together, provide entertainment. And if, in fact, where West
Palm Beach -- they've outgrown themselves there, you know, come look to the City. So
it's just -- really just an announcement. It's an interest, and so I invited them to come.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Madam Chair, I have a question.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Yes.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: So where and when are you talking about having this
festival?
DAMIAN TAYLOR: Well, good -BRUCE LEWIS: State your name.
DAMIAN TAYLOR: -- good evening, everyone. My name is Damian Taylor. I'm one of
the organizers for the Jerk Festival. Um, this event is held on Memorial Day from the
beginning and we basically created this event to, you know, keep people in Palm Beach
County.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Okay. But where -- where and when?
DAMIAN TAYLOR: Well -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: It's Memorial weekend.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Oh, Memorial Day weekend?
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DAMIAN TAYLOR: Yeah. Yeah. Right.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: It would be that -COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: In May? Where -- where -- where would you -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: -- Saturday.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: -- where are you talking about having it in the City of
Riviera?
DAMIAN TAYLOR: Well, my -- our first option, you know, that we would be requesting
is to have it on the beach where they had, like, the Jazz Festival. And the second one
would be right across from the Tate's Gym at the amphitheater.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Dan Calloway Park is what you mentioned.
DAMIAN TAYLOR: Correct.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Yes.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Uh-huh. And how -- is it a one-day event or -DAMIAN TAYLOR: Yes, it is. It's a one-day -COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: A one-day?
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: It's a one-day.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Okay. And I'll -- I'll just say this out loud.
interested in any cost associated with the City having to pay anything.

I'm not

CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Well, that -- that was made clear to them. We don't have
no money.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS:
personally. At all.

So I -- I have to put that on the record just for me

COUNCILPERSON PARDO: (Inaudible) Public Works (inaudible).
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: But they would have to come up with -COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: You know, so -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: -- all of the -- the -- the fees.
COUNCILPERSON PARDO: (Inaudible), right.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: -- whatever expenses there are that come with it -CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP
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COUNCILPERSON PARDO: Police.
CITY MANAGER JONES: Public Works, police -- police.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Uh-huh. But we just wanna let you know that there would
be certain costs -COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: -- police, fire.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS:
conversation.

-- involved and, you know, folks, we're just having a

COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Yeah.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: You know, nothing is decided here.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: I'm just letting -- uh-huh.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: You know, I just feel like our city just -- when people come
to us, we say that we're the best city to live, work, learn and do something, play. You
know? So when people come, let's listen and encourage.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Uh-huh.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: You know, do what we can to make things happen. My
God, we're supposed to be a friendly city.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Madam -- Madam Chair? I just wanted to -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: So -COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: -- make sure that, you know -- just the -- the proper
chain was followed. And if there was a problem, then I thought that that's maybe why
they were here.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Oh, no. No.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: If there was something outside of our -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: No problem. No problem. No problem.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: -- something that needed to be just amended by the
board or board action. But if -- you know, if they have applied for, you know, a permit
and every -- anybody can apply for a permit, you know, and they can go through the -- if
they need something expedited, then fine. I mean, if you -- if you're trying to get that,
we have an expedited permitting policy that's in place. I just wanted to know exactly
what you wanted, you know, from the board so I can, you know, have my mind
(inaudible).
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CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: That -- that -- that we would be excited about it. That we
would, like, wanna have it.
DAMIAN TAYLOR: Yeah. Just to let you guys know that (inaudible) -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: You know, that we would be in favor of it. You know, sure,
they could go through the routine of all that but again, we want people to be excited. If
you got an idea, you think it'll work in our city, bring it forward. You know? That -- that's
my position.
DAMIAN TAYLOR: I mean, again, there's one way I know that the City could benefit in
terms of parking, 'cause we're expecting somewhere between 8 to 12,000 people
attending the event.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Oh.
DAMIAN TAYLOR: So we could, you know, discuss how we could share, you know,
the cost of parking.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: (Inaudible).
DAMIAN TAYLOR: So -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Yeah.
DAMIAN TAYLOR: -- it would be beneficial to, you know, both of us.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Well, we would have to look at all the logistics, you know,
and sit at the table with whomever you need to sit at the -- the table and just -- just see if
we can't make it happen. See if we can't make it happen. All right. Mr. -BRUCE LEWIS: I appreciate the time and the consideration. They have yet to go
through the process of the permit applications, but this is just merely an opportunity to
come forward and let you know really as an FYI.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Right.
BRUCE LEWIS: They intend to go through the process and -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Right.
BRUCE LEWIS: -- we can deal with the logistics and the details. But the most
important thing is, is that they're interested in doing something in this great city. There
are some revenue-generation opportunities for the City. So it wouldn't cost the City
anything. As a matter of fact, you could raise some money from this festival. So -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: And -- and we would hope that the local vendors here -BRUCE LEWIS: -- I want to make that clear.
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CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: -- would have an opportunity to come out.
BRUCE LEWIS: Absolutely.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: You know, it's a thing of -- a little bit of economic benefit
here for the -BRUCE LEWIS: That's right.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: -- people in Riviera Beach. So -BRUCE LEWIS: That's right.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: All right. Well, I really thank you guys so much -BRUCE LEWIS: Thank you.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: -- for coming and doing that presentation. All right. We
have Miss Brown, Miss Bessie Brown.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: She left.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Gentlemen -- I'm sorry, Miss -- Madam Chair, if you can
just stay for a second after the meeting, I'd like to talk to you. Yes. Just after.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Okay. Well, that's it under Comments. Now my Legal.
CITY ATTORNEY RYAN: Thank you, Madam Chair. I'm asking the Council to indulge
me for a few moments as I discuss a little bit about the Supreme Court case yesterday,
Lozman versus City of Riviera Beach.
I, um, e-mailed the Council the decision yesterday without an analysis because we'd
just gotten it and I wanted to make sure that you got it yourself. And today -- yesterday
and today I started writing a memo to the Council. But there were a lot of interruptions
and I've gotten a lot of phone calls and people visiting.
There are all kinds of rumors out there. And as I started writing the memo to the
Council, which was more of a generic memo that I like to write, I ended up converting
the document into bullet points and some specific facts. And I wanted to share those
with the Council. I'm actually going to read them because -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Hold just one minute. Let me just make sure -- because it
is for the benefit of our Council Members. Is Mr. Lowe still in the building?
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: He's gone, I guess.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Okay. I just want to give you the -CITY ATTORNEY RYAN: I appreciate that.
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CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: -- respect of -CITY ATTORNEY RYAN: Well, I can still do a memorandum, as well -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: -- everyone. So -CITY ATTORNEY RYAN: -- Madam Chair.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Okay.
CITY ATTORNEY RYAN: And of course, if you have any questions, I'm going to try to
quickly go through this. I'm free to answer any questions about the case. The -- it is not
a cumbersome opinion so the Council shouldn't have any problem getting through it.
Okay. This is what I've written. "I will not reiterate the facts of the case as they are
voluminous, but they are well-known by me, you and the public. However, it is
important to remember these facts. The City followed the law when it decided to arrest
Mr. Lozman's vessel. Mr. Lozman was the only one of two dozen vessels that refused
to get insurance, refused to pay outstanding fees, and admitted to violating basic rules
such as throwing raw sewage into the marina in violation of state and federal laws.
"The state of the law at the time -- the state of the law at the time about vessels in the
11th Circuit was very clear and well established, which was to put it very generally, that if
it floats then it's a boat and thus subject to admiralty jurisdiction. That is the law that the
City followed when it decided to arrest Mr. Lozman's vessel.
"The Federal District Court and the 11th Circuit Court of Appeals agreed with everything
the City did and ruled in our favor. We had an affirmative ruling from the District Court
in one year and another affirmative ruling from the 11th Circuit Court of Appeals. The
City offered to give Mr. Lozman his floating home back so long as he did not try to bring
it back to the City." That is a fact that I think a lot of people lose. We offered to give the
boat back to him.
"Mr. Lozman forced us to bid against our credit." The City never actually paid any
money. "The bids never topped $4,100 for the vessel. The City was faced with a
choice: resell the vessel, which we actually tried to do unsuccessfully; or store the
vessel indefinitely, which would have cost the City hundreds of thousands of dollars.
"Or we could destroy the vessel. The cheapest and most economical thing for the City
to do was to destroy the vessel. Again, Mr. Lozman had an opportunity to take the
vessel back. He didn't want it. And it's also important to note that the Court appointed a
surveyor to appraise the value of the vessel. The vessel was appraised at between
5,000 and $7,500." I know that you have read something different. I know that, um,
there have been -- I've heard radio interviews in addition to having things in writing. But
that vessel was valued at 5,000 to $7,500. And I have to -- to reiterate that because I
have been hearing $50,000 and $17,000 and $350,000. That's a fact. And I have the
survey to prove it.
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"Mr. Lozman petitioned, as was his right, to the United States Supreme Court to hear
his case, because he disagreed with the 11th Circuit's -- Circuit's interpretation of what is
a vessel. The City at that point had no choice but to defend. We were not only
defending our position, we were defending the 11th Circuit in which we reside. We were
defending their position, as well.
"The Supreme Court decided to hear the case and the City was sought out. We were
very lucky, very fortunate to have one of the best appellate attorneys in the country
volunteer to represent the City on a pro bono basis." Pro bono means for free. "David
Frederick --" you can go online, look him up -- "he is absolutely one of the top
Washington, D.C. attorneys in the country and we were very lucky to have him. We did
continue to pay for representation of our admiralty attorneys who were invaluable and
instrumental in framing our arguments. And I know there are some who've asked for
fees and we will definitely provide those. But the bulk of our representation came at no
cost to the City.
"The Supreme Court has decided that the 11th Circuit's legal -- legal standard is too
broad. When you read the case, the Court says that the 11th Circuit's standard --" not
the City of Riviera Beach's standard. Not something that we came up with here, but the
Court that is directly under the Supreme Court, the -- "the Supreme Court has said that
their standard of if it floats is a boat is too broad, and the Supreme Court has moved to
a reasonable observer standard." Reasonable observer. I have never heard of that
before.
And why? Because it does not exist. The Supreme Court is the first court to come up
with this standard. It has never been used anywhere. It was not articulated by Mr.
Lozman. It was not articulated by the solicitor general, and it was not articulated by our
side. This was the Supreme Court's new creature.
It has not been tested, but I promise you that it will be in the -- in the coming years.
"The Supreme Court did not say that the City of Riviera Beach did anything wrong," and
we did not. "It has just made a decision that it wants the United States to abide by a
different standard." Again, not just Riviera Beach.
"This City Council should be confident that it did the right thing in arresting Mr. Lozman's
vessel. And as Justice Kennedy said at oral argument, 'The City was right in mercifully
destroying the vessel.' Justice Kennedy stated, 'The City mercifully destroyed the
vessel.' Mr. Lozman refused to pay his bills. He refused to abide by marina rules. He
refused to abide by federal rules." Everybody knows you don't dump raw sewage. "But
he refused to abide by the laws and the City was not only within its right, it had to do
what it did." If you didn't do it then, he'd still be here doing the same thing. There might
be others here doing the same thing. And we would have, you know -- we would have
to make a decision about our marina. I -- I don't believe that we would be spending the
money that we're spending to improve our marina right now.
"At this point the City knows that it's liable for the court costs of $300 and the print -printing costs at the Supreme Court. The rest remains to be seen. But my experts are
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telling me -- and I have no reason not to believe them -- that there is no basis for
payment of any attorneys' fees to Mr. Lozman." Mr. Lozman has been all over the
media saying that he is going to sue the City for $350,000, $50,000. We know that
anybody can go to the courthouse and file lawsuits. Mr. Lozman has done it before. I
would not be surprised if he does it again.
But what I'm telling you is that there is no case law or statutory, um, basis for Mr.
Lozman to receive the monies that he is discussing all over the world. The Supreme
Court's opinion does not talk about paying his fees. "As it relates to the City's marina,
the Supreme Court case makes it clear that there are some structures that were
traditionally considered vessels and they're no longer considered vessels. The City has
to revisit its ordinances and it's dockage agreements." We don't discuss that. We
wouldn't have discussed it.
There's no marina in this country that would have discussed it. But they are all
scrambling. And the admiralty lawyers are going to make a lot of money right now
because they have got to figure out who they want to let in and whether or not they want
to let them in at all. Because as it stands, you will not be able to remove a derelict
vessel in the fashion that we have done throughout the entire history of the United
States. This has never happened.
And it's not the City of Riviera Beach's fault. We did what we were supposed to do. We
went up to the Supreme Court. We made our case and the -- the justices made a
decision in the 7-2 decision. We should be proud of doing what we did. And I hope that
you will -- you just stay strong. Because the calls are coming. And people, you know -rumors get started and you believe what you see.
I'm going to be free to talk to the -- the newspaper, at public events if you need me to.
But yesterday I received the opinion five minutes before the news started calling, before
the Palm Beach Post called. We had, um, The Wall Street Journal calling.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Yeah, but they don't -- they don't do any reporting here.
CITY MANAGER JONES: No good stuff.
CITY ATTORNEY RYAN: That's correct. Right.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Uh-huh.
CITY ATTORNEY RYAN: Right. And the news stations and we hadn't even read the
opinion. We needed an opportunity to digest it. And, um, we're still working on it. And
I've -- I've already spoken with Ed Legue about making some changes. We want to
make sure that our marina remains safe and clean. That is the most important thing.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Uh-huh. Uh-huh.
CITY ATTORNEY RYAN: So I just wanted to make my statement. And I've hit all of
my major points. Thank you, Madam Chair.
CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP

JANUARY 16, 2013

56

CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Thank you so much.
CITY ATTORNEY RYAN: I appreciate it.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: You're quite welcome, Miss Ryan.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Madam Chair?
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Yes, Miss Davis.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Can I -- I have a question. So the decision rule -- it's not a
vessel so is it just a -- is -- is it a home or a floating structure or -- I mean, does it have
to pay taxes or go by building codes or -CITY ATTORNEY RYAN: I've -- I've had -COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: -- what?
CITY ATTORNEY RYAN: -- I've had several questions about whether or not he should
have paid taxes or, you know, moving forward, if you allow one of these vessels, do
they have to pay taxes? We frankly don't know the answer to that. We really don't.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Uh-huh.
CITY ATTORNEY RYAN: This is going to be -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: It's all so new right now.
CITY ATTORNEY RYAN:
legislature --

-- one of the things that unfolds.

And I think that our

COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Well, at one time he did file a homestead.
CITY ATTORNEY RYAN: -- may get involved. He did file homestead. Right.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Yeah. Okay. I -CITY ATTORNEY RYAN: That is correct.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: -- was just curious.
CITY ATTORNEY RYAN: It will be interesting. Anything else?
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Anything else from the board? Miss Jones?
CITY MANAGER JONES: And for the benefit of our residents, in order for them to hear
what Miss Ryan has just explained, we're going to take her response and her answers
and separate it out from the workshop.

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP

JANUARY 16, 2013

57

COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Okay.
CITY MANAGER JONES: And just run it over and over and over.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Thank you.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: So that -CITY MANAGER JONES: So people do not have to listen to the whole workshop -COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Oh, wow.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Excellent.
CITY MANAGER JONES: -- but they can get the benefit of that answer.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Excellent idea.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Excellent. Excellent.
CITY ATTORNEY RYAN: Thank you.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: All right. If there's no further discussion then -COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Motion to adjourn.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Got it. Thank you.
(CONCLUSION OF WORKSHOP)
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CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Okay. We need everyone to have a seat and let's get
ready to start the meeting, please. Good evening, ladies and gentlemen, and welcome
to the City Council Workshop. I would ask that you would silence your cell phones,
please. Is everyone -- do we have Legal here? Mr. Thomas is en route.
All right. Madam Clerk, we'd like to call to order. By the way, if anyone desires to speak
on this agenda item, I would need to have a card before the discussion begins, please.
Okay. Let's have the roll call, please.
DEPUTY CITY CLERK ANTHONY:
Brooks?

Mayor Thomas Masters?

Chairperson Billie

CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Present.
DEPUTY CITY CLERK ANTHONY: Chair Pro-Tem Dawn Pardo?
CHAIR PRO-TEM PARDO: Present.
DEPUTY CITY CLERK ANTHONY: Councilperson Cedrick Thomas? Councilperson
Judy Davis?
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Here.
DEPUTY CITY CLERK ANTHONY: Councilperson Shelby Lowe?
COUNCILPERSON LOWE: Here.
DEPUTY CITY CLERK ANTHONY: City Manager Ruth Jones?
CITY MANAGER JONES: Present.
DEPUTY CITY CLERK ANTHONY: Deputy City Clerk Claudene Anthony is present.
City Attorney Pamala Ryan?
CITY ATTORNEY RYAN: Here.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Will everyone please stand for the invocation which will be
a moment of silence and the Pledge of Allegiance led by Miss Davis.

COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Let's do the Pledge. (Everyone stood for a Moment of
Silence with the Pledge of Allegiance being led by Councilperson Davis).
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Do we have any additions, deletions, or substitutions, Miss
Jones or Mr. Brown?
CITY MANAGER JONES: No, Madam Chair.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: If there be none, then we will get to our agenda item. And
-COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Move approval.
DEPUTY CITY CLERK ANTHONY: No approvals on -CHAIR PRO-TEM PARDO: Second.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: We don't -COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Oh, I'm sorry.
DEPUTY CITY CLERK ANTHONY: -- workshops.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: These are workshops. So we'll just -COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: I'm sorry.
CHAIR PRO-TEM PARDO: Okay. We're not voting.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: We're not voting. Correct.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Right.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: All excited about this moment. So I will, um -- please just
read what it is that we're doing. Well, it's an update on notice provided to Viking's
Developers, LLC, to commence negotiations for the development of certain project
elements including approval of a revised marina district master development plan. And
at this time I will turn it over to the City and the CRA Executive Director and City
Manager.
CITY MANAGER JONES: Thank you, Madam Chair. To the Board/Council, staff and
to the public, um, first of all let me say thank you to each of you that had the opportunity
to attend the opening for our North Marina, the docks and the bulkhead renovations
there. We had a wonderful time and it is just the beginning of what is getting ready to
happen at the marina and in the City of Riviera Beach.
Construction on the docks started last year and we were able to get through the
completion of the first phase of the docks by December of 2012. Now we have plans to
move to the other ones. You've seen what we could do with the water, so now we're
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here tonight to share a plan with you for the development of the uplands, what you
might want to call from shore to Broadway is the area that we will be concentrating on
tonight.
We are ready to present a plan that we believe will exceed your expectations. If you will
recall in November of 2011, the master developer Viking came to us with a new partner.
At that time we had a conceptual site plan that was presented in 2010. That site plan
included not only what we were to do with -- on the marina with the water, but also with
the uplands and there was an arrangement at that point with Rybovich. But the master
plan also contained other public and private elements.
The City -- the City, the CRA and Viking, up under your direction, we were able to slow
down the timetable a bit from the conceptual plans that you had seen in the past in
order to allow the partners that Viking had brought alongside them to be able to look at
the proposed concept plan and to be able to make recommendations to us and react to
that plan.
January of 2013 was when they were to submit to us the concept plan for the Marina
District South. And I am pleased tonight to introduce Robert Healey, Jr. He comes to
us from Viking. He will then introduce the members of his team from Live Work Learn
and Play, and they will unveil for you this evening a concept plan that I believe you all
will be pleased with.
Viking is one of our major partners in our marina development. They've been a
business here in Riviera Beach since 2002. They employ 125 employees. They're
founder and the prime benefactor to the Riviera Beach Maritime Academy. They're also
involved in other ventures outside of the State of Florida.
And they have invested more than $50 million in the marina area in order to help us and
to become a partner in the development of the marina district and the Broadway
corridor. So without further ado, I would like to introduce Robert Healey, Jr. from Viking
Properties, and he will then introduce the remainder of his team and his presenters.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: And let me just pause for a minute for the record to show
that Commissioner, um -COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Thomas.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: -- Thomas is here. Okay, Mr. Healey.
ROBERT HEALEY: Thank you. First off I want to thank the community, as well as the
board.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Microphone.
ROBERT HEALEY: Sorry. First off I want to thank the community as well as the board
for allowing us to present this today.
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I'm very proud to stand up here. I'm proud for a couple of reasons. I've been coming
down here for 12 years as a -- as a young man and then involved in our businesses.
But the most proud moment of the 12 years that I've come down here has been in the
last couple of months. I've watched Viking assemble what I think is a dynamite team
and I hope you'll agree with me after looking at the plan with Live Work Learn and Play
and Elkus Manfredi.
Um, I've watched them work with the CRA and I've been extremely proud to see how
they've worked together. We haven't always agreed. We haven't always seen eye to
eye. But at the end of the day we always saw eye to eye. I was proud to be a
corporate citizen when we met with a lot of the stakeholders of the City and got their
thoughts on what it is we were doing.
So I'm extremely proud to stand in front of you today and show you the -- the fruits of
our work and extremely thankful for you for giving us the time to get all this done. So
without further ado I'd like to introduce you to Richard Martz. He comes with Live Work
Learn and Play out of Montreal, and Oscar Mertz from Elkus Manfredi out of Boston.
RICHARD MARTZ: Thank you very much, Bob. Commissioners, members of the
Board, members of the community. Very similarly, I'm going to give you all a set of
thanks, as well. We first met the Riviera Beach community about a year and a half ago.
And we were impressed by what we saw here. And we made a commitment to Viking
that it ask us to take a look at the marina district again and offer our thoughts as to what
we felt the potential for this community and this redevelopment effort could be.
We know this community has waited a long time. There have been a lot of plans that
have come and gone. And people are ready to get moving. And given that sense of
urgency, um, we're very thankful to have been offered the time to be thoughtful about
how this redevelopment needs to move forward in a new economy and a new market
and to set the framework up for this project to truly evolve in the community over the
course of the next many years.
I think one thing that we've been talking about since day one is that we really felt that
there was an incredible economic potential here in Riviera Beach that was being
untapped. And we really feel that the plan that we're going to present today has truly
tapped into those strengths that exist today and is translating that into a bolder but
achievable vision for what the redevelopment effort can be, not just for the marina
district, but for the broader city overall. So thank you for your time today.
I want to talk a little bit about collaboration and vision, because over the last year or so,
we have, as Bob alluded to and as Ruth has alluded to, as well -- we've been involved
in a very, very collaborative process with the community. We've had members of the
board visit us in Montreal. We've met with community groups. We've met with the
operators at the marina on several occasions. We've met with members of the City,
different advisory and community groups.
It's exceptionally important to us that any plan that we put forward is something that truly
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reflects the desires and the needs of every place and every community that we're
working with. And we truly do feel that we have done a service in that regard and done
our job well in terms of making sure that the plan has been looked at and opined on,
and we've gotten feedback on all the critical elements of what's there from many
different members of the community along the way to ensure that it really makes sense
and it's a plan that people buy into. And I think we're exceptionally proud and we're
happy that we've arrived at this place where we are today.
Let's talk a little bit about vision. As we've talked to the community we've heard a lot of
words, a lot of descriptions. And the language that you use in describing a place and
thinking about a place is exceptionally important, because it ensures that you're thinking
about it in the same way and that you have the same idea for the outcome that you're
trying to achieve.
Here are some of the words and some of the things that we've heard consistently in our
discussions: Turning this into a vibrant place; full of recreation; that it's inclusive; that
it's accessible; that it's local and regional, which are both going to be critical to its
success. And its strengths comes from its -- a buy-in and the way that the local
community feels ownership of this community and this redevelopment project.
We talked about it being whimsical, about a world-class marina, about dockside dining
leveraging the waterfront, making it a pedestrian environment. It's really reminiscent of
old Florida, a place that gives you a hug and feels like home. That it's eclectic, diverse.
That it's a gateway to the region, a gateway to international waters, and a gateway to
many other things and the future success of this city.
That it's authentic and feels that way and that it's true to the nature of this community.
That it celebrates the working waterfront and the marina industry that are so critical and
important parts of the history and future of this area. That it becomes truly a regional
destination. But it's a casual place where everyone feels at home. That it'll be full of
vibrancy and life, events and festivities.
When we talk about principles, I'm going to talk to you about six things that we think
really reflect the larger considerations that we've heard consistently from the board,
from members of the community and stakeholders at the regional and local level.
Things that really encompass the bedrock and foundation of our thinking about the plan
and has informed the development program in ideas and uses and experiences that we
have programmed into your master plan.
We've heard from day one that for this project to be successful, it needs to have
community ownership. It needs to have the public spaces and the programs and the
private spaces for the community to celebrate its identity, for events to take place, for it
to have programs and educational facilities, for arts and culture to flourish. All of those
things. Community gathering. And you'll find that those elements are very much
incorporated into our plan.
We've also heard that this is a marina first and that the operations of this marina need to
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be paramount and need to ensure that we're truly turning this into the best boaters'
destination on the intracoastal waterway, which it truly has the potential to be.
Arts, culture and entertainment are the foundation of community identity, and ensuring
this is a place that people feel is reflective of that community and a place where people
can come and have fun and enjoy themselves is a critical component of what's going to
make this place successful and make it into a destination for the broader region.
Food and culinary arts and social eating, I think are the foundation of how people
interact and spend time with one another. And they're the things that are going to bring
people to this place again and again. From the public market for Palm Beach County to
a collection of local and diverse eateries that we're going to program and develop at this
project are what's going to make it special and make people come back again and
again.
Waterfront recreation is already a critical part of the identity of this place. The dive
boats, the fishing boats, all of those things that are already important reason why many
people, hundreds of thousands of people, come to the marina district today, are an
incredible strength, and we want this project to give them a grander platform and
foundation to actually achieve an even greater potential than they've achieved today.
And we know that if this place only becomes a place where people can have some food
by the water and rent a jet ski or go diving, that we will have failed in the redevelopment
effort. This is a place that longer term needs to create employment opportunities for the
community, attract, you know, national anchors and larger industry that are actually
going to create job opportunities for the local community and turn this into a complete
place that's ultimately going to provide for all the different needs of different members of
the community.
Some of our goals. We talked about building on your strengths. And I think it's really
important to understand that this is a place that has an incredible number of strengths,
as the local community knows. You're located at the center of recreation and industry
and business. And we believe that this project can actually become a catalyst and a
lightning rod for many of these other areas and -- areas and strengths around the
project to continuously expand.
We talked about some of the key outcomes that we wanted to achieve. We've listed
them here on this board. One is maximizing connections to the waterfront, a very
important idea that has informed all of our thinking about how we plan this project.
Creating a locally authentic community gathering place. Again, local ownership, while
becoming a dynamic regional mixed-use destination. And we truly believe that its ability
to become a destination is rooted in its ability to become accepted and used and loved
by the local community, because that's going to make -- that's what's going to make it
unique and different from everything else that exists in Palm Beach County.
We know that there's an incredible amount of public investment that is being put into
this project, and we have been incredibly diligent and incredibly thoughtful about where
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we locate and how we use those public investments to create the greatest possible
impact and benefit to the private development that needs to take place at this project.
We know that beyond what happens here in the marina district, this is intended to
become an engine of revitalization for the broader city. This is not just about what
happens between Broadway and the waterfront. There is a much bigger idea at play for
the future of this city.
And we know that the Broadway corridor is a regional road and a gateway, that when I
walked in here earlier this morning -- earlier this afternoon, there have been some
comments about that. And we agree a hundred percent. There's an incredible
opportunity that you're going to see us talking about, about the potential that we see for
the Broadway corridor in this community.
So now I'm going to talk a little bit more specifically about the plan. One of the
recommendations, uh, that the community and the board heard from our organization,
LiveWorkLearnPlay, over a year ago when we first took a look at this project and this
redevelopment effort was that this is really a project that has two front doors. It's not
just one place. It's many places.
One of those front doors is the water and another one of those front doors is the
mainland and the Broadway corridor. And that those two different areas of the plan
have -- have very different appropriate uses and development and character that should
be envisioned there.
We'll talk about the waterfront village as an area that's going to be food and
entertainment and connections to the water and much more intimate and special, which
it should be, leveraging your greatest natural advantage, which is your waterfront.
The Broadway corridor is a major state road. It's got high visibility, high traffic. It is a
perfect setting for larger institutional development and anchor retail and larger-scale
development to take place there over time. And so when you look at the development
program and the way that we have looked at this master plan, you will see those
differences in development recommendations resonating in the types of development
that we're recommending, closer to the water and to front the Broadway corridor.
This is an overview of the master plan. And we're going to talk about it in much smaller
bite-size pieces 'cause it's a lot to digest. It's a very interesting and diverse place and
we're looking forward to walking you through it.
Again, when we talk about a plan, we always like to break these plans down into smaller
areas, what we're calling sub-districts. So while the marina district is a grand
neighborhood overall, there are appropriate uses and developments and experiences
that should be located in different parts of this project.
Now, this framework helps us serve a number of purposes. It helps us understand what
things should be happening where in the project, what areas of the plan have different
resonance and a different importance to the grander whole, and it helps us understand
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over the longer term how this project is going to get developed out over time and what
experiences will be happening where.
So we're going to walk you through the different parts of this project, which largely
actually reflect how we expect the project to get developed and phased over time. We
will start with Newcomb Hall and Bicentennial Park. Now, this is an area that has critical
importance to the community because it's one of the areas where some of the largest
upfront public investments are going to be made into revitalizing this area.
So let's begin with Newcomb Hall. Newcomb Hall has an incredibly prominent position
in this plan. It's at the center of the district. It's fronting Bicentennial Park. It has views
out over the waterfront, and it's going to be rebuilt and expanded into a critical anchor at
the center of this project and positioned to play a pivotal role in achieving the community
ownership and customer-service outcomes of this district.
But Newcomb Hall is not just going to be a meeting hall. This investment is going to be
turned into accommodating a diversity of uses that serve a variety of functions for the
community. And its role as a community facility will continue to remain paramount.
When we talk about the ground floor of this building, this is an area that's going to have
a lobby. It's going to have exhibit and gallery space. We've been speaking to Anita and
the Community Development Corporation and Historical Society of Palm Beach County
to talk about ways to reflect community in the art and exhibit space that exists on the
ground floor. So this building truly feels like it's part of the community and that it's very,
very local.
It will have a meeting space that fronts onto Bicentennial Park so that meetings can
open up and spill out into the park if necessary. We've programmed a visitor's center so
that people who come to the district and need information about what to do and where
to go have a central place to go to get oriented and have information.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Right there?
RICHARD MARTZ: Sure. Yeah. This is the ground floor meeting space that opens up
out to Bicentennial Park. This is Avenue C. This is 13th Street. And this is the
waterfront. Okay?
This is the lobby. A visitor's center, again, front and central on 13th Street so it's highly
visible for people that arrive in the district. And we've also programmed -- because
Newcomb Hall was so central to this project and it fronts on some major areas near the
waterfront where there are restaurants and entertainment and other retailers on the
other side of 13th Street, we've programmed the small retail space and a -- and a grand
porch where some cafe or restaurant space could continue to activate the street front
and continue its interaction and seamless integration into the project.
The upper floor of this building has a grant meeting hall which will allow it to
accommodate events of a similar size that it can today, probably about 350 or 400
people. It has smaller community spaces which can be used as meeting rooms,
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classrooms for the community boating program or other community events that need
space. And all of this will have a second-story grand porch that looks out onto
Bicentennial Park and the waterfront.
We've looked at two different options for the third floor of this building. One essentially
has using the third floor as a roof deck so people can get up and get great views of the
water and the project. And another has programmed a potential for some civic office
space so some of your city officials or CRA officials or the marina operations facility
could have needed office space within the marina district itself. And we're exploring
both of these options and it's largely going to be dependent on some of the cost
implications that determine which option that we go with ultimately over time.
This is one of the buildings that resonated a lot with some of your board members and
some members of the community as the type of understated but still grand character
that we believe this facility can reflect. And this is an image and a rendering of what it
might look like in the project as you're arriving on 13th Street, arriving at Avenue C and
see Newcomb Hall really as a -- as a very important critical architectural element
welcoming people to the waterfront and the marina district.
Bicentennial Park, again, serves a critical role as a public green space and it has a
number of components that we think are going to help make it an incredible anchor for
the project overall. It has a boardwalk that basically connects from the project through
to the 15th Street promenade, some things that could be happening along there. The
lawn, which is the large green space for large-scale gatherings and community events
that are going to be programmed regularly in the park.
Newcomb Hall today has a small beachfront that isn't -- that was highly underused. And
we feel that there's an incredible potential to enlarge that beach and truly turn it into an
active beachfront and waterfront that the community can interact with and use and that's
an important part of how we see this park playing an important role in the district.
An area that we're calling the Grove and the Promenade. This is an extension of 15th
Street, which as we'll talk about later in the plan, allows direct connections from the
Avenue E neighborhoods west of Broadway to connect directly through the marina
district and into the park. And this area that we're calling the Grove which was closer to
the north next to Viking's facility, uh, is a quieter area. It's shaded. It'll have seating,
play areas, picnic tables, and a different feel and character than the other areas of the
plan. And these all give the park the ability to service a diversity of uses and demand at
different times of day and season.
And this is a view of what it might look like, and we'll talk a little bit later on about as
you're walking along the promenade in the marina district, looking north this is
Newcomb Hall and the second-floor porch towards the park and the waterfront.
The Boardwalk and Promenade. This is a sub-district that exists right along the
waterfront and is going to be the first phase of private development that happens.
Some of the critical components of this waterfront include the new Tiki Bar, which is -CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP
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stands as an important anchor at the north end next to Bicentennial Park and next to the
beach.
It's framed here by a waterfront plaza. It will be your central gathering space here down
by the water. We're programming a 360-degree restaurant which stands at the end of
13th Street as an important visual anchor to draw people into the project. There's a
couple of other important restaurants along the waterfront and then a diversity of
smaller kiosks and eateries and vendors that ensure that there are a variety of business
opportunities, large and small, and investment levels that we'll talk about later that will
be available to different entrepreneurs that are looking to become a part of this project
over time.
What was very important to us from -- from a design perspective, as well, was to ensure
that the project and the waterfront is stretched as far as it can be into the project,
because it creates incredible value for different areas of the development.
And so you notice that it's intentionally very porous so that even these buildings that are
a layer back will feel like they're on the water. And as we're going to talk about later in
the plan, the public market which sits up here -- and you'll see this more -- in more detail
later on, will even have a direct viewpoint to the waterfront, as well. So you've really
taken the waterfront and stretched it as far back into the project as is possible.
So here's some images of what this area might feel like at night, during the day, strolling
along the water. And this is a conceptual aerial of what the area might look like over
time, which I think is a very powerful look at how this district might look and the
incredible intimacy of this waterfront village that we're trying to create that will segue
back into higher-density development closer to Broadway that we're going to talk about
later.
The Market Court makes up this area right at the center of the project. This is Avenue
C -- or this is Avenue C. This is the boardwalk and promenade. This is the waterfront.
This is Newcomb Hall and Bicentennial Park. What we've done is we've taken this
concept, the -- the Palm Beach County Public Market, which has been an important
anchor of this project for quite some time.
We've positioned it just west of Avenue C as an important western anchor that will allow
development to fill in between the market and the waterfront. It's an area, again, it's
going to have small shops and eateries. There's an important central courtyard space
that connects this to the waterfront.
Now, the public market, which I'll talk about in a little bit more detail, on the ground floor
is going to have food purveyors and vendors selling produce, art. All the small vendors
that exist in a traditional county public market. But this is a permanent facility that is
going to get developed over time.
To turn this, again, into an important community facility, the second floor of this building
is programmed as community arts incubator space. And Anita Jenkins is working very
closely with another consulting firm called Lord Cultural Resources that was engaged by
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the CRA.
They're an international expert in helping develop and envision and program and
business plan cultural facilities for communities. And so they're going to help define
what the best facility and what the best needs of this community are going to be. But
there's a space and a location designated in the plan for those activities to take place.
And we think that's incredibly important.
Again, here are some images of things that might happen, cooking demonstrations, the
courtyard area, very intimate and shaded, the public market and some of the arts
programs that might take place in the community incubator space on top of the public
market. And this is an image of what it might look like if you were standing outside the
public market looking east towards the waterfront through the Market Court.
Marine Way. I want to talk a little bit about the project overall. We're going to be
discussing this area to the south, but it's important to understand that we know that this
is a broad waterfront and that the marina operations need to serve a variety of
purposes. There are some less glamorous back-of-house components that are
important for the marina to serve that we need to keep out of sight and out of mind, and
then there are customer service requirements that the marina needs to serve as well
that need to be more front and center. So we're working with Ed Legue and other
members down by the marina to find the best place for them closer to the center of the
project in terms of having a daily presence. But some of the more operational
components of marina servicing are going to take place to the south. I'm going to talk
about those in greater detail.
This facility on the south end of the plan serves a number of purposes. Number one, it's
the area where you'll have boater concierge and some of the other service amenities
that are necessary to service boaters. Some support functions for the rest of the district
in terms of having storage space, trash storage and things like that, again, which you
want to keep a little bit out of sight and out of mind.
And we're also programming the back end of this space as a very simple warehouse
space for either shops, uh, marine workshops, marine industry workers or other satellite
work space for some of the marine-industry related vendors that might want to become
part of the waterfront or work closer to the marina district over time.
Additionally, this is a district that again is very much about the waterfront and the
marina. And we know that the recreational vendors, the dive boats, the fishing boats,
the excursion boats, and a number of the things that take place here at the marina have
certain operational needs that are different from the people who are going to be visiting
the district for food and entertainment and other things, and that it's important to give
them an important place in the plan where their businesses can function effectively.
This district is designed for very convenient drop-off and short-term parking down by the
waterfront so that when you're unloading your tanks and things like that at the beginning
of the day or at the end of the day, that it's very convenient for you to do so. The series
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of retailers that will be located here, which is along 12th Street, are things like a dive
shop, bait and tackle store, boat store, a series of retailers that are associated with
marine-related activities, because that really creates a good character and they're very
complementary uses.
We also believe that there's space over time for an apartment, hotel or short-term stay
or longer-term stay hotel facility. Again, so that divers have a place to stay near the
waterfront. Business visitors might have a place to stay early on in the marina, and
even some of the yacht crews that spend a lot of time here at the project or in the area
could have a permanent place to stay for -- for their visit.
So you can see they're some of the experiences that might happen down at Marine
Way, your recreational boaters and vendors, excursions, shop space. And again,
activating the waterfront with -- with dining and entertainment.
And this is a view of what it might look like if you're standing on the boardwalk looking
north from Boat Yard Row. And this is all the short-term parking where people can
unload and get right on to the boats.
The 13th Street Gateway. The 13th Street Gateway is the welcoming to the project,
essentially. It's the intersection of 13th Street and Broadway. Again, these are
incredibly important corners. This is 13th Street. Broadway sits here just at the bottom
of the screen. This is the public market, just to orient you. And again, this is Newcomb
Hall, which is very visible and incredibly welcoming as you enter the project, running
west to east.
We believe that these are going to be either large-scale commercial anchors or retail
anchors that are going to get developed over time, again, taking advantage of
Broadway visibility. And as well, the major hotel that we expect to be able to develop at
the project over time is over here. I'll show you here on the plan. This is Broadway.
This is the hotel location.
It gives the hotel very convenient access off Broadway, visibility that a hotel will want.
And we have it on 14th Street so that it has access and circulation for its own drop-offs
that won't interfere with the traffic and circulation within the project over time.
It also has incredible proximity to Bicentennial Park. It's half a block away. And it's very
close to Newcomb Hall because we expect there to be synergies between the meeting
space that is being developed in Newcomb Hall and the hotel's ability to service and
offer and market event and visitor conference demand.
I want to talk a little bit about Spanish Courts and our vision for Spanish Courts,
because I know it's an incredibly important part of this plan for the community. And to
do that I need to talk about health care in Palm Beach County. More than one in five
people in Palm Beach County were uninsured as of last September. And that number
rises to over 30 percent of the African-American community.
Additionally, over a quarter of the population of Palm Beach County is over the age of
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62, because it's an increasingly popular retirement destination for elderly people. The
county is suffering a shortage of licensed physicians and the marina district is in a
federally designated medically underserved area.
These are all important foundations to our vision for Spanish Courts. Because we
believe the Spanish Court site will find new life oriented towards the health and wellness
of the Riviera Beach community. As the United States population ages and as the
benefits of the Affordable Care Act reach underserved populations, demand for medical
services are going to grow in the coming years.
And the Health and Wellness Campus is designed to offer health-related services to
Riviera Beach residents in the broader region. The campus is going to feature senior
housing and assisted living facilities, which are these residential facilities located here,
adjacent to a new health care and medical facility we expect to be able to develop here
over time.
And these residential units allow us to preserve the original Spanish Court's courtyard
and its majestic and historic tree as a public space both for residents, as well as the
broader community. And we believe that this is an area of the plan that will do service
to the history of Spanish Courts and continue to serve its importance as having a
community vocation. This is an image of what we feel it could feel like in that courtyard
with residential development around it over time.
The Education and Innovation Campus. Throughout Palm Beach County, partnerships
between industry and institutions of higher education have been forged to further job
training and workforce needs, research and development initiatives and their associated
economic development goals.
The Education and Innovation Campus which is located in the northwest portion of the
marina district -- just to orient ourselves, this is Bicentennial Park. This is 13th Street.
This is 15th Street. Okay? And we believe that this project is well positioned to link
industry with education or marine-related research and industry to the ocean. We think
that the proximity to Bicentennial Park is going to offer the possibility of having
residential development in this community and this area over time.
And whether this is developed as an educational facility with associated student housing
or as a private industry office with associated employee housing, we think that's going to
be incredibly complementary and synergistic to turn this into a small important subdistrict within the plan and that that proximity to Bicentennial Park is going to make this
a very attractive place to live.
Additionally, as I talked about before when we were discussing Bicentennial Park, 15th
Street plays an incredibly important role as it connects across Broadway to the western
neighborhoods and Avenue E and will allow people to walk and stroll directly across
Broadway along 15th Street, continuing that residential character right into the park,
which we think is an incredibly important connection.
There's an additional significant parcel of land that is controlled across the street on the
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west side of Broadway at the corner of 13th Street. This is 13th and Broadway. Again,
that's a corner that has incredible visibility, a lot of traffic thru-fare along Broadway, and
we think that there are one or two or both things that might be developed here over
time.
For an institution or an organization looking for a signature office facility with incredible
visibility, this could be a very, very attractive location. As well for any major anchor
retailer that might need a significant amount of land and space but might want to be
located near the marina district but whose size and scale might make them
inappropriate to locate right within the core of the more intimate resident -- the more
intimate marina village that we're planning east of -- east of Broadway. This would be a
very attractive and visible location, again, with incredible access and visibility. So we
think those are two major opportunities for that site over the time and life of this project.
I'll talk quickly about parking and servicing and phasing. Just so the public understands,
and we'll dive into this in a little bit more detail, the way we see this project gets phased.
We've talked about from the beginning the first phases of public investment are going to
be into Bicentennial Park, Newcomb Hall and that associated development, the new Tiki
and additional food and entertainment along the waterfront are all going to form part of
phase one.
Phase two includes the public market, the public parking garage, the marina operations
facility and additional private development in this core block. Phase three, which is
longer term, would have us complete the 13th Street corridor off Broadway. And then
the larger anchor institutional facilities that we've programmed in the Education
Innovation Campus, the Health and Wellness Campus and at 13th and Broadway are
developments that we expect the success and strength of value that will be created by
our success in developing the waterfront village, are going to make these development
opportunities more attractive and feasible over time.
Parking has been looked at very closely. We've been working with Walker Parking
Consultants that's been hired by the CRA to help us understand parking demand as the
project phases out. We've been very comfortable with the idea that the first phase of
development, again, the park, Newcomb, and the waterfront, will be able to be surface
parked in the first phases of the project by putting surface parking on all of the major
development parcels that are undeveloped at that moment in time.
That's going to give us over 700 spaces for the first couple of years of this project. And
that as we move into phase two and develop out the core of this project, the City will be
investing in and building a public parking garage that will give us the capacity and
demand that we need to service the additional visitation this development -- we expect
this development is going to bring to the project.
This is the broader-phase diagram over time. Again, developing out the larger campus
opportunities. The question was where is the garage?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Uh-huh.
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UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Yeah.
RICHARD MARTZ: Yeah. It's this location right here.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: But what streets?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: What -- where (inaudible)?
RICHARD MARTZ: This is 12th Street. This is Avenue C. This is Cracker Boy.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: West of C?
RICHARD MARTZ: It's just west of Avenue C.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Okay. Thank you.
RICHARD MARTZ: Okay?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: (Inaudible).
RICHARD MARTZ: Okay.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: We have to hold the questions until you -RICHARD MARTZ: Okay.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Yeah.
RICHARD MARTZ: The full build of the project, again, in order to make sure that any
additional investments into public parking garages or private parking garages, which we
know are incredibly expensive, any future garages in the project will be specifically tied
to a major piece of anchor development. And by that we mean that at a certain point in
time if we want to develop the hotel, we're going to have to develop a garage adjacent
to that hotel. If we get a major anchor educational or private-sector institutional tenant,
we're going to have to develop a garage associated with that facility. As we develop out
the Health and Wellness Campus to service the health care facility and the residential
development, again, we will need an additional garage.
But this ensures that we won't be developing or spending that money unless there is a
major piece of private investment and development that is happening at the project at
the same time.
This is an important slide that really takes us back to the essence of how we've been
thinking about this project. Because from day one, as I mentioned at the beginning of
the presentation, the goal was to ensure that all of the public investments that are being
made into this project generate a significant amount of private development.
And this is an important diagram to help us understand how we are looking at the
development of this project, because what we truly tried to do is take the public's
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investment into Bicentennial Park, Newcomb Hall, Public Market, public garage and the
marina operations facility, and use those as traffic generators and anchors to drive
energy and create value for the private-sector development that is going to happen in
and around the waterfront village, which is going to help us take advantage of the
waterfront and maximize its potential.
And we expect that this development to happen over the first couple of phases of this
project, the value that's created there is going to resonate out not just to the
development parcels that you see here and that we've talked about in this project, but
continue to resonate further west into the Riviera Beach mainland and help some of
those neighborhoods redevelop over time, as well.
Now, Tony has asked me to talk about business recruitment and how we envision that
component of the project taking place. And I'm happy to because it's an incredibly
important part of our philosophy as an organization at LiveWorkLearnPlay and the way
we approach tenant recruitment and business attraction at all of our project.
So I'm going to talk about a process that we call "targeted leasing and casting." From
day one I think everyone needs to understand that we believe that tenants and business
operators are the ambassadors of your project. They are the faces of the project. They
are the reasons that people return again and again to any project. And that we believe
that that value and that community identity can be reflected in the types of businesses
and operators that ultimately open in a project.
We will be looking for businesses that have a unique commercial character that deliver
a one-of-a-kind experience and our preference is entirely for owner-operated
operations. 'Cause we believe that the people who are spending six and seven days a
week living at their business are the people that are going to deliver the best customer
service and the best experience for this project over time.
As we talked about when we looked at the waterfront, there will be a range of
investment levels that have been built into this plan. We understand that not everyone
is going to have the money to open up a large anchor restaurant, which is why we've
programmed smaller vendors and eateries, vendors in the Public Market, kiosks and
vendors by the waterfront, to ensure that there is a series and range of investment
levels for different types of business opportunities within the project for different people.
Our TLC process is a very rigorous one because we want to make sure that every
tenant and every operator that we put into business is ultimately going to be successful
and thrive at this project and contribute to delivering the vibrancy that we know it has
the potential to deliver. Every single tenant and every single operator that we consider
will have to put together a detailed business plan. And that business plan will have to
articulate what we consider the four major pillars of our targeted leasing process:
people, concept, experience, and financial capacity.
Now, let me talk about those four things in greater detail. People has to do with who
you are. When you sign a lease with a tenant for 10 years or 20 years, you are
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essentially marrying someone to your project and that person is marrying themselves to
their business opportunity for the next 10 or 15 or 20 years. And so it's incredibly
important that all -- all parties feel very comfortable with the people that are going to be
part of that family and that project over time.
We've talked about the vision for this project and the types of experiences and types of
businesses that we're going to want to locate there. So it's important for us to
understand what your concept is and make sure that it fits with the marina district vision
and fits into the business mix that we're going to be spending more time over the
coming months articulating and defining.
What is the -- what experience do you have delivering your concept? And we're going
to talk a little bit about some of the options that we're going to have longer term, but it's
important to us -- for us and our preference is always for business operators that have
shown a history of success and a willingness to persevere and deliver quality over time,
because those people have the greatest chance of success.
And financial capacity. One of the reasons we talk about business planning in such
great detail is because it's important both for us to understand, as well as for every
entrepreneur and business owner to understand their business and make sure that they
have a sound business plan that is going to allow them to operate and be successful.
But another piece that's important to this puzzle is understanding that we've had a very
close relationship and a lot of discussions with Tony about funding and support
resources that are going to be (inaudible) and made available to the local community.
We understand that not everyone has a lot of money in the bank or are well-capitalized.
But there are some very savvy and motivated entrepreneurs within the community that
want to become a part of this project.
Tony has made his commitment to us that he's going to work with us to ensure that
there are funding resources set up, that there will be training and other resources
available to people to help them with their business planning to ensure that there -- if
there is someone who is motivated and qualified but just needs a little bit of help, that
they're going to have the opportunity just like everybody else to operate a business
within the district.
I end with this because this is a vision, and I think it's a powerful vision of what this
project can be and what we believe the potential of this project can be over time. We
know this is a community that has waited far too long, and we truly believe that the time
is now. We're here and we're vested. We have a great deal of experience in making
these projects happen, and we ask for your support in moving this plan forward so that
we can get started. I thank you very much for your time.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: And thank you so much, sir.
DIRECTOR BROWN: This -- this could be dangerous. How about a round of
applause? The public would get an opportunity, Madam Chair, if you so elect, to speak.
I've been assigned the task to talk about the next steps and -- and the follow-up.
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And it was made clear to me when you hired me two and a half years ago and as I talk
to the city manager as my redevelopment partner when you hired her nearly four and a
half years ago, that you expected two things. One, that we would be partners and we
would work together for the betterment of this city. And I'm here to tell you that we are
doing just that. And that together, that we had to improve the vitality of this city.
And as the city manager works on the operations side and the City side in dealing with
the services that a city delivers, my partner, Miss Jones, have assigned the
responsibility of creating the wealth within the CRA, that the marina, that the waterfront
development would be the catalyst for the redevelopment of Broadway, that we would
expand our tax base and that together we'll find ways for the City and its residents to
benefit in real time. And I hope that the presentation you've just seen is a reflection of
that.
And as I talk about the next steps to wrap up and the impact, you will see how your
expectation, as Miss Jones said, that how we hope that we are exceeding not just your
expectation but those of your constituents and -- and the residents.
When I met Richard nearly a year and a half ago, it was at the invitation of Bob Healey,
Jr., and -- and they asked me to come to New Jersey to meet with the representatives
of Live Work Learn and Play. And I had to ask the question, I said, "I thought that was a
banner. That's -- that's our city's motto. I mean, what company would have the name
Live Work Learn and Play?
And what I found out when I met Richard and his partner Max for the first time is that
they said something to Mr. Healey, Sr. And they said it seriously and with such
conviction that I knew that Viking had found for them the right development partner.
They said to Mr. Healey, Sr., that if the public investment is done wrong, is incomplete,
that your $50 million worth of investment is worthless and that together we had to find a
way to work together and that the prosperity of our city would provide the return to
Viking and their investments.
And so a year and a half ago when I've asked you if we could leverage the capacity of
your CRA and go out and borrow $26 million, I told you that it was important for me to
be a partner to our master developer to say that we believe in our city, that we will make
the first investment. And so that if you allow the CRA to leverage its capacity, that we
hope it, in turn, would leverage private development.
What Richard presented is a plan that our $29 million in these phases would be
leveraged eight times and would result in $245 million worth of private development.
This project, let alone in our redevelopment area, would increase our tax revenues by
3.2 million. And in just the first two phases -- we're not talking about the 10-year plan
and the stretch along Broadway -- we're saying in the first two phases that this is not
just about Viking; that there will be over 100 entrepreneurial opportunities for our local
businesses.
And so when LiveWorkLearnPlay and Viking, its development partner, said it will be
CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP

JANUARY 30, 2013

18

authentic, it will be local, we're talking about a hundred entrepreneurial opportunities.
Two and a half years ago our community was divided as to what this marina should be.
Save our marina. Save Bicentennial Park. Save Newcomb Hall. Save Spanish Courts.
We're not only saving our marina, saving Bicentennial Park, we're leading with them.
We're investing in them. We will create a sense of place that will create a new
downtown and we are leading with public access to the marina.
The community benefits; the impact is over 1,100 construction jobs and nearly 2,200
permanent employment positions to be created by this redevelopment. You said that
we need to stop being stuck in planning. And we hope that this is the last conceptual
plan that you will see. We are going to continue the open transparent process. We're
offering an open house. We've had several open houses. We know that there are
residents that don't like to speak and be on Channel 18, so we want -- we invite them to
come to our office January 28th from 4 p.m. to 8 p.m. and we can talk to them about the
plans. Planning & Zoning.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: It's (inaudible).
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: It's the 30th now. That's passed.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: It's the 30th.
CHAIR PRO-TEM PARDO: Yeah. (Inaudible).
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Today is the 30th.
CHAIR PRO-TEM PARDO: (Inaudible).
DIRECTOR BROWN: I'm sorry. What -- what's -- what's the date, Scott?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Today's the 30th.
SCOTT EVANS: (Inaudible) February (inaudible). Today's the 30th.
DIRECTOR BROWN: Today's the 30th. Oh, we had the open house. Are we having
another open house?
SCOTT EVANS: Another open house on February 5th.
DIRECTOR BROWN: I'm sorry. I guess I have the dates wrong. The next open house
is February 5th. When are we going to Planning & Zoning?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: 14.
SCOTT EVANS: 14.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: 14.
DIRECTOR BROWN: The 14th. Okay. And then we'll be going to, uh, Planning &
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Zoning on February 14th. We -- we've labeled this plan as sort of 95 percent. We're -we're not here to say that we have gotten it all right. We hope that we have captured
the principles of our community and that over the next several weeks that we will refine
the plans and we will get the direction that we need from the community stakeholders
that you've assigned through Planning & Zoning as we prepare to take this through the
approval process.
After this public workshop, we'll bring the plan back to you on February 27th for approval
by the City and the CRA Board in two separate meetings on that date. And what that
will do, it will trigger a process that this conceptual plan becomes our plan, that it
becomes the document that takes us to reality and allow us to start construction. And
that's an internal process to the City with Planning & Zoning and we -- we project for
that process to be completed by June of this year.
As we're doing that, we're working with the designers and the design team that you've
established. Song & Associates have been selected as our architectural and
engineering firm for us to do the improvements to Bicentennial Park, Newcomb Hall and
the other elements.
And we project that by the time we complete construction documents, that we can start
construction in March of 2014. And that would include, as Richard indicated, as part of
the phase one and the public investments, the upgrades to Bicentennial Park, the New
Newcomb Hall and the expanded boardwalk and promenade.
And as you know, this is not a promise. The money is in the bank. It has been there for
a year and a half. And we are ready to go. The last partner to this process is our
construction manager. And that request for qualifications is on the streets as we speak
today. And that RFP will wrap up in the next two to three weeks.
We gave notice to our partner that, yes, we're going to invest in the public investments
and that in return, we needed to know the expectation for the private investments, so
what Viking and their development partners has projected, that the new Tiki will start
after we've made their site shovel-ready, that they will begin construction in and around
September of 2014 for the new -- for the new Tiki and the other boardwalk eateries
along with the business recruitment strategy that Richard outlined. So those -- that's the
update as to where we are, and the next steps, and if you're so inclined, we will listen to
public comments.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Oh, yes. We have several. I certainly want to allow
everyone who's here with a card to come at this moment. Now, first it's Miss Mary
Brobham [phonetic].
COUNCILPERSON LOWE: Brabham. Miss Mary Brabham.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Brambham [phonetic]. Why I wanna mess up her name?
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Brabham.
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CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: B-R-A-B-H-A-M is how it's spelled. Oh, that -- that's next.
Uh-huh. Is she here? Oh, yeah, she's in the back. Okay.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: She's coming.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: All right. Uh-huh.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: She's coming.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Now, please tell me how you pronounce your -MARY BRABHAM: Mary Brabham, Riviera Beach.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Mary Brabham? Okay.
MARY BRABHAM: I didn't hear my name being called but -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Yeah, I did.
MARY BRABHAM: -- this -- um, I enjoyed the presentation. At this particular point I'm
very pleased with what I have seen. I also have a question. Is the amphitheater still -still in there?
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: The amphitheater.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Richard, maybe you want to answer that.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: We'll answer -- we'll answer -- we'll answer it.
MARY BRABHAM: Okay. Okay. You're taking -- but you'll answer -- okay.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Okay.
MARY BRABHAM: So I wanted to feel that out. Because as Robert Healey, Jr. was
going over the review, it was not made mention. And we did indicate that in there,
because we -- we as the residents of the City feels as if that is workable within that
district. So we would like to see the amphitheater included in there.
Also, I -- I've taken so many notes here so I don't have time to -- just to go through all of
them here. But welcome -- let me say welcome Viking. We have been dealing with
Viking's for over -- Viking for over about eight or 10 years in these plans. So residents, I
want you to know that if we are to move forward, let us give Viking and their private
partners a share. If we want to make this city great, we need to move forward here. It's
been too long. Also, Viking, I would like to say to you personally, this hopefully will be
your last chance to prove and show yourself the worth that you have invested in this city
along with the City and the residents as a whole.
We cannot continuously -- to go on and on and not having someone at the table that we
have continuously said, Well, they can do it, not show us and do. The pudding is in the
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pie. So I am saying -- and this is also what the residents has stressed, too, because we
know that we have -- we have wrangled with Viking. So I see a plan here that's worth
banking on. And as a resident in this city here -- and trust me, everyone knows Miss
Brabham -- I will stand up. I will advocate and I will fight for the good of the cause.
But Miss Brabham knows that it is workable. I want to see this city rise to the -- to the
occasion. All the plans that you may have here, I'm asking you as our leader and
governing board to hold them accountable. A lot of times the City has gotten in -- in
mud because we pay these people here and -- and the work that they do is not
complete. So I'm asking you to hold them accountable; Tony Brown, also.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Thank you.
MARY BRABHAM: When this takes off -- and I'm hoping that it will take off, I ask you
also to do quarterly reports or some type of newsletter to let the residents know, too,
that you as our governing board, you are in good faith.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: We have been.
MARY BRABHAM: Thank you.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Okay. Thank you so much.
MARY BRABHAM: And congratulation, Billie. She's not gonna say anything. I know
I'm overdue. But this is so beautiful. This is so beautiful. And -- and -- and we are
proud of you.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Thank you.
MARY BRABHAM: And you will represent our city well.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Thank you.
MARY BRABHAM: And congratulations to all of the honorees.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Thank you.
MARY BRABHAM: It's time for the women. Cedrick, Shelby, you've done a good job.
Done -- you've done a good job. Women, this is the year. Thank you.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: You left Judy out.
MARY BRABHAM: Oh, Judy. Thank you, Miss Davis.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Okay. Gerald Ward. Thank you. Thank you, Miss Mary.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: As the next speaker approach, yes. The amphitheater is
there and --
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CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: The answer is -UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: -- the answer is yes.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Okay. It is there, Miss Brabham. And after Mr. Ward we
have Nora Mahoney, please.
GERALD WARD: Gerald Ward, 2135 Broadway. Well, obviously the basic title is
whether you have compliance with the Noticed Element Agreement of 29 August 2012.
You don't have a detailed response of compliance with all of the paragraphs of those
pages of agreement. So that's one more deficiency of staff's backup material.
I don't think you -- obviously it was to have been done last year. And the Planning
Board, as I told you earlier, still hasn't seen any of this material. This is something that
would take several meetings, and they have told you that repetitively, to analyze.
The -- how many of you have sat through, uh, each of these verbal presentations,
never-ending words and pretty pictures since December of 1986? We had the Inlet
Harbor. We had the latter '80s development RFP. We had the early '90s RFP. Then
we had Spanish Courts. Then we had the City's, uh, inlet basin plans, which probably
were the cheapest. Then in 2000 under Michael Brown and the new council, the Miami
planners' plans.
All of those turned out to be lots of pretty pictures. And only the Inlet Harbor plan had
details that were approvable by the City's code process. So you need to go back to
your own code to see that you must get details and backup. We've had a -- the
presentation. The jokes of the plan: the Health and Wellness Center, the marina
operations way at the south end when we have a crazy marina plan of floating docks all
centered at the very north end today.
A restaurant back door adjacent the Newcomb Hall. Maybe $3 million to redo
Bicentennial Park. All that's public money, also. Is Newcomb Hall really a plan of useful
items for the City's users? We have 30,000 that need to be served. Then we have a -a crazy no-see-um park swamp created. That is something that you don't ever want to
put on waterfront.
A grandiose plan for a garage on top of Spanish Courts. Almost everything says public
funding, not private redevelopment. Business recruitment? I honestly see that as sure
cure for failure for most of the citizens and business owners of Riviera Beach. Again,
it's a lots of verbals, lots of pretty pictures, but you've got to have facts and details and
backup.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Thank you, Bonnie Larson.
NORA MAHONEY: Oh, I thought it was me.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Oh, I'm sorry. Yeah.
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NORA MAHONEY: (Inaudible).
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Yes, Miss Mahoney. After that, Bonnie Larson.
NORA MAHONEY: Good evening, again. 2120 Broadway. Well, do you know what
happened in New Jersey this year. Oh, I'm -- yeah, I think it was that year. About the
hurricane season? They have too many things going on. I would like to know if you are
prepared for a liability insurance if something happen to everything that they want to
place in the marina district. Are we going to be paying for that? Is there a stipulation?
Better be ready. Um, who will be responsible for the damages?
Spanish Courts. I heard something about demolition and now I saw something like
they're going to be building something there. I mean, any other city try to save
something, whatever is left from that year -- you know, try to make it, like, whatever
happen, that's what it used to be the building before.
Why do you want to demolish it? I don't understand it. They -- they already -- the
County, as well as the City, is paying 1.5 million in the renovation of the building. And
you want to demolish it and do something else.
I thought there was something about the arts or something about -- close to the port and
people who comes in the cruises, they are in the way to buy, you know, art. But to
destroy the whole thing for nothing? I mean, they spent a lot of money. Remember the
-- the Coral House in West Palm Beach? They spent a lot of money because it make it
feel it was part of historical.
The parking, how many floors? I heard about 700 parking spaces. How it's going to be
built? We don't see it over there. We only see only a line or -- or, like, a little
rectangular side that we don't really know where it's -- where it's located.
When I went to the Tiki for dinner with my husband, it was probably, like, close to 6:00
or -- yeah, close to 6:00. I could not finish eating my food because when the cruise line
was coming, all the smoke out, that it was all over the place, I decided to take my food
to my house. So I don't know if they're going to place a big wall between the cruise line
where the smoke-out so you will not be polluted on the other side. I don't know.
I also saw something about a proposed Tri-Rail expansion. Nobody talks about it. I
didn't know. Bicentennial Park is going to be flood again? We already spending a lot of
money. Again, more waste for taxpayers.
Back of Bicentennial Park you have something. It looks like a hotel. It doesn't show
how the hotel's going to be built. And also how many big docks you gonna have in the
marina? I saw only one so I would like to know how many you're going to build on it.
And good luck. I hope you can respond to all these questions. Thank you.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Miss Larson.
BONNIE LARSON: Bonnie Larson. I thought it was a good presentation. That was a
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compliment. Please write this down. The gentleman did a good job.
CHAIR PRO-TEM PARDO: Thank you, Mrs. Larson.
BONNIE LARSON: Well, I come -- you don't always have time for compliments 'cause
there's so many other things. But I have questions. Of course I have questions so I'll
just start at the beginning here.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: (Inaudible).
BONNIE LARSON: Excuse me?
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: I said wow.
COUNCILPERSON LOWE: I'm writing it down.
BONNIE LARSON: Okay. Give us more than three minutes a month. Come on.
Okay. We mentioned that Viking has spent $50 million in the marina area to help us.
Could we have an explanation of what -- what -- how that $50 million was spent? I
know they own a lot of property here but that's their properties. That's not really helping
us. So how is that $50 million -- where did they spend it and how is that helping us?
They talked about Spanish Courts being a Health and Wellness Center. This is our
waterfront. We have to use the best -- we have to put something there for the best use
for our waterfront. Is an assisted living facility and a low-cost insurance company for
people that are uninsured, is that the best use for property right there at the marina?
Let's do something that will attract visitors and -- and people who are going to buy
something in this city. To put assisted living there, I don't know where that came -- idea
came from. But that just does not seem like a good use for that property.
So we have an RFP out to demolish the interior of Spanish Courts, as I understand it,
right now. So why are we paying to do that and this plan, as he explained it, would
demolish the whole of Spanish Courts? So why are we doing that? We need to decide
what we're doing here.
We talked about the Education and Innovative Campus. We talked about a private
company with housing. So are we talking about private business with housing on public
land? That's what it sounded like.
13th Street. I wasn't clear on that. Are we talking about an office building there on
Broadway? Is that -- the office building is gonna be right there on the corner of 13th and
-- and Broadway? Is that what they were talking about? That property across the street
on the west side of Broadway, that isn't owned by Riviera Beach.
We talked about a new Tiki. Is that going to be the same tenant? Is that a different
tenant? Is that Riviera Beach putting that there? Who is this new Tiki person?
So these are all questions I hope somebody answers. All right. Oh, he mentioned that
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parking would be tied to the major companies within -- within the district. What I saw
was whatever buildings were taking up the entire area that he talked about. So where
are all these parking garages going to go? Is it going to be individual parking for each
thing? Parking for Newcomb Hall is important because we have a lot of elderly people
in Riviera Beach who need parking. And you can't put the parking way over on the
south side. So where is all this parking going to go? And is each individual company
that comes in, are they going to get their own parking? That's what it sounded like.
And then we talked about in the business recruitment living -- people living at their
businesses. So does that mean more people living on the marina property? And then
we talked about training -- training people to operate their own businesses. Why don't
we strive for something higher and better like let's get people in there who know how to
run a business. Let's not put -- you know, you and I, we have to be trained to run a
business. Let's get somebody -- let's -- let's strive for something a little better than that,
people who know how to run a business. Thank you.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Thank you.
MAYOR MASTERS: Madam Chair, I have a question for Miss Larson.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Oh, Jeez.
MAYOR MASTERS: Please, Miss Larson.
BONNIE LARSON: Yes.
MAYOR MASTERS: Thank you, Madam Chair.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Come back.
MAYOR MASTERS: Are you, um, familiar with the fact that most or a lot of the new
health and wealth -- health and -BONNIE LARSON: Wellness.
MAYOR MASTERS: -- wellness and holistic facilities are being built across the nation
near the water?
BONNIE LARSON: How many assisted living places are near the water?
MAYOR MASTERS: Are you aware of the fact that with the assisted living places
there's -- there's a plus for it to be near the water?
BONNIE LARSON: Why?
MAYOR MASTERS: Are you -- were -- are you aware of that?
BONNIE LARSON: Why? Why?
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COUNCILPERSON LOWE: Wait 30 more years. You'll find out.
BONNIE LARSON: Well, thank you for saying 30.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: If -- if you could, Mayor -MAYOR MASTERS: Well, the -BONNIE LARSON: But I'm just saying is that -- we're trying to draw people -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Mayor. Mayor.
BONNIE LARSON: -- into the marina area.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: You might want to (inaudible).
BONNIE LARSON: Is putting assisted living there -MAYOR MASTERS: Okay. Thank you.
BONNIE LARSON: -- you know, what is that?
MAYOR MASTERS: I just wanted to know were you aware.
BONNIE LARSON: To have drugs right there on the water? I don't know if that's such
a good idea, either. Thank you.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Okay. Thank you.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Thank you.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: If -- if we could try -- we have so many here and -- and I
want everybody to have an opportunity. But if you wish to, you know, have a -- after we
finish with everyone, if you want to address someone, that will be fine.
MAYOR MASTERS: Then we have to call them back up if I have a question?
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Well -MAYOR MASTERS: Madam Chair?
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: -- yeah, but I wanna get through with everyone 'cause
we've been here -MAYOR MASTERS: I understand that. But if I have a question, if I want to speak to
someone, should I wait till it's over?
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Yeah, let's do that.
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MAYOR MASTERS: Then call them back up?
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Absolutely.
MAYOR MASTERS: Thank you.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Yeah.
MAYOR MASTERS: That's fine.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: In fairness to everybody else, please.
MAYOR MASTERS: No, that's fine.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Margaret Shepherd. Mrs. Shepherd.
MARGARET SHEPHERD: Margaret Shepherd, Riviera Beach. First, Tony, I want to
say thank you for putting on such a great project here in the City. You're doing a great
job. I think I've been through three or four directors. But it seems like you're pretty
much anchored to the ground. And I want to say thank you and your staff, Miss Anita,
who was a great resource for us. I really thank her and you have picked a very fine
young lady to head one of your staff.
Spanish Courts. My cousin who's the Honorable Mayor Clara King Williams who
reigned here for 12 years, who never got into the -- the City business, Spanish Court
was Clara's baby. I want to put a signature and a voice to that, Tony, that this particular
assistant wellness city -- center would be a testament to Clara.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Yes.
MARGARET SHEPHERD: Clara job was to take care of the senior citizens and
children. If we don't outline something in history that will identify with some of the
people that have laid the foundation in this city, we are leaving ourself in (inaudible) of
being nobody. So this -- I was waiting. The tree is a historic factor in Spanish Court.
Let me say thank you for that.
And once again to Mr. Healey and to Viking, the master developer who's been here for,
what, 12 years? They have labored in love here. I know it's been traumatic. I haven't
always been, you know -- I've been waiting with my credit card for a long time. And the
more I see and the more I feel -- and it's going to be critiqued and tweaked a little bit
because some things are, you know -- but I want to say to this City I heard people say
that you guys are the worst board.
May I finish with this? If I never -- I'm like Miss Larson. If I never give you a
compliment, I want to say to you, you guys are one of the best boards that I have seen
in a long time. Yes, you are. You are now taking a stand. And yes, I am -- you know
with money I'm a little, you know -- a half million dollars? $4,000? I think you guys must
get a handle on your spending. Because if you're going to bring this to the City, it's
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going to take money.
But you have my vote. You have their vote and we're not scared. This election would
dictate the City perception of the best city to live, work and play. It's -- we're tired of
living in shambles. I'm tired of going to West Palm Beach and putting my feet up at the
waterfront. I want to come home and spend my money.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: All right.
MARGARET SHEPHERD: Thank you.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Thank you.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Thank you, Miss Shepherd. Next we'll have Beth Kigel
followed with Roger Amidon.
BETH KIGEL: Good evening.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Good evening.
BETH KIGEL: Members of the Council, Mr. Mayor, the administration, Tony and the
CRA. It's really -- I'm Beth Kigel, President and CEO of the Northern Palm Beach
County Chamber of Commerce. It's a real pleasure to be here tonight.
First of all, I want to thank Tony Brown and the CRA because he has been very good
with us in answering a lot of the questions from the business community. For those of
you that are -- may not be as familiar with our chamber, we have over 800 members. It
covers almost the entire northern end of the county, which includes Riviera Beach. And
actually, I'm pleased to report here tonight that our chamber enthusiastically supports
this conceptual master plan and hopes for its finalization and approval the end of
February.
I can tell you our board voted unanimously last week in support of this, so it's very
exciting to see this finally be on the verge of reality. So we appreciate all of the work
that has been -- that has been done. And this conceptual design actually makes Riviera
Beach and the waterfront a world-class destination for visitors, for businesses and
residents.
And one of the things that I didn't see actually in -- in the documentation in addition to
the private investment that's being made, the tax revenues that will be realized by the
City, the job creation which is really spectacular, are the dollars that will be spent inside
of the City of Riviera Beach as a result of this development.
So this is just a terrific way of enhancing economic activity in the local area by bringing
additional investment, more dollars spent in Riviera Beach, but most importantly, critical
new jobs which we know is something that we all look forward to in Riviera Beach. Not
just in Riviera Beach but in the surrounding areas.
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And all of this is being done in the public, in the spirit of public access, as well as
community development, which is so very important. So I just want to reiterate the
support of the business community from the Northern Palm Beach County Chamber of
Commerce. We hope -- certainly hope that this conceptual plan will be finalized and
presented to the council on February 27th and approved by the council. So thank you
very much.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: And thank you for coming. Mr. Amidon?
ROGER AMIDON: Good evening, Madam Chair, City Council Members.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Good evening.
ROGER AMIDON: Mayor Masters.
MAYOR MASTERS: Good evening.
ROGER AMIDON: Staff. I want to congratulate Tony Brown and his staff for bringing
to this council a tremendous presentation by Live -- Live Work Learn and Play. I met
these folks probably about a year and a half ago.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Give your name.
ROGER AMIDON: This is when I was a member of the Tourist Development Council.
Uh, but now I've become a business leader.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Excuse me, sir. You have to give your -- give your name.
I'm sorry. She needs your name, please.
ROGER AMIDON: Yeah. I'm sorry. Roger Amidon. And I'm a business leader of the
Palm Beach Marriott on Singer Island here in Riviera Beach at 3800 N. Ocean Drive.
And I've been in business there for about four months now as the general manager. We
employ over 300 people.
MAYOR MASTERS: Yes.
ROGER AMIDON: But I do want to congratulate, again, Tony Brown, you and your
staff. You did a great job bringing this presentation to this council.
I wanted to touch on a few other facts that Miss Kigel was talking about. We have over
5 million visitors to Palm Beach County. I want to see our fair share in Riviera Beach
and in my hotel and on the hotels throughout this area.
The economic impact by these 5 million visitors to Palm Beach County is $5 billion. I
think Riviera Beach deserves a share of that.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Uh-huh.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Absolutely.
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ROGER AMIDON: The creation of the jobs. A thousand permanent jobs. This is
actually going to be very incredible for this area.
MAYOR MASTERS: That's right.
ROGER AMIDON: Four hundred temporary jobs in construction. The economic impact
is going to be interesting to calculate and I look forward to seeing that number from your
staff, Tony.
The attractions that the tourists that come to Palm Beach County, we have over 300
tourist attractions. We have nine marina districts and this marina district that you all are
going to be creating here is going to be the highlight -- one of the highlights in Palm
Beach County.
The City of West Palm Beach did a fabulous job on their revitalization. But I think
Riviera Beach is going to surpass that. And I'm going to feel proud to be representing
this project, supporting this project, but ultimately referring our guests, over 300,000
guests at my hotel each year, to this marina.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Wow.
ROGER AMIDON: So thank you very much for your time. We look forward to your
support of this project.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Thank you for your comments. Bob Gunsted [phonetic].
Bob Gunsted and then James Williams.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Mr. Gunsted had to leave.
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: I think he left.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Oh, he left? Okay. James Williams?
MAYOR MASTERS: And Madam Chair, while he's coming, um, Roger from Marriott,
from the Palm Beach Shores, I just want to thank you for the countless numbers of jobs
that you've given to our local people. Thank you.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Yeah.
MAYOR MASTERS: You've done -- you're doing good. Through the job fairs. Thank
you.
ROGER AMIDON: Thank you, Mayor.
MAYOR MASTERS: You're welcome.
JAMES WILLIAMS: James Williams, 111 Coral Cay, Palm Beach Gardens. Recently,
1191 Morse Boulevard, Riviera Beach.
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This project, what we've seen tonight, we've waited many years.
MAYOR MASTERS: Too long.
JAMES WILLIAMS: It's something for the City to be proud of. Sure, there are
questions to be asked, because we're beginning to -- excuse me -- scratch the surface
and move down the road finally toward the goal that the city deserves. I think that Mr.
Brown and his staff have done an outstanding job in bringing the right people finally to
the City.
I believe that we have an opportunity that cannot be surpassed. It's something that -pardon me -- it's something that we really need to move forward with. I'm not a resident
of the City any longer. I've been your chair for seven years at the Advisory Board for
the Waterfront.
And to see what Mr. Brown has brought to you -- pardon me -- is an outstanding project.
I think that it's something that -- moving it, there are going to be questions, as I said.
But I think it's something that is very doable.
I have one other thing. I was hoping that maybe tonight when I came and made my
comments I could bring something from the Advisory Board. Your Advisory Board, as of
this time, is defunct. I've spoke to all of y'all continually about this. We were down two
people. I had one of our young members who had an opportunity to advance within his
company and go to Tampa. And when he took that job, we were down to four.
When my property -- I was able to sell my property and we moved my family, you now
cannot have a meeting. We were not able to have a meeting on the 15th. You need
members. Now, I stand here and I hear people make comments and ask questions. I
don't hear the solutions and what this City needs. People need to give back. And I
cannot believe that with the marina industry that we have in this city, that we don't have
capable people that can -- and qualified people -- you need qualified people on that
board to step forward and participate and give back, especially at this time with this
project. I -- it's unbelievable. You know, the people in this city -BONNIE LARSON: Time.
JAMES WILLIAMS: -- have a lot of time. Yes, time.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: (Inaudible) sorry. I'm -- okay, sir.
JAMES WILLIAMS: I'm sorry. But if people in this city -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: I'm daydreaming, I guess.
JAMES WILLIAMS: -- I cannot believe let this board go defunct because they can't
step up to the challenge. You've got a challenge. You need good people in that board
to help you with this decision. It's an advisory board.
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CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Okay. Well, I know they do try to advertise for those
positions on the water -JAMES WILLIAMS: Advertising is not going to do it.
MAYOR MASTERS: That's right.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Okay.
JAMES WILLIAMS: It's arm-twisting. It's going out and -UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Be more aggressive.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: We'll be more aggressive.
JAMES WILLIAMS: -- finding qualified people. I'm sorry.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Miss Robinson. Elizabeth Robinson, is she still here?
MAYOR MASTERS: No, I think she's gone.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Jonathan Rudy?
JONATHAN RUDY: Hi, my name is Jonathan Rudy. Um, I am from all the way up
North in Jupiter. I am one of the hundred entrepreneurs that is very interested in this
plan. And I would like to encourage the construction company and the CRA to consider
building the Market Court so that we can put a greenhouse on top so that we can grow
all of the fresh vegetables that businesses are going to need right on the roof. I think it
would be pretty sexy-looking for the skyline to have, you know, some beautiful steel and
glass and grow all of the fresh vegetables right up there using hydroponics and
aquaponics.
If it's engineered from the beginning, then it's really simple to put one up on top. There's
a company in New York City called Gotham Greens, and it took them about a year and
a half to get the construction done because they had to reinforce the roof. But if it's
planned in, I mean, at the beginning, then you can grow -- one little greenhouse that's
30-by-128 feet can generate 200 heads of lettuce a day.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Wow.
JONATHAN RUDY: And you know, that's a pretty big roof. And so, um, obviously I'm - I'm interested in doing that myself but I just want to -- it doesn't matter who does it but I
think that it's vital that we use all the space and we use it wisely. And if it's engineered
up front, then the cost to the entrepreneur is much lower. Thank you for your time.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: You're welcome.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Thank you, sir, for your comments.
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CHAIR PRO-TEM PARDO: (Inaudible), yeah, thank you.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: That is the last comment card and I will turn it over to staff
if you choose to respond to any of the concerns or questions that have been posed
tonight from our public.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Madam Chair?
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Yes?
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Um, I'd just like to make a few comments before he
finishes. I -- first of all, I want to definitely congratulate all of the teams that have -- that
has been involved, Viking, LiveWorkLearnPlay, Elkus Manfredi, the CRA and the City of
Riviera Beach.
As you know, we did a ribbon-cutting -- what was it, Friday? I believe it was Friday.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Thursday.
CITY MANAGER JONES: Thursday, yes.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Uh-huh.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Thursday. And there were a lot of -- there were a lot of
naysayers about that. But it happened. We did. We stopped finally tripping over
ourselves and worked together and we got it done. We -- we did a ribbon-cutting and
that part of the marina is -- is beautiful.
I'm probably one of the toughest individuals that there are when dealing with this team.
But I must say that I believe that we got it right this time. I really do. I've looked at this
plan. I've examined it. I've turned it upside down. It -- it -- it encompasses what those
Charrettes and the Citizens' Master Plan put out. It encompasses a total environment
for just success.
And you know, I'm -- I'm proud to have worked with the board that we have here that
has been instrumental in providing the leadership to get us to this point. All of my
colleagues here. But regardless of whatever this election does in March, this is
something that we all can be very proud of.
And I don't ask for trust very often. But I'm asking the staff, the citizens most of all to
trust me on this one. This is it. It will continue to happen and it's already, um,
happening. This is something that I fully endorse; I stand on like no tomorrow. I believe
in this plan with every ounce of my being. It's here. It's done. It reminds me of
"Brewster's Million," you know, when he said, "I needed a room that I can die in," you
know?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Die in.
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COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: This is that room. Now, we're not going to take it all the
way. We're gonna make sure it stands. But this is it. And I -- I really, you know, would
hope that the citizens would get totally on board, support our master developer and
team, support the staff, support the City and let's, for once, all push together to make
this happen in its entirety.
So I make -- I wanted to make sure. So all of the little nuances and the little issues that
we might have or whatever, we're going to work those out. But overall, this is a plan
that is very -- this is very doable. You can -- we can swallow it. We can have it in bitesize pieces and we will get this done. So I do want to take this time to congratulate the
team, congratulate my colleagues on this board for sticking together and making this
happen.
And Miss Shepherd, I, too, agree with you. There were a lot of boards before us that
did what they could do to help us springboard off of this. And we've learned some
things from them that we kept and we chose not to do some of the things. But this
board here, I'm very pleased to, you know, have been a part of. And I would like to
continue to be a part of that. Let me throw that in there. I'd like to continue to be a part
of this -- this board. But I do want to say that this is probably one of the most proud
moments that I've had since being an elected official to see what's really come in fruition
with what we have going on.
And you see construction all over the place in Riviera Beach. This is definitely,
definitely a city on the move. So congratulations to you. Congratulations to the citizens.
Congratulations to, you know, my colleagues here. And I'm just very excited, Mr.
Brown.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Okay. What I want to do, because I -- I know people have
been sitting here for quite a long time. And before we make any further comments I
would like to defer to the director to answer some of the questions, concerns that have
been posed here tonight.
DIRECTOR BROWN: And I'll be brief. And I think the first comment is pretty much
what Mr. Thomas said. This has been a team effort. I would be remiss if I didn't thank
the city manager and her staff. I'm lucky to be the face of this redevelopment effort. But
I will tell you, we would not be at this point if Miss Jones had not directed her staff to be
an important part of this process. Mary McKinney, our Director of Community
Development, is at every joint work team meeting. She's working very tirelessly to
provide the -- her own experience and the capacity of her staff. So this has truly been a
partnership effort.
This plan that you see, the investment has solely been funded by Viking. They have
paid the cost in the redevelopment, planning the revision of the conceptual plan by
bringing in top-notch talent, LiveWorkLearnPlay, as well as Elkus Manfredi, one of the
nation's best architectural and land-planning firms. So we share that credit with the
City, as well as with Viking and their partners.
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There were a pattern of -- of -- of questions and comments that I won't go into all of
them. There were questions about Bicentennial Park, is the amphitheater there? Yes,
it is. And there are thoughts of how -- ways in which the staging of events can be not
only in one location but they can move in other areas. And so it is a big part of -- of the
plan.
A variety -- we expected to receive a variety of questions on Spanish Courts. And in
fact, the team was anxious to hear what the public comments would be about Spanish
Courts. And we are working -- we feel the plan saves the trees. The issue of -- of some
dense development made it problematic to do a development that will save the cottages
in a way that would be affordable and -- and sustainable. So -- and we will continue to
hear comments about Spanish Courts, but we felt that it was important that we create
vitality and a life that would create, uh, catalytic development along Broadway.
I think the questions we heard on Newcomb Hall were -- probably was -- that just need
clarity and -- and refinement and -- and we think that we delivered on your promise to
the community that Newcomb Hall would be an anchor. And -- and Elkus Manfredi,
LiveWorkLearnPlay, Viking have made it -- if you really look at the map, you see how
significant that facility is. It is one of the first facilities you see when you come to
Newcomb Hall. So I think we have delivered on your promise to your constituents and
what you wanted Newcomb Hall to be as an anchor.
There was a question about the compliance. And obviously we -- we're presenting what
we feel is a good plan and what leads us to construction. There was a question raised
that, Are we in compliance with the Notice Element Agreement.
The answer is absolutely. The plan -- the Notice Element Agreement called for Viking
to submit its conceptual plan in January, and this is what you see, the presentation.
The plan requires for the board, the council, city council, to approve the plan, and that is
scheduled on February 27th.
If the site plan is approved, our timeline requires that it -- to go through our internal
regulatory process. And we've given it ample time. And as we reported, it would occur
in June of 2013. If, during that planning process, if the expertise at Planning & Zoning
and -- and when it gets -- when we hand the ball off to the City to ensure that the plan
meets zoning and other requirements, if the site plan is changed and changed
materially and -- and this partnership doesn't modify the terms, then Viking is relieved of
its obligation. And -- and we can move forward on our own.
But we think that the plan and hopefully the comments we receive today mean that the
plan would be approved. And so that that -- that negative comment -- that negative
covenant is not exercised. Then after we've delivered and have had the site plan
approved, then we can start the planning process on our public elements. Then there's
some responsibilities that Viking has in its delivery of the private elements.
They'll submit their plans for the Tiki Bar restaurant. It -- it -- the -- the ownership may
change. It may be different owners. It's the Tiki-type restaurant and it's their
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responsibility to come to us with a market proposal that, again, you'll have the
opportunity to approve.
And they are to submit their plans for the other private elements. And -- and as you
heard in the presentation, as part of phase one, the food and beverage along the
boardwalk, the promenade. And if the public has not seen the City's investment at the
waterfront, it is absolutely beautiful.
The city manager and her team have done a wonderful job on the waterfront
development and they're handing the ball off on the upland development. And so we
are leading with the re-development from the east, working our way west. There are
issues that resolve ownership within the marina. When you go east of Avenue C, as
soon as you cross the white picket fence, the City owns most of the real estate, except
the Yachtsman Motel.
We've approached this process irregardless [sic] as to who owns what. So it's a plan
that's incorporated so we'll have to deal with issues related to the Yachtsman and that
ground. We need to also present to you that the private development will be on land
that the City own, will forever own, and will never sell. But we will negotiate ground
lease terms that will be market rate and will be done in -- in a responsible way to deliver
private development.
If we fail in real estate ownership issues, land leases, land swaps, land sales or
whatever, and we don't come to agreement over site controls issues, then the developer
is relieved of their obligation and we move on.
We've identified those. We think those are worst-case scenario. I stand here today
hoping that we won't have to reach that level. But you are protected. And this
development process is structured in a way to ensure that there is compliance.
And I think those were, in a sense, the variety of the questions. Thank you.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Thank you, Mr. Brown. And continue with comments.
Miss Pardo, any comments?
CHAIR PRO-TEM PARDO: I do have some comments. Thank you, Madam Chair. I
was -- when I sat down with Viking and the CRA and City staff yesterday, I was
extremely pleased with the plan that Viking and their consultants came up with. It's
great. And I think it encompasses everything that the community has been asking for
for years.
We've been asking for additional working waterfront. We have that. We've been asking
for more community space. We have that. There's a big push in the City to have a
public market. The public market is going to be a showcase in the marina. The
development will bring a tremendous number of jobs. And, um, it's just -- it's great. I
can't wait to get a shovel in the ground.
One thing that we really need to, um, you know, focus on is -- and I talked to the chief
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about this before -- we all know and we're going to strive to make the marina an
international destination. We have a defense contractor just north of the marina and
then we have the Port of Palm Beach just south of the marina.
We really need to do a security study to see, you know -- a very in-depth security study.
And -- and hopefully, you know, instead of putting security down on the south end, I
think it really needs to be prominent. You know, we don't need a building that says
"Security." Maybe it can be inside Newcomb Hall or something. But that's something
that we really need to look at. You know, if we're going to try to get larger boats in and - other than that, it's a great plan. You know, there's things that, like Mr. Thomas said,
you know -- other things that need to be worked out, you know, financially. But all in all,
it's a great plan. Thank you so much. I can't wait to get a shovel in the ground. Thank
you.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Miss Davis?
COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: Thank you Madam Chair. Particularly when we talked
about the Health and Wellness piece, um, it reminded me of a trip that this council took
when we went to Vancouver to visit the public market there. And there was a place
within there -- a section within this area that, um, had a health and wellness clinic and
also provided little one-room -- tiny little rooms for people who may have been homeless
or family member who may have needed a place to stay. So when I saw this in the plan
I was really happy to see that.
Also, as I stated at the ribbon-cutting the other day, as you can see, we're moving
forward with the public in mind. I think everything in this plan dictates that. It's -- it's -you can see that the public has been included. And it's all that really -- everyone has
asked for.
And agreeing with Mr. Thomas, I think we all need to get on board and sing the same
song, spread the same message. Everybody needs to -- to be saying the same thing.
So, you know, two and a half years ago, Mr. Brown, I knew you were the right person
for the job. And I'm very proud of you. City Manager Mrs. Jones and all the staff, all the
hours that you've put into this, Viking, for hanging in there with us, this is -- this plan is
fantastic. Thank you very much.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Mr. Lowe?
COUNCILPERSON LOWE: Yes, ma'am. Thank you. When I first got involved in this - this project in 2007, uh, new on the board, and wet around the ears and not really
knowing which way we were -- we were headed, and one of the smartest moves that we
made was to invite Treasure Coast in and -- and start re-directing the certain elements
that -- that existed and making the best out of what we had.
And over the course of, uh, the last six years, we've seen a lot of things happen in this -this area. In fact, we came so close to missing out on this opportunity today. If it wasn't
for efforts by the Citizens' Task Force -- and we all know the things that transpired over
the last six years.
CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP

JANUARY 30, 2013

38

But all in all, we kept to some basic principles. We committed to amending the comp
plan. I meant the comp plan, then the master development plan. We did the land use
plan and we, you know -- those things took at least, from a -- a minimum, 12 to 18 to
two -- two years in some cases.
And those things were initiated but, you know, we took those steps. And people didn't
realize that. But now they've all culminated into this. We've gotten all of our approvals
thanks to Miss McKinney and her staff and the city manager and -- and their staff and
the CRA.
But, um, a turning point -- and a turning point came when we started spending our own
money. When we put our money up front and put our money where our mouths -- we
stood up and said, you know, Now is the time that if anybody's gonna commit, we were
gonna be first. And look where we are now.
I'm anxious to make this vote on the 27th. This will be my last vote as a commissioner,
one of the last few votes. I hope to be around in June in a different capacity. It just
depends on how the public feels about me being the new mayor of this city. But I can
leave comfortably. I can say that. Because of what has transpired. And, you know, I -I came to effect change and to be involved in change and -- and it's happened.
So I'm satisfied and I'm glad we're to this point and I'm comfortable moving on. I am. I
can honestly say that. And I'm proud of, uh, the board and we've -- we're there. We're
at 95 percent. We'll be crossing the finish line within the next couple of weeks. And I
just want to thank everybody.
And we almost lost Viking. There was some -- you know, there was some talk about,
you know, moving on without them. But I'm glad we -- we stuck with them and we're
married now, man. You -- you guys can't go anywhere. So -- yeah, you're stuck. We're
stuck. So -- but this is -- this is nice. And I appreciate everybody that had a part in -- in
all of this. Thank you.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: After the Mayor, I'll -- and believe me, I won't have much to
say. It's pretty much been said. But, Mayor, I'll defer to you so that you can say what
you have to say.
MAYOR MASTERS: Thank you, Madam Chair. Well, first of all, let me just say this
and get this on the record and out the way. I hope that all the polls are correct. And if
they are correct, I hope to continue to be the mayor of the City of Riviera Beach.
So, um, let's remember that leadership is so important. You've heard people say
tonight that this team has -- it's the best team we've had. Everyone in their respective
places have played a role to make it happen. So I'm -- I'm confident. I'm not worried
about any shakeups or any changes. It's not broken. There's nothing to fix.
I'm certainly proud of the master plan because it has the Master's man name, Master
Plan, Master man. So I'm always happy to see a master plan, Mr. -- but let me just say
this in -- in a very serious way. It's come -- it's taken a long time to get here. But where
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there's no struggle, there's no progress. There's been a struggle but now we see the
vision. We see it coming into fruition. And I'm thankful and I'm blessed to have been in
the -- in this -- in this capacity as -- as mayor and as a leader to help whatever way -- I
don't have a vote but we have a voice. We have a presence.
And I don't think there's any doubt that we're not connected to the community, which is
so important. And for me it's all about the people. It's all about meeting the needs of
the people. And as the Mayor, I look forward to March the 12th and after March the 12th,
to continue to give leadership, to give presence, and to do whatever I can to be a -- I
don't want to use the word "spokesperson," 'cause we have a person that's supposed to
be that. But to be an ambassador for this plan and other projects, as -- as well.
I support it 200 percent. And I know that Scripture clearly states where there's no
vision, the people perish. The vision is here. The harvest is plentiful but the labors are
few. Without faith, works is dead. So we gotta do the work and make it happen.
So a couple of questions that I -- that I do want to ask as we look at the -- at the plan.
And they're not major questions. But I'm always concerned about the local people.
Local businesses. Oft times when we have big projects, sometimes local people have
said to me, "Well, we got left out. There weren't any jobs for us," or, "They hired other
people from other parts of the country." So I pray and hope that we will not leave
anyone out, that the local people of the community will have an opportunity to work
there and to be a part of the -- of the process, as well.
And having said that, for the local businesses, I don't know whether this question is to
Tony or the, um, manager. I don't know who. But Mayor Muoio, very fine Mayor of
West Palm Beach, just came out not long ago -- and we -- and I think it's a great idea -that the local city was offering some incentives to local businesses to come into that
certain area or whatever. Do we have anything like that to offer our local businesses as
-COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: No, (inaudible).
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: (Inaudible).
MAYOR MASTERS: Excuse me. I'm -- I -- I didn't interrupt anybody and I didn't talk -COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: I wasn't talking to you, Mayor. I can talk to somebody if I
want.
MAYOR MASTERS: -- well -COUNCILPERSON DAVIS: (Inaudible).
MAYOR MASTERS: Yeah. But -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Okay. Order. Let's -- let's just continue. People are trying
to get out of here and go home.
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MAYOR MASTERS: -- you -- you -- when you start -- I -- I can't talk when others are
talking.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: I know I am.
MAYOR MASTERS: And I know you weren't trying to talk but, you know, it's disturbing.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: We're going to kind of have to wind it up, though.
MAYOR MASTERS: I'm asking a question. And I'm -- I expect an answer without
interruption. Thank you.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: (Inaudible).
DIRECTOR BROWN: Yes, Mr. Mayor. We -- we have approved a series of grant
incentive programs. Today we deferred it since most of our investments are in large
infrastructural projects. What the CRA board and what we've -- what I promised the
CRA board is that we'll come back with our grant incentive programs, uh, likely in 2014,
maybe 2015.
MAYOR MASTERS: Thank you. The other thing I want -- want to know -- and these
are concerns that I -- I hear from local people. Again, it's about the people for me. And
it's about the people for all of us. Is there any plan, either in this plan or some other
plan, that we will ever have a movie theater or a bowling alley in the City of Riviera
Beach?
DIRECTOR BROWN: This current plan doesn't include a movie theater. And I won't go
into all the reasons why it might be difficult to attract one. But the Market Court is
designed to be retail and entertainment and the space can be programmed to meet
what Richard presented in his LiveWorkLearnPlay presentation, the business
recruitment strategy, is an idea that can be sustainable and that an operator that can
bring it to fruition.
MAYOR MASTERS: Okay. And thank you so much. It's just that when I came to the
City we had a bowling alley on Broadway. And -- and I'm really just tired of leaving the
City to go to a movie theater. So those are kind of questions that people ask, Are we
gonna get a movie theater? Are we gonna have a bowling alley? So hopefully one day
we'll get there.
But I don't think anyone should find fault with this plan. Even the devil himself. Let's
move forward and let's continue. Thank you.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Well, very quickly I'll end by saying just thanks to everyone
for all of your hard work. Thank you for keeping the faith. When I was elected in 2009, I
can recall that there was an attempt maybe to kind of kick Viking to the curb. But when
I realized that this was a company that had come into this community and had invested
themselves into this community with the Marine Academy -- and I want to say this, also,
and I hope I don't embarrass, um, Bob, Jr. The day that I visited with you all I was so
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impressed that you were returning from Africa where you have constructed a -- it was
some kind of medical facility?
ROBERT HEALEY: We -- we reconstructed a hospital in Sierra Leone, Africa, and we
continue to support 89 percent of the non-governmental medical relief that goes into
that country.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: I don't think they heard you.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: See, I just want people to know that this is a company that
really believes in people. And they invest -- it's not about just making a profit but it's
also about helping. There -- there are many other programs that I had an opportunity to
hear about as I visited them, that they're planning in -- in their own community. And I
just want to thank you so much for staying in there. I want to thank Mr. Brown, the staff,
the CDC people, everyone for -- for what you've done to make this come to a reality.
And we can see the benefit now of public/private partnerships.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: We're married.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: We're married. No divorce. Here to stay long term. Okay.
Well, anyway, thank you so much and thank all of you for coming out tonight.
COUNCILPERSON LOWE: Madam Chair?
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: And I'll -- I'll -- I'll -- coming out tonight and showing your
support. For those persons who have concerns, I just hope that we will, you know,
come together and work together and realize that we're just trying to do what is best for
the community. And it is going to work. So thank you again so much. And Councilman
Lowe?
COUNCILPERSON LOWE: Yeah, right quick. I just want to address one concern of
the Mayor's about the local component and local participation. In fact, we're already -that already exists. We have a market that is currently -- I can't say enough about our
market. But this is -- this is the opportunity for locals to get in and we've been doing it
for the last four month -- four weeks or six weeks.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Seven.
COUNCILPERSON LOWE: Seven weeks. And we got another six weeks going. So
this is that gateway. This is that window into -- if you want to establish a relationship in
terms of being a partner in our public market. This is where it's starting.
And the gentleman who mentioned the hydroponics and aquaponics, right at the
Maritime Academy, they're experimenting with that. And the farmers that we have out
at the public market were talking with the Maritime Academy to partner with them to also
produce locally grown vegetables in the area. So all -- those -- these things are
happening as we speak. And I hope to see folks out this Saturday at the market. So --
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CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Oh, I thought the market was closed.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: Miss Brooks? Miss Brooks?
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Yes. Yes. Yes.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: I definitely just want to make sure we -- that we don't
leave out the CDC board -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: I did thank them.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: -- uh, that has been instrumental -CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: I did thank them.
COUNCILPERSON THOMAS: -- so I just definitely wanted to congratulate them, as
well.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: I did thank the CDC. Thank you.
CHAIR PRO-TEM PARDO: Motion to adjourn.
CHAIRPERSON BROOKS: Motion to adjourn.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: So moved.
(CONCLUSION OF WORKSHOP)
Transcribed by: slw/alw
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APPROVED:

______________________________
THOMAS A. MASTERS
MAYOR

________________________________
BRUCE A. GUYTON
COUNCILPERSON

ATTEST:

_______________________________
CARRIE E. WARD
MASTER MUNICIPAL CLERK
CITY CLERK

________________________________
JUDY L. DAVIS
COUNCILPERSON

________________________________
CEDRICK A. THOMAS
COUNCILPERSON

_______________________________
DAWN S. PARDO
COUNCILPERSON

_______________________________
TERENCE D. DAVIS
COUNCILPERSON
MOTIONED BY:
SECONDED BY:
B. GUYTON
J. DAVIS
C. THOMAS
D. PARDO
T. DAVIS
DATE APPROVED: 03/20/2013
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CITY OF RIVIERA BEACH CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Meeting Date:

3/20/2013

Agenda Category:

CONSENT
RESOLUTION

Subject:

Accepting the State Aid to Libraries Grant in the amount of $16,301.00.

Recommendation/Motion:

Staff recommends that City Council accepts the State Aid to
Libraries Grant in accordance with the attached budget for
expenditures.

Originating
Dept.

Library

Costs:

User Dept.

Library

Funding Source:

Advertised:

No

Budget Account
Number:

-0-

137-00-334703 - General Fund
137-1336-571-0-3404 - Contract
Services - Personal
137-1336-571-0-5201 - Operating
Supplies - General
137-1336-571-0-6601 - Books,
Publications

Date:
Paper:
Affected
Parties:

Not
Required

Background/Summary:
On September 27, 2012, the Riviera Beach Public Library submitted an application for funding to the
State Library and Information Services Division of Florida for a State Aid to Libraries Grant. On
February 14, 2013, the Riviera Beach Public Library received notification of the award. These funds
will be used as stated in the Guidelines and Application, Section IX. "Use of Grant Funds, "
Subsection B, "for the operation and maintenance of the library and not for the purchase or
construction of a library building or library quarters."
II. Fiscal Impact Analysis

A. Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact:
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Fiscal Years
Capital Expenditures
Operating Costs

$16,301.00

External Revenues

$16,301.00

Program Income (city)
In-kind Match (city)
$ -0-

Net Fiscal Impact
NO. Additional FTE Positions (cumulative)

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

Is Item Included in Current Budget? No
Budget Account NO: 137-00-334703 - General Fund
137-1336-571-0-3404 - Contract Services - Personal
137-1336-571-0-5201 - Operating Supplies - General
137-1336-571-0-6601 - Books, Publications
B. Recommended Sources of Funds/Summary of Fiscal Impact :
C. Department Fiscal Review
III. Review Comments
A. Finance Department Comments:
B. Purchasing/Intergovernmental Relations/Grants Comments
C. Department Director Review
Contract Details
Contract Start Date

February 8, 2013

Contract End Date

February 8, 2014

Renewal Start Date
Renewal End Date
Number of 12 month terms this
renewal
Dollar Amount

$16,301.00

Contractor Company Name

Florida Department of State; Division of Library & Information
Services

Contractor Contact

Ms. Marian Deeney, Grant Program Administrator

Contractor Address

R. A. Gray Building
500 South Bronough Street
Tallahassee, FL 32399-0250

Contractor Phone Number

(850) 245-6620

Contractor Email

marian.deeney@dos.myflorida.com

Type of Contract

Other

Describe

Agreement

ATTACHMENTS:
Name:

Description:

Resolution_-_Library_State_Aid_Grant_Funding.pdf

Resolution - State Aid Funds

Agreement_-_State_Aid_Grant_Funding_to_Libraries.pdf

Agreement - State Aid Grant Funding to Libraries

CITY OF RIVIERA BEACH CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Meeting Date:

3/20/2013

Agenda Category:

CONSENT
RESOLUTION

Subject:

Resolution of the City Council of the City of Riviera Beach, Palm Beach County,
Florida, authorizing the mayor and City Clerk to execute Interlocal Agreement
between the City of Riviera Beach and the Board of County Commissioners, Palm
Beach County, for acceptance of grant funds of the U.S. Department of Justice, Office
of Justice Programs for the development of the Youth Violence Prevention Project.
The grant in the amount of $46,494, to the Youth Empowerment Teen Program;
authorizing the Finance Director to set up a budget for the same and provide for an
effective date.

Recommendation/Motion:

Staff recommends approval of Resolution

Originating
Dept.

City Manager

Costs:

User Dept.

Youth
Empowerment
Teen Program

Funding
Source:

Advertised:

No

Budget
Account
Number:

$46,494

151-0202-569-3-1201 Salary: P/T Youth
Worker $8500
151-0202-569-3-2101 FICA $650
151-0202-569-3-5201 Program Supplies
$1794
151-0202-569-3-3101 Summer Job
Shawdowning/Internships $12,500
151-0202-569-3-3101 Miscellaneous (youth
intern backgrounds/physicals/screenings)
$1200
151-0202-569-3-3101 Professional Services
$8850 (Music Studio training, Digital
Media/etc.)
151-0202-569-3-4701 Marketing/Printing
(flyers, t-shirts, banners, program
advertisements) $6500
151-0202-569-3-8300 Incentives/Aids (crime
prevention or service learning opportunities)
$5000

Date:
Paper:
Affected
Parties:

Not Required

Background/Summary:
On October 10th, 2010, the Board of County Commissioners approved funding to initiate partnerships
with the cities to implement the Youth Violence Prevention Project. Out of this partnership the Youth
Empowerment Teen Program(s) were established throughout the county and in Riviera Beach. The
Youth Empowerment Teen Program is a violence prevention/intervention program providing services
to youth 13-19 years of age. These services include but are not limited to: job/career readiness
training, vocational programs, summer career internship programs, mentoring programs,
individual/group tutoring, ACT/SAT prep, school advocacy/case management, life skills/skill building
classes, anti-violence classes, art/cultural activities, referral services, family counseling, recreation,
etc.
The City's Youth Empowerment Teen Program officially opened in February 2007, with the goal of
providing a positive environment for youth develpment through open communications, education,
culture, mentoring, and skill building programs designed to entice young minds to become hungry for
success. The program focuses on promoting youth education, comprehensive anti-gang prevention
strategies and skill building/employability skill classes to alleviate youth violence, teen pregnancies
and drop out prevention/intervention. Palm Beach County, through the Criminal Justice Commission
received a grant award from U.S. Department of justice, Office of Justice Programs. Note the
attachments depicting a breakdown of the funding on the budget summary sheet.
II. Fiscal Impact Analysis
A. Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact:
2013

Fiscal Years
Capital Expenditures
Operating Costs
External Revenues
Program Income (city)
In-kind Match (city)
Net Fiscal Impact
NO. Additional FTE Positions (cumulative)
Is Item Included in Current Budget? No
Budget Account
NO:

151-0202-569-3-1201 Salary: P/T Youth Worker $8500
151-0202-569-3-2101 FICA $650
151-0202-569-3-5201 Program Supplies $1794
151-0202-569-3-3101 Summer Job Shawdowning/Internships $12,500
151-0202-569-3-3101 Miscellaneous (youth intern
backgrounds/physicals/screenings) $1200

151-0202-569-3-3101 Professional Services $8850 (Music Studio training,
Digital Media/etc.)
151-0202-569-3-4701 Marketing/Printing (flyers, t-shirts, banners, program
advertisements) $6500
151-0202-569-3-8300 Incentives/Aids (crime prevention or service learning
opportunities) $5000
B. Recommended Sources of Funds/Summary of Fiscal Impact :
C. Department Fiscal Review
III. Review Comments
A. Finance Department Comments:
B. Purchasing/Intergovernmental Relations/Grants Comments
C. Department Director Review
Contract Details
Contract Start Date
Contract End Date
Renewal Start Date
Renewal End Date
Number of 12 month terms this renewal
Dollar Amount
Contractor Company Name
Contractor Contact
Contractor Address
Contractor Phone Number
Contractor Email
Type of Contract
Describe
ATTACHMENTS:
Name:

Description:

RB_YEC_2013_JAG_Funds_(2)_Revised_by_City_of_RB[1].docx

Interlocal Agreement

ojjdp_grant_resolution.doc

Resolution

I TERLOCAL AGREEME T BETWEE PALM BEACH COU TY, FLORIDA
A D THE CITY OF RIVIERA BEACH, FLORIDA
THIS I TERLOCAL AGREEME T (hereinafter “Interlocal Agreement” or “Agreement” or
“Contract”) is made as of this day _________________, 2013, by and between Palm Beach
County, a Political Subdivision of the State of Florida, by and through its Board of
Commissioners, hereinafter referred to as the COUNTY, and the City of Riviera Beach, a
municipality located in Palm Beach County, Florida, authorized to do business in the State of
Florida, hereinafter referred to as the CITY, each one constituting a public agency as defined in
Part I of Chapter 163, Florida Statutes.
In consideration of the mutual promises contained herein, the COUNTY and the CITY agree as
follows:
ARTICLE 1 - SERVICES
The CITY'S responsibility under this INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT is to participate in the
YOUTH VIOLENCE PREVENTION PROJECT and operate a YOUTH EMPOWERMENT
CENTER, as more specifically set forth in the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit "A."
The COUNTY'S representative/liaison during the performance of this AGREEMENT shall be
Brenda Oakes, telephone no. 355-1617.
The CITY’S representative/liaison during the performance of this AGREEMENT shall be
Valerie Grimsley, telephone number 840-0135.
ARTICLE 2 - SCHEDULE
This Agreement will be effective from February 1, 2013 through September 30, 2013. The
parties agree that the CITY will be entitled to payment for services rendered beginning on
February 1, 2013, notwithstanding the date the Agreement is executed by the Board of County
Commissioners.
ARTICLE 3 - PAYME TS TO CITY
A. The total amount to be paid by the COUNTY under this INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT for
all services and materials shall not exceed a total contract price of FORTY-SIX THOUSAND
AND FOUR HUNDRED AND NINETY-FOUR DOLLARS ($46,494). The COUNTY will not
reimburse the CITY for “out-of-pocket” expenses. The CITY shall notify the COUNTY's
representative in writing when 90% of the "not to exceed amount" has been reached. The CITY
will bill the COUNTY on a monthly basis, or as otherwise provided, at the amounts set forth in
Exhibit "B" for services rendered toward the completion of the Scope of Work. Where
incremental billings for partially completed items are permitted, the total billings shall not
exceed the estimated percentage of completion as of the billing date.
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B. The CITY shall submit monthly programmatic reports and monthly financial invoices to the
COUNTY, which will include a reference to this INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT, identify the
project and identify the amount due and payable to the CITY, as well as confirmation of the
CITY’s expenditures for the Project.
C. Invoices received from the CITY pursuant to this INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT will be
reviewed and approved by the COUNTY's representative, to verify that services have been
rendered in conformity with the INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT. Approved invoices will then be
sent to the Finance Department for payment. Invoices will normally be paid within thirty (30)
days following the COUNTY representative's approval.
D. The COUNTY’S Executive Director of the Criminal Justice Commission may authorize
adjustments in the budget of up to 10% provided there is not an increase in the total amount. The
COUNTY’S representative shall review in advance all capital, event, and trip expenses in excess
of $500.00. All events/trips must have their own budgets. All equipment and capital items
costing more than $300.00 shall be inventoried and marked. A list of all such items shall be
provided to the COUNTY’S representative within twenty (20) days of receipt and prior to
payment by the COUNTY.
E. Final Invoice: In order for both parties herein to close their books and records, the CITY
will clearly state "final invoice" on the CITY'S final/last billing to the COUNTY. This shall
constitute CITY’S certification that all services have been properly performed and all charges
and costs have been invoiced to Palm Beach County. Any other charges not properly included on
this final invoice are waived by the CITY.
ARTICLE 4 - TRUTH-I - EGOTIATIO CERTIFICATE
Signature of this INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT by the CITY shall also act as the execution of a
truth-in-negotiation certificate certifying that the wage rates, over-head charges, and other costs
used to determine the compensation provided for in this INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT are
accurate, complete and current as of the date of the INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT and no
higher than those charged the CITY'S most favored customer for the same or substantially
similar service.
The said rates and costs shall be adjusted to exclude any significant sums should the COUNTY
determine that the rates and costs were increased due to inaccurate, incomplete or noncurrent
wage rates or due to inaccurate representations of fees paid to outside CITYs. The COUNTY
shall exercise its rights under this Article 4 within three (3) years following final payment.
ARTICLE 5 - TERMI ATIO
This INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT may be terminated by the CITY upon sixty (60) days' prior
written notice to the COUNTY's representative in the event of substantial failure by the
COUNTY to perform in accordance with the terms of this INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT
through no fault of the CITY. It may also be terminated, in whole or in part, by the COUNTY,
with or without cause, immediately upon written notice to the CITY. Unless the CITY is in
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breach of this INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT, the CITY shall be paid for services rendered to
the COUNTY'S satisfaction through the date of termination. After receipt of a Termination
Notice and except as otherwise directed by the COUNTY the CITY shall:
A. Stop work on the date and to the extent specified.
B. Terminate and settle all orders and subcontracts relating to the performance of the
terminated work.
C. Transfer all work in process, completed work, and other materials related to the
terminated work to the COUNTY, including program, capital and equipment items
purchased.
D. Continue and complete all parts of the work that have not been terminated.
ARTICLE 6 - PERSO

EL

The CITY represents that it has, or will secure at its own expense, all necessary personnel
required to perform the services and related operations required under this INTERLOCAL
AGREEMENT. Such personnel shall not be employees of or have any contractual relationship
with the COUNTY.
All of the services required herein under shall be performed by the CITY or under its
supervision, and all personnel engaged in performing the services shall be fully qualified and, if
required, authorized or permitted under state and local law to perform such services.
Any changes or substitutions in the CITY'S key personnel must be made known to the
COUNTY'S representative and written approval must be granted by the COUNTY's
representative before said change or substitution can become effective.
The CITY warrants that all services shall be performed by skilled and competent personnel to the
highest professional standards in the field.
All of the CITY’S personnel (and all subcontractors), while on COUNTY premises, will comply
with all COUNTY requirements governing conduct, safety and security.
ARTICLE 7 - FEDERAL A D STATE TAX
The COUNTY is exempt from payment of Florida State Sales and Use Taxes. The CITY shall be
responsible for payment of its own and its share of its employees' payroll, payroll taxes, and
benefits with respect to this INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT.
ARTICLE 8 - AVAILABILITY OF FU DS
The COUNTY'S performance and obligation to pay under this INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT
for subsequent fiscal years are contingent upon annual appropriations for its purpose by the
Board of County Commissioners.
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ARTICLE 9 - I SURA CE
Without waiving the right to sovereign immunity as provided by Section 768.28, Florida
Statutes, the CITY acknowledges to be self-insured for General Liability and Automobile
Liability under Florida sovereign immunity statutes with coverage limits of $200,000 Per Person
and $300,000 Per Occurrence; or such monetary waiver limits that may change and be set forth
by the legislature.
In the event CITY maintains third-party Commercial General Liability and Business Auto
Liability in lieu of exclusive reliance of self-insurance Section 768.28, Florida Statutes, the
CITY shall agree to maintain said insurance policies at limits not less than $500,000 combined
single limit for bodily injury or property damage.
The CITY agrees to maintain or to be self-insured for Worker’s Compensation & Employer’s
Liability insurance in accordance with Florida Statute 440.
When requested, the CITY shall provide an affidavit or Certificate of Insurance evidencing
insurance, self-insurance and/or sovereign immunity status, which the COUNTY agrees to
recognize as acceptable for the above mentioned coverages. Compliance with the foregoing
requirements shall not relieve the CITY of its liability and obligations under this Interlocal
Agreement.
ARTICLE 10 – I DEM IFICATIO
Without waving sovereign immunity, the CITY shall protect, defend, reimburse, indemnify and
hold COUNTY, its agents, employees and elected officers harmless from and against all claims,
liability, expense, loss, cost, damages or causes of action of every kind or character, including
attorney’s fees and costs, whether at trial or appellate levels or otherwise, arising during and as a
result of their performance of the terms of this INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT or due to the acts
or omissions of the CITY.
ARTICLE l1 - SUCCESSORS A D ASSIG S
The COUNTY and the CITY each binds itself and its partners, successors, executors,
administrators and assigns to the other party and to the partners, successors, executors,
administrators and assigns of such other party, in respect to all covenants of this INTERLOCAL
AGREEMENT. Except as above, neither the COUNTY nor the CITY shall assign, sublet,
convey or transfer its interest in this INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT without the prior written
consent of the other.
ARTICLE 12 - REMEDIES
This INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT shall be governed by the laws of the State of Florida. Any
legal action necessary to enforce the INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT will be held in Palm Beach
County. No remedy herein conferred upon any party is intended to be exclusive of any other
remedy, and each and every such remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to every
other remedy given hereunder or now or hereafter existing at law or in equity, by statute or
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otherwise. No single or partial exercise by any party of any right, power, or remedy hereunder
shall preclude any other or further exercise thereof.
No provision of this INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT is intended to, or shall be construed to,
create any third party beneficiary or to provide any rights to any person or entity not a party to
this INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT, including but not limited to any citizen or employees of the
COUNTY and/or CITY.
ARTICLE l3 - CO FLICT OF I TEREST
The CITY represents that it presently has no interest and shall acquire no interest, either direct or
indirect, which would conflict in any manner with the performance of services required
hereunder, as provided for in Chapter 112, Part III, Florida Statutes, and the Palm Beach County
Code of Ethics. The CITY further represents that no person having any such conflict of interest
shall be employed for said performance of services.
The CITY shall promptly notify the COUNTY's representative, in writing, by certified mail, of
all potential conflicts of interest of any prospective business association, interest or other
circumstance which may influence or appear to influence the CITY'S judgement or quality of
services being provided hereunder. Such written notification shall identify the prospective
business association, interest or circumstance, the nature of work that the CITY may undertake
and request an opinion of the COUNTY as to whether the association, interest or circumstance
would, in the opinion of the COUNTY, constitute a conflict of interest if entered into by the
CITY. The COUNTY agrees to notify the CITY of its opinion by certified mail within thirty (30)
days of receipt of notification by the CITY. If, in the opinion of the COUNTY, the prospective
business association, interest or circumstance would not constitute a conflict of interest by the
CITY, the COUNTY shall so state in the notification and the CITY shall, at its option, enter into
said association, interest or circumstance and it shall be deemed not in conflict of interest with
respect to services provided to the COUNTY by the CITY under the terms of this
INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT.
ARTICLE 14 - EXCUSABLE DELAYS
The CITY shall not be considered in default by reason of any failure in performance if such
failure arises out of causes reasonably beyond the control of the CITY or its subcontractors and
without their fault or negligence. Such causes include, but are not limited to, acts of God, force
majeure, natural or public health emergencies, labor disputes, freight embargoes, and abnormally
severe and unusual weather conditions.
Upon the CITY'S request, the COUNTY shall consider the facts and extent of any failure to
perform the work and, if the CITY'S failure to perform was without it or its subcontractors fault
or negligence, the INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT Schedule and/or any other affected provision
of this INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT shall be revised accordingly, subject to the COUNTY'S
rights to change, terminate, or stop any or all of the work at any time.
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ARTICLE 15 - ARREARS
The CITY shall not pledge the COUNTY'S credit or make it a guarantor of payment or surety for
any INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT, debt, obligation, judgement, lien, or any form of
indebtedness. The CITY further warrants and represents that it has no obligation or indebtedness
that would impair its ability to fulfill the terms of this INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT.
ARTICLE 16 - I DEPE DE T CO TRACTOR RELATIO SHIP
The CITY is, and shall be, in the performance of all work services and activities under this
INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT, an Independent Contractor, and not an employee, agent, or
servant of the COUNTY. All persons engaged in any of the work or services performed pursuant
to this INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT shall at all times, and in all places, be subject to the
CITY'S sole direction, supervision, and control. The CITY shall exercise control over the means
and manner in which it and its employees perform the work, and in all respects the CITY'S
relationship and the relationship of its employees to the COUNTY shall be that of an
Independent Contractor and not as employees or agents of the COUNTY.
The CITY does not have the power or authority to bind the COUNTY in any promise, agreement
or representation.
ARTICLE 17 - CO TI GE T FEES
The CITY warrants that it has not employed or retained any company or person, other than a
bona fide employee working solely for the CITY to solicit or secure this INTERLOCAL
AGREEMENT and that it has not paid or agreed to pay any person, company, corporation,
individual, or firm, other than a bona fide employee working solely for the CITY, any fee,
commission, percentage, gift, or any other consideration contingent upon or resulting from the
award or making of this INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT.
ARTICLE 18 - ACCESS A D AUDITS
The CITY shall maintain adequate records to justify all charges, expenses, and costs incurred in
estimating and performing the work for at least three (3) years after completion or termination of
this INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT. The COUNTY shall have access to such books, records,
and documents as required in this section for the purpose of inspection or audit during normal
business hours, at the CITY'S place of business.
Palm Beach County has established the Office of the Inspector General in Palm Beach County
Code, Section 2-421 - 2-440, as may be amended. The Inspector General’s authority includes but
is not limited to the power to review past, present and proposed County INTERLOCAL
AGREEMENTS, transactions, accounts and records, to require the production of records, and to
audit, investigate, monitor, and inspect the activities of the CITY, its officers, agents, employees,
and lobbyists in order to ensure compliance with INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT requirements
and detect corruption and fraud.
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Failure to cooperate with the Inspector General or interfering with or impeding any investigation
shall be in violation of Palm Beach County Code, Section 2-421 - 2-440, and punished pursuant
to Section 125.69, Florida Statutes, in the same manner as a second degree misdemeanor.
ARTICLE 19 – O DISCRIMI ATIO
The CITY warrants and represents that all of its employees are treated equally during
employment without regard to race, color, religion, disability, sex, age, national origin, ancestry,
marital status, familial status, sexual orientation, gender identity and expression.
ARTICLE 20 - AUTHORITY TO PRACTICE
The CITY hereby represents and warrants that it has and will continue to maintain all licenses
and approvals required to conduct its business, and that it will at all times conduct its business
activities in a reputable manner. Proof of such licenses and approvals shall be submitted to the
COUNTY's representative upon request.
ARTICLE 21 – SEVERABILITY
If any term or provision of this INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT, or the application thereof to any
person or circumstances shall, to any extent, be held invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of
this INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT, or the application of such terms or provision, to persons or
circumstances other than those as to which it is held invalid or unenforceable, shall not be
affected, and every other term and provision of this INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT shall be
deemed valid and enforceable to the extent permitted by law.
ARTICLE 22 - PUBLIC E TITY CRIMES
As provided in F.S. 287.132-133, by entering into this INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT or
performing any work in furtherance hereof, the CITY certifies that it, its affiliates, suppliers,
subcontractors and CITYs who will perform hereunder, have not been placed on the convicted
vendor list maintained by the State of Florida Department of Management Services within the 36
months immediately preceding the date hereof. This notice is required by F.S. 287.133(3)(a).

ARTICLE 23 - OTICE
All notices required in this INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT shall be sent by certified mail, return
receipt requested, hand delivery or other delivery service requiring signed acceptance. If sent to
the COUNTY, notices shall be addressed to:
Michael Rodriguez, Executive Director
Palm Beach County Criminal Justice Commission
301 North Olive Avenue – 10th floor
West Palm Beach, FL 33401
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With copy to:
Palm Beach County Attorney’s Office
301 North Olive Ave. – 6th floor
West Palm Beach, Florida 33401
If sent to the CITY, notices shall be addressed to:
Mayor, Thomas Masters
600 West Blue Heron Blvd
Riviera Beach, FL 33404
ARTICLE 24 - E TIRETY OF CO TRACTUAL AGREEME T
The COUNTY and the CITY agree that this INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT sets forth the entire
agreement between the parties, and that there are no promises or understandings other than those
stated herein. None of the provisions, terms and conditions contained in this INTERLOCAL
AGREEMENT may be added to, modified, superseded or otherwise altered, except by written
instrument executed by the parties.
ARTICLE 25 - CRIMI AL HISTORY RECORDS CHECK
The CITY shall conduct a Criminal History Records Check including fingerprinting for all CITY
employees or subcontractors who are in direct contact with youth program participants as per
Florida Statute, Chapter 435.
ARTICLE 26 - REGULATIO S; LICE SI G REQUIREME TS
The CITY shall comply with all laws, ordinances and regulations applicable to the services
contemplated herein, to include those applicable to conflict of interest and collusion. CITY is
presumed to be familiar with all federal, state and local laws, ordinances, codes and regulations
that may in any way affect the services offered.

THE REMAI DER OF THIS PAGE WAS LEFT BLA K I TE TIO ALLY.
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I WIT ESS WHEREOF, the Board of County Commissioners of Palm Beach County,
Florida has made and executed this INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT on behalf of the COUNTY
and CITY has hereunto set its hand the day and year above written.

PALM BEACH COU TY
BOARD OF COU TY COMMISSIO ERS
By:______________________________
Michael L. Rodriguez, Executive Director
Criminal Justice Commission

CITY: Riviera Beach, FL
By: ________________________________
Thomas A. Masters, Mayor

APPROVED AS TO FORM
A D LEGAL SUFFICIE CY
By_________________________
Assistant County Attorney

APPROVED AS TO TERMS
A D CO DITIO S
By_________________________
Brenda Oakes,
Youth Violence Prevention Planning Coordinator
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EXHIBIT "A"
Criminal Justice Commission
Scope of Work for Youth Violence Prevention Project
In recognition of the findings of the Criminal Justice Commission’s Youth Violence Prevention
Project Steering Committee that youth violence must be addressed in a comprehensive and
systematic way: each participating city agrees to:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Abide by the requirement that all city-related projects and efforts will service the residents
within the identified geographic areas as outlined by Criminal Justice Commission maps
The city will make a commitment of building space for services within the identified
geographical areas
Participate in the multi-agency task force law enforcement component of the Youth
Violence Prevention Project
Support a Youth Council to make appropriate programming decisions
Pay the city’s portion of all goods, services, and personnel used in connection with this
project
Participate in all aspects of evaluation including data collection, data sharing, site
monitoring and visits
Support countywide efforts to reduce youth violence

Background:
The Criminal Justice Commission utilized a national model created by the U.S. Department of
Justice, Office of Justice Programs for the development of the Youth Violence Prevention
Project. A comprehensive approach was developed using the research compiled by Florida
State University and involved professionals from the criminal justice system, education, and
human services, and local youth. Florida State University, Center for Public Policy in Criminal
Justice, assimilated and analyzed local violent crime data which demonstrates, after a decline
from 1994-2002, a significant increase in murders and firearms crimes. Four subcommittees,
including crime prevention, law enforcement, courts and corrections, developed a strategic
plan. A Youth Workgroup was formed with 25 youth from various areas of the county. The
Workgroup surveyed over 500 youth, including juveniles in jail and on Department of Juvenile
Justice probation. The recommendations made by the Workgroup have been incorporated into
the overall plan. The research supports that a multi-agency comprehensive approach is the
most effective. The project incorporates the model programs and the recommendations from
the Subcommittees.
Crime Prevention Component:
The establishment of a Youth Empowerment Center in each targeted area that provides
activities and services to youth ages 13-18, including after school programs and activities,
tutoring/mentoring, job training for in school and out of school youth, information on
resources, gang prevention outreach, parenting classes, employment services, Safe Schools
Programs and transportation.
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Youth Empowerment Center Programs:

Responsibility

Youth Empowerment Facility

City

Youth/Teen Advisory Council
Council or Board of youth from the target area meets regularly to recommend programs and
policies of the Youth Empowerment Center.
Teen Center
Provide educational and recreational programming 5 days a week (minimum) with 10 interestbased programs/pro-social activities per week. Maintain a clean safe and secure environment.
Work with the youth council to identify new educational recreational programs, activities and
special events. Provide a monthly calendar for public release no later than the 1st day of the
month.
Alternative Education-Career Academy
Designated Career Academies will provide opportunities for in school and out of school youth
without regard to grade point average.
Courts
Partner with Alternative Sanctions by participating in the Evening Reporting Center program.
After-school Activities
Provide a variety of the latest recreational programs: martial arts, yoga, surfing, swimming,
tennis hip hop dance, organized sport.
Tutoring
Provide after-school tutoring, including FCAT skill building.
Mentoring
Provide mentors for youth to support and be positive role models. Staff to serve as adult mentors
a total of 832 hours annually.
Job Training and Employment Services
Workforce Alliance is funding a program for approximately 100 at-risk youths to prepare them
for careers and jobs that are in demand in Palm Beach County. The program will supplement
existing programs at the high schools of the county and provide additional resources. Junior
Achievement of the Palm Beaches will manage the program with the objective of motivating
selected at-risk youth to graduate, providing them additional workplace skills and then assist
them with job placement.

City

Workforce Alliance has contracted with three agencies to carry out academic and job-training
services for at-risk and disadvantaged youth in Palm Beach County on a year-round basis.
Priority will be given to proposals to serve the youth in those areas of the county that were
pointed out the research sponsored by the Youth Violence Prevention Committee.
Information on Resources
Provide information on existing resources for youth including school programs, job training and
employment opportunities, and services available.
Community Outreach
A worker to outreach and engage a minimum of 20 high-risk youth (as described by OJJDP) in
the Youth Empowerment Center surrounding area and engage them in positive activities for a 12
month period.
Transportation
The youth surveyed indicated that a major issue to attending programs and activities is
transportation.
Collaborative Partnerships
Participate in a minimum of ten (10) CJC sponsored collaborative meetings throughout the year.
Life Skills
Cultural Diversity Training

11

City

MOU with School District
and Charter School
Courts/City
City

City
City

MOU with Workforce
Alliance and Palm Beach
Community College

City and MOU with
collaborating agencies
City

City

City-Youth Empowerment
Administrative Staff
City
City

RESOLUTION NO. _____
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF RIVIERA BEACH, PALM BEACH
COUNTY, FLORIDA, AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR
AND CITY CLERK TO EXECUTE INTERLOCAL
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF RIVIERA
BEACH AND THE BOARD OF COUNTY
COMMISSIONERS, PALM BEACH COUNTY, FOR
CONTINUATION OF THE YOUTH EMPOWERMENT
TEEN CENTER IN THE AMOUNT OF $46,494;
AUTHORIZING THE INTERIM FINANCE DIRECTOR
TO SET UP A BUDGET FOR THE SAME; AND
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.
WHEREAS, the Criminal Justice Commission of Palm Beach County
continues their development of a Youth Violence Prevention Project, which
addresses the increase in violent firearms crimes; and
WHEREAS, the Youth Empowerment Teen Program meets the requirements
for administering youth prevention/intervention services; and
WHEREAS, on December 5th, 2006 the Board of County Commissioners
(BCC) approved funding to initiate partnerships with Riviera Beach, West Palm
Beach and Lake Worth to implement the Youth Violence Prevention Project, and
WHEREAS, the Criminal Justice Commission has recommended the use of
Department of Justice grant funds to support the partnership by providing funds for
the CITY to participate; and
WHEREAS, the COUNTY agreed to reimburse the CITY for expenses, up to
the amount of $426,512 from October 1, 2009 through March 31, 2011 for the Youth
Violence Prevention Project; and
WHEREAS, the parties mutually desire accept Interlocal Agreement which will
begin February 1st, 2013 and remain in effect until September 30, 2013, $46,494 for
Youth Empowerment Center program expenses as approved by the Florida
Department of Law Enforcement.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF RIVIERA BEACH, PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA AS FOLLOWS:

RESOLUTION NO. ______
-2SECTION 1. That the Mayor and City Clerk are authorized to execute
Interlocal Agreement between the City of Riviera Beach and the Board of County
Commissioners, Palm Beach County for an extension of the grant in the amount of
$46,494 to the Youth Empowerment Program.
SECTION 2. The Finance Director is authorized to set up a budget as follows:
FROM:
Revenue

151-00-33-7200

$46,494 .00

151-0202-569-1-1201
151-0202-569-1-1201
151-0202-569-1-2101
151-0202-569-1-3101
151-0202-569-1-5201
151-0202-569-1-5201
151-0202-569-1-4701
151-0202-569-1-3101
151-0202-569-1-5403

$ 8,500.00
$ 12,500.00
$ 650.00
$ 8,850.00
$1,500.00
$1,794.00
$6,500.00
$1200.00
$ 5000.00

TO:
Regular Salaries
Summer Job Shadowing/Internships
FICA
Contractual Svc
Office Supplies
Program Supplies
Marketing/Printing
Miscellaneous
Incentives

SECTION 3. This resolution should take effect immediately upon its passage
and approval by the City Council.
{The remainder of this page intentionally left blank}

APPROVED:
______________________________
THOMAS A. MASTERS
MAYOR

___________________________
JUDY L. DAVIS
CHAIRPERSON

ATTEST:
_______________________________
CARRIE E. WARD
MASTER MUNICIPAL CLERK
CITY CLERK

___________________________
BILLIE E. BROOKS
CHAIR PRO TEM
___________________________
DAWN S. PARDO
COUNCILPERSON
___________________________
CEDRICK A. THOMAS
COUNCILPERSON
___________________________
SHELBY L. LOWE
COUNCILPERSON

MOTIONED BY:

_______________

SECONDED BY:

_______________

J. DAVIS

_____________

B. BROOKS

_____________

D. PARDO

_____________

C. THOMAS

_____________

S. LOWE

_____________

REVIEWED AS TO LEGAL
SUFFICIENCY

-----------------------------------------------------PAMALA HANNA RYAN, CITY
ATTORNEY
DATE:____________________________

CITY OF RIVIERA BEACH CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Meeting Date:

3/20/2013

Agenda Category:

CONSENT
RESOLUTION

Subject:

The City of Riviera Beach seeks to execute a Direct Connect Access Interlocal
Agreement with the Palm Beach County Board of County Commissioners in order to
be authorized access to the County's Public Safety Radio System.

Recommendation/Motion:

Staff recommends that the City Council approve the Direct Connect
Access Interlocal Agreement with the Palm Beach County Board of
County Commissioners.

Originating
Dept.

Police

Costs:

$79,661.56

User Dept.

Police

Funding
Source:

State Legislature System Maintenance Fee for 218
Radios at $154.00 per unit: $33,572.00 Renewal &
Replacement for 218 radios at $211.42 per unit:
$46,089.56 Total: $79,661.56

Advertised:

No

Budget
Account
Number:

FSS $12.50 Funds - $24,359.00
001-0817-521-0-4102 - $55,302.56
Total: $79,661.56

Date:
Paper:
Affected
Parties:

Not
Required

Background/Summary:
On January 13, 2004, the City of Riviera Beach and the Palm Beach County Board of County
Commissioners entered into a Temporary Access Agreement providing for the use of the County's
Public Safety Radio System (R2004 0096). On February 5, 2008, the City executed the First
Amendment to the Temporary Access Agreement (R2008-0187) which continued the City's access to
the County's Public Safety Radio System. The Temporary Access Agreement granted the City access
to the Radio System and required that the City join the County's System on a permanent basis by
paying all connection fees in full and executing a standard Direct Connect Access Interlocal

Agreement with the County no later than February 21, 2009, or the Temporary Access Agreement
would expire.
The City paid all charges in June 2010, but did not execute a Direct Connect Agreement. Despite the
absence of the Direct Connect Agreement, the County has continued to authorize the City access to
the Public Safety Radio System with the City having to seek City Council approval each year for
payment of the annual charges.
In order to properly document the City's access to the Public Safety Radio System and to establish
payment authorization for the fees due for the services related to the access, the County requires the
City to execute a Direct Connect Access Interlocal Agreement.
The fees associated with the Direct Connect Interlocal Agreement have not changed since 2009 and
the operational terms remain the same.
II. Fiscal Impact Analysis
A. Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact:
2013

Fiscal Years

2014

2015

2016

2017

Capital Expenditures
Operating Costs

$55,302.56 $55,302.56 $55,302.56 $55,302.56 $55,302.56

External Revenues

$24,359.00 $24,359.00 $24,359.00 $24,359.00 $24,359.00

Program Income (city)
In-kind Match (city)
$79,661.56 $79,661.56 $79,661.56 $79,661.56 $79,661.56

Net Fiscal Impact
NO. Additional FTE Positions
(cumulative)

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

Is Item Included in Current Budget? Yes
Budget Account NO: FSS $12.50 Funds - $24,359.00
001-0817-521-0-4102 - $55,302.56
Total: $79,661.56
B. Recommended Sources of Funds/Summary of Fiscal Impact :
State Legislature System Maintenance Fee for 218 Radios at $154.00 per unit: $33,572.00
Renewal & Replacement for 218 radios at $211.42 per unit: $46,089.56 Total: $79,661.56
C. Department Fiscal Review
III. Review Comments
A. Finance Department Comments:
B. Purchasing/Intergovernmental Relations/Grants Comments

N/A

C. Department Director Review
Contract Details
Contract Start Date
Contract End Date

Five (5) Years from Start Date

Renewal Start Date
Renewal End Date
Number of 12 month terms this
renewal
Dollar Amount

$79,661.56

Contractor Company Name

Palm Beach County Board of County Commissioners

Contractor Contact

L. Denise Coffman, Business & Community Agreements
Manager
Audrey Wolf, Director, Facilities Dev & Opns

Contractor Address

Palm Beach County
Facilities Development & Operations Department
2633 Vista Parkway
West Palm Beach, Florida 33411

Contractor Phone Number

561-233-0200

Contractor Email

awolf@pbcgov.org

Type of Contract

Intergovernmental

Describe
ATTACHMENTS:
Name:

Description:

Direct_Connect_Interlocal_Agreement_Resolution_2-12-13.pdf

Resolution Direct Connect Interlocal Agreement

Direct_Connect_Interlocal_Agreement_2-12-13.pdf

Agreement: Direct Connect Interlocal Agreement

CITY OF RIVIERA BEACH CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Meeting Date:

3/20/2013

Agenda Category:

CONSENT
RESOLUTION

Subject:

Accept and approve the Palm Beach County 911 Emergency Management grant fund
reimbursement and establish a budget for same in the amount of $105,252.

Recommendation/Motion:

Staff recommends that City Council accept and approve funds from
Palm Beach County 911 Emergency Management in the amount of
$105,252.00.

Originating
Dept.

Police

Costs:

105,252

User Dept.

Police

Funding
Source:

Expenditures Amount; 124-0819-521-0-1201 Salary
& Wages $73,965; 124-0819-521-0-3401 Training
$8230; 124-0819-521-0-5201 Operating $23,057

Advertised:

No

Budget
Account
Number:

Expenditure Amount 124-0819-521-0-1201 1240819-521-0-3401 124-0819-521-0-5201

Date:
Paper:
Affected
Parties:

Notified

Background/Summary:
The Palm Beach County 911 Emergency Management Fund recognized the need for compensation
and retention measures and devised a formula to calculate the amount of time communications
operators spend on the telephone. This use of this formula has resulted in funds in the sum of
$105,252 being allocated for the City of Riviera Beach for fiscal year 2013.
The 911 Reimbursement Funds are provided to the City on an annual basis pursuant to Florida State
Statute 365.171(6). This statute imposes fees to local exchange subscribers served by the 911
service on an individual basis at a rate of .50 cents per month per line. The fees are collected by
telephone companies pursuant to this statute and returned to the County so that the funds can be
used to provide assistance in establishing and providing 911 services through the counties in Florida.

Annually, the Palm Beach County 911 Emergency Coordinator requests information from
municipalities concerning call-taker's salaries and budgetary items as they relate to 911. The Police
Department's 2013-2014 submitted budget for salary reimbursements for Communications Operators
and Supervisors totaled $739,658. The Palm Beach County 911 Emergency Management will
reimburse a portion of the total cost in the amount of $73,965 to the City of Riviera Beach, based on
the formula provided. $8230 was allocated for training and $23,057 was allocated for equipment. The
total award was $105,252.
Staff recommends the disbursements be expended as indicated in the the Palm Beach County 911
Emergency Management award budget.
This is a reimbursement grant and the city will request reimbursement once expenses are realized.
II. Fiscal Impact Analysis
A. Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact:
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Fiscal Years
Capital Expenditures

-105,252

Operating Costs
External Revenues

105,252

Program Income (city)
In-kind Match (city)
Net Fiscal Impact
NO. Additional FTE Positions (cumulative)
Is Item Included in Current Budget? No
Budget Account
NO:

Expenditure Amount 124-0819-521-0-1201 124-0819-521-0-3401 124-0819521-0-5201

B. Recommended Sources of Funds/Summary of Fiscal Impact :
Expenditures Amount; 124-0819-521-0-1201 Salary & Wages $73,965; 124-0819-521-0-3401
Training $8230; 124-0819-521-0-5201 Operating $23,057
C. Department Fiscal Review
Funds are used to off set salaries in the General Fund for Communications Operators.
III. Review Comments
A. Finance Department Comments:
B. Purchasing/Intergovernmental Relations/Grants Comments
C. Department Director Review
Contract Details

Contract Start Date
Contract End Date
Renewal Start Date
Renewal End Date
Number of 12 month terms this renewal
Dollar Amount
Contractor Company Name
Contractor Contact
Contractor Address
Contractor Phone Number
Contractor Email
Type of Contract
Describe
ATTACHMENTS:
Name:

Description:

Riviera_Beach_Approved_FY2013.pdf

FY2013 Approved PSAP Budget

RESOLUTION_2013.docx

Resolution

Riviera Beach Police Department
FY2013 Approved PSAP Budget
PSAP

Amount
Approved

Item

Date
Approved

Riviera Beach

Call Taker Reimbursement

Riviera Beach
Riviera Beach

GENERATOR
UPS

$
$

1,000.00
1,200.00

3/15/2012
3/15/2012

Riviera Beach

CAD INTERFACE

$

2,000.00

3/15/2012

Riviera Beach

CELL PHONES

$

1,100.00

3/15/2012

Riviera Beach

HEADSETS

$

6,135.00

3/15/2012

Riviera Beach
Riviera Beach

Chairs
CERTIFICATION

$
$

7,000.00
750.00

3/15/2012
3/15/2012

Riviera Beach

TRAINING

$

6,800.00

3/15/2012

Riviera Beach
Riviera Beach
Riviera Beach
Riviera Beach
Riviera Beach

TRAINING
MEMBERSHIPS
TTY-Pass
INSURANCE
PRINTER SUPPLIES

$
$
$
$
$

1,430.00
1,104.00
468.00
1,300.00
1,000.00

3/15/2012
3/15/2012
3/15/2012
3/15/2012
2/28/2011

Riviera Beach
Total

LOGGING RECORDER

$
$ 31,287.00

2/24/2011

Comments
Call Taker Reimbursement FY 2013. As per Public Safety Finance ?% of projected call-taker
salaries will be disbursed to the PSAPs.
Maintenance agreement for annual support for the 911 generator.   Approved by Steve
Booth and Dan Koenig.
UPS for 911 Back up annual.    Approved by Steve Booth and Dan Koenig.
Maintenance agreement for the CAD interface to 911.   Approved by Steve Booth and Dan
Koenig.
Access fees for backup 911 telephones. Supporting 2 phones with a replacement cost of $70
each (total of $140) and $40 pre month per phone (total of $960). Approved by Steve Booth
and Dan Koenig.
Replacement headsets for dispatchers, compatible w/NG9-1-1. Approved by Steve Booth
and Dan Koenig
Replacements chairs, reimbursement not to exceed $1,000.00 each. Approved by Steve
Booth and Dan Koenig.
16 PST State recertifications. Approved by Steve Booth.
(15) Operator training @ $300.00 each; (1) Supervisor Training @ $300.00 each. (1) in-house
training seminar. Approved by Steve Booth and Dan Koenig.
Training manuals, reimbursable according to oercentage of calltaking material. Approved by
Steve Booth and Dan Koenig.
16 APCO Memberships. Approved by Steve Booth and Dan Koenig.
6 TTY-Pass registrations for consoles. Approved by Steve Booth and Dan Koenig.
Insurance for 9-1-1 equipment. Approved by Steve Booth and Dan Koenig.
Annual estimate for printer supplies. Approved by Steve Booth and Dan Koenig
Logging recorder cleaning supplies and accouterments.   Denied by Steve Booth and Dan
Koenig.   

RESOLUTION NO. ______

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
RIVIERA BEACH, PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA,
ACCEPTING FUNDS FROM PALM BEACH COUNTY 911
EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT IN THE AMOUNT OF $105,252
TO PROVIDE FOR A GRANT REIMBURSEMENT OF PUBLIC
SAFETY ANSWERING POINT (PSAP) OPERATIONS;
AUTHORIZING THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE AND
ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES TO INCREASE THE 2013-2014
911 GRANT BUDGET FOR THE SAME; AND PROVIDING AN
EFFECTIVE DATE.
WHEREAS, the City of Riviera Beach has received a Reimbursement
Grant from Palm Beach county 911 Emergency Management in the amount of
$105,252; and
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Riviera Beach, Florida, accept
the funds from the Palm Beach County 911 Emergency Management in the
amount of $105,252.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF RIVIERA BEACH, PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA, THAT:
SECTION 1: The funds in the amount of $105,252 from the Palm Beach
911 Emergency Management grant fund are hereby accepted.
SECTION 2: That the Director of Finance and Administrative Services is
authorized to increase the 2013-2014 911 Grant budget in the amount of
$105,252 as follows:
Revenue
124-00-331293 911 Fund

Amount
$105,252

Expenditures
124-0819-521-0-1201
124-0819-521-0-3401
124-0819-521-0-5201

Amount
$ 73,965
$ 8,230
$ 23,057

RESOLUTION NO.__
PAGE 2
SECTION 3: This Resolution shall take effect upon passage and approval
by the City Council.

PASSED and APPROVED this __________ day of _____________, 2013

[The remainder of this page was intentionally left blank.]

RESOLUTION NO.__
PAGE 3
APPROVED:
______________________________
THOMAS A. MASTERS
MAYOR

________________________________
BILLIE E. BROOKS
CHAIRPERSON

ATTEST:
_______________________________
CARRIE E. WARD,
MASTER MUNICIPAL CLERK
CITY CLERK

________________________________
DAWN S. PARDO
CHAIR PRO TEM
________________________________
JUDY L. DAVIS
COUNCILPERSON
_______________________________
CEDRICK A. THOMAS
COUNCILPERSON
_______________________________
SHELBY L. LOWE
COUNCILPERSON

MOTIONED BY:

_______________

SECONDED BY:

_______________

B. BROOKS

_______

D. PARDO

_______

J. DAVIS

_______

C. THOMAS

_______

S. LOWE

_______

REVIEWED AS TO LEGAL SUFFICIENCY
----------------------------------------------------------PAMALA HANNA RYAN, CITY ATTORNEY
DATE: ___________________________

CITY OF RIVIERA BEACH CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Meeting Date:

3/20/2013

Agenda Category:

CONSENT
RESOLUTION

Subject:

Request the City Council to approve the Library's 3-year agreement with MJ
Photocopy (MJP) Enterprises, Inc. to manage and service two (2) coin-operated
network print stations and one (1) coin-operated copier MJP installed in the Library in
April 2010.

Recommendation/Motion:

Staff recommends that City Council authorize staff to execute this
Management and Service Agreement with MJP for three (3) years,
commencing March 1, 2013.

Originating Dept.

LIBRARY

Costs:

User Dept.

LIBRARY

Funding Source:

Advertised:

No

Budget Account Number:

-0-

Date:
Paper:
Affected Parties:

Not Required

Background/Summary:
The Library seeks to enter into a Management and Service Agreement with MJP from March 1, 2013
through March 1, 2016. MJP will provide maintenance, paper and toner for the print stations and
copier, at no cost to the City. The Library will receive 10% commission each quarter from MJP.
II. Fiscal Impact Analysis
A. Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact:
Fiscal Years
Capital Expenditures
Operating Costs
External Revenues

Program Income (city)
In-kind Match (city)
Net Fiscal Impact
NO. Additional FTE Positions (cumulative)
Is Item Included in Current Budget? No
Budget Account NO:
B. Recommended Sources of Funds/Summary of Fiscal Impact :
C. Department Fiscal Review
III. Review Comments
A. Finance Department Comments:
B. Purchasing/Intergovernmental Relations/Grants Comments
C. Department Director Review
Contract Details
Contract Start Date

March 1, 2013

Contract End Date

March 1, 2016

Renewal Start Date
Renewal End Date
Number of 12 month terms this renewal 3
Dollar Amount
Contractor Company Name

MJ Photocopy (MJP)

Contractor Contact

Alfredo L. Milanes, President

Contractor Address

12494 NW 38th Avenue
Opa-Locka, FL 33054

Contractor Phone Number

(305) 681-7445

Contractor Email

alfredo@mjprintcontrol.com

Type of Contract

Other

Describe

Management and Service Agreement

ATTACHMENTS:
Name:

Description:
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MJP Agreement

MJ PHOTOCOPY ENTERPRISES, INC.
MANAGEMENT AND SERVICE AGREEMENT
THIS MANAGEMENT AND SERVICE AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered
into this 1st of March 2013, by and between MJ PHOTOCOPY ENTERPRISES, INC. (hereinafter
“MJP”), 12494 NW 38 Ave., Opa-Locka, Florida 33054 and the CITY OF RIVIERA BEACH located at
600 West Blue Heron Blvd., Riviera Beach, Florida 33404 (hereinafter the “CITY”), with Library premises
at 600 West Blue Heron Blvd., Riviera Beach, Florida 33404.
WHEREAS, On April 1, 2010 the CITY OF RIVIERA BEACH agreed to and accepted
installation of two (2) coin-operated Network Print Manager Release Stations and one (1) coin-operated
Copier as well as other related equipment (collectively the “Equipment”) by MJP, at the CITY Library
location described in Exhibit “A”; and
WHEREAS, that the April 2010 agreement was for a three (3) year term and expires on March 1,
2013; and
WHEREAS, the CITY OF RIVIERA BEACH has agreed to the terms and conditions set forth in
this Agreement.
NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and promises herein contained,
and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby
acknowledged, accepted and agreed to, the parties intending to be legally bound, hereby agree as follows:
1.

During the term hereof, as hereinafter defined, the CITY grants to MJP the right to operate
and maintain the Equipment in the designated facilities and locations listed and identified on
Exhibit “A” attached hereto and made a part hereof (the “Premises”). The CITY shall
continue to provide appropriate space and facilities for the Equipment together with electrical
outlets at the Premises on Exhibit “A”, all of which the CITY shall maintain in good repair.
The CITY agrees that it will exercise reasonable care to prevent any person from removing,
tampering with or otherwise damaging the Equipment. The parties acknowledge, however,
that MJP assumes full responsibility for all damage to equipment in accordance with section 6
below. It is agreed and understood that MJP is an independent contractor and retains sole
ownership and control of the Equipment.

2.

Unless otherwise noted on Exhibit “A,” MJP will provide a complete service program to the
CITY at the Library Premises, without charge, including supplying all paper, toner, parts and
service for all of the Equipment. The CITY agrees that all of the supplies and materials will
be used solely for the Equipment.

3.

The term of the Agreement will be three (3) years commencing as of the date hereof and
terminating thereafter (“Term”). Notwithstanding the termination, all payments and
commission due hereunder prior to the termination shall be paid in accordance with the
provisions hereof. Further, the CITY shall have the right to terminate the Agreement with or
without cause at its convenience upon ten (10) days notice to MJP at which time MJP shall
promptly remove all Equipment from the Premises.

4.

MJP will collect all revenue from the Equipment. MJP will pay to the CITY the commission
and any other charges, if any, listed on Exhibit “A”. Said commissions will be paid based on
the Equipment’s meter readings. No commissions will be paid on administrative, free or
service copies. All commissions will be paid on a quarterly basis within thirty (30) days
following the end of the applicable calendar quarter. MJP will provide a written report to the
CITY with commission payment detailing meter readings, and a summary of copy usage
including coin, card, administrative, and service copies (if applicable). The CITY may verify
meter readings with MJP at the end of any quarterly period. MJP and the CITY shall
mutually determine, from time to time, the vend price to be charged, and the CITY agrees that
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it will not unreasonably withhold, delay or condition its consent to a vend price increase that
is based on increased costs incurred by MJP.
5.

Subject to conditions beyond its control, MJP agrees to keep its Equipment in good repair and
working condition. Response time to service calls will be four (4) working hours or less. The
CITY Library Staff will be responsible for loading paper and toner, clearing minor paper jams
and notifying MJP as soon as possible in the event of a problem or malfunction of the
Equipment.

6.

MJP agrees to assume full responsibility for the Equipment in case of fire, theft, vandalism or
other damage. MJP agrees to furnish evidence of insurance, naming the CITY as an
additional insured, as follows:

Bodily Injury and Property Damage
$1,000,000 Combined Single Limit
Including Product Liability
Personal Injury $1,000,000

The CITY shall be promptly notified of any changes or cancellation of such insurance.
7.

In addition to the termination section provided in section 3, it is agreed and understood that
the CITY shall have the right to cancel this Agreement if an “Event of Default” occurs. An
Event of Default means a petition by MJP or an involuntary petition into bankruptcy, or to be
declared bankrupt or insolvent, or the failure of MJ PHOTOCOPY to maintain the Equipment
as required by this Agreement, or the failure of MJP to perform any requirements of this
Agreement, and such failure for any or all of the above listed conditions continues for more
than thirty (30) calendar days after receipt of written notice (the “Notice”) from the CITY to
correct the conditions(s) therein specified. Upon receipt of Notice, MJP shall forthwith
endeavor to correct the noticed conditions and shall notify the CITY of the corrective action
taken, and upon completion of the corrective action, the Notice shall be deemed satisfied and
the Event of Default cured.

8.

Any Notice to be given hereunder by either Party to the other must be in writing and may be
effective either by personal delivery or by certified mail, postage prepaid with return receipt
requested. Mailed or delivered Notices shall be addressed to the Parties at the addresses
appearing on the first page and if given to MJP, shall be addressed Attention: President and if
given to CITY, shall be addressed to the CITY Manager. Notices delivered personally shall be
deemed communicated as of the actual receipt thereof; mailed Notices shall be deemed
communicated and received five (5) days after the proper mailing of the same.

9.

This Agreement shall be governed by and construed under the laws of the State of Florida.
The invalidity or enforceability of a particular provision of the Agreement shall not affect the
enforceability of any other provision hereof and this Agreement shall be construed in all
respects as if such invalid or unenforceable provisions were omitted.

10. This Agreement and Exhibit “A” contain the entire agreement of the Parties hereto and
supersede any and all prior agreements, oral or written, and negotiations between said Parties
regarding the subject matter herein contained. This Agreement may not be amended or
modified except by an instrument in writing signed by the party against whom enforcement or
any such provision or amendment is sought. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure
to the benefits of the Parties hereto and the respective successors, assigns, heirs,
administrators and legal representatives. This Agreement may be assigned by MJP to its
financing source(s), for the purpose of securing financing.
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11. All parties shall be responsible for their own attorney’s fees, court costs and expenses. If any
legal action or other proceeding is brought for the enforcement of this Agreement, or because
of an alleged dispute, breach, default or misrepresentation in connection with any provision of
this Agreement.
12. By signing this Agreement the Sales Manager, Alfredo L. Milanes, represents and warrants
that he has the full power, authority and legal right to execute and deliver this Agreement on
behalf of MJP.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties to this Agreement have executed it by and through
their duty authorized representatives, under seal, as of the day and year written below.

CITY OF RIVIERA BEACH

MJP (MJ Photocopy Enterprises, Inc.)

Approved as to Legal Sufficiency

BY:__________________________

Pamala H. Ryan, City Attorney
Date ________________

BY:______________________________

Alfredo L. Milanes, President
Date:__________________

BY:_____________________________

Ruth C. Jones, City Manager
Date ________________
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EXHIBIT “A”

1.

Customer: CITY OF RIVIERA BEACH
600 West Blue Heron Blvd., RIVIERA BEACH FL 33404

2.

Term: Three (3) Years – March 1, 2013 through March 1, 2016

3.

Premises: CITY OF RIVIERA BEACH PUBLIC LIBRARY
600 West Blue Heron Blvd., RIVIERA BEACH FL 33404
Library Contact: Cynthia Cobb, Library Director
Tel: (561) 845-4195
Fax: (561) 881-7318

4. Listing of Equipment

•
•
•
•

•
•

(2) Network Print Manager Release Station that includes:
Two (2) coin/bills operated Print Release Station at the busiest location in the Library compatible with
existing Library Network capable of accepting $1(one dollar) bills and the new version of the $5, $10
(five & ten-dollar) bills.
Two (2) Black/White & Color Laser Jet Printers (HP-4700), one per Library location (Upstairs and
Downstairs) connected to the release stations.
One (1) Print Management Application (PaperCutMF) to manage and control output printing from the
Library Workstations
Two (2) Computers Systems fully loaded with Key Board, Mouse, CPU and Monitors to support the
two print release stations.

(1) Coin Operated Copy Machine that includes:
One (1) coin/bill operated Copier Station in the Library Premises capable of accepting $1(one dollar)
bills and the new version of the $5 (five-dollar) bills.
One (1) Black and White Digital Laser Copier Sharp AR-M277 at this location.

5. End-User Vend Pricing:
• Coin vend price at the Print Station will be $.15 per Black and White prints and $.50 for Color Prints
for letter/Legal size paper.
• Coin vend price at the Copier Station will be $.15 per Black and White copies for letter/Legal size
paper.
6. Administrative or By-Pass Copies:
MJP will allow the CITY (Library Staff) 300 free administrative B/W prints quarterly at each location
via account-login. Administrative copies made in excess of the quarterly allowance will be charged at
$.05 per B/W prints.
7. Commission:
MJP will pay the CITY a Commission of 10% (Ten percent) in accordance with the following terms on
the vending amount collected out of all Stations Vending Towers net of sales tax. No commission will
be paid on service or administrative copies.
•

Minimum required for Multiple System Commission: Gross Revenue of $2500.00/ Year
Note: MJP collection revenue for the library must meet the amount of $625.00/quarter in order to
qualify for commission; however the commission is calculated from the full revenue collected.

MJP Agreement
March 1, 2013
Page 4

8. Other:
A. MJP has the right to remove all equipment if other vended equipment is placed within the
Premises
B. MJP agrees to indemnify and hold the CITY harmless from any and all claims, suits, actions,
damages, causes of action, or attorney’s fees, arising from any personal injury, loss of life, or
damage to person or property sustained by reason of, or as a result of the performance of
services provided pursuant to this Agreement, or as a result of the negligence of any of MJP’s
employees, agents, or assigns. Nothing contained herein shall be construed as a waiver of
sovereign immunity beyond the limits set forth in Section 768.28, Fla. Stat.
C. The CITY of RIVIERA BEACH will provide one (1) copy of Microsoft Windows Server
2008 license for the print server and all necessary power outlets and network connections to
support the MJP equipment. The CITY retains ownership of the server OS license and upon
termination of services said license will be retained by the CITY.
List of Hardware/Software required from the CITY:
•
•
•
•
•
•

One (1) Windows Server 2008 license for PRS1
One (1) Windows XP professional license for PRS2
Two (2) Antivirus Software Licenses for PRS1 and PRS2
Two (2) Network Drops for PRS1 and PRS2
One (1) Power Outlet (20 Amp minimum) for PRS1 and PRS2
One (1) Power Outlet (20 Amp minimum) for Copier Station

D. MJP agrees that neither the CITY nor the LIBRARY is responsible for providing any other
item that is not listed in this agreement.
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CITY OF RIVIERA BEACH CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Meeting Date:

3/20/2013

Agenda Category:

RESOLUTION

Subject:

Resolution-City Council to approve a resolution for implementation of an Ethics
Training Policy

Recommendation/Motion:

City Council vote to approve the resolution adopting the Ethics
Training Policy.

Originating Dept.

Human Resources Department

Costs:

N/A

User Dept.

Human Resources Department

Funding Source:

N/A

Advertised:

No

Budget Account Number:

N/A

Date:
Paper:
Affected Parties:

Not Required

Background/Summary:
In 2011, Palm Beach County mandated ethics training for all governmental entities throughout Palm
Beach County. All employees, i.e. elected officials, advisory board members, contractual, regular,
temporary and part-time personnel must receive ethics training by attending a session or viewing a
DVD and executing an Acknowledgement Form. Last year, all City of Riviera Beach employees were
trained and the City was awarded certification that all employees received the training. Also, each
governmental agency is required to adopt an Ethics Training Policy to continue training for future
employees. Therefore, attached hereto is the City's Ethics Training Policy and staff requests that City
Council approve the resolution to adopt the City's Ethics Training Policy.
II. Fiscal Impact Analysis
A. Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact:
Fiscal Years
Capital Expenditures
Operating Costs
External Revenues

Program Income (city)
In-kind Match (city)
Net Fiscal Impact
NO. Additional FTE Positions (cumulative)
Is Item Included in Current Budget? No
Budget Account NO: N/A
B. Recommended Sources of Funds/Summary of Fiscal Impact :
N/A
C. Department Fiscal Review
III. Review Comments
A. Finance Department Comments:
B. Purchasing/Intergovernmental Relations/Grants Comments
C. Department Director Review
Contract Details
Contract Start Date
Contract End Date
Renewal Start Date
Renewal End Date
Number of 12 month terms this renewal
Dollar Amount
Contractor Company Name
Contractor Contact
Contractor Address
Contractor Phone Number
Contractor Email
Type of Contract
Describe
ATTACHMENTS:
Name:

Description:

2013_POLICY_STATEMENT_FORM-Code_of_Ethic_Policy-2-7-13.docx
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Resolution for Ethics Training Policy

POLICY A D PROCEDURE
SUBJECT:

ETHICS TRAI I G POLICY

DATE:

1.0

UMBER:

POLICY STATEME T

According to the Palm Beach County Code of Ethics § Section 2-446(a), officials and employees shall
be informed of their ethical responsibilities at the start of their public service, and shall receive updates
and training materials on ethics issues throughout the span of their public service.
2.0

PURPOSE OF THE POLICY

The purpose of this policy is to provide guidelines to all personnel, elected officials, advisory board
members, part-time, temporary and full-time employees of the City regarding required ethics training.
Future updates to this policy will be the responsibility of the Human Resources Director as the designee
of the City Manager who will act as the liaison between the City and the Commission on Ethics (COE).
Periodically, the COE may recommend changes, modifications or updates to the Ethics Training Policy.
3.0

DEFI ITIO S

“Palm Beach County Commission on Ethics” means the commission established in Section 2-254 of the
Palm Beach County Code of Ethics to administer and enforce the ethics regulations set forth herein, and
may also be referred to as the “Commission on Ethics” or “COE” in this Policy.
“Official” or “employee” means an official or employee of the City whether paid or unpaid. The term
“employee” includes but is not limited to all managers, department heads and personnel of the City. The
term also includes contract personnel and contract administrators performing a government function,
and the chief executive officer who is not part of the local governing body. The term “official” shall
mean members of the City Council, the Mayor, members of the City’s advisory boards, and members
appointed by the City Council to serve on any quasi judicial, or any other board of the City.
4.0

AUTHORITY

The City of Riviera Beach has adopted this Code of Ethics Policy to promote and maintain the highest
level of ethical standards in city government. All City employees and officials are required to adhere to
this Policy along with the ethics standards set forth in Section 112.326, Florida Statutes and the Palm
Beach County Code of Ethics which govern personal and professional conduct as an employee and
official of the City.
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POLICY A D PROCEDURE
SUBJECT:

ETHICS TRAI I G POLICY

Violation of this Policy may result in disciplinary action, up to and including termination of employment
or censure by the governing body.
5.0

APPLICABILITY

The City of Riviera Beach has established by this Policy, a mandatory training schedule for all officials
and employees which shall include mandatory periodic follow-up Code of Ethics Sessions every two (2)
years.
6.0

PROCEDURE
1. All employees and non-elected officials must receive initial Code of Ethics training within sixty
(60) days of employment. Elected officials must receive their initial training within sixty (60)
days of taking office. This training requirement may consist of live training by COE staff, online training through use of the training video available on the COE website, or DVD
presentation upon request.
2. As part of the required training, all employees, elected and appointed officials must read the
Palm Beach County Code of Ethics. The Code is available on the COE website as well as in the
Ethics Pocket Guide, published by the Commission on Ethics.
3. After initial training, periodic mandatory follow-up training is required of all employees and
officials every two (2) years. The COE will coordinate with the City’s Human Resources
Director to provide timely and effective follow-up training.
4. After completing initial and any biannual follow-up training and after having read the Code of
Ethics, all officials and employees shall complete an approved acknowledgment form, available
on the Commission on Ethics website, http://www.palmbeachcountyethics.com/forms.htm
verifying that they complied with all training requirements (i.e., attended a live COE training or
viewed the appropriate web-video or approved DVD provided by the COE). The training
acknowledgment form must be signed by the employee or official and submitted to the Human
Resources Department for inclusion in the employee’s personnel file or the City’s official file.
5. The Human Resources Director will coordinate all mandated training and compliance audits with
the COE.
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POLICY A D PROCEDURE
SUBJECT:

ETHICS TRAI I G POLICY

6. Compliance reviews are for the purpose of achieving maximum compliance with the Code of
Ethics training mandates as contained in Article XIII, §2-446 of the Code of Ethics. Results of
training compliance reviews will be submitted to the audited jurisdiction for necessary action
prior to the issuance of a compliance report. The City shall have an opportunity to cure any
deficiency within a reasonable time not to exceed forty-five (45) days. Compliance reviews will
be performed on an as needed or biennial basis.

Departmental Sponsor:
HUMA RESOURCES DEPARTME T
Policy Review Date:

References:

Departments Affected:
ELECTED OFFICIALS, ADVISORY BOARD MEMBERS. ALL CITY EMPLOYEES I CLUDI G
PART-TIME, TEMPORARY A D FULL-TIME EMPLOYEES.

APPROVED:

___________________________________
City Manager
___________________________________
Date:
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RESOLUTION NO.________________

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
RIVIERA BEACH, PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA,
ADOPTING AN ETHICS TRAINING POLICY AND PROVIDING
AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, Palm Beach County has mandated all municipalities
provide Code of Ethics training to all employees; i.e. elected officials,
advisory board members, regular, temporary and part-time employees;
and
WHEREAS, The City has been certified that all employees
concerning the Palm Beach County Code of Ethics have been trained
and a process has been established to train future employees; and
WHEREAS, The County has also mandated that all municipalities
create a Code of Ethics Policy; and
WHEREAS, Attached hereto is the proposed Ethics Training Policy
for City Council approval.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL
OF THE CITY OF RIVIERA BEACH, PALM BEACH COUNTY,
FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS:
SECTION 1. That the Ethics Training Policy attached hereto, is
hereby adopted by the City Council.
SECTION 2. That this resolution shall take effect upon its passage
and approval.

PASSED AND APPROVED this _________ DAY OF __________
2013.

(SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE)

RESOLUTION NO. ___________
PAGE 2

APPROVED:

______________________________
THOMAS A. MASTERS
MAYOR

_________________________
BILLIE E. BROOKS
CHAIRPERSON

ATTEST:

__________________________
CARRIE E. WARD,
MASTER MUNICIPAL CLERK
CITY CLERK

__________________________
DAWN S. PARDO
CHAIR PRO TEM
__________________________
JUDY L. DAVIS
COUNCILPERSON
__________________________
CEDRICK A. THOMAS
COUNCILPERSON
__________________________
SHELBY L. LOWE
COUNCILPERSON

MOTIONED BY:

_______________

SECONDED BY:

_______________

B. BROOKS

_______

D. PARDO

_______

J. DAVIS

_______

C. THOMAS

_______

S. LOWE

_______

REVIEWED AS TO LEGAL SUFFICIENCY
-------------------------------------------------------PAMALA HANNA RYAN, CITY ATTORNEY

DATE: ___________________________

CITY OF RIVIERA BEACH CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Meeting Date:

3/20/2013

Agenda Category:

CONSENT
RESOLUTION

Subject:

A resolution authorizing settlement in the matter of Colette O'Neill f/k/a Colette Spears vs. City
of Riviera Beach, Lieutenant Reno Wells, individually and as Lieutenant for the City of Riviera
Beach, and Sergeant Joshua Lewis, individually and as Sergeant for the City of Riviera Beach Case No.: 502012CA000804XXXXMB AF , in the total amount of $45,000.

Recommendation/Motion:

Approve the settlement.

Originating
Dept.

City Attorney's
Office

Costs:

$45,000

User Dept.

Risk
Management

Funding
Source:

Settlement Payments - Liability
Insurance Fund - Account No.: 6020539-513-0-4508

Advertised:

No

Budget
Account
Number:

602-0539-513-0-4508

Date:
Paper:
Affected
Parties:

Not Required

Background/Summary:
This incident occurred on December 27, 2009 when City of Riviera Beach police officers were in route to a call involving a
dispute and was advised by a police dispatcher that there was a fire in the backyard of 102 East 27th Street. After speaking to a
citizen and investigating the source of the fire, the officers knocked on Ms. O'Neill's door but she refused to cooperate with them.
Ms. O'Neill threatened the officers and grabbed Lt. Wells by his arm and would not let go. Thereafter an altercation ensued and
Ms. O'Neill ended up being arrested in her home. In January 2012, Ms. O'Neill filed a lawsuit against the City and the officers
where she alleged that she was falsely arrested, excessive force was used, and claimed that Sgt. Lewis failed to intervene to
prevent Lt. Wells from using excessive force during the course of her arrest. Ms. O'Neill sought damages and attorneys fees in
excess of $300,000. After mediating the matter, the parties have tentatively settled the case for $45,000, subject to City Council
approval.
Staff recommends that City Council approve the Settlement.

II. Fiscal Impact Analysis
A. Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact:
2013

Fiscal Years
Capital Expenditures
Operating Costs
External Revenues
Program Income (city)
In-kind Match (city)

$45,000

Net Fiscal Impact
NO. Additional FTE Positions (cumulative)
Is Item Included in Current Budget? No
Budget Account NO: 602-0539-513-0-4508

B. Recommended Sources of Funds/Summary of Fiscal Impact :
Settlement Payments - Liability Insurance Fund - Account No.: 602-0539-513-0-4508
C. Department Fiscal Review
III. Review Comments
A. Finance Department Comments:
B. Purchasing/Intergovernmental Relations/Grants Comments
C. Department Director Review
Contract Details
Contract Start Date
Contract End Date
Renewal Start Date
Renewal End Date
Number of 12 month terms this renewal
Dollar Amount
Contractor Company Name
Contractor Contact
Contractor Address
Contractor Phone Number

Contractor Email
Type of Contract
Describe
ATTACHMENTS:
Name:
031313_ONEILL_settlement_resolution_for_March_20_2013_mtg.doc

Description:
031313 ONEIL SETTLEMENT RESOULUTION

RESOLUTION NO.
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF RIVIERA BEACH, PALM BEACH COUNTY,
FLORIDA, AUTHORIZING SETTLEMENT IN THE
MATTER OF COLETTE O’NEILL V. THE CITY OF
RIVIERA BEACH, LIEUTENANT RENO WELLS,
INDIVIDUALLY AND AS LIEUTENANT FOR THE CITY
OF RIVIERA BEACH AND SERGEANT JOSHUA LEWIS,
INDIVIDUALLY AND AS SERGEANT FOR THE CITY OF
RIVIERA BEACH, CASE NO.: 502012CA00080XXXXMB
AF IN THE TOTAL AMOUNT OF $45,000; AUTHORIZING
GALLAGHER BASSETT TO MAKE PAYMENT ON
BEHALF OF THE CITY AFTER RECEIVING A GENERAL
RELEASE; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.
WHEREAS, Plaintiff, Collette O’Neill, was involved in an incident at her home
on December 27, 2009, with City of Riviera Beach police officers which resulted in
Ms. O’Neill’s arrest; and
WHEREAS, although Ms. Collette was charged with aggravated battery on a
law enforcement officer and resisting arrest with violence, the state attorney’s office
dismissed said charges; and
WHEREAS, in January 2012, Ms. O’Neill filed a lawsuit against the City and
the officers in their official and individual capacities, seeking damages for the pain
and suffering caused to her during the December 2009 incident; and
WHEREAS, after mediating the matter, the parties have tentatively agreed to
settle the case for $45,000, pending City Council approval.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF RIVIERA BEACH, PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA, as follows:
SECTION 1. That settlement in the matter of Colette O’Neill f/k/a Colette
Spears v. City of Riviera Beach, Lieutenant Reno Wells, individually and as
Lieutenant for the City of Riviera Beach; and Sergeant Joshua Lewis, individually
and as Sergeant for the City of Riviera Beach, Case No.: 50
2012CA000804XXXXMB AF is hereby approved in the total amount of $45,000,
which includes attorneys fees and costs.
SECTION 2. That Gallagher Bassett Services is authorized to make payment
on behalf of the City, after receiving a general release from Ms. O’Neill.
SECTION 3. That this resolution shall take effect immediately upon its
passage and approval by City Council.

RESOLUTION NO.: _________
PAGE -2PASSED and APPROVED this

day of March, 2013.

APPROVED:
______________________________
THOMAS A. MASTERS
MAYOR

_______________________________
CHAIRPERSON

ATTEST:
______________________________
CARRIE E. WARD
MASTER MUNICIPAL CLERK
CITY CLERK

_______________________________
CHAIR PRO TEM

_______________________________
COUNCILPERSON
_______________________________
COUNCILPERSON
_______________________________
COUNCILPERSON
MOTIONED BY:

_______________

SECONDED BY:

_______________
_______
_______
_______
_______
_______

PHR:syj:03.13.13

REVIEWED AS TO LEGAL SUFFICIENCY

----------------------------------------------------------PAMALA HANNA RYAN, CITY ATTORNEY
DATE: _______________

CITY OF RIVIERA BEACH CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Meeting Date:

3/20/2013

Agenda Category:

CONSENT
RESOLUTION

Subject:

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF RIVIERA BEACH, PALM
BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA, AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO SEND A WRITTEN
REQUEST TO THE GOVERNOR AND SECRETARY OF THE FLORIDA
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION, REQUESTING THAT THEY REEVALUATE
NOISE MITIGATION STRATEGIES ALONG STATE ROAD 710, ALSO KNOWN AS
DR. MARTIN LUTHER KING JR. BOULEVARD; AND PROVIDING FOR AN
EFFECTIVE DATE.

Recommendation/Motion:

Staff recommends approval of this resolution.

Originating Dept.

Community Development

Costs:

n/a

User Dept.

City

Funding Source:

n/a

Advertised:

No

Budget Account Number:

n/a

Date:
Paper:
Affected Parties:

Not Required

Background/Summary:
State Road 710 (SR 710), also known as Dr. Martin Luther King Jr. Boulevard, is a principle arterial
roadway within the City. SR 710, provides interconnectivity to a mixture of residential, commercial
and industrial uses, including direct access to the Port of Palm Beach (Port), serving as the primary
trucking route to the Port.
The Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) is currently expanding SR 710, to ensure that an
adequate Level of Service is maintained on this roadway. FDOT has acquired residential, commercial
and industrial property along the SR 710 corridor in order to accommodate the aforementioned SR
710 roadway expansion project. FDOT's property acquisition along the SR 710 corridor has impacted
multiple neighborhoods and many residents, property owners, and stakeholders. This property
acquisition and associated demolition has exposed many single family houses directly to SR 710,
which previously abutted and were screened by other residences.
There is great community anxiety concerning elevated noise levels during the day and especially at

night and early morning hours, associated with the SR710 expansion and related heavy truck traffic.
Analysis of the past, present and projected decibel levels during night-time and early morning time
periods have not been provided to the City or our stakeholders. Future Port growth, inland port
development and improving economic conditions globally, will certainly increase truck traffic along the
SR 710 corridor over the next twenty (20) years, resulting in continuous truck traffic noise throughout
the day and night. The City requests that FDOT pursue any and all mitigation techniques available,
including but not limited to the construction of a sound attenuating wall, in order to protect our
neighborhoods from additional impacts, specifically noise related, stemming from the SR 710 project.
II. Fiscal Impact Analysis
A. Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact:
Fiscal Years

n/a

Capital Expenditures

n/a

Operating Costs

n/a

External Revenues

n/a

Program Income (city)

n/a

In-kind Match (city)

n/a

Net Fiscal Impact

n/a

NO. Additional FTE Positions (cumulative) n/a
Is Item Included in Current Budget? No
Budget Account NO: n/a
B. Recommended Sources of Funds/Summary of Fiscal Impact :
n/a
C. Department Fiscal Review
n/a
III. Review Comments
A. Finance Department Comments:
B. Purchasing/Intergovernmental Relations/Grants Comments
C. Department Director Review
No comments.
Contract Details
Contract Start Date
Contract End Date
Renewal Start Date

Renewal End Date
Number of 12 month terms this renewal
Dollar Amount
Contractor Company Name
Contractor Contact
Contractor Address
Contractor Phone Number
Contractor Email
Type of Contract
Describe
ATTACHMENTS:
Name:
Resolution_-_SR_710_Letter__03.20.2013_(V.2).doc

Description:
Resolution - SR 710 Letter Request to Governer

RESOLUTION NO. ______

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
RIVIERA BEACH, PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA,
AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO SEND A WRITTEN
REQUEST TO THE GOVERNOR AND SECRETARY OF THE
FLORIDA
DEPARTMENT
OF
TRANSPORTATION,
REQUESTING
THAT
THEY
REEVALUATE
NOISE
MITIGATION STRATEGIES ALONG STATE ROAD 710,
ALSO KNOWN AS DR. MARTIN LUTHER KING JR.
BOULEVARD; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, State Road 710, also known as Dr. Martin Luther King Jr. Highway
(SR 710), is a principle arterial roadway within the City; and
WHEREAS, SR 710, provides interconnectivity to a mixture of residential,
commercial and industrial uses; and
WHEREAS, SR 710, provides direct access to the Port of Palm Beach (Port),
serving as the primary trucking route to the Port; and
WHEREAS, the Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) is currently
expanding SR 710, to ensure that an adequate Level of Service is maintained on this
roadway; and
WHEREAS, FDOT has acquired residential, commercial and industrial property
along the SR 710 corridor in order to accommodate the aforementioned SR 710
roadway expansion project; and
WHEREAS, FDOT’s property acquisition along the SR 710 corridor has impacted
multiple neighborhoods and many residents, property owners, and stakeholders; and
WHEREAS, said property acquisition and associated demolition has exposed
many single family houses directly to SR 710, which previously abutted and were
screened by other residences; and
WHEREAS, there is great community anxiety concerning elevated noise levels
during the day and especially at night and early morning hours, associated with the
SR710 expansion and related heavy truck traffic; and
WHEREAS, analysis of the past, present and projected decibel levels during
night-time and early morning time periods have not been provided to the City or our
stakeholders; and
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WHEREAS, future Port growth, inland port development and improving economic
conditions globally, will certainly increase truck traffic along the SR 710 corridor over
the next twenty (20) years, resulting in continuous truck traffic noise throughout the
day and night; and
WHEREAS, the City requests that FDOT pursue any and all mitigation
techniques available, including but not limited to the construction of a sound
attenuating wall, in order to protect our neighborhoods from additional impacts,
specifically noise related, stemming from the SR 710 project.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF RIVIERA BEACH, PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. The City Council requests and authorizes the Mayor to send a
written request to the Governor and Secretary of the Florida Department of
Transportation, requesting that they reevaluate and pursue noise mitigation
techniques, including but not limited to, the construction of a sound attenuating
wall within the SR 710 corridor.
SECTION 2. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon approval.

PASSED and APPROVED this _____day of ______________, 2013.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY BLANK]
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APPROVED:

______________________________
THOMAS A. MASTERS
MAYOR

________________________________
BILLIE E. BROOKS
CHAIRPERSON

ATTEST:

_______________________________
CARRIE E. WARD
MASTER MUNICIPAL CLERK
CITY CLERK

________________________________
DAWN S. PARDO
CHAIR PRO TEM

________________________________
CEDRICK A. THOMAS
COUNCILPERSON

_______________________________
JUDY L. DAVIS
COUNCILPERSON

_______________________________
SHELBY L. LOWE
COUNCILPERSON
MOTIONED BY:

_______________

SECONDED BY:

_______________

B. BROOKS

_______

J. DAVIS

_______

C. THOMAS

_______

D. PARDO

_______

S. LOWE

_______

REVIEWED AS TO LEGAL SUFFICIENCY
----------------------------------------------------------PAMALA HANNA RYAN, CITY ATTORNEY

DATE: ___________________________

CITY OF RIVIERA BEACH CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Meeting Date:

3/20/2013

Agenda Category:

CONSENT
RESOLUTION

Subject:

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO SUBMIT A GRANT
APPLICATION FOR $1,000,000 FOR REMEDIATION FOR CONSTRUCTION OF
PHASE TWO ( FIND Phase B), SOUTH END OF THE MARINA, UNDER THE
FLORIDA INLAND NAVIGATION DISTRICT WATERWAYS ASSISTANCE
PROGRAM.

Recommendation/Motion:

Staff recommends approval

Originating Dept.

Marina

Costs:

None

User Dept.

Marina

Funding Source:

FIND Grant sources

Advertised:

No

Budget Account Number:

N/A

Date:
Paper:
Affected Parties:

Not Required

Background/Summary:
The City Council authorized staff to submit the FIND Waterways Assistance Program grant
applications for funding in March 2009 for $475,000 and in March 2010 for $1,000,000 and in March
2011 for $ 1,500.000. The City Council authorized staff to submit the FIND Waterways Assistance
Program grant application for funding in March 2012 for $ 1,500,000. The City was successful and
was awarded all four (4) grants.
To continue the replacement of the southern portion of the marina for the docks and utilities the City
again has the opportunity to apply for an additional $1,000,000. The grant applications are due April
1, 2013. Given the time frame for submittal staff is asking City Council to pass a resolution to
authorize the grant application and approve JH Sprague Consulting L.L.C. to process the grant under
the existing contract arrangement.
II. Fiscal Impact Analysis
A. Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact:
Fiscal Years

Capital Expenditures
Operating Costs
External Revenues
Program Income (city)
In-kind Match (city)
Net Fiscal Impact
NO. Additional FTE Positions (cumulative)
Is Item Included in Current Budget? No
Budget Account NO: N/A
B. Recommended Sources of Funds/Summary of Fiscal Impact :
FIND Grant sources
C. Department Fiscal Review
Approved
III. Review Comments
A. Finance Department Comments:
B. Purchasing/Intergovernmental Relations/Grants Comments
C. Department Director Review
This is critical for continuing the marina project, recommend approval
Contract Details
Contract Start Date
Contract End Date
Renewal Start Date
Renewal End Date
Number of 12 month terms this renewal
Dollar Amount
Contractor Company Name
Contractor Contact
Contractor Address
Contractor Phone Number
Contractor Email

Type of Contract
Describe
ATTACHMENTS:
Name:
Resolution_RB_FIND_2013.doc

Description:
Resolution

RESOLUTION NO. _____________
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF RIVIERA BEACH, PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA
AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO SUBMIT A
GRANT
APPLICATION
FOR
$1,000,000
FOR
REMEDIATION FOR CONSTRUCTION OF PHASE B
SOUTH END OF THE MARINA, UNDER THE FLORIDA
INLAND
NAVIGATION
DISTRICT
WATERWAYS
ASSISTANCE PROGRAM; AND UPON NOTIFICATION OF
AWARD, ACCEPT THE GRANT AND AUTHORIZE THE
DIRECTOR OF FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION TO
ESTABLISH THE BUDGET; AND PROVIDING AN
EFFECTIVE DATE.
WHEREAS, The City of Riviera Beach (“City”) is a municipal corporation of the
State of Florida with such power and authority as has been conferred upon it by the
Florida Constitution and Chapter 166, Florida Statutes; and
WHEREAS, the City is interested in carrying out the following described project
for the enjoyment of the citizens of Riviera Beach and the State of Florida:
Project Title: Municipal Marina Remediation Construction Phase B
Total Estimated Cost: $1,000,000
Total Cost of Project: $5,183,648
Brief Description of Project: This marina construction project includes
construction of replacement of the southern portion of the Marina including
floating docks and utilities, fuel line and facilities, project management and
engineering.
WHEREAS, the City again has an opportunity to apply for an additional grant for
$1,000,000, which is due April 1, 2013; and
WHEREAS, Florida Inland Navigation District financial assistance is required for
the program described above.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF RIVIERA BEACH, PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA AS FOLLOWS:
SECTION 1. The City Council authorizes the City Manager to submit an
additional grant application to the Florida Inland Navigation District in the amount of
$1,000,000 – toward the total cost of the project.

RESOLUTION NO. ______________
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The City Council authorizes the Director of Finance and
SECTION 2.
Administration to establish the budget.
SECTION 3. The City of Riviera Beach certifies to the following:
1. That it will accept the terms and conditions set forth in FIND rule 66B-2 F.A.C.
and which will be a part of the Project Agreement for any assistance awarded
under the proposal.
2. That it is in complete accord with the proposal and that it will carry out the
Program in the manner described in the proposal and any plans and
specifications thereto unless prior approval for any change has been received
from FIND.
3. That it has the ability and intention to finance its share of the cost of the
project and that the project will be operated and maintained at the expense of
the said City of Riviera Beach for public use.
4. That it will not discriminate against any person based on race, color or
national origin in the use of said property or facility acquired or developed
pursuant to this proposal, and shall comply with the terms and intent of Title
VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, BI 88.352 (1964) and design and construct
the facilities to comply with statutes relating to accessibility by handicapped
persons, as well as, other federal, state and local laws, rules and
requirements.
5. That it will maintain adequate financial records on the proposed project to
substantiate claims for reimbursement.
6. That it will make available to FIND, if requested, a post audit of expenses
incurred on the project prior to, or in conjunction with, request for the final
reimbursement agreed to by FIND.
That City Council approves JH Sprague Consulting, LLC, to
SECTION 4.
prepare the FIND grant application and represent the City of Riviera Beach at required
meetings under the existing contract at no additional cost to the city.
SECTION 5. This resolution shall take effect immediately upon its approval.

PASSED and APPROVED this

day of

, 2013.

RESOLUTION NO. ______________
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APPROVED:
______________________________
THOMAS A. MASTERS
MAYOR

________________________________
BRUCE A. GUYTON
COUNCILPERSON

ATTEST:
_______________________________
CARRIE E. WARD,
MASTER MUNICIPAL CLERK
CITY CLERK

________________________________
JUDY L. DAVIS
COUNCILPERSON
________________________________
CEDRICK A. THOMAS
COUNCILPERSON
_______________________________
DAWN S. PARDO
COUNCILPERSON
_______________________________
TERENCE D. DAVIS
COUNCILPERSON

MOTIONED BY:

_______________

SECONDED BY:

_______________

B. GUYTON

_______

J. DAVIS

_______

C. THOMAS

_______

D. PARDO

_______

T. DAVIS

_______

REVIEWED AS TO LEGAL
SUFFICIENCY
----------------------------------------------------------PAMALA HANNA RYAN, CITY ATTORNEY

CITY OF RIVIERA BEACH CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Meeting Date:

3/20/2013

Agenda Category:

REGULAR

Subject:

Review and analysis of all Utility Billing and Customer Service Processes; concerns;
recommendations and responses.

Recommendation/Motion:

Attached presentation outlines each concern, how to respond and
deal with each category as it affects Customer Service in our Utility
Billing.

Originating
Dept.

Finance

Costs:

N/A

User Dept.

Utility Special District
and Utility Billing

Funding
Source:

Utility District Operating Budget,
Finance Department Operating
Budget

Advertised:

No

Budget
Account
Number:

Utility Billing Budget

Date:
Paper:
Affected
Parties:

Not Required

Background/Summary:
Power Point Presentation representing overview of Office Environment, Staffing, Billing, Cashiering,
Policies, Procedures, Work Flow, Management Tools, Utility Special District and Utility Billing
Relations, Banking Services, Technology and Customers relative to Concerns, Responses and
Recommendations.
II. Fiscal Impact Analysis
A. Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact:
Fiscal Years
Capital Expenditures

Operating Costs
External Revenues
Program Income (city)
In-kind Match (city)
Net Fiscal Impact
NO. Additional FTE Positions (cumulative)
Is Item Included in Current Budget? Yes
Budget Account NO: Utility Billing Budget
B. Recommended Sources of Funds/Summary of Fiscal Impact :
Utility District Operating Budget, Finance Department Operating Budget
C. Department Fiscal Review
N/A
III. Review Comments
A. Finance Department Comments:
At the November 7, 2012 meeting of the City Council, Resolution No. 130-12 was adopted providing
for a 90-day period to develop a comprehensive plan to establish a permanent process for dealing
with customer complaints. This presentation is the response to the Council's request.
B. Purchasing/Intergovernmental Relations/Grants Comments
C. Department Director Review
Contract Details
Contract Start Date
Contract End Date
Renewal Start Date
Renewal End Date
Number of 12 month terms this renewal
Dollar Amount
Contractor Company Name
Contractor Contact
Contractor Address
Contractor Phone Number
Contractor Email

Type of Contract
Describe
ATTACHMENTS:
Name:
Customer_Service_Presentation_03.20.2013_meeting.pdf

Description:
FN - Utility Customer Service Revew, Analysis and Recommendations

Utility
Customer Service
Review, Analysis and Recommendations

Review Process
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Interviewed all Utility Billing Staff
Reviewed Metering process with Utility Billing and USD staff
Reviewed ordinances
Reviewed policies
Reviewed USD Charter
Reviewed Utility Service Agreement
Reviewed USD resolutions
Reviewed audit work papers
Reviewed Internal Audit reports
Reviewed Bond documents
Reviewed AWWA Best Practice
Observation of Utility billing office
Discussed issues with software provider
Discussed issues with bank services provider
Responded to customer calls
Provided problem resolution/research
Visit to Seacoast Utility Authority and Jupiter Utility Customer Service

SWOT Analysis
Strengths – Weaknesses – Opportunities - Threats
•

Strengths
–
–
–
–
–

•

Engaged Management
Committed Staff
Knowledgeable Staff
Technology upgrades
Previously identified improvements

Opportunities
–
–
–
–
–

•

Reinvent customer service
Modernize service delivery
Develop efficiencies
Expedite service
Enhance customer satisfaction

Weaknesses
–
–
–
–
–
–

•

Poor Customer service
Limited Financial & staff resources
Limited knowledge on remedies
Limited use of technology
Continued time pressures
Disconnect between staffs

Threats
–
–
–
–
–
–

Continued limits on resources
Outside Influences
Misinformation
Resistance to change
Resistance of customer to use tools
Space restrictions

Office Environment
Concerns
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Overwhelming work load
Conflicting responsibilities
Inefficient work space
Loud work environment
No separation between paying
customers and customers with
inquiries only
Unfriendly lobby
Lack of handicap access to
cashiers

Response
•

Divide the Utility Billing Office into
three functions
– Billing
– Customer Service/Problem
Resolution
– Treasury

•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Establish a new location for a
Customer Service/Call Center
Redesign lobby to emulate a bank
setting (Inquiries handled at desk)
Develop a queuing system
Provide forms in lobby
Provide location to complete
forms
Enhance office appearance
Relocate copier, printer and sealer

Staffing
Concerns
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Outdated or non-existent written
Policies and Procedures
Minimal training on systems
Limited cross training
No talking script
No FAQ’s for customers
No connection with customers
Inappropriate customer interaction
Inconsistent professional behavior
Inefficient work environment
Conflicts with roles
No clear performance measures

Response
•
•
•

Update Policies and Procedures and
provide process work flow charts
Publish a Customer Service Guide
Provide necessary training
–
–

•

Cross train employees
–
–
–

•
•
•
•
•
•

Billing software
Customer Service
Provide clear role responsibilities
Develop staff rotation
Identify performance measures

Develop a call center with recordable
calls and manager real-time oversight
Provide customer FAQ sheet
Establish work rules
Provide badges name plates and
business cards
Evaluate additional staffing needs
Rewrite job descriptions

Billing
Concerns
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Bill format provides minimal ability to
communicate with customers
Irregular calendars result in irregular
billings
Time requirement from read-to-mail
Bulk mail drop on Summit Blvd, WPB
Not completing work orders prior to
billing cycle
Limited system flagging of accounts
Multitude of rate categories

Response
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Consider changing Billing format
Implement E-bills
Establish set calendar for meter read
Establish set calendar for billing
Implement Cycle realignment
Maximize billing system to flag accounts
Outsource mailing
Expedite work order process
–
–
–

Electronically deliver work orders
Field issued work orders
Preventative Maintenance Program
•
•

•
•

Meter change-out
Battery change-out

Develop metrics for work order process
Simplify rate structure

Cashiering
Concerns
•

Overlapping cashier responsibilities
–
–
–
–

•

Training
–
–
–

•
•
•
•
•

Cashier window
Drive-thru window
Mail
Drop Box
Utility billing system
Utility billing policies
Customer Service

Customers are unclear on payment
requirements
Manual forms
Manual data entry
Timeliness of work order delivery to
USD staff
Customer Service not closing the deal

Response
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Relieve cashier at window from drivethru duties
Relieve cashiers of mail duty
Provide staff training
Provide FAQ’s to customers
Provide for electronic forms
Provide dropdown options on work
orders
OCR scan line
Submit work orders electronically
Take payments over the phone
Provide for bank drafting
Purchase cash counting machine
Require payments in US dollars

Policies, Procedures, Work Flow
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Billing
Bankruptcy
Bounced checks
Collections
Customer Service
Deposits
Delinquency
Disconnect
Dispute Resolution
Implementing a rate change
Leaks

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Liens
Maximum Retro
Meter change
Meter reading
New accounts
Payment Plans
Personnel
Pools
Record Retention
Refunds
Spikes in usage

Ordinances-Chapter 20 Utilities
Concerns
•
•
•
•
•
•

USD Charter reference to City
Ordinance
Outdated – some sections are as old
as 1957
Presentation is disjointed
Some fees are disclosed within, others
are off-line
Ordinances are not easily accessible
by Utility customers
Inconsistent enforcement or
application

Response
•

•
•

Rewrite to address current issues,
process, policies, statutes and
technology
Reorganize in a more logical flow
Specific areas to be redrafted:
–

Application for service
•

–
–
–
–
–

•
•

Property owner

Security deposit
Delinquency
Appeals process
Preventative Maintenance
Provide availability on the web site

Replace Ordinances with Board
adopted Policy
Consistent enforcement of Policies
and State Statutes

Management Tools
Concerns
•
•

Limited data available for management
to base decisions
Limited opportunity for management to
discuss operations

Response
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Provide system for Customer Service
data collection
Develop management reports
Establish metrics for Customer Service
Establish metrics for work orders
Establish metrics meter malfunctions
Establish standing meeting schedule
Establish Office E-mail address
Provide for customer surveys and
feedback

USD – Utility Billing Relations
Concerns
•

Current operational set-up provides a
disjointed environment without a clear
connection between responsibilities,
authority and accountability

Response
•
•

•

Provide clear definition of staff roles
Establish process for problem
resolution and subsequent policy or
procedural changes
Develop direct and indirect cost plan

Banking Services
Concerns
•

•
•
•

Utility Billing does not accept
credit or debit cards at the cashier
window
Customer is unable to pay on-line
with a credit or debit card
Payment by mail is delivered to
Utility Billing Office
Timeliness of bank deposits

Response
•

•
•
•

Implement acceptance of credit
and debit cards both at City Hall
and via the web
Establish a lock box for mailed
payments
Utilize remote deposit for check
deposits
Utilize Vault360 for cash deposits

Technology
Concerns
•

Limited technology currently being
utilized

Response
•

Enhance on-line self-help portal
–
–
–

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Provide on-line forms
Provide on-line help
Provide on-line FAQs
Utilize E-bills
Accept credit and debit card payments
Provide self-help on-line lien search
Implement Customer Service software
Develop Field issued work orders
Develop Field received work orders
Maximize phone system
–
–
–

•
•
•

Account billing history
Account usage history
Archive copies of bills

Recorded messages
Phone tree
Auto call back

OCR scanner – In-house lock box
License scanner
Install a Time clock

Customers
Concerns
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Customer Service
Customer-staff interaction
Limited data on bills
Limited access to data
No written information provided
No FAQs
Timeliness of service
No conveniences
–
–
–
–

Self-help
E-bills
Alternate payment methods
Accessible forms

Response
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Professional, knowledgeable staff
Efficient visitor operation
Inviting environment to visit
FAQs and written information
Quicker response on service requests
Quicker problem resolution
Modern conveniences
Opportunity to provide feedback
Formal Appeals Process
CUSTOMER SERVICE

Committed to Change
~
Committed to Customer Service

CITY OF RIVIERA BEACH CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Meeting Date:

3/20/2013

Agenda Category:

Subject:

Community Benefits Request for Donations from Councilwoman Judy L. Davis in the
amount of $2,498.68 for the Memorial Day Tribute flag planting and ceremony at
Riviera Beach City Hall.

Recommendation/Motion:

Originating
Dept.

Legislative

User Dept.

Advertised:

No

Approve the Waste Management Community Benefits Request for
Donations to the City of Riviera Beach from Councilwoman Davis in
the amount of $2,498.68 for the Memorial Day Tribute flag planting
and ceremony.

Costs:

Funding Source:

Waste Management Community
Benefits Fund

Budget Account
Number:

130-0101-511-2-8301

Date:
Paper:
Affected
Parties:

Not
Required

Background/Summary:
In observance of Memorial Day, Councilwoman Judy Davis will have a special tribute in honor of
fallen, brave soldiers and first responders. The tribute will feature 2,000 U.S. flags that will be
"planted" in the grassy (frontage) area at Riviera Beach City Hall at Avenue H West and Blue Heron
Blvd. The flags will be planted Saturday, May 18, 2013 and will remain on display through Tuesday, May 28,
2013.
II. Fiscal Impact Analysis
A. Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact:
Fiscal Years

2013

Capital Expenditures
2,498.68

Operating Costs
External Revenues
Program Income (city)
In-kind Match (city)

2,498.68

Net Fiscal Impact
NO. Additional FTE Positions (cumulative)
Is Item Included in Current Budget? Yes
Budget Account NO: 130-0101-511-2-8301

B. Recommended Sources of Funds/Summary of Fiscal Impact :
Waste Management Community Benefits Fund
C. Department Fiscal Review
III. Review Comments
A. Finance Department Comments:
B. Purchasing/Intergovernmental Relations/Grants Comments
C. Department Director Review
Contract Details
Contract Start Date
Contract End Date
Renewal Start Date
Renewal End Date
Number of 12 month terms this renewal
Dollar Amount
Contractor Company Name
Contractor Contact
Contractor Address
Contractor Phone Number
Contractor Email
Type of Contract
Describe

ATTACHMENTS:
Name:
Community_Benefits_Form_-_Memorial_Day_Tribute.pdf

Description:
Community Benefits Form - Memorial Day Tribute

CITY OF RIVIERA BEACH CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Meeting Date:

3/20/2013

Agenda Category:

BOARD APPOINTMENT

Subject:

Consider appointing Mr. Brian Coulton and Mr. Arthur Hamilton, to the Planning and
Zoning Board to fill one regular member position and one alternate member position.

Recommendation/Motion:

Staff recommends considering the appointment of Mr. Brian
Coulton and Mr. Arthur Hamilton, to fill two vacant positions on the
Planning and Zoning Board; one regular member position and one
alternate member position.

Originating Dept.

Community Development

Costs:

n/a

User Dept.

City

Funding Source:

n/a

Advertised:

No

Budget Account Number:

n/a

Date:
Paper:
Affected Parties:

Not Required

Background/Summary:
The Planning and Zoning Board is an advisory board to the City Council, consisting of seven regular
members and two alternate members. Members are appointed by the City Council for three year
terms. The City currently has three vacancies on the Board as one regular position and both alternate
positions are vacant (see attached Planning and Zoning Board members list).
Staff has received two applications from residents requesting to serve on the Planning and Zoning
Board; Mr. Brian Coulton and Mr. Arthur Hamilton. Both applicants currently reside in District 1.
II. Fiscal Impact Analysis
A. Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact:
Fiscal Years

n/a

Capital Expenditures

n/a

Operating Costs

n/a

External Revenues

n/a

Program Income (city)

n/a

In-kind Match (city)

n/a

Net Fiscal Impact

n/a

NO. Additional FTE Positions (cumulative) n/a
Is Item Included in Current Budget? No
Budget Account NO: n/a
B. Recommended Sources of Funds/Summary of Fiscal Impact :
n/a
C. Department Fiscal Review
n/a
III. Review Comments
A. Finance Department Comments:
B. Purchasing/Intergovernmental Relations/Grants Comments
C. Department Director Review
No comments.
Contract Details
Contract Start Date
Contract End Date
Renewal Start Date
Renewal End Date
Number of 12 month terms this renewal
Dollar Amount
Contractor Company Name
Contractor Contact
Contractor Address
Contractor Phone Number
Contractor Email
Type of Contract
Describe

ATTACHMENTS:
Name:

Description:

PZB_Membership_List_2013_(v.1).pdf

Planning and Zoning Board Membership List - 2013

Mr._Coulton_P_Z_Board_Application_CC_03.20.2013.pdf

Mr. Coulton P&Z Board Application CC 03.20.2013

Mr._Hamilton_P_Z_Board_Application_CC_03.20.2013.pdf

Mr. Hamilton P&Z Board Application CC 03.20.2013

City of Riviera Beach
Planning and Zoning Board
Membership List - 2013
Marie Davis, Chairperson
3001 Lake Drive, Riviera Beach, FL 33404
(561) 842-4760
mariedavis1@comcast.net

Term Expires:
Reappointed:
Appointed:
Group: A

12/2014
N/A
12/2011
District # 4

Tradrick McCoy, Vice-Chairperson
1465 W. 30th Street, Riviera Beach, FL 33404
(561) 650-6880-w (561) 827-0365
mccoy843@gmail.com

Term Expires:
Reappointed:
Appointed:
Group: B

4/2015
N/A
4/2012
District # 1

S. Lashea Brooks
1349 West 35th Street, Riviera Beach, FL 33404
(561) 312-4441
slbrooks09@yahoo.com

Term Expires:
Reappointed:
Appointed:
Group: C

5/2015
5/2012
1/2009
District # 1

Rena James
3300 R.J. Hendley Avenue, Riviera Beach, FL 33404
(561) 667-7325-c (561) 335-1608-w
suprwmn0007@yahoo.com

Term Expires:
Reappointed:
Appointed:
Group: C

1/2014
1/2011
12/2007
District # 1

Edward Kunuty
1120 Powell Drive, Riviera Beach, FL 33404
(561) 842-1166-h (561) 371-0158-m (561) 842-8700-w
kunuty@bellsouth.net

Term Expires:
Reappointed:
Appointed:
Group: A

12/2014
12/2011
11/2002
District # 4

Julius Whigham
1602 West 36th Street, Riviera Beach, FL 33404
(561) 842-5021-h
ramjaw1@yahoo.com

Term Expires: 12/2014
Reappointed: 12/2011
Appointed:
8/1999
Group: A
District # 1

Vacant

Term Expires:
Reappointed:
Appointed:
Group: B
District #

Vacant, 1st Alternate

Term Expires:
Reappointed:
Appointed:
Group: B
District #

Vacant, 2nd Alternate

Term Expires:
Reappointed:
Appointed:
Group: C
District #

The Planning and Zoning Board meets on the second Thursday of the month at 6:30 p.m. in the Riviera Beach Council
Chambers, 600 West Blue Heron Boulevard, Riviera Beach, Florida 33404. For additional information, contact the City’ s
Planning and Zoning Division at (561) 845-4060.

Updated: November 28, 2012

City of Riviera Beach

City Council Board Appointment Form
Part I:
DISTRICT INFORMATION
Board Name: PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD
( ) At Large Appointment

OR

Term of Appointment ____3____years

From APRIL 2013 To APRIL 2016

Seat Requirement: _____________________
( ) Reappointment
OR

( )District Appointment

Seat#: _________________

OR

( X ) New Appointment

to complete the term of _______________________________

Due to

( ) Resignation

Other

Part II:
APPLICANT MUST BE A RESIDENT OF RIVIERA BEACH
Name: MR. ARTHUR HAMILTON
Occupation/Affiliation:

SEE ATTACHMENT

Business Name:
Business Address:
City/State:

Zip Code:

Residence Address:
City/State:

1432 WEST 30TH STREET

(DISTRICT #1)

RIVIERA BEACH

Zip Code:

Home Phone: (561) 842-5120

Business Phone:

Mailing Address Preference: ( ) Business Address

Minority Identification Code:
( )
American Indian ( ) Female
( )
Asian
( ) Female
( )
Black
( ) Female
( )
Hispanic
( ) Female
( )
White
( ) Female

33404

(
(
(
(
(

( X ) Residence

( ) Other

) Male
) Male
) Male
) Male
) Male

Part III: CITY COUNCIL COMMENTS
Appointments to be made at the Riviera Beach City Council Meeting on: MARCH 20, 2013
When a person is being considered for re-appointment, the number and nature of previously disclosed voting conflicts shall be
considered by the City Council.

Number of previously disclosed voting conflicts: N/A
Signature: _________________________________

Date: _______________________

